STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
12/4/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ' ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the Agenda for December 4, 2018.

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




5.

Approval of the Minutes for October 29, 2018.

CONSENT AGENDA

I

I

II1

vV

For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. SUGARLOAF MOUNTAIN MOTEL & MARKET - General / 430 S. “C” St ~
Virginia City, NV

B. NOMNIVORE LLC - General / 222 E. 8th Ave ~ Reno, NV

C. FIVES CINETIC CORP - General / 23400 Halstead Rd ~ Farmington Hills, MI

D. DEBELL WINDOW SYSTEMS, INC - Contractor / 2600 S. Virginia St ~ Reno, NV
E. BIGHORN SERVICES, LLC - General / 560 Juniper St ~ Elko, NV

F. STRATOSPHERE QUALITY LLC - General / 12024 Exit Five Pkwy ~ Fishers, IN
G. ANDREWS HARDING, AIA ARCHITECT - General / 111 East 14th St ~ Elmira
Heights, NY

H. ERM-WEST, INC - General / 1277 Treat Blvd ~ Walnut Creek, CA

L. SMX, LLC - General / 860 W. Evergreen ~ Chicago, IL

J. A-1 QUALITY CARE, LLC - Contractor / 12 Sunset Way #206 ~ Henderson, NV
K. MANWEB SERVICES INC - Contractor / 11800 Exit Five Pkwy ~ Fishers, IN

L. LOOKOUT TRENDZ - Home / 368 Wagon Wheel Way ~ Dayton, NV

M. JHI ENGINEERING, INC - General / 018 SW. Boundary Ct Ste 200 ~ Portland,
OR

N. AMBER’S PET FRIENDLY GROOMING - General / 269 Edith Lane ~ Dayton, NV
O. MICHAEL THOMAS SCHMOKER - Home / 4590 Tybo Rd ~ Reno, NV

P. HARGROVE SERVICES CORPORATION - General / 20 S. Royal St ~ Mobile, AL
Q. CBIZ RISK & ADVISORY SERVICES, LLC - General / 6050 Oak Tree Blvd ~
Cleveland, OH

R. PANASONIC SOLUTION TECHNOLOGIES CO., LTD - General / Tokyo, JP

S. SUEZ WTS ANALYTICAL INSTRUMENTS, INC - General / 6060 Spine Rd ~
Boulder, CO

T. ALLIED MODULAR BUILDING SYSTEMS, INC - General / 642 W. Nicolas Ave ~
Orange, CA

U. TRUCKEE TAHOE LUMBER COMPANY - General / 10242 Church St ~ Truckee,
CA

For possible action, Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including Policy 040 Annual Department Budget Request, including amendments to
the policy provisions and changing the policy title to Budgeting and Budget
Requests.

For possible action, Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including Policy 205A Reasonable Accommodation for Victims of
Domestic Violence and Policy 206A Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy,
and amend or replace corresponding forms for Policy 206A including Forms 206A
F1, F2, F3, F4, F5, and Fé.

For possible action, Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including Policy 1001 Disciplinary Action and Appeals, adding Policy
1000 Investigations of Alleged Misconduct; and adding and amending




10.

11.

12.

corresponding forms including for verbal warning, written reprimand, last-chance-
agreement, and complaints.

For possible action, Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including Policy 302 Source of Candidates, Open Recruitment,
Promotion, Transfer, and Eligible List to Vacancy Positions; Policy 303 Job
Announcements; and Policy 304 Applications, Eligibility of Reduction of Applicants.

VI For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $633,702.44 and

accounts payable in the amount of $1,110,153.66.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and consideration to approve Resolution 18-520 honoring Mark Osmer
and Carol Maley, with the Virginia City RV Park, as the 2018 Storey County business
of the year.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

For possible action: consideration and possible action on second reading of ordinance
no. 18-299 creating the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area pursuant to
Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 278C; considering all complaints, protests,
objections and comments to the Area and the undertaking, ordering an undertaking
relating to the tax increment area; creating the tax increment account for the
undertaking; and ratifying action taken by County officers toward the undertaking
and the tax increment area.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

For possible action: consideration and possible action on a resolution no. 18-522
approving the cooperative agreement between the County and TRI General
Improvement District relating to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment
Area subject to minor changes, if any, as are approved by the County Manager.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

For possible action: consideration and possible action on a resolution no. 18-521
approving the reimbursement agreement among the County and all owners of
property in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area subject to minor
changes, if any, as are approved by the County Manager.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

For possible action: consideration and possible action on a resolution no. 18-523
making certain determinations regarding excess tax increment revenues distributed




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

into the funds of the respective taxing agencies under Nevada Revised Statutes
("NRS") 278C.250 in connection with the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment
Area.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion/Possible Action. Adoption of 2018 Carson River Watershed Regional
Floodplain Management Plan by Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion/Possible Action to approve purchase of property from Virginia City
Ventures Inc. of a parcel of real property identified as Lots 6, 7, and 8 of Block 210
Range H in Virginia City Nevada for the price of $41,000.00

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion/Possible Action to approve purchase of property from Virginia City
Holdings LLC of parcels of real property identified as Lots 6 - 16 and the south half
of Lot 5 Block 180, Lots 3 - 17 Block 181; Lots 1- 6 Block 200; and Lots 1-6 Block 201 all
within Range H, Virginia City, Nevada and bearing Assessor Parcel Numbers 001-
135-07; 001-136-01; 001-173-01 and 001-176-01 (the Property) for the price of
$445,000.00

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion/Possible Action to approve purchase of property from Richard Correll of
parcels of real property identified as all of Lots 2,3,4, and 5, in Block 210, Range H of
Virginia City, Nevada, (the Property) for the price of $83,333.00 and the conveyance of
lot 6 Block 210, Range H Virginia City, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion/Possible Action to approve purchase of property from Mark Charlton of
parcels of real property identified as all of Lot 1, in Block 210, Range H of Virginia
City, Nevada (the Property) for the price of $21,000.00 and $2,000.00 for a metal shed
located on the Property

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Special Use Permit 2018-053 is a request by the applicant to allow for construction of a
single family residence and accessory structures on a 19.8 acre vacant property located
in the Forestry zone east of Virginia City in Six Mile Canyon. The subject property is
a portion of the West 2 of the Northwest Y of Section 25, Township 17 North, Range
21 East, Six Mile Canyon, Storey County, Nevada and having Assessor’s Parcel
Number 004-321-40.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

The applicant requests to abandon a portion of unimproved F Street right-of-way,
located within Virginia City. The right-of-way abandonment would be approximately
50-feet by 65-feet, located between Lot 5, Block 227 and Lot 5, Block 228 of Virginia
City. The project also includes the dedication of an existing travelled way identified
as F Street (although not currently located in the F Street right-of-way). The right-of-
way abandonment is located adjacent to vacant parcels owned by the applicant at 660
S. F Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and borders Assessor’s Parcel
Numbers (APNs) 001-121-02 and 001-124-08.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and possible action on Bill No. 109, the second reading of Ordinance No.
18-298, an ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.04 Building and
Construction, to adopt the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International
Wildland Urban Interface Code, and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the
2018 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, amending section 15.04.080 Fire
District requirements, and providing for other properly related matters.

RECESS TO CALL TO ORDER THE FIRE DISTRICT BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and possible action on a Resolution No. 18-518 adopting regulations
consistent with Ordinance 18-298 amending Storey County Code chapter 15.04
Buildings and Construction, to adopt the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018
International Wildland Urban Interface Code and the 2018 Northern Nevada
Amendments to the 2018 International Wildland-Urban Interface Code.

RECESS TO RECONVENE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and Possible action on amendment of Resolution 18-519 to provide a
new date for a public hearing on objections to the proposed lease of a portion of the
County Complex located at 1705 Peru Drive to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no
rent and to allow the County Manager to license temporary use of the facility to the
Nevada Highway Patrol pending a final determination on the approval/disapproval
of the lease.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Special Use Permit Amendment 2000-222-A-6-2018 by applicant Scott Jolcover
representing Comstock Mining, LLC. The applicant requests an amendment to
Special Use Permit (SUP) Number 2000-222-A- 5 to modify Condition 1.2 from an
affective period of 10 years to 20 years for surface and underground mining,
processing, and ancillary uses in accordance with Storey County Code 17.92; the
amendment also includes modifying Condition 8.5 regarding contributions toward
historic preservation projects. The subject properties of the SUP are located in
American Flat and Gold Hill approximately in Township 16 North, Range 20 East,




26.

27.

28.

Sections 1 and 12; and Township 16 North, Range 21 East, Sections 4, 5, 6,7, 8, and 9
MDBM, Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

ITEM WITHDRAWN Discussion/Possible Action: 2018-045 Zone Map Amendment
of a request by applicant Storey County, and property owners Virginia City Ventures
Inc. for APN 001-172-01, Lots 6-8 of Block 210, at 575 South H Street; Richard Correll
for APN 001-172-03, Lots 2-5 of Block 210, at 535 South H Street; and Mark Charlton
for APN 001-172-04, Lot 1 of Block 210, at 515 South H Street, all located in Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada, and, to amend the zoning designation of said parcels
which are located within portions of Sections 29 and 30, Township 17 North, Range 21
East, MDBM, from (I12) Heavy Industrial to (CR) Commercial Residential. The 2016
Storey County Master Plan map for this area designates these properties as a
transition zone from Industrial to Mixed-Use Commercial Residential.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and Possible Action: Annual review and evaluation of the performance of
Pat Whitten, County Manager. The board may, without further notice, take
administrative action against Pat Whitten, County Manager, if the board determines
that such administrative action is awarded after considering the character, alleged
misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health of the person. At
the end of the annual performance evaluation, the board may modify existing goals
and objectives of the county manager’s job; determine whether to provide a merit
increase, bonus, or other compensation adjustment; and /or take adverse
administrative action up to and including termination.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of business license second readings:

A. OMBOLI INTERIORS INC - Contractor / 4200 Rewana Way ~ Reno, NV

B. ADKORE STAFFING GROUP LLC - General / 4200 W. 115th St ~ Legwood, KS
C. MICHAEL CLAY CORPORATION - Contractor / 410 E. Minor ~ Winnemucca,
NV

D. PICKETT, KELM & ASSOCIATES - General / 4100 Duval Rd ~ Austin, TX

E. FISHER SAND & GRAVEL,dba: ARIZONA DRILL&B-Contractor/1302 W.Drivers
Way~Tempe,AZ

F. DANNY WAYNEHAM, dba: SAWDUDE DESIGNS - General / 1130 Harmony ~
WMCA, NV

G. PROGRESS WIRELESS - Contractor / 2133 Donald Dr #3 ~ Moraga, CA

H. HOLDER CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 3300 Riverwood Pkwy ~ Atlanta, GA
I. ATLAS COPCO RENTAL LLC - General / 2306 South Battleground Rd ~ La Port,
TX

J. CHIKO AIRTEC CO., LTD - General / 2-27-24 Hakushima ~ Osaka, Japan

K. COLIN GORDON ASSOCIATES - General / 150 North Hill Dr ~ Brisbane, CA

L. ALPINE LOCK AND KEY, INC - General / 811 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV




M. SOUTH STAR RISK CONSUTLING, LLC - General / 1059 Redfish St ~ Bayou
Vista, TX

N. ENGINEERED TOOLING SYSTEMS - General / 2780 Courier NW ~ Grand
Rapids, MI

O. WEIGL CONCRETE, LLC - Contractor / 3550 Barron Way ~ Reno, NV

P. PROSPECT PEAK LLC - Contractor / 177 Walnut Dr ~ Fernley, NV

Q. NEESER CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 455 US Hwy 395 N ~ Washoe Valley,
NV

R. MTEX INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS GMBH - General / 7 Kirchstrafe ~ Roansburg,
Germany

S. TYRES INTERNATIONAL INC - General / 4637 Allen Rd ~ Stow, OH

T. RYAN SESSIONS, dba: HANDYMAN SERVICE - Home Business /7770 Opal Bluff
Dr ~ Reno, NV

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(c) a member of the public may request the supporting material for
the meeting from Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk, at (775) 847-0969. Additionally, the
supporting materials may be found at www.storeycounty.org.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.




To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 11/29/2018; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia
City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

sy Vi sdauRbgion
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

2.

Title: Approval of the Minutes for October 29, 2018.

Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk
County Manager Other Agency Review:
Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

MONDAY, OCTOBER 29, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, County
Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis,
Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Sarah Burnet, Planner Kathy Canfield

1. CALL TO ORDER MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for October 29, 2018.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for October 29, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
County Manager Pat Whitten:
¢ The November BOCC meeting will be held Friday, November 9t at 10 A.M. in order to
canvass the vote.
A special Board meeting will be held Monday, November 19t at 9 A.M.
The December BOCC meeting is scheduled for December 4th at 10:00 A.M.
The annual NACO conference will be held in Minden/Gardnerville - November 13t thru 15%.
The County’s annual Christmas party will take place on Friday, December 7.

1




Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens:
o Early voting will continue through this week from 8 AM to 6PM, in the Slammer museum. So
far turnout is about 25%. Election Day is November 6 - polls open 7AM to 7PM.

5. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Chairman McBride:
e Saturday was a great day for the Nevada Day Parade - with huge attendance due to the
perfect weather. The parade was longer than ever since it is a political year.

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action on resolution 18-516,
directing the County’s Engineer to prepare preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to
reimburse the costs of an undertaking for a tax increment area formed pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes Chapter 278C.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on items 6 and 7.

Kendra Follett, of Sherman & Howard - bond counsel for the County, explained this Resolution
directs the County engineer to prepare preliminary plans, cost estimates, and related items for the
costs of undertaking a water project - a natural resources project under the Statute. This is the first
step in creating a Tax Increment Area for Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

County Manager Whitten explained that a “place marker” has been included with the agenda for the
possible addition of agenda updates - there are no updates and the agenda as posted is correct.

Public Comment:
None

Chairman McBride clarified that all costs incurred in putting this together - should this make it to the
“finish line” - are incurred by the participants and not by the County.

Mr. Whitten: Correct. The County asked and received, an increase in deposit as this length of time
has cost additional expense to the County. In addition, the County has requested reimbursement of
wages for the Comptroller, the Deputy District Attorney, and the County Manager for additional
time expended. The County is paid in-full at this time.

Motion: I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve Resolution 18-516 approving the
economic development financing proposal for the effluent pipeline for certain properties in the Tahoe
Regional Industrial Center; directing the Clerk of the County to notify the Governor’s Office of
Economic Development and the Interim Finance Committee of the Nevada Legislature of the
County’s approval and providing other details in connection therewith,

Kendra Follett, read the title: A resolution directing the County’s Engineer to prepare preliminary
plans, cost estimates and related items to reimburse the costs of an undertaking for a tax increment
area formed pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 278C.




Chairman McBride: We have a motion, I'll second your motion - it's been moved and seconded to
approve Resolution, first reading of Resolution 18-516, all those in favor signify by saying aye, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Deputy District Attorney Loomis: Just for clarification, this doesn’t require second reading, this is the
approval - this is a resolution.

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action on resolution 18-517,
provisionally ordering an undertaking for a tax increment area formed pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes Chapter 278C; setting a time and place for a hearing on the undertaking; and providing other
matters related thereto.

Kendra Follett explained this Resolution is for making a provisional order for this undertaking of a
tax increment area. This calls for a public hearing on November 19th, by statute the notice must be
published three times, mailed to property owners, and posted. With respect to previous action
related to prior structures, both of these Resolutions provide that all actions previously taken in
conflict with these current actions, are repealed to the extent of the inconsistencies. There is no need
to address prior actions, these stand on their own, and this creates a new tax increment area, on the
basis described before on reimbursement and advances by the County for administrative costs.

County Manager Whitten: As with Item 6, we put the same notice that specific terms were still being
considered, discussed, negotiated. Nothing has changed since they were originally posted, so the

documents that have always been on the website, and in your packet, are still the accurate
documents.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Noticed a couple of companies were missing from the
Resolution for the TIA that were previously in it. Blockchains and Switch are missing from this TIA
document.

Mr. Whitten: Blockchains did withdraw from the tax increment area.

Ms. Follett: unable to hear

Mr. Whitten: Switch is still in, Blockchains is not.

Ms. Barde: Not that Blockchains is missing, isn't that a change from the documents last time?

Mr. Whitten: No, when I reference the accuracy of the documents - I meant to reflect on what was
posted on the website, not what was previously acted upon.

Ms. Barde: Okay.




Kendra Follett, read the title: Resolution no. 18-517, a Resolution provisionally ordering an
undertaking for a Tax Increment Area form pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 278C
setting a time and place for a hearing on the undertaking and providing other matters related thereto.

Motion: I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve Resolution 18-517, provisionally ordering
for an undertaking for a tax increment area formed pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter
278C; setting a time and place for a hearing on the undertaking; and providing other matters related
thereto, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action on Bill 107, the first
reading of Ordinance 18-284, an ordinance revising Chapter 17.84 of the Storey County Code
addressing signs and billboards and amending other provisions of Title 17 Zoning Code of the Storey
County Code relating to signs and billboards, and providing for other matters properly relating
thereto. Additional information including, but not limited to, draft text may be obtained from the
Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org, or viewed online at

http:/ / storeycounty.org/517/Updates. In addition to the provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the Board a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to
the county code and/or zoning ordinance.

Planner Kathy Canfield said this is an overhaul of the (entire) sign ordinance, creating better
flexibility for property owners and making it easier to understand.

e Workshops were held with the Planning Commission reviewing the existing sign ordinance.
Amendments to the code were made based on the (workshop) discussions with major focus on
Virginia City.

e This ordinance does not apply to TRIC.

e Signs that stood out were the ones not following Historic District standards - which have been
identified and are not permissible in the new code.

e Modifications have been made to definitions.

e After several discussions, the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval with a
couple of minor changes that have been made.

Chairman McBride asked Ms. Canfield to address the major changes.

Ms. Canfield: The signs were broken down by zoning district, identifying what signs are allowed for
the CR and C zoning district. Ms. Canfield described how sign size is determined - based on the
linear feet of frontage for the business. The number of signs is no longer being regulated. She
explained that hanging signs must be at least 7 feet high off the walkway. Signs can now be any
shape, not just rectangle. The ordinance is being made simple and easier to understand what can be
done.

Election signs were also discussed by the Planning Commission. The objective was to make clear
what things are regulated and what is not. Time, place, and manner are being regulated - not
content. Ms. Canfield reviewed the sizes allowed which are based on location. The number of signs
allowed is not regulated.

A “free speech”, County-owned area, has been identified in each of the communities.
4




Chairman McBride said he assumes that neon is still prohibited.

Ms. Canfield: Yes, or “neon like” signs. They can be in the interior of buildings but must be located
six feet away from windows so as not to be visible from the outside.

Chairman McBride: Regarding the size of signs, is there any “grandfather clause” for signs in
existence?

Ms. Canfield indicated signs existing prior to 1999 - when the previous Zoning Ordinance came into
effect - are considered “grandfathered” in and are okay to stay, unless someone wants to make
changes to the configuration of the sign. If the Historic District has identified a sign as having
historical significance, removing or retrofitting the sign may be waived by the Planning Director.
Change of ownership does affect this.

Chairman McBride asked about business signs where the business no longer exists but the signs are
still on properties and are unreadable - is there a provision that the property owner come into
compliance, painting the sign with something current or having it removed.

Ms. Canfield said all signs must be maintained in good condition - it needs to be fixed or it needs to
come down.

Chair McBride asked about a specific sign in Gold Hill.

Ms. Canfield explained that the sign might be of historical significance. If it existed prior to 1999, it
can stay as long as there is no danger to public safety.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Regarding signs that need to be taken down or replaced, would this be
something for the Nuisance Officer, who enforces?

Ms. Canfield indicated it will probably be Planning in conjunction with Community Development.
The process needs to be determined.

Ms. Canfield reviewed changes in verbage relating to signs.

Public Comment:
None

Chairman McBride disclosed that he has an interest in the business district with numerous business
signs, and his voting on this item will not make any difference one way or the other on future or
current property owners - he has to abide by the same rules as well.

Commissioner Gilman said he would make the same disclosure as he also owns a business on C
Street, and his signs will be in compliance with all others on the street.

Ms. Canfield read the title: Bill 107, the first reading of Ordinance 18-284, an ordinance revising
Chapter 17.84 of the Storey County Code addressing signs and billboards and amending other

5




provisions of Title 17 Zoning Code of the Storey County Code relating to signs and billboards, and
providing for other matters properly relating thereto.

Motion: In accordance with recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve first reading of Bill 107, Ordinance 18-284, an
ordinance revising Chapter 17.84 of the Storey County Code addressing signs and billboards and
amending other provisions of Title 17 Zoning Code of the Storey County Code relating to signs and
billboards, and providing for other matters properly relating thereto, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Chairman McBride thanked Ms. Canfield for her hard work and efforts in revising this ordinance.

10. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
None

11. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 10:34 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By:

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12-4-18 : Estimate of time required: 0 -5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) 1 move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development ‘Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next

Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: ' . Comptrolier

7. Legal review reguired:

District Attomey

Department Name:

Other agency review:

9. Board action;
(] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
(1

(] Denied Continued

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginess |

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 *mfield@storeycounty.org

D L icensing

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office November 21, 2018

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Melissa Field
Please add the following item(s) to the December 4, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

CHYRONOZANRSrNOERTOR P>

SUGARLOAF MOUNTAIN MOTEL & MARKET - General / 430 S. “C” st ~ Virginia City, NV
NOMNIVORE LLC - General / 222 E. 8" Ave ~ Reno, NV

FIVES CINETIC CORP - General / 23400 Halstead Rd ~ Farmington Hills, MI

DEBELL WINDOW SYSTEMS, INC — Contractor / 2600 S. Virginia St ~ Reno, NV
BIGHORN SERVICES, LLC - General / 560 Juniper St ~ Elko, NV

STRATOSPHERE QUALITY LLC - General / 12024 Exit Five Pkwy ~ Fishers, IN
ANDREWS HARDING, AIA ARCHITECT - General / 111 East 14" St ~ Elmira Heights, NY
ERM-WEST, INC — General / 1277 Treat Blvd ~ Walnut Creek, CA

SMX, LL.C — General / 860 W. Evergreen ~ Chicago, IL

A-1 QUALITY CARE, LLC — Contractor / 12 Sunset Way #206 ~ Henderson, NV

MANWEB SERVICES INC - Contractor / 11800 Exit Five Pkwy ~ Fishers, IN

LOOKOUT TRENDZ - Home / 368 Wagon Wheel Way ~ Dayton, NV

. JHI ENGINEERING, INC - General / 018 SW. Boundary Ct Ste 200 ~ Portland, OR

AMBER'’S PET FRIENDLY GROOMING - General / 269 Edith Lane ~ Dayton, NV

MICHAEL THOMAS SCHMOKER - Home / 4590 Tybo Rd ~ Reno, NV

HARGROVE SERVICES CORPORATION - General / 20 S. Royal St ~ Mobile, AL

CBIZ RISK & ADVISORY SERVICES, LLC - General / 6050 Oak Tree Blvd ~ Cleveland, OH
PANASONIC SOLUTION TECHNOLOGIES CO., LTD — General / Tokyo, JP

SUEZ WTS ANALYTICAL INSTRUMENTS, INC — General / 6060 Spine Rd ~ Boulder, CO
ALLIED MODULAR BUILDING SYSTEMS, INC — General / 642 W. Nicolas Ave ~ Orange, CA
TRUCKEE TAHOE LUMBER COMPANY - General / 10242 Church St ~ Truckee, CA

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office

Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/04/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including Policy 040 Annual Department Budget Request, including amendments
to the policy provisions and changing the policy title to Budgeting and Budget Requests.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I [commissioner] motion to approve
updates to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures including Policy 040 Annual
Department Budget Request, including amendments to the policy provisions and changing the
policy title to Budgeting and Budget Requests.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis.
The Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur
every five years and otherwise as needed.

S. Supporting materials: Enclosed markup policy updates.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review reauired:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Z: Department Head Department Name:
‘ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved [
1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued Agenda Item No.

M .

Page 1 of 1 6 ﬁ;



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 040

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 07-03-2012
REVISED: 12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: AnnualDepartmental BudgetRequest
Budgeting and Budget Requests

I. PURPOSE: To establish methods and procedures for the development, presentation,
adoption, administration and evaluation of departmental budget requests and the county budget.
To enable the county to make financial plans for both current and capital expenditure programs
and to provide program priorities for the expenditure of public funds. To provide for the control
of revenues and expenditures, in order to promote prudence and efficiency in the expenditure of
public funds.

II. POLICY: TheCounty-Managerorhis-designee Compiroller is authorized to develop the
annual budget for approval by the Beard-of County-Commissioners board in accordance with the
provisions of NRS Chapter354- NRS 354 and NAC 354.

II1. PROCEDURES:
A. Development of Draft Budget:

- During the month of January of each year
the Comptroller or his/her designee will notice the County Manager and
department heads to develop a draft budget proposal for the following fiscal
vear. The County Manager and each department head will also be provided a
schedule showing deadlines for draft budget submittals and resubmittals,
tentative and final map hearings and submittals, and other important dates in
the budget process for the year.

2. The Comptroller will convene a core budget team consisting of himself/herself.
the County Manager, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director,
auditors and analysts from the Comptroller’s and County Manager’s office, and
other person(s) as applicable and appropriate for each department and fund.

3. Each department head will develop a draft budget proposal for his/her
department. By a deadline set by the Comptroller pursuant to paragraph (1),
the department head will submit to him/her a department budget draft proposal
for preliminary review.

4. Before submittal of the tentative budget to the board, the core budget team will
meet with each department head for the purpose of reviewing each proposed
department budget. Discussion will occur between the parties about projected
revenues. anticipated expenses, and other matters potentially affecting the
county budeet and department budget during the coming fiscal year. Concerns
and input from each member of the core budget team and the department head
will be considered in formulating the tentative budget for the county and each

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 6



department. This process may be performed in one or more meetings with the
department head.

5. The tentative budget will be provided to the entire core budget team at least 5
days before it is submitted to the board for consideration in order to allow
sufficient time for the budget team to review and provide comment,

B. Tentative and Final Budget Preparation, Noticing, and Hearing

1. The Comptroller will prepare for the board a draft tentative budget for the
ensuing fiscal year. The tentative budget must be submitted to the County
Manager and core budget team, and filed for public record and be inspected by
the Storey County Clerk.

2. On or before April 15 of each year, the Comptroller will submit the tentative
budoeet to the Nevada Department of Taxation.

3. The tentative and final budgets will be prepared, submitted, noticed, and
considered by the board and the Nevada Department of Taxation as set forth in
NRS 354 and NAC 354.

C. The adoption of the budget by the Board-ef Commissioners board is the approval of
each construction project/capitol project included in the budget.

1. The County Manager or the Comptroller er—his—designee-are authorized to
cancel or substitute construction project/capitol project throughout the fiscal
year.

2. Any department sead wishing to initiate a new project or project change, not
authorized in the budget as the same may be amended from time to time, must
first obtain budget change approval from the Comptroller or County Manager or

his-designee prior to its commencement.

D. Each Eleeted Official-or Department-Head department head must remain familiar at
all times with the budget balances of his/her department.

1. No employee-or-supervisor department head or employee may obligate the
county to any expenditure of money not specifically budgeted without the
express written authority of the County Manager and the Ceunty Comptroller.

2. No efficial oremployee department head or employee may spend or obligate
money in excess of the total budget appropriated for that department without the
expressed written authority of the County Manager and the Comptroller.

3. For cost control, any item purchased over $1,499.99, the Elected-Official-or
Department Head-department head must submit a Budget Request Form 040-F
to the County Manager and Ceusnty Comptroller for approval.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 6




1v.

4. Expenditure from a budget other than the department’s own may only be made

with authorization from the County Manager er—h-rs—des*gnee—ef and the Geemt—y
Comptroller. :

otherbudget:
E. The Ceunty Comptroller shall on no less than a monthly basis, review each
department’s expenditures for conformity with the duly approved departmental budget.
Exceptions or possible over-expenditures must be noted by the Comptroller with a copy
to the County Manager.

F. The Comptroller will on a quarterly basis provide a summary standing of the county
budget, including for revenues and expenditures, and for each department of the county,
to the board in public hearing.

Structurally Balanced Budget

A. The county will maintain a structurally balanced budget, where recurring revenues
equal or exceed recurring expenditures. The county will balance recurring operating
expenditures with recurring revenues reasonably expected to continue year to year.

B. Recurring expenditures are operating costs that are funded each year such as
salaries, benefits, services, supplies, and asset maintenance costs. Non-recurring
expenditures are on-time expenditures and one-time costs such as acquisitions or
replacement of capital assets.

C. Property taxes are examples of recurring revenue, while settlements from lawsuits or
cerlain grants are examples of non-recurring revenue.

D. Revenues that have both recurring and non-recurring components require judgement
in determining how much of the source is truly recurring. For example, building permit
revenues rise in a period of high growth in the community, but can be volatile as
economic conditions change. The county will review its revenue portfolio to identify
revenues with potentially volatile components and avoid over reliance on these revenue
sources in its budget projections.

E. The county will maintain reserves at its desired policy levels. Using reserves to
balance the budget may only be considered in the context of a plan to return to structural
balance. The plan to return to structural balance must include a specific length of time
for replenishing the fund balance and remediating the negative impact of any other short-

term balancing actions that may be taken.

Pay-As-You-Go Budgeting

A. The county will conduct its operations from existing or foreseeable revenue sources.
Achieving pay-as-you-go funding requires the following practices: current direct and
indirect costs for operating and maintenance will be controlled and will be funded with
current revenues. Sound revenue and expenditure forecasts will be prepared annually for
all operating funds as part of budget discussions.

B. The county will prepare a full Cost Allocation and Recovery Plan, compliant with the
Federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87 annually to prove
accurate and complete estimates of the indirect service costs. The Cost Allocation Plan
will be updated annually during budget development.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 3 of 6




VL.

VIL

VIIL

IX.

C. Costs attributable to the mandates of other government agencies will be included in
the annual budget.

Budget Performance Reporting

A. The Comptroller will submit quarterly operating reports to the County Manager and
board comparing actual revenues and expenditures with budgeted revenues and

expenditures.

B. Where practical, the county will develop and employ performance measures to be
included in the budget.

Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Goals

A. 4s a goal, all equipment replacement and maintenance needs for the next 5 years will
be projected and the projection will be updated each year. A maintenance and
replacement schedule based on this projection will be developed and potential funding
sources identified.

B. Replacement of capital outlay items will be planned to increase efficiency and
productivity considering the available funds. When possible, replacement plans will be
timed as stable intervals so as not to spend excessively in one year and restrictively in the
next.

Maintenance of Capital Assets

A. The budeet should provide sufficient funds for the regular repair and maintenance of
all county capital assets. The budget should not be balanced by deferring these

expenditures.
B. Future maintenance needs for all new capital facilities will be identified during the

capital improvement program process. Significant maintenance and operating cost
increases or decreases will be reflected in the five-year financial plan.

Personnel Services

A. The county will strive to pay competitive market rates for salaries, wages, and
benefits to its employees. The funding of competitive market rates will be balanced
against the county’s ability to fund short- and long-term costs and to maintain quality
public services.

B. The county will periodically conduct a comprehensive total compensation survey of
public sector employees as necessary and this survey will be the basis for determining
prevailing market rates. The compensation survey will focus on public agencies and
employees that are similar to Storey County.

C. The county’s workforce, measured in full-time-equivalent (FTE), will not fluctuate
more than 3 percent annually without corresponding changes in program service level or

scope.
D. In establishing pay rates, a cost analysis of rate increases will be conducted and will

include the effect of such increases on the county’s share of related fringe benefits and
unfunded liabilities (including non-salary benefits).

E. Long-term costs of changes in benefits packages will be estimated and fully disclosed
to the board before negotiated labor agreements are affirmed.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 4 of 6



XL

XIL

F. No new personnel should be included in the base budget.

Services and Supplies

A. In developing the annual operating budget, total department services and supplies
budgets are not to increase from the current year’s total adopted budget without valid

justification.

Capital Outlay and Projects

A. A capital outlay plan will be developed and will conform to Storey County policies
and procedures.

Use of Interest on Investment Earnings

A. The amount of interest on investment earnings fluctuates depending on both the
interest rate and the amount invested. It is not advisable for the county to rely on this
source of revenue to fund ongoing operations given the significant fluctuations in
investment earnings. Therefore, the amount of investment earnings that may be budgeted
to fund operations for the next fiscal vear is limited to the estimated investment earnings
that would be generated form the lowest interest rate and lowest investment amount in
the preceding five fiscal years by fund. Any amount in excess can only be used to fund
one-time purchases or placed in an appropriate reserve account for future on-time

purchases.

XIIl. Budget Management

The budeet will be managed in accordance with Nevada Local Government Budget Act
contained in NRS 354.470-354.626 and NAC 354.400-354.600.

A. Manage budgets

1. Department heads and elected officials will manage their budgets responsibly
and will be accountable for compliance with NRS 354.626 requiring that no
ooverning body or member thereof. officer, office, department, or agency within
the county may, during any fiscal year, expend or contract to expend any money
or incur any liability, or enter into any contract which by its terms involves the
expenditure of money, in excess of the amount appropriated in the budget for
that function, with the exception of bond repayments, medium-term obligation
repayments and any other long-term contracts expressly authorized by law.

B. Augmentations

1. Ifanticipated resources actually available during a budget period exceed those
estimated. the budget may be augmented. Budget augmentations to increase the
appropriation of a fund when actual resources exceed those previously
budsgeted must be approved by a resolution of the board_at a regularly
scheduled meeting. Budeet augmentations become effective upon filing of the
resolution with the Department of Taxation. The Comptroller will present
budget augmentations to the board for approval three times annually, or as

necessary.

C.  Budget augmentations for grants-in-aid, gifts, or bequests

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 5 of 6



D.

E.

F.

G.

1. Budget augmentations resulting from grants, gifts, or bequests previously

approved by the board may be approved by department heads designated to
administer the budget of that function.

Budget Amendments Due to Legislative Action

1. An amended budget due to legislative actions to increase or decrease the
revenues or expenditures of a local government not anticipated in the local
government’s final adopted budget may be filed with the state department of
taxation within 30 days of adjournment of the legislative session.

Budget Transfer Within a Function

1. Transfers within a function may be approved by the department head designated
to administer the budget of that function upon consultation with the

Comptroller.
Budget Transfers Between Functions, Funds, or Contingency Accounts

1. Budoet transfers between functions, funds, or contingency accounts will be
approved by the board via resolution at a regularly scheduled meeting and
recorded into the official minutes of the meeting.

Budget Appropriations

1. Budget appropriations will lapse at the end of the fiscal year and will revert to
the available balance of the fund from which appropriated per NRS 354.620.
Exceptions include encumbered budget for carryover purchase orders and/or
carryover projects.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager or his/her designee will review this
policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 6 of 6




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/04/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min,

Agenda: Consent [x] Regularagenda[] Public hearing required { ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including Policy 205A Reasonable Accommodation for Victims of Domestic
Violence and Policy 206A Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy, and amend or replace
corresponding forms for Policy 206A including Forms 206A F1, F2, F3, F4, F5, and F6.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I [commissioner] motion to approve
updates to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures including Policy 205A
Reasonable Accommodation for Victims of Domestic Violence and Policy 206A Vehicle
Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy, and amend or replace corresponding forms for Policy
206A including Forms 206A F1, F2, F3, F4, F5, and F6.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis.
The Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur
every five years and otherwise as needed.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosed markup policy updates.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved (] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied (] Continued Agenda Item No.
Page 1 of 1

I




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE _ NUMBER 2054

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: ___12/04/18
REVISED: 12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Reasonable Accommodation for Victims of Domestic Violence

1.1.

A

Reasonable Accommodation for Victims of Domestic Violence

Policy

It is Storey County’s policy to comply proactively with the applicable employment
rovisions of discrimination laws, including NRS 613, which set forth requirements for

employers, absent creating an undue hardship, to provide reasonable accommodation to
employees who are victims of domestic violence or whose family or household members
are victims of domestic violence. For the purpose of this policy. “family or household
members"” include the employee’s spouse, domestic partner. minor child, or parent or
other adult person who is related within the first degree of consanguinity or affinity to the
employee, or other adult person who is or was actually residing with the employee at the

time of the act which constitutes domestic violence.

B. Accommodation

1. Whenever a department head or supervisor becomes aware that an employee has

a need for an accommodation due to domestic violence, s/he should prompily

notify the EEQ Officer (Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director).

2. Upon learning of the employee’s need for accommodation due to domestic

violence,_ the EEQ Officer shall arrange to meet with the supervisor and the
employee to discuss his/her accommodation request, the need for documentation

that confirms or supports the reason the employee requires the reasonable
accommodations, and the impact of the proposed accommodation on the

employer.
3. Reasonable accommodations may include:
Transfer or reassignment;
A modified schedule;
A new telephone number for work; or

Any other reasonable accommodations which will not create an
undue hardship deemed necessary to ensure the safety of the

employee, the workplace, the employer or other employees.

TS

Page 1 of 2




C. Prohibitions

The employer will not discharge, discipline, discriminate against, in any manner, or deny

employment or promotion lo, or threaten to take any such action against an employee

because:

1.
2.

The employee requested to use hours of leave pursuant o this policy;

The employee participated as a witness or interested party in court proceedings
related to a domestic violence act;

The employee requested accommodation pursuant (o this policy, or

An act of domestic violence was committed against the employee at the

workplace.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or_Administrative

Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 2 of 2




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 206A

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  1-18-11
REVISED: 12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY

TABLE OF CONTENTS
I.__STATEMENT OF PURPOSE, s 1
II.___COVERAGE, srsssssssssssasssseasavanse

II.__BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT ALCOHOL AND CONTROLLED

SUBSTANCES........co0corss00s0r0n

1V.  EDUCATION AND TRAINING......ccvenseonsssssssssasasssassssssssssssasasasasssssasassasassensssasssssusasasassuone 7

V. SAFETY-SENSITIVE FUNCTIONS,

V1. _PROHIBITED CONDUCT
VII._CONSEQUENCES FOR VIOLATION OF THE DOT/FMCSA DRUG AND
ALCOHOL POLICIES 9

A.__ CONSEQUENCES FOR DRIVERS FOR A CONFIRMED VIOLATION OF THIS POLICY oyvevinareenescnees 9
B._ CONSEQUENCES FOR JOB APPLICANTS ..vovvovzrezcsensesesnesinnneresnsnsnesenssesoninsonss sy nananenesoanioiane 10
C._ FAILURE OF A POST-ACCIDENT TEST ovceuiesrzeserensznssinzsesonsisnsenensnsnsansasansezesniasosssasassnnnsasenes 10
D.  DOT PENALTIES sovveeevsnseconsessnnisesssisssiosisesenieseissssnescscosssoncnsnsncasasonasnsassssutussasensasasasnsas 10
E.____EMPLOYER-IMPOSED PENALTIES AND ACTIONS sucossessnesissorensnnacnsnsssnssssonsssnsnsasosiasnssnnsanases 11

VIII. _ALCOHOL AND DRUG TESTING
A, TESTING FORMS ....oosoriersssnsisessiossonsnssssissnessinssensissnssensssssssaonnassssnnsensssssponssassossansasansssansssess 12
B, PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING -cocovessccsucnsnsseresisaneisnissesssnsssensssnionsscasnessssssnssssnensasnsonsanasansones 12
C.___REASONABLE SUSPICION ALCOHOL AND/OR DRUG TESTING .oscsocnvanssssssnsssacseseossniassionsassssne: 14
D.  _POST-ACCIDENT TESTING ...cccccceroinnsionsirmneianiasnsiiassionensnssaesusnsnsnsssnonenszsiessssasniansasasasanises 15
E._ RANDOM TESTING .oocescossseseicosssnsnsisnusonessnsesossnssssnnasnssnsnsonssasssussnssnsnnsogzssnassnnnsosasasatones 17
F.___ _RETURN-TO-DUTY PROCESS AND TESTING ....ccooeerecsecescnennninnnnsnnesansasesecossnassssnsanasasansonns 17
G._ FOLLOW-UP TESTING ,ueorosvccsininninnnnninsirisnnsnssnsssssrazansssszsssosssesssa s sz s snssonn ozt 18
H._ TEST RESULTS (INVALID) ..ooooorvrsonssensncscscunnnnsmnssssenenecssnesinssnnsnss sz szt sesesseae 20
I REPORT OF A DILUTE SPECIMEN ...ccovocrereviineisnsisonersenninnininnasnsencsnenssensneseononnnsnssssnsnsnzesioens 20
J._ CANCELLED DRUG ORALCOHOL TEST ...cecovcoeeeerevceniveninininennnensensensnessssuensasunnnssssssonsoenses 21
K.____INSUFFICIENT AMOUNT OF URINE FOR DRUG TEST sucecevconcscaievvnionvsinncnsssnnensescncnssnnnssnsissasenee 21
L.____INSUFFICIENT AMOUNT OF SALIVA OR BREATH FOR ANALCOHOL TEST ..o oeenreevieeeennee 21
M.__ADDRESSING “CORRECTABLE FLAWS™ IN ALCOHOL TESTING ..ooveeernpersiezssseresinnsssnnznnnassanensy 22
N, FATAL FLAWS ovivivivivcvisiiaenisisiines s sasesassessssnenessisssnencasassssosassssassnensesasasssnasesnasesessnses 22
O.___ALCOHOL CONFIRMATION TEST RESULT ..ucecesiasnsessnsessnsunsasonsssnianonnonsucnessnnnnssssasassasssnazsones 22




P.
o
R
S.
T.
u.

V.
W.

____DIRECT OBSERVATION ,..vevvovcveeenesonsenasens: et eseiesnssessesesiiniisieisasiiatesssesnnttensiosienisissssnteunsians 23
TN Y iy ne s e — X |
____ SERVICE AGENTS,...... Leeuisssssianessiesastositasnssensrersbetseaisarrysyayesesannrtarontssvsssizs R pesizssaress paess 23
__ DESIGNATED EMPLOYER REPRESENTA TIVE (DER) .............................................................. 24

___PAYMENT FOR THE TEST OF A SPLIT SPECIMEN,.. eeeteerieeesinesnsentensaesacantetaneiatensnesntsseses 24

SAP INFORMATION PROVIDED BY AGENT EMPLOYER ........................................................... 24
CONFIDENTIALITY AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION .......ccooesevesnenssesasinnnasssssasssisnss sressssrireverses 24
___RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS ,..cooovevvcnincneninininicissnsiesecsiecesccnssanensnsnnnsnsnosninnnenee 25

IX __RESER VA TION OF RIGHTSII!.'.'I.IIll.lll..l..‘lDOQ.I‘....’.O"“‘QQOOl'.".QC...ll‘.'.”O...l.’..l.l.ll.'ll‘ll‘i"
X.___DEFINITIONS.....

Page ii




Appendices

A - Drug Specimen Collection and Testing Procedures

B - Alcohol Sample Collection and Testing Procedures

C - Violation of the DOT/FMCSA Regulations 382.507, and Civil Penalties
49 US.C. §521 [b]),
Driver Disqualifications and Penalties (49 CFR $§383.51)

D - Certificate of Receipt

Forms

Employee Acknowledgement Form (Form 2064-F1)

Consent to Release of Drug / Alcohol Information Drug /Alcohol Testing (Form 206A4-
F2)

Drug / Alcohol Test Informed Consent (Form 2064-F3)

DOT Alcohol Testing Form (Form 206A4-F4)

Suggested Steps for Reasonable Suspicion Drug / Alcohol Testing (Form 2064-FJ)
Documentation for Reasonable Suspicion Drug / Alcohol Testing (Form 2064-F6)
Federal Drug Testing Custody and Control Form (Current Form #OBM No. 0930-0158
is available on website www.health.org/workplace)

Page iti




L Statement of Purpose

The employer seeks to operate a drug- and alcohol-free workplace that is in
compliance with the Federal Department of Transportation (DOT) (49 CER Part
40) and the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMSCR), as prescribed by
the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) (49 CFR Parts 382,
383 387, 390-397, and 399). Therefore, it is the policy of the employer that all
employees who perform safety-sensitive functions as defined in this policy,
including employees required to maintain commercial driver's licenses (CDL), be
drug and alcohol free.

To further this goal, the employer has implemented this Vehicle Operators Drug
and Alcohol Policy. The policy provides the employer with reasonable measures

to ensure that an employee's drug or alcohol use does not jeopardize the
employer 's successful operations, the employer's workplace, its employees, or the
general public.

II. Coverage
The Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy covers all employees who are
required to obtain and maintain a CDL as a qudlification for their position. All

employees covered by this policy are referred to as “drivers” for the purposes of
this policy. A CDL is required for all drivers that operate a vehicle:

1. Inexcess of 26,000 pounds Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (G VWR): or
2. Designed to carry 16 or more passengers (including the driver); or

3. Of any size which is used in the transportation of a placardable amount of
hazardous material.

This includes, but is not limited to: full-time, part-time, casual, intermittent, or

occasional drivers. Mechanics who operate commercial vehicles to test their

operations are specifically covered by this policy.

I11L. Basic Information about Alcohol and Controlled Substances
Section 382.601(b) of the FMSCR requires that all employees be provided with
information concerning the effects of alcohol and controlled substances use on an
individual’s health, work, and personal life; signs and symptoms of an alcohol or
a controlled substances problem; and available methods of inlervening when an
alcohol or a controlled substances problem is suspected.

1. Alcohol
a. Health Effects

o The liver is the primary site of alcohol metabolism and can be severely
affected by heavy alcohol use. The three primary dangers are fatty
liver, alcoholic hepatitis, and cirrhosis.

e Heavy alcohol use can also severely affect the gastrointestinal tract,
contributing to inflammation of the esophagus, exacerbating peplic
ulcers, and causing acule and chronic pancrealitis. 1t interferes with
the absorption of nutrients from food and contributes to malnutrition.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcehol Policy Page | 2018




2.

Heavy alcohol use affects the heart and vascular system, contributing
to heart attacks, hypertension, and strokes.

Either because of direct action or indirectly through the malnutrition,
liver disease, and other effects it causes, alcohol depresses immune
system functioning and increases the likelihood of infection.

There is considerable evidence that alcohol abuse is associated with
the incidence of cancer, particularly cancers of the liver, esophagus,
nasopharynx, and larynx.

Heavy alcohol consumption causes brain damage, manifested through

dementia_blackouts, seizures. hallucinations, and peripheral
neuropathy.

Birth defects.

b. Workplace Issues

Alcohol affects vision, reflexes, coordination, emotions,
aggressiveness, and judgement, which deprives a professional driver

of most of the tools s/he relies upon to perform safely.

Hangovers also present a risk to driving behavior. The sick feeling
associated with hangovers, including headaches, nauseq and other
symptoms, can distract a driver’s attention and lead to accidents even

though alcohol may no longer be detectable in the body.

c. Signs and Symptoms of Use

Evidence of presence of alcohol: Bottles, cans, and other containers
which alcohol-containing beverages may have been purchased and/or
consumed in; bottle caps from alcohol containers: bolile or can

openers; drivers drinking from paper bags; odor of alcohol on
containers or on driver’s breath.

Physical symptoms: Reduction of reflexes. slurred speech, loss of

coordination, unsteady gait.

Behavioral symptoms: Increased talkativeness, reduced emotional

control,_distorted judgment, impaired driving ability, gross effects on
thinking and memory.

Marijuana
a. Heaglth Effects

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy

When marijuana is smoked, it is irritating to the lungs. Chronic

smoking causes emphysema-like conditions.

One joint causes the heart 1o race and be overworked. People with

undiagnosed heart conditions are at risk.

Marijuana is commonly contaminated with a fungus called
Aspergillus, which can cause serious respiratory tract and sinus

infections.

Page 2 208




o Marijuana smoking lowers the body’s immune system response,
making users more susceptible to infection.

o Chronic smoking causes changes in brain cells and brain waves.

e Decrease in fertility.
e Birth defects.

e Delayed decision making, diminished concentration, impaired short-
term memory, erratic cognitive function, distortion of time estimation.

b. Workplace Issues

o The active chemical, THC, is stored in body fat and slowly released,
o Marijuana smoking has long-term effects on performance.

o Increased THC potency in modern marijuana increases the
impairment.

e (ombining alcohol or other depressant drugs with marijuana
increases impairment.

c. Signs and Symptoms of Use

e Evidence of presence of marijuana: Plastic bags (commonly used to
sell marijuana); smoking papers: roach clip holders. small pipes of

bone, brass, or glass: smoking bongs: distinctive odor.
. thszcal szmgtoms Reddened eyes: stamed ZIngeran from holdmg

accelerated heartbeal. slowed speech; tmgmred motor coordination;
altered perception; increased appetite.

o Behavioral symptoms: Impaired memory; time-space distortions;
feeling of euphoria; paranoia; false sense of power.

3. Cocaine
a. Health Effects
o Regular use may upset the chemical balance of the brain. As a resullt,

it may speed up the aging process by causing damage (o critical nerve
cells.

o The onset of nervous system illnesses such as Parkinson’s disease
could also occur.

o Cocaine use causes the heart to beat faster and harder and rapidly

increases blood pressure. In addition, cocaine causes spasms of blood

vessels in the brain and heart. Both effects lead to ruptured vessels
causing strokes or heart attacks.

o Strong dependency cun occur with one “hit” of cocaine. Usu ally
mental dependency occurs within days of using. Cocaine causes the

strongest mental dependency of any known drug.
o Treatment success rates are lower than those of other chemical
dependencies.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Aleohol Policy Page 3 2018



o Cocaine is exiremely dangerous when taken with depressant drugs.

Death due to overdose is rapid. The fatal effects of an overdose are
not usually reversible by medical intervention.

b. Workplace Issues

Extreme mood and energy swings create instability. Sudden noise

causes a violent reaction.
Lapses in attention and ignoring warning signals increases probabili

of accidents.
High cost frequently leads to theft and/or dealing.

Paranoia and withdrawal may create unpredictable or violent
behavior,

Performance is characterized by forgetfulness, absenteeism, tardiness
and missing assignments.

c. Signs and Symptoms of Use

Evidence of presence of cocaine: Small folded envelopes, plastic bags,
or vials used to store cocaine; razor blades; cut-off drinking straws or
rolled bills for snorting; small spoons.; heating apparatus.

Physical symptoms: Dilated pupils, runny or irritated nose, profuse
sweating. dry mouth, tremors, needle tracks, loss of appetite, hyper-

excitability, restlessness, high blood pressure, heart palpitations,
insomnia, talkativeness, formication (sensing of bugs crawling on
skin).

Behavioral symptoms: Increased physical activity, depression,
isolation and secretive behavior, unusual defensiveness, frequent
absences, wide mood swings, difficulty in concentration, paranoia,

hallucinations, confusion, false sense of power and control.

4. QOpioids
a. Health Effects

Intravenous users have a high risk of contracting hepatitis or AIDS
when sharing needles.

Increased pain tolerance. As a result, a person may more severely
infure themselves and fail to seek medical attention as needed,

Narcotic effects are multiplied when combined with other depressants
causing an increased risk for an overdose.

Because of tolerance, there is an ever increasing need for more,
Strong menial and physical dependency occurs.

With increased tolerance and dependency combined, there is a serious
financial burden for the user.

b. Workplace Issues

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 4 2018




o Side effects such as nausea, vomiting, dizziness, mental clouding and
drowsiness place the user at high risk for an accident.
o Causes impairment of physical and mental functions.
c. Signs and Symptoms of Use

o Evidence of presence of opioids: Foil, glassine envelopes, or paper
“bindles” (packets for holding drugs); balloons or prophylactics used

to hold hercin: bloody tissues used to wipe the injection site; a pile o,
burned matches used to heat the drug prior to injection.

o Physical symptoms: Constricted pupils, swealing, nausea, und
vomiting, diarrhea, needle marks or “tracks”, wearing long sleeves (o

cover “tracks”_loss of appetite, slurred speech, slowed reflexes,
depressed breathing and heartbeat, and drowsiness and fatigue.

e Behavioral symptoms: Mood swings, impaired coordination,
depression and apathy, stupor. euphoria.

5. Amphetamines
a. Health Effects

e Regular use causes strong psychological dependency and increased
tolerance.

e High doses may cause toxic psychosis resembling schizophrenia.

e Intoxication may induce a heart attack or stroke due lo increased
blood pressure.

e Chronic use may cause heart or brain damage due lo severe
constriction of capillary blood vessels.

o Euphoric stimulation increases impulsive and risk taking behavior,
including bizarre and violent acls.
o Withdrawal may result in severe physical and mental depression.
o Long-term heavy use can lead to malnutrition, skin disorders, ulcers,
and various diseases that come from vitamin deficiencies.
b. Workplace Issues

» Since the drug alleviates the sensation of fatigue, it may be gbused to

increase alertness during periods of overtime or failure (o gel rest,
which can result in increased accidents.

o With heavy use or increasing futigue, the short-term mental or

physical enhancement reverses and becomes an impairment.

o The hangover effect of amphetamines is characterized by physical

fatigue and depression, which make operation of equipment or

vehicles dangerous.

c. Signs and Symptoms of Use

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 5 2018



e Evidence of presence of amphetamines: Most frequently — pills,

capsules, or tablets; envelopes, bags, vials for storing the drug; less
frequently — syringes, needles, tourniquets.
o Physical symptoms: Dilated pupils, sweating, increased blood

pressure, palpitations, rapid heartbeat, dizziness, decreased appeltite,

dry mouth. headaches, blurred vision, insomnia, high fever (depending
on level of the dose).

o Behavioral symptoms: Confusion, panic, talkativeness, hallucinations,

restlessness, anxiety, moodiness, false sense of confidence and power.

6. Phencyclidine (PCP)

a. Health Effects

e The potential for accidents and overdose emergencies is high due to

the extreme mental effects combined with the anesthetic effect on the

body.

o PCP. when combined with other depressants, including alcohol,
increases the possibility of an overdose.

o [fmisdiagnosed as 1SD induced, and treating with Thorazine, can be
atal.

o [rreversible memory loss, personality changes. and thought disorders
may result.
b. Workplace Issues

o Not common in workplace primarily because of the severe

disorientation that occurs.
o The distortions in perception and potential visual and auditory

delusions make performance unpredictable and dangerous. PCP use
can cause drowsiness, convulsions, paraneia, agitation, or coma.

c. Signs and Symptoms of Use

o Evidence of presence of PCP: Packets, stamps, injection
paraphernalia, herbs.
o Physical symptoms: Dilated or floating pupils, blurred vision,

nystagmus (jerky eye movement), drooling, muscle rigidity, profuse

swealing, decreased sensitivity to pain, dizziness, drowsiness,
impaired physical coordination (e.g.. drunken-like walk, staggering),

severe disorientation, rapid heartbeat.
e Behavioral symptoms: Anxiety, panic/fear/terror, aggressive/violent

behavior, distorted perceplion, severe confusion and agilation,

disorganization, mood swings, poor perception of time and distance,

poor judgment, audiiory hallucinations.

7. Intervening When an Alcohol or a Controlled Substances Problem is
Suspected

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 6 2018



No matter what the employee'’s position is in the organization, it is requested
that any signs or symptoms of drug use or alcohol abuse be reported to the

employee s immediate supervisor. Alternatively, employees may report any
signs or symptoms to the Designated Employer Representative (DER).

Employees who suspect they may have a substance abuse problem are

encouraged to seek counseling and rehabilitation from the employer’s

Employee Assistance Program (EAP) provider, a substance abuse
professional (SAP), or other treatment provider. The employer’s medical

insurance policy may provide for payment of some or all of the treatment
COSLS.

Iv. Education and Training
In an ongoing effort to prevent and eliminate substance abuse in the workplace,

the employer provides drivers with information and referral resources regarding

substance abuse. In addition, supervisors receive a minimum of sixty (60)
minutes of training an controlled substance use and sixty (60) minutes of training
on alcohol misuse to include the identification of actions, appearance, and
conduct of a driver that may indicate drug use and/or alcohol misuse.

V. Safety-Sensitive Functions

Pursuant to the FMSCA, safety-sensitive functions mean any of the following on-
duty functions.

On-duty means all the time fr e Ji v ] s 1
be in readiness to work until the time s/he is relieved from work and all

responsibility for performing work. On-duty work includes:

1. All time at an employer or shipper plant, terminal, facility, or other property,
or on any public property, wailing to be dispatched, unless the driver has
been relieved from duty by the employer;

2. All time inspecting, servicing, or conditioning any commercial motor vehicle
or equipment at any time;

3. All time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in
operalion;

4. All time, other thun driving time, in or upon any commerciul motor vehicle
except time spent resting in a sleeper berth;

5. All time loading or unloading a vehicle,_supervising or assisting in the
loading or unloading, attending a vehicle being loaded or unloaded,
remaining in readiness to operate the vehicle, or in giving or receiving
receipts for shipments loaded or unloaded; and

6. All time repairing, obtaining assistance, or remaining in attendance upon a
disabled vehicle.

VI Prohibited Conduct

The following conduct is prohibited for purposes of this program. No driver
shall:

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 7 2018




1. Consume alcohol while performing safety-sensitive functions;
2. Perform a safety-sensitive function within four (4) hours afier using alcohol;
3. Have an alcohol concentration of .02 or greater just before, during, and just

after performing his/her safety-sensitive functions.

o Ifadriver has a blood alcohol content (BAC) of .02 to .039, the driver
will be immediately removed from all safety-sensitive functions for a
period of twenty-four (24) hours.

o [fadriver has a BAC of .04 or greater just before, during, or just after
performing a safety-sensitive function, the immediate consequences

shall include the driver being removed from safety-sensitive functions

and referred to an evaluation by a Substance Abuse Professional

(SAP).

e In addition, the employer may take additional disciplinary action
against a driver who has a test result of .02 or greater;

4. Use alcohol for eight (8) hours following an accident or until the driver
undergoes a post-accident test, whichever comes first;

5. Possess alcohol while on duty, unless the alcohol is manifested and
transported as a part of the shipment;

6. Use or possess any drug, except when use is pursuant to the instructions of a
physician or dentist who has advised the driver that the substance does not
adversely affect the driver's ability to operate a commercial motor vehicle.

NOTE - Prescription Drugs: Drivers may take over-the-counler or prescription
drugs under the guidance of a physician in the course of medical treatment.

A driver should ask his/her physician or pharmacist whether the use of the

prescription drug or over-the-counter drug could adversely affect his/her ability
to perform safety-sensitive functions. Drivers musl follow all manufacturers’

directions or package inserts when taking any over-the-counter or prescription
drugs.

In addition, the employer requires a driver to report that s/he is using any over-
the-counter or prescription drug if the use of the drug could affect the safe

performance of histher safety-sensitive functions,

1. Test positive for drugs;

2. Refuse to submit to a post-accident, random, reasonable suspicion, or follow-
up drug or alcohol test;

3. Switch,_adulterate, or commit any other misconduct pertaining to any breath,
urine, or saliva sample;

4. Fail to provide an adequate sample for testing without a valid medical
explanation;

5. Disclose to individuals_other than on a need-to-know basis, information

pertaining to alcohol and/or drug testing referrals, results of such testing or
treatment referrals;

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 8 2018




VIL

6. Fail to sign the DOT Alcohol Testing Form (ATF) (see Form 2064-F4) or
Federal Drug Testing Custody and Control Form (CCF) (see current form on
website www. health. org/workplace);

7. Fail to consent and sign the Drug/Alcohol Test Informed Consent Form (see
Form 2064-F3);

8. Fail to consent and sign the Consent to Release of Drug / Alcohol

Information-Drug / Alcohol Testing Form (see Form 2064-2 and Form 2064-
F3);

9. Fail to report to the collection site in the time allocated:

10. Leave the scene of an accident without a valid reason before submitting to a
posi-daccident test;

11. Engage in any other conduct that clearly obstructs the testing process; and

12. Use illicit drugs on or off duty.
Consequences for Violation of the DOT/FMCSA Drug and Alcohol

Policies

The Federal DOT/FMCSA mandates certain immediate consequences whenever a
driver engayves in prohibited conduct. These consequences include removal from
duty and referral to a SAP. In addition, it is important to note that the Employer
may apply additional consequences, up to and including termination, for violation
of this policy and DOT/FMSCA. A driver who is removed from performing
safety-sensitive functions may be suspended, without pay.

A. Consequences for Drivers for a Confirmed Violation of this Policy
Specific immediate consequences shall occur whenever a driver:
1. Has a verified_positive drug test or an alcohol test resuit of .04 or

greater.
2. Consumes alcohol while performing or four (4) hours before

performing a safety-sensitive function.

{0 empty pacgtg: wlgen divec ted {0 do so by (he <o Lgugr, befggggg m a can[rgnggugnal way Ihal dlxryp_t_: Lhe callecnon mesx. or
() Is reported by the MRO as having a verified, adulterated, or substituted tes! result.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 9 2018



3. Consumes alcohol within eight (8) hours following an accident or
before s/he is tested, whichever occurs first.

4. Refuses to submit’ to any required random, post-accident, reasonable

suspicion, or follow-up test.
5. Possesses drugs or alcohol in violation of this policy.

The immediate consequences are:

1. The driver will be immediately removed from performing all safety-
sensitive functions.

2. The driver may be disciplined, up to and including termination.

3. The driver will be referred for evaluation by a SAP. When an
employee has a verified, positive, adulterated or substituted test result,

or has otherwise violated this policy, the employer shall not return the
employee o the performance of safety-sensitive functions until or

unless the employee campletes the return-to-duty process provided in
this policy.
If the employer decides to continue employing a driver who has violated
this policy or DOT/FMSCA, the following shall occur:

1. The driver will receive, from the employer, information on resources

available to the driver to resolve and evaluate any problems
associated with substance abuse.
2. Before being returned to his/her safety-sensitive functions, the driver

must undergo a return-to-duty drug and/or alcohol test.

3. Ifthe driver required treatment as recommended by a SAP, the driver
must complete the treaiment and be re-evaluated by a SAP before
submitting to a return-to-duty test.

4. Ifthe driver required treaiment as recommended by a SAP. the driver

will be subject to unannounced follow-up drug and/or alcohol tests.

B. Consequences for Job Applicants

I. AQQIipants who fail a pre-employment test will be denied employment.
2. A current employee (who is transferring (o a covered position) who

fails a pre-employment test will not receive the position. In addition,
the employer may refer the employee to a SAP for evaluation and
treatment and may take additional disciplinary actions.

C. Failure of a Post-Accident Test

A driver who has a positive drug or alcohol test resull following an
accident, as provided in Section D. of this policy, will be terminated from

employment,
D. DOT Penalties ‘
NOTE: Employer discipline is likely in addition to the DOT penalties.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 10 2018




Any driver who violates the DOT/FMCSA drug and alcohol rules will be
subject to civil or criminal penalties. (see Appendix D of this policy).

In addition, 49 CFR §383.51 also provides penalties for drug- and

alcohol-related conduct of commercial motor vehicle drivers (see
Appendix D of this policy).

The following are “disqualifying” offenses:

1. Driving a commercial motor vehicle while under the influence of drugs
or alcohol.

2. Refusing to submit {o a lest as required by any state or jurisdiction in
the enforcement of federal or state law.

3. Leaving the scene of an accident involving a commercial motor

vehicle.

First Offenders: A driver who is convicted of driving a commercial motor

vehicle while under the influence of drugs or alcohol for the first time will

be disqualified for a period of one (1) year provided the vehicle was not

transporting hazardous materials. If the vehicle was transporting

hazardous materials, the driver will be disqualified for a period of three
(3) vears.

In addition, a driver who is convicted of the use of a commercial motor
vehicle in the commission of a felony involving manufacturing,
distributing, or dispensing drugs (controlled substances) is disqualified
for life.

Second Offenders: A driver who is convicted of driving a commercial
motor vehicle while under the influence of drugs or alcohol for a second
time will be disqualified for life. Ten (10) years after the violation, if the
driver has voluntarily enrolled in and successfully completed an

appropriate treatment program, the driver may apply for reinstatement of
his/her CDL.

Third Offenders: If a reinstated driver is convicted of another drug- or
alcohol-related offense, s/he will be permanently disqualified for life, and

will not be eligible to re-apply for a reduction of the lifetime

disqualification.

. Employer-Imposed Penalties and Actions
All violations of this policy (even a first offense) will serve as the basis for

discipline, up to and including termination. The severity of the penalty
imposed by the employer will depend on the circumstances of each case.
However, drivers need to be aware that any offense, including but not
limited to possession, sale or use of controlled substances or illegally used
drugs on employer premises or while on duty is likely fo result in
immediale termination.

In addition to any disciplinary action imposed for a violation of this
policy. or while such actions are held in abeyance, the employer may, at

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 11 2018



its sole discretion, refer the driver for appropriate assessment, counseling,
and/or a treatment program as applicable. However, the employer
reserves the right to make the final decision.

VIIIL Alcohol and Drug Testing

The methods used to determine the presence of alcohol and/or drugs in the
driver 's system under the DOT/FMCSA regulations include a urine®, breath,
and/or saliva test. All alcohol and drug testing will be conducted in accordance
with DOT procedures for transportation workplace drug and alcohol testing

programs, 49 CFR Part 40. Any employee who refuses to submit (o discovery
testing for alcohol or drugs pursuant to this policy will be deemed to have failed

the test and will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Drivers will be subject to the following types of alcohol and drug testing:

e Pre-employment testing
o Reasonable suspicion testing
e Post-accident testing
e Random testing
o Return-to-duty testing
o Follow-up testing
A. Testing Forms
1. The Federal Drug Testing Custody and Collection Form (CCF) (see
current form on website
https://www.transportation. gov/sites/dol. dev/files/docs/Alcohol-Drug-
Testing-Form-Suppliers.pdf) must be used for each drug test under this
policy, and the DOT Alcohol Testing Form (ATF) (see Form 2064-F4)
must be used for each alcohol test under this policy.
2. Tests under the Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol policy must be
conducted prior to and separate from any other drug or alcohol tests.
The emplover shall not use the CCF or the ATF in non-DOT Drug and
Alcohol Testing Programs.
B. Pre-Employment Testing
1. All driver agglicants5 whom the employer intends to hire or use to
perform safety-sensitive functions must give their consent and submit
to a urine drug lest (see Form 2064-F4).
2. The employer may choose not to require pre-employment drug testing
for a driver applicant if the employer can verify the individual.
4 All wringlysis tests for drugs will use the *split sample” method of collection. The driver's urine sample will be split into two specimen bottles,

One will contam the primary specimen; and the other, the split specimen. The split specimen swill be praserved under siringent laboratory
conditions. Whenever g driver employes receives notification of a positive drug test, the driver may request that the split sample be tested ina
different laboratory that is certified by the Bepartment of Health and Hhopan Services (DITHS). This request must be made vithin seventy-twe

(72} hotes after the Medical Review Qfficer (MRO} gives the driver: notification of the positive drug fest,

3 tncludes current employees

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 12 2018




a. Has participated in a valid controlled substance testing program
that meets the requirements of 49 CFR Part 382, within the

previous thirty (30) days; and
b. Was tested for controlled substances within the past six (6) months

from date of application with the employer while participating in
the program, or participated in a random testing program within
the previous twelve (12) months from the date of application with
the employer.

c. Afier obtaining the driver applicant’s written consent via
completion of the Consent to Release of Drug/dlcohol Information
Drug/Alcohol Testing Form (see Form 2064-F2), the employer
will verify that no former employer of the driver applicant in the
preceding two (2) years has knowledge or records that the
individual.

1. Had an alcohol test with a result of .04 alcohol concentration
or greater; or

2. Had a verified positive-controlled substance test result; or
3. Refused to be tested; or

4. Violated other DOT drug and alcohol testing regulations.

3. With respect to a driver applicant’s violation of a DOT drug and

alcohol regulation, the employer shall obtain documentation of the
driver applicant’s successful completion of return-to-duty

i s (i ] . _Ifthe previous employer
does not have information about the return-to-duty process, the
employer shall obtain this information from the employee. Refer to 49

CFR 40,25 for guidance, if unable to obtain this information.

. As the employer, the employer shall also ask the employee whether
s’he has tested positive or refused 1o test on any pre-employment drug
or alcohol test administered by an employer to which the employee
applied for, but did not oblain safety-sensitive (ransportation work
covered by Federal Highway Safety Administrator’s Drug and Alcohol
Testing Rules during the past two (2) years. If the employee admits
thai s/he had a positive test or a refusal (o test, the employer shall not
use the employee to perform safety-sensitive functions until and unless
the employee documents successful completion of the return-to-dut
process.

If information is requested from another employer, the employer shall,
after reviewing the employee s specific written consent, immediately
release the requested information to the employer making the inquiry.
As an employer requesting the information required, the employer
shall maintain a written confidential record of the information the
emplover obtained of the good faith efforts the employer made to
obtain the information. The employer shall retain this information for
three (3) years from the date of the employee's first performance of
safety-sensitive functions for the employer.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 13 2018




6. (Optional) The employer may, but is not required to, conduct pre-

employment alcohol testing. If such tests are conducted, the employer
shall comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 382.301.

C. Reasonable Suspicion Alcohol and/or Drug Testing

A driver shall be required to submit to an alcohol and/or drug test when
the employer has reasonable suspicion the driver has violated the
rohibitions of the alcohol and/or drug policy.

e Determining Reasonable Suspicion
A supervisor shall determine that reasonable suspicion exists that
requires the driver (o undergo testing based on directly making

specific contemporaneous, articulable observations concerning the

appearance, behavior, speech or body odors of the driver. In addition,

the observations for drug use may include indications of the chronic

use and/or the withdrawal effects of controlled substances.

e Timing of a Reasonable Suspicion Test

1) Alcohol testing is authorized only if the observations are made
during, just preceding, or just after the driver performs safety-
sensitive functions. A driver shall be directed to undergo

reasonable suspicion testing only while the driver is performing

safety-sensitive functions, just before the driver is performing

safety-sensitive functions, or just afier the driver has ceased

performing such functions.

2) Alcohol testing shall occur as soon as possible after the observed
conditions or event. If the test is not administered within two (2)
hours, the employer shall prepare and maintain on file a record
stating the reasons the alcohol test was not promptly administered.
If the alcohol test is not administered within eight (8) hours, the
employer shall cease attempls to administer an alcohol test and
shall state in the record the reasons for not administering the test.

3) Drug testing shall occur as soon as possible afier the observed
conditions or event. If the test is not administered within thirty-two

(32) hours. the employer shall cease altempis to administer the

drug test and shall state in the record the reasons for not
administering the test.
e Documentation of a Reasonable Suspicion Test
A wrilten record of the driver 's conduct that creates reasonable
suspicion shall be prepared and signed by the supervisor(s) who made
the observations within twenty-four (24) hours of the observed
behavior or before the results of the test are released, whichever is

earlier (see Documentation Reasonable Suspicion Drug / Alcohol
Testing Form [See Form 2064-F6]).

o Transporiation of Driver for Reasonable Suspicion Testing

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 14 2018




A driver who is required to submit to reasonable suspicion testing
shall be transported by the employer to the location of the test. After

the driver submits to the test, the employer shall provide
transportation for the driver to his/her home. The driver shall be

placed on leave with pay, pending test resulls.

D. Post-Accident Testing

No requirements in this section shall be construed to require the delay of
necessary medzcal attention for mmred people followmg an accident, or to
or the period

necessary to obtain assistance in resgondmg to the accident, or to obtain
necessary emergency medical care.

Drivers who are involved in an accident shall be sent for an alcohol and
drug test following the accident whenever:

1. The uccident involved ua futality, or

2. The driver received a citation for a moving traffic violation arising
from the accideni, and the accident involved:
a. Bodily injury to any person who. as a result of the injury,
immediately receives medical treatment away from the scene of the

accident; or
b. One or more of the vehicles involved in the accident was towed
away from the scene.
Has Citation | Must be
Type of Accident Involved Been Issued | Tested by
to the CMV | employer?
Driver?
Human fatality Yes Yes
No Yes
Bodily injury with immediate medical Yes Yes
ireatment away from the scene No No
Disabling damage to any motor vehicle Yes Yes
requiring tow away No No

e The Employer's Responsibility

1) The employer shall provide drivers with necessary post-accident
report information, procedures, and instructions before the driver

operates a commercial motor vehicle to allow drivers to comply
with the testing requirements.
2) The employer is responsible for adhering to the following post-

accident timeline, including any recording requirements.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 15 2018




| _Time Lapsed _Action Required

2 hours ALCOHOL - If the driver has not submitted to an alcohol test al this
time, the employer will prepare and maintain on file, a statement of the
reasons the test was not promptly administered.

8 hours ALCOHOL - The employer shall cease attempls to administer an

alcohol test and prepare and maintain on file, a statement of the reasons

why the test was not promptly administered.

32 hours DRUGS — If the driver has not submitted to a drug test at this time, the

employer shall cease attempts to administer the test and prepare and
maintain on file, a statement of the reasons why the test was not
prompily administered.

3) Inthe event that federal, state, or local officials conduct a breath
or blood test for the use of alcohol and/or urine tests for the use of

drugs following an accident, these tests shall be considered to meet
the DOT requirements, providing the tests conform to applicable
federal, state, or local testing requirements and that the results of
the tests are obtained by the employer. The employer shall provide
transportation for the driver to the location of the test. After the
driver submits to the test, the employer shall provide
{ransportation for the driver to his/her home.

e Driver's Responsibility
A driver is obligated lo complete a post-accident report form, to follow
the post-accident instructions supplied by the employer, and to see that

the alcohol and/or drug test(s) are conducted,

1) A driver must submit to an alcohol test as soon as practicable, but
not later than eight (8) hours after the accident.

2) A driver must submit to a drug lest as soon as practicable, but not
later than thirty-two (32) hours following the accident.

3) Inthe event a driver is so seriously injured thal the driver cannol
provide a blood, breath, or urine specimen at the time of the
accident, the driver must provide necessary authorizations, as soon
as the driver's physical condition allows, to enable the employer to
obtain hospital records or other documents that indicate whether
there were drugs or alcohol in the driver's system when the

accident occurred.
4) Inthe event federal, state, or local officials conducted alcohol
and/or drug testing following an accident as provided in Section

D.3. “Employer's Responsibility, " the driver will be required (o
sign a release allowing the employer to obtain the test resulls from

such officials.

5) A driver who is subject to a post-accident test mus! remain readily
available for testing. A driver who leaves the scene before the test

is administered or who does not make himselffherself readily

available may be deemed to have refused to be tested and such

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 16 2018




refusal shall be treated as a positive test. Further, the driver,
subject to a post-accident test, must refrain from consuming
alcohol for eight (8) hours following the accident, or until the
driver submils to an alcohol test, whichever comes first.

a driver required to submit to post-accident
testing will be placed on administrative leave, with pay, pending
receipt of the post-accident testing result.

E. Random Testing
All drivers are subject to random alcohol and drug testing.

6)

1. Random Selection Process

a. The selection of drivers for random alcohol and drug testing shall
be made from a random number table or a computer-based
random number generator that is matched with the driver’s social
security number. Random testing will be unannounced and the
dates for administering the tests will be spread reasonably
throughout the year. and

b. The employer will drug test, at a minimum, twenty-five percent
(25%) of the average number of driver positions each calendar
year. The employer will alcohol test, at a minimum, ten percent
(10%) of the average number of driver positions each calendar
year.

The employer utilizes a Consortium/Third-party Administrator
(C/TPA) to conduct random testing for alcohol and controlled
substances. The total number of drivers to be calculated shall be
based on the total number of drivers covered by the C/TPA at the
same minimum annual percentage rate.

2. Timing for Random Testing

a. Random drug testing will be performed at any time while the
driver is at work;

b. Random alcohol testing will be performed just before, during, or
just afier the driver is performing safety-sensitive functions; and

c. A driver selected for random testing shall proceed immediately to

the test site. A driver who engages in conduct, which does not lead
to testing as soon as possible afier notification, may be considered

to have refused to test and such refusal shall be treated as a
positive lest.

F. Return-to-Duty Process and Testing
1. Referral
A driver, who has violated a DOT Drug and Alcohol Regulation, shall
be provided by the employer or through a C/TPA or other Service
Agent a listing of SAPs including their names, addresses, and

telephone numbers of SAPs who are readily available to the employees
and acceptable to the employer.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 17 2018



2. SAP and Treatment Services for Employees

a. The employer may, but is not required to, offer an employee an

opportunity to return to a position performing DOT safety-
sensitive functions following a violation of a DOT drug or alcohol

regulation.

b. Before the employee again performs a safety-sensitive function
following a violation, the employer must ensure that the employee
receives an evaluation by a SAP, and that the employee
successfully complies with the SAP’s evaluation recommendations.

c. Payment for SAP evaluations and services shall be the
responsibility of the employee, or as otherwise covered in the
employer’s health care benefits, and/or governed by existing
management/labor agreements.

3. SAP Evaluation/Recommendations

a. Once an employee with a DOT Drug and Alcohol Regulation
violation has been evaluated by a SAP, neither the employee nor

the emplover can seek a second SAP evaluation in order to obtain
another recommendation.
b. Ifthe employee, contrary to (a) above, does obtain a second SAP
evaluation, the employer may not rely on it.
4. Changing a SAP Initial Evaluation
a. Excepl as provided in (b) below, no one may change in any way
the SAP’s evaluation or recommendations for assistance.

b. The SAP who made the initial evaluation may modify his/her initial
evaluation and recommendations based on new or additional

information (e.g., from an education or treatment program).
5. Additional Treatment, Aftercare Services
The employer, upon receiving recommendations from a SAP for an

employee who has resumed the performance of safety-sensitive
functions,) may, in addition to follow-up tests:

a. Regquire the employee 1o participate in the recommended services
as a part of the return-to-duty agreement with the employee;

b. Monitor and document the employee’s participation in the
recommended services; and

c. Make use of SAP and employee assistance program (EAP) services
in assisting and monitoring the employee’s compliance with the

SAP recommendations.

G. Follow-Up Testing
If the employer decides to permil the employee to return to the
performance of safety-sensitive functions, the employee must take a
return-to-duty test after the SAP has determined that the employee has
successfully complied with the prescribed treatment and/or education.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 18




The employer must direct a collection under direct observation if the drug
test is a return-to-duty test or follow up test.

The employee must have a negative drug test and/or an alcohol test with
an alcohol concentration of less than 0.02 before resuming performance
of safety-sensitive functions.

All drivers who have committed a violation of DOT Drug or Alcohol

regulations will be subject to a written follow-up drug and/or alcohol

testing plan prepared by the SAP. A copy of this plan shall be presented
directly to the Designated Employer Representative (DER).

Follow-up testing applies during the period following completion of a
treatment program. The driver will be subject to a minimum of six (6)

unannounced, follow-up drug and/or alcohol tests over the following

twelve (12) months following the employee s return to safety-sensitive
functions.

The SAP can require additional testing up to a maximum of sixty (60)
months from the date the driver returns o duty. Likewise, the SAP can
terminate the additional follow-up testing that was ordered in excess of

the minimum twelve (12) month period,

A driver whose follow-up alcohol test result is .02 to .039 must be
removed from any safety-sensitive functions for twenty-four (24) hours.

This test resull is not a vielation of the DOT/FMCSA regulations. The
employer may also impose additional disciplinary action.

The employer shall carry out the SAP’s follow-up lesting requirements.
The employee shall not be permitted to perform safety-sensitive » functions,
unless follow-up testing is completed as directed by the SAP.

The employer shall schedule follow-up tests at its discretion and shall
ensure the tests are unannounced without any discernable pattern as to
their timing and that the employee is not given advance notice.

There shall be no substitution of any other tests (e.g., those carried out
under the random testing program) conducted on the employee for this

ollow-up testing requirement.

A cancelled follow-up test does not constitute a completed test. Any
follow-up test that was cancelled must be re-collected.

o Timing of a Follow-Up Alcohol Test

Follow-up alcohol testing shall be conducted just before, during, or
just afier the driver performs safety-sensitive functions.
o Timing of a Follow-Up Drug Test

Follow-up drug testing muy be performed ul uny lime while the driver
is at work. The driver does not have to be performing a safety-

sensitive function.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 19 2018




H. Test Results (Invalid)
If the employer receives a drug test result indicating that the employee s

specimen was invalid and that a second collection must take place under
direct observation:

1. Immediately direct the employee to provide a new specimen under
direct observation;

2. Do not attach consequences to the finding that the test was invalid,
other than collecting a new specimen under direct observation;

3. Do not give any advance notice of this test requirement to the
employee;

4. Instruct the collector to note on the Federal Drug Testing Custody and
Control Form (CCF) the same reason (e.g_random test, post-accident
test) as for the original collection.

. Report of a Dilute Specimen

1. Ifthe MRO informs the DER that a positive drug test was dilute, the
DER shall treat the test as a verified positive test and must not direct

the employee to take another test based on the fact that the specimen
was dilute.

2. Ifthe MRO informs the DER that a negative test was dilute, the

employer will take the following action:

a. Ifthe MRO directs the employer to conduct a recollection under
direct observation (i.e., because the creatinine concentration of the
specimen was equal to or greater than 2mg/dL, but less than or

equal to Smg/dL, the employer must do so immediately.

b. Otherwise (i.e., if the creatinine concentration of the dilute
specimen is greater than Smg/dL), the employer may, but is not
required to, direct the employee to take another test immediately.

i. Such recollections must not be collected under direct
observation, unless there is another basis for use of direct

observation (see § 40.67 (b) and (c))

ii. The employer must treat all employees the same for this
urpose. The employer may, however, establish different
policies for different types of tests (e.g., conduct retests in pre-
employment situations, but not in random test situations). The
employer must inform their employees in advance of the
employer's decisions on these matters.

c. The employer must ensure that the employee is given the minimum

possible advance notice that he or she must go to the collection

site; the employer must treat the result of the test as the test result
of record. If the result of the test the employer directed the
employee o lake is also negative and dilute, the employer is not
permitted to make the employee take an additional test because the
result was dilute. Provided, however, that if the MRO directs the

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 20 2018



employer (o conduct a recollection under direct observation the
employer must immediately do so.

J. Cancelled Drug or Alcohol Test
A cancelled drug or alcohol test is neither positive nor negative.

1.

The employer must not attach to a cancelled test the consequences of a

positive test or a violation of a DOT Drug or Alcohol Testing
Regulation (e.g., removal from a safety-sensitive position).

The employer must not use a cancelled test as evidence of a negative
test to authorize the employee to perform safety-sensitive functions
(i.e., in the case of a pre-employment, return-to-duty, or a follow-up

test).

The employer must not direct a re-collection from an employee. except

when conducting a pre-employment return-to-duty or a follow-up test,

or in other provisions of the regulations that require another test to be
conducted as provided in 49 CFR 40.159(a) (5) when a drug test result

is invalid_and 40.187(b) when a split specimen laboratory result failed
to reconfirm Drug(s)/Drug Metabolite(s) not detected.

A cancelled test does not count toward compliance with DOT
requirements for the number of tests needed to meet the employer’s
minimum random testing rate.

A cancelled DOT test does not provide a valid basis for a non-DOT
test.

A cancelled alcohol test must be reported to the DER and treated as if
the test never occurred.

K. Insufficient Amount of Urine for Drug Test

1.

When a collector informs the DER that an employee has not provided
a sufficient amount of urine for a drug test, the DER must, afier
consulting with the MRQ, direct the employee to obtain within five (5)
working days an evaluation from a licensed physician, who is
acceptable to the MRO, and who has expertise in the medical issues
raised by the employee’s failure to provide a sufficient specimen.
When the MRO indicates to the DER that a test is cancelled due to a
medical condition that has, or with a high degree of probability could
have precluded the employee from providing a sufficient amount of
urine, the employer shall take no further action with the employee.

The employee shall remain in the random testing pool.

L. Insufficient Amount of Saliva or Breath for an Alcohol Test

1.

When a STT informs the DER that the employee has not provided a
sufficient amount of saliva for an alcohol-screening test, the DER must
immediately arrange to administer an alcohol test to the employee
using an EBT or uther breath-testing device.

2. When a BAT or SAT informs the DER that the employee has not

provided a sufficient amount of breath, the employer must direct the

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 21 2018



employee lo obtain, within five (5) working days, an evaluation from a
licensed physician who is accepiable to the employer, and who has
expertise in the medical issues raised by the employee s failure to
provide a sufficient specimen. The DER must provide the physician
with the following information and instructions:

a. That the employee was required to take a DOT breath alcohol test,
but was unable to provide a sufficient amount of breath to

complete the test;
b. The consequences for refusing to take a required alcohol test

include removal from performing all safety-sensitive functions,

referral for evaluation by a SAP, and disciplined up to and
including termination;

c. The physician must provide the DER with a signed statement of
his/her conclusion regarding the employees failure to provide a

sufficient amount of saliva or breath for an alcohol test; and
d. That the physician, in his/her reasonable medical judgment, must
base those conclusions on requirements listed in 49 CFR 40.26.
3. Upon receipt of the report from the examining physician, the DER
must immediately inform the employee and take appropriate action

based upon Federal Highway Administration Regulations.

M. Addressing “Correctable Flaws” in Alcohol Testing
1. Ifa BAT or STT reports to the DER that a correctable flaw has
occurred, and another testing device is not available for the new test

al a testing site, the DER shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that

the test is conducted at another test site as soon as possible.

2. All other problems must be addressed by a BAT, STT, employer, or
other Service Agent administering the process, or the test must be
cancelled,

N. Fatal Flaws

The employer must cancel an alcohol test if any of the following “fatal

flaws” occur. The test is cancelled and must be treated as if the test never

occurred. These problems are:

1. In the case of a screening test conducted on saliva ASD or a breath
tube ASD:

a. The STT or BAT reads the result either sooner than or later than
the time allotted by the manufacturer.
The saliva ASD does not activate, or
The device is used for a test after the expiration date printed on the

device or on its package.

O. Alcohol Confirmation Test Result
The employer shall take the following steps with respect to the receipt and
storage of alcohol test results information:

Vehicle Operators Drug and Aicohol Policy Page 22 2018



1. Ifthe test resulls are not in writing (e.g., by telephone or electronic
means), the DER shall identify and record the BAT sending the results.

2. Store all test results information in a way that protects confidentiality.

P. Direct Observation

The employer must direct an immediate collection under direct
observation with no advance notice to the employee, if:

1. The laboratory reported to the MRO that the specimen is invalid, and
the MRO reported to the employer that there was not an adequate
medical explanation for the result; or

2. The MRQ reported to the employer that the original positive,
adulterated, or substituted test result had to be cancelled, because the

test of the split specimen could not be performed.

3. The laboratory reported to the MRO that the specimen was substituted
with a creatinine concentration greater than or equal to 2mg/dL and
less than 5mg/dL and the MRO reported the specimen to the employer

as negative and dilute.
Q. Stand-Down Employee

The employer is prohibited from standing down an employee following the

MROs receipt of a laboratory report of a confirmed positive test for a
drug or drug melabolite, an adulterated test, or a substituted test
pertaining to the employee prior to the MRO completing the verification
process. Note: To obtain a waiver 1o this prohibition, the employer shall
send g written request which inclu Ul of the information required ¢
the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administrator, U.S. Department of

Transportation, 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20590.
R. Service Agents

1. Ifthe employer uses a Service Agent to perform the tasks necessary to
comply with the DOT drug and alcohol testing requirements, it shall
ensure the Service Agent complies with 49 CFR Part 40 (Q), Roles and
Responsibilities of Service Agents.

2. The employer shall ensure that Service Agents used meel
gqualifications required for their specialty area, and may require
Service Agents to present documentation that they meet these
requirements.

3. The employer shall obtain information required from their Service
Agents. For example, the employer must not assume that “no news is

ood news " and permil an applicant to perform safely-sensitive
functions before receiving the test resullts.

4. The employer must not permil the Service Agent to also serve as the
DER,

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 23 2018



S. Designated Employer Representative (DER)

The employer shall provide to collectors, BATs and STTs, the name and

leleghane number of the appropriate DER and C/TPA to contact about
any problems or issues that may arise during the testing process. Drivers

may direct any questions they may have about this policy to the DER. The

name and work telephone number of the DER will be posted on bulletin

boards at all work sites.

T. Payment for the Test of a Split Specimen
1. The employer is responsible for making sure that the MRO, first
laboratory,_and second laboratory perform testing of split specimens
in a timely manner once the employee has made a timely request for a
test or split specimen.

2. The employer must not condition compliance with this requirement on

the employee s direct payment to the MRO, or laboratory, or the
employee’s agreement to reimburse the employer for the costs of

testing. The employer may seek payment or reimbursement of all the
costs for the split specimen from the employee.

U. SAP Information Provided by Agent Employer

The employer, through a C/TPA or other Service Agent, shall provide to
each employee, (including an applicant or new employee) who violates a
DOT Drug or Alcohol Regulation, a listing of SAPs with their addresses
and phone numbers who are readily available to the employee and
acceptable to the employer. The employee shall not be charged any  fee
for compiling or providing this list.

V. Confidentiality and Release of Information

1. The employer shall not release individual test results or medical
information about an employee to third parties without the employee s
specific writien consent.

a. A third party is any person or employer to whom other subparts of
49 CFR 40 do not explicitly authorize or require the transmission
of information in the course of the drug and alcohol testing

process.

b. Specific written consent means a statement signed by the employee
that s/he agrees to the release of specific information to an
explicitly identified, person or employer at a particular time.
Blanket releases of information (e.g., all test results) or release of
information to a category of parties (e.g., other employers who are
members of a C/TPA, companies 1o which the employee may apply
for employment) are prohibited.

2. The employer may release information pertaining to an employee's
drug or alcohol test without the employee s consent in certain legal

proceedings as provided for in 49 CFR 40.323.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 24 2018




Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohot Policy

The employer shall, upon request of DOT agency represeniatives,
provide the following:

a. Access 1o the employer's facilities for DOT agency drug and
alcohol program functions.

b. Al written, printed, and computer-based drug and alcohol
program records and reports (including copies of name-specific

records or reports), files, materials, data,

documents/documentations, agreements, contracts, policies, and
statements.

If requested by the National Transportation Safety Board as part of an

accident investigation, the employer shall provide information

concerning post-accident tests administered afier the accident.

If requested by a federal, state, or local safety agency with regulatory

authority over the employer or the employee, the employer shall
provide drug and alcohol test records concerning the employee.

Record Retention Requirements
The employer shall keep the following records for a period of five (5)

years:
a. Records of employee alcohol test results indicating an alcohol

concentration of 0.02 or greater;

b. Records of employee’s verified positive drug test resulls;
c. Documentation of refusals to take required alcohol and/or drug

tests (including substituted or adulterated drug test results);
d. SAP reports; and
e. All follow-up tests and schedules for follow-up tests.

The employer shall keep records of information concerning drug and

alcohol test results obtained from previous employers on employees

thal perform safety-sensitive functions for three (3) years.

The employer shall keep the following records for a period of two (2)

years.:

a. Records of the inspection, maintenance, and calibration of EBT for
. and

b. Records related to the alcohol and drug collection process. These
include documents related to random selections, reasonable
suspicion determinations, and post-accident determinations:
medical evaluations for insufficient amounts of urine and breath;
and supervisor and employee education and training records.

The employer shall keep records of negative and cancelled drug test
results and alcohol results with a concentration of less than 0.02 for
one (1) year.

The emplover shall maintain these records described in 1 through 4
above in a location with controlled access.

Page 25 2018



6. If the employer decides to have their Service Agent retain these
records, the employer shall ensure the records can be produced at the

employer's place of business in the time required by the FMCSA (e.g.,
within two (2) days of a request by the FMCSA inspector).

IX. Reservation of Rights

The employer reserves the right to interprel, change, or rescind this policy in
whole or in part, with or without notice, subject to any state and federal laws and

relevant collective bargaining agreements.

Provisions within the Federal Department of Transportation (DOT), Federal
Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSR), and state law will supercede any
conflicting language in this policy manual.

Nothing in this policy creates a binding employment contract nor modifies an
existing contract,

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 26 2018




DEFINITIONS
For the purposes of the Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy, the following

definitions shall apply:

Adulterated Specimen. A specimen that has been altered, as evidenced by test
results showing either a substance that is not a normal constituent for that type of

specimen or showing an abnormal concentration of an endogenous substance.

Air Blank. In evidential breath testing devices (EBTs) using gas chromatography
technology, a reading of the device's internal standard._In all other EBTs, a
reading of ambient air containing no alcohol.

Alcohol. The intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low
molecular weight alcohols including methyl or isopropyl alcohol.

Alcohol Concentration. The alcohol in a volume of breath expressed in terms of

grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath.

Alcohol Confirmation Test. A subsequent test using an EBT following a
screening test with a result of 0.02 or greater that provides quantitative data
about the alcohol concentration.

Alcohol Test. A test using an evidential breath test device (EBT) or a non-
evidential breath test device (such as a saliva test); the method of testing used to
detect the level of alcohol. Both a screening test and a confirmation test must be
used to establish a positive test result.

Alcohol Screening Test. An analytic procedure to determine whether an

employee may have a prohibited concentration of alcohol in a breath or saliva
Specimen.

Alcohol Testing Site. A place selected by the employer where employees present
themselves for the purpose of providing breath or saliva for an alcohol test.

Alcohol Use. The drinking or swallowing of any beverage, liquid mixture, or
preparation (including any medication) containing alcohol.

Aliquot. A fractional part of a specimen used for testing. It is taken as a sample
representing the whole specimen.

a laboratory for quality control testing purposes, with a fictitious identifier, so
that the laboratory cannot distinguish it from an employee specimen.

Blood Alcohol Concentration (BAC). The alcohol in a volume of breath

expressed in terms of grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath as indicated by an

evidential breath test.

Breath Alcolol Technician (BAT). A person who instructs and assists
emplovees in the alcohol testing process and operates an evidential breath-testing
device.

Vchicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 27 2018



Cancelled Test. A drug or alcohol test that has a problem identified that cannot
be or has not been corrected, or which 49 CFR Part 40 otherwise requires to be
cancelled. A cancelled test is neither a positive nor a negative test.

Chain of Custody. The procedure used to document the handling of the urine

specimen from the time the employee gives the specimen to the collector until the
specimen is destroyed. This procedure uses the Federal Drug Testing Custody

and Control Form (CCF) (see current form on website:
https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.dev/files/docs/Alcohol-Drug-Testing-

Form-Suppliers.pdf).
Collection Container. A container into which the employee urinates to provide
the specimen for a drug test.

Collection Site. A place selected by the employer where employees present
themselves for the purpose of providing a urine specimen for a drug les!.

Collector. A person who instructs and assists employees at a collection site, who

receives and makes an initial inspection of the specimen provided by those
employees, and who initiates and completes the Federal Drug Testing Custody

and Control Form (CCF) (see current form on website
https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.dev/files/docs/Alcohol-Drug-Testing-

Form-Suppliers.pdf).
Commercial Motor Vehicle. A motor vehicle used in commerce to transport

assengers or ¥ty, if the motor vehicle: (1) has a gross vehicle weight ratin
GVWR) in excess of 26,000 pounds, or (2) is designed to carry 16 or more

passengers (including the driver), or (3) of any size, which is used in the
transportation of a placardable amount of hazardous material.

Confirmation Test. For alcohol testing, means a second lest using an evidential
breath lest device, following a screening test with a result of .02 or greater. that

provides quantitative data of alcohol concentration.
For drug testing, means a second analytical procedure 1o identify the presence of

a specific drug or metabolite that is independent of the screen test, and that uses a
different technique and chemical principle from that of the screen test in order to
ensure reliability and accuracy, generally a Gas Chromatography/Mass
Spectrometry (GC/MS).

Confirmatory Drug Test. A second alalytical procedure performed on a different
. 4 h I3 o ‘0 ld - h v .

drug or drug metabolite.

Confirmatory Validity Test. A second lest performed on a different aliguol of the

original urine specimen _to further support a validity test result.

Confirmed Drug Test. A confirmation test result received by an MRO froma
laboratory.
Consortium/Third-party Administrator (C/TPA). A service agent that provides

or_coordinates the provision of d variety of drug and alcohol testing services (0
employers. C/TPAs typically perform administrative tasks concerning the

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 28 2018




operation of the employers’ drug and alcohol testing programs. This term
includes, but is not limited to, groups of employers who join together to
administer, as a single entity, the DOT drug and alcohol testing programs of its
members.

Designated Emplover Representative (DER). An employee authorized by the
employer to take immediate action(s) to remove employees from safety-sensitive
functions and to make required decisions in the testing and evaluation processes.
The DER also receives test results and other communications for the employer.
Service agents cannot act as DERs.

Dilute Specimen. A urine specimen with creatinine and specific gravity values
that are lower than expected for human urine.

DOT, the Department, DOT Agency. These terms encompass all DOT agencies,

including, but not limited to, the United States Coast Guard (USCG), the F ederal
Aviation Administration (FAA), the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA), the

Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA), the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA), the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
(NHTSA), the Research and Special Programs Administration (RSPA), and the
Office of the Secretary (OST). These terms include any designee of a DOT
agency.

Driver. Any person who operates a commercial motor vehicle. This includes, but
is not limited to. full-time, regularly employed drivers; casual, intermittent, or
occasional drivers; leased drivers; and independent, owner-operalor coniractors
who are either directly employed by, or under lease to, an employer or who
operate a commercial motor vehicle al the direction of. or with the consent of the
employer. '

Drugs. The drugs for which tests are required are: marijuana, cocaine,
amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), and opioids.

Drug Test. A urinalysis (urine) test that includes specimen collection and testing
by a Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) certified laboratory.
Both a screening test and a confirmation test must be used to establish a positive

test resullt.

Employee. Any person who is designated in a DOT agency regulation as subject
to drug testing and/or alcohol testing. The term includes individuals currently
performing safety-sensitive functions designated in DOT agency regulations and

applicants for employment subject to pre-employment testing. For purposes of

drug testing, the term “employee” has the same meaning as the term “donor” as
found on CCF and related guidance materials produced by the Department of
Health and Human Services.

Employer. A person or entity employing one or more employees (including an

mdtwdual who is self employed) 9ubzect to 1)()1 agency regulatzons requiring

Vehicie Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 29 2018



Evidential Breath Testing Device (EBT). A device approved by the National
Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) for the evidential testing of

breath at the .02 and .04 alcohol concentrations, placed on NHTSA 's Conforming
Products List (CPL) for “Evidential Breath Measurement Devices, ” and
identified on the CPL as conforming with the model specifications.

HHS. The Department of Health and Human Services or any designee of the
Secretary, Department of Health and Human Services.

" Illegally Used Drug. Any prescribed drug that is legally obtainable, but has not
been legally obtained or is not being used for prescribed purposes, all designer
drugs. and any other over-the-counter or non-drug substances (e.g., airplane

glue) being used for other than their intended purpose. (Note: A designer drug is
a man-made drug, or combination of drugs. which is similar in basic scientific
properties to a drug or controlled substance and is produced in a clandestine

laboratory.

Initial Drug Test (Screening Drug Test) The test used (o differentiate a negative
specimen from one that requires further testing for drugs or drug metabolites.

Initial Specimen Validity Test. The first test used o determine if a urine

specimen is adulterated, diluted, substituted, or invalid.

Invalid Drug Test. The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory in
accordance with the criteria established by HHS Mandatory Guidelines when a

positive, negative, adulterated, or substituted result cannot be established for a

specific drug or specimen validity test.
Laboratory. Any U.S. laboratory certified by HHS under the National Laboratory

Certification Program as meeting the minimum standards of Subpart C of the

HHS Mandatory Guidelines for Federal Workplace Drug Testing Programs; or,

in the case of foreign laboratories, a laboratory approved for participation by
DOT under this part.
Limit of Detection (LOD). The lowest concentration at which a measurand can

be identified_but (for quantitative assays) the concentration cannot be accurately

calculated.

Limit of Quantitation. For quantitative assays, the lowest concentration at which
the identity and concentration of the measurand can be accurately established.

Medical Review Officer (MRO). A person who is a licensed physician and who

is responsible for receiving and reviewing laboratory results generated by an

employer’s drug testing program and evaluating medical explanations for certain

drug test resulls.

Negative Result. The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory to an MRO
when a specimen contains no drug or the concentration of the drug is less than
the cutoff concentration for the drug or drug class and the specimen is a valid
specimen.

Non-negative Specimen. A urine specimen that is reported as adulterated,

j j j and /or invalid,

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 30 2018



Office of Drug and Alcohol Policy and Compliance (ODAPC). The office in the

Office of the Secretary, DOT. thal is responsible for coordinating drug and

alcohol testing program matters within the Department, and providing
information concerning the implementation of 49 CFR Part 40.

Oxidizing Adulterant. A substance that acts alone or in combination with other
substances to oxidize drugs or drug metabolites to prevent the detection of the

drug or drug metabolites, or affects the reagents in either the initial or
confirmatory drug test.

Positive Result. The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory when a
specimen contains a drug or drug metabolite equal to or greater than the cutoff
concentrations.

Reasonable Suspicion of Drug and/or Alcohol Use. Reasonable suspicion
means such suspicion that will justify a supervisor in referring a driver for an

alcohol and/or drug test. It is the amount of suspicion sufficient to convince g
trained supervisor under the circumstances to believe that:

a. The driver has violated the Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol
policy; or

b. The actions. appearance. or conduct of an on-duty driver are
indicative of the use of drugs or alcohol.

The suspicion must be based in fact on specific, contemporaneous, articulable
observations by a trained supervisor(s) concerning the appearance, behavior,

speech, or body odors of the driver.

For reasonable suspicion of alcohol misuse, such observations must be made
during, just preceding, or just after the period of the work day that the driver is

erforming a safety-sensitive function. Reasonable suspicion is more than mere
speculation but less than absolute certainty.

Reconfirmed. The result reported for a split specimen when the second
laboratory is able to corroborate the original result reported for the primary

specimen,
Rejected for Testing. The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory when

no lests are performed for a specimen because of a fatal flaw or a correctable
flaw that is not corrected.

Screening Test. In alcohol testing, it means an analytical procedure to determine
whether a driver may have a prohibited conceniration in his/her system (breath or

saliva test). In drug testing, it means an immunoassay screen o eliminate
“negative” urine specimens from further consideration.

Screening Test Technician (STT). A person who instructs and assists emplovees
in the alcohol testing process and operates an Alcohol Screening Device (ASD).

Service Agent. Any person or entity, other than an employee of the employer,
who provides services specified under this part (49 CFR Part 40) to employers
and/or employees in connection with DOT drug and alcohol testing requirements.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 31 2018



This includes, but is not limited to, collectors, BATs, STTs, laboratories, MRQs,
SAPs, and C/TPAs. To act as service agents, persons and employers must meet
the qualifications set forth in applicable sections of 49 CFR Part 40. Service
agents are not employers for purposes of 49 CFR Part 40.

Split Specimen Collection. A collection in which the urine collected is divided
into two separate specimen bottles, the primary specimen (Bottle A) and the split

specimen (Bottle B).
Stand-down._The practice of temporarily removing an employee from the

performance of safety-sensitive functions based only on a report from a

laboratory to the MRO of a confirmed positive test for a drug or drug metabolite,

an adulterated test, or a substituted test, before the MRO has completed
verification of the test resull.

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP). A licensed physician, or a licensed or

certified psychologist, social worker_employee assistance professional, state-

licensed or certified marriage and family therapist, or drug and alcohol counselor

(certified by an organization listed at hitps://www.transportation.gov/odapc/sap)
with knowledge of and clinical experience in the diagnosis and treatment of drug-
and alcohol-related disorders. (Note: To act as SAP under the DOT drug testing
program, the individual must meet the requirements for credentials, basic

knowledge, qualification training, continuing education, and documentation listed
in 49 CFR 40.281.)

values that are so diminished or so divergent that they are not consistent with
normal human urine.

Verified Test. A drug test resull or validity testing result from an HHS-certified laboratory that
has undergone review and final determination by the MRO.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

L——Statement-of Purpose
Storey-County-is-the-employer-referenced throughout-this-policy:

?Fhe@mployefﬁeeks\Wm&e»a«dwgwand«alwhei-fwe«we&kpiaee»lhabi&h»eempliamewi&h{he%deml»gepanmem
of -Transportation-{DOT)-(49-CER-Part-40)-and-the-Federal - Motor-Carrier-Safety-Regulations-(FMSCR)-as
prescribed-by-the-Federal-Metor Carrier-Safety-Administration-{EMCSA)-(49-CFR-Parts 382,383, 387.-390-397,
and-399).Therefore,-it-is-the-policy- of the-employer-that-all-employees-who-perform-safety-sensitive-funetions-as
defined-in-this policy. ineluding employees-required-to-maintain-commercial-driver’s licenses-(CBL):- be-drug-and
aleohol free:

To- further-this-goal,-the-employer-has-implemented-this Vehicle Operators-Drug-and-A icohel-Policy—The-Policy
prov ides-the-employer—with—reasonable—measures—to-ensure—that-an—employee’s-drug -or-alcohol-use-dees—rot
jeopardize-the-employer’s-successful-eperations; the-employer’s- workplace;-its employees; or-the general-publie:

H——Coverage

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 32 2018



The-Vehicle-Operators-Drug-and-Alcohol-Policy-covers-all-employees-who-are-required-to-obtain-and-maintain-a
€DL-as-a-qualification-for-their-position--All employees-covered-by-this-Poliey-are-referred-to-as-drivers™-
purposes-of this-Policy-A EBL-is-required-for-all-drivers-that-operate-a-vehicle:

--—in-oxcess-of 26,000 pounds-Grass- Vehicle Weight-Rating (GVWR);-0r

2—Designed 10-carry-16-or-more-passengers-(including the-driver); or

3—9£any-sa‘;e-whieh~is~usedwimhe mmﬁeweﬁ\aﬁmdabmﬂumﬁham%w&matem}:
ewmmmmemal vehue les-to tesﬂhmmpe@auans areqpee&fwally-eevmdwby um»PeheyL

1 BEdueation-and Training

In-an-ongoing-effort-to-prevent-and-eliminate-substance-abuse-in-the-workplace-the-employer-provides-drivers-with
information-and-refertal resources regarding substance-abiise.—In-addition;-supervisors-receive-a-minimum-of sixty
(60) minutes-of training on-controlled substance use and-sixty (60)-minutes-of training-on-alcohol-misuse-to-include
the-identification of actions-appearance,-and-conduet of a driver-that-may-indicate-drug-use-and/or-alcohol-misuse:

V—-Safety-Sensitive Functions
Pursuant-to-the EMSCA,-safety-sensitive-functions-mean-any-of the-following-en-duty-funetions.
On-duty-means-ail-the-time-from-the time-a-driver-begins-to-werk-or-is-required- to-be-in-readiness-to-werk- until-the
time s/he-is-relieved-from-work and-atl- responsibility-for-performing-work—On-duty work-includes:
J-—AlHime at-an-employer-or shipper-plant; terminal,faeility.—or-other-property.-or-on-any-publie- property:
waiting to-be-dispatched, unless the driver has been-relieved from duty-by-the employer;
2—AMN-time-inspecting, servicing; or-conditioning any commercial-metor-vehicle-or-equipmen tatany-time;
3—AlHtimespent-at-the-driviag controls-of a commercial-motor vehicle-in-eperation;

4 Alltime; other-than driving time, in-or-upon-any-commercial-motor-vehicle-exeept-time-spent resting-in-a
sleeper-berth:

S——All-time-loading or-unloading a-vehicle;-supervising-or-assisting-in-the-loading-or-unleading-atiending-a
vehicle being-leaded-or-unloaded-remaining in-readiness-lo-operate-the vehicle,-or-in-giving or-receiving
receipts-for-shipments-loaded or-unloaded;-and

6—All time repairing,-obtaining-assistance; or remaining-in-attendance-upon-a-disabled vehicle:

The following conduct-is-prohibited for-purpeses-of- this-program.-No-driver shall:
}—EConsume alcohol while-performing safety-sensitive-functions;
2—Perform-a safety-sensitive function within four (4) hours after using-aleohol;
3. Have-an-alcohol-coneentration-of--04-or-greater- just- before,-during,-and-just-after performing-his/her
o—if a driver has a-blood-alcohol-content- (BAC)-of-02-10-039; the-driver will-be-immediately-removed
from-all- safely-sensitive-functionsfor-a-period-of iwenty-four {24) hours:
e—if a-driver has-a-BAC-of .04 or preater-just-before; during;-or just-afler-performing a safety-sensitive
funetion-the immediate-consequences-shall-include-the driver being removed-from-safety-sensitive
functions-and referred-to-an-evaluation-by-a-Substance-Abuse -ProfessionaHSAP):

In-addition, the employer- may-take-additional disciplinary- action against-a-driver-who-has-a-test
resilt-of .02 or greater;
4 Use-aleohol-for-eight (8)-hoursfollowing-an-accident-or-until-the-driver undergoes-a-post-accident test;
whichever-comes firsy
S-——Possess-alcohel-while-on duty, unless the-aleohol-is manifested-and transported-as-a part of the shipment;

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 33 2018



6—Use-or-possess-any-drugy-except-when-use-is-pursuant to-the-instructions-oF a-physician-or-dentist-who-has
advised-the-driver-that-the substance does-net-adversely-affect-the-driver's-ability to-operate-a-commercial
motor-vehicle:

- NOTE-~Preseription-Drugs:- Drivers-may-take-over-the-counter-or-preseription-drugs-under-the-guidance
of a-physician-in-the-course-of medical treatment.

----------------------- A-driver-should-ask-histher-physician-or-pharmacist-whether-the-use-of the-prescription-drug-or over-the-
counter-drug-could-adversely-affect-histher-ability-to-perform-safety-sensitive-funetions—Drivers-must
follow-all- manufacturers’ - directions or-package-inserts-when-taking-any-over-the-counter-or-prescription
drugs-

e f-addition; the-employer-requires-a-driver-to-report-that-sthe-is-using-any-over-the-counter or-preseription
drug-if the-use of the-drug could-affect-the safo-performance-of hisher safety-sensitive functions;

F—Test-positive-for-drugs;

8.—Refuse to-submit-to a-pest-accident; random; reasenable-suspicion;-or folow-up-drug or alcehol-test;

0.—-Switeh-adulterate,-or commit-any-other miseconduct pertaining to-any-breath;-urine-or saliva-sample;

}0-Fail-to-provide-an-adequate sample-for-testing-without-a-valid-medical-explanation;

H—Disclose-to-individuals,-other-than-on-a-need-to-kenow- basis;-infermation-pentaining -to-alcehol-and/or
drup-testing refervals; results-of such-testing-or-treatment-referrals;

12—Fail-to-sign-the-DOT-Aleohol-Testing-Eorm-(ATE) (see-Form-206-F4)-or-Federal-Drug-Testing-Custody
and-Control Eorm-(CCE){see-current-form-on-websitevwww.health-orgtworkploce);

$3—Fail-to-consent-and-sign-the-Drugidicohsl-Test-Informed Consent-Form-(see-Form-2064-43);
$4-Fail-to-consent-and-sign-the-Consent-to-Release-of -Drug-/-Aleohol-Information-Drug-+-Heohol-Testing
Form-{seelorm206A-F-23,

+5—Fail-to-repori-to-the collection site-in-the time-allosated:

16:-Loave the scene-ofan-aceident-without-a-valid-reason-before submitting to-a-pest-aceident test;

17 Engage-in-any other-conduet-that-clearly-obstruets-the-testing process;-and

H8:-Use-illicit- drugs-on-or-off duty:

Appendices--Contaet-HR-Dept-for-Copy

A---Drug Specimen Collection-and Testing-Procedures
B --Alcohol Sample-Colloction-and Testing Procedures
€~ Violation of the- DOT/EMCSA-Regulations-382.507; -and Civil-Penalties

................. Driver Disqualifications and-Penalties (49 CFR §383.54)

Vi-—Consequences-for Violation-of the BOT/EMCSA-Prug-and-Alcohel-Policies
The-Federal-BDOT/HFMCS A-mandate-certain-immediate-consequences-whenever—a-driver-engages—in-prohibited
conduct—These-consequences-include removal-from duty-and-referral-to-a-SAP—In-addition;-it-is-importani-to-note
that-the-Employer-may-apply-edditional-consequences-up-to-and-including-terminationfor-violation-of-this-Policy
and-DOT/FMSCA -~ A.dﬁver»whois~a=em9vedwfmmuperformiﬂgsafety—sansitive»«funeﬁens«mayﬂbesuspenéedrwicheut
pay-
A.—Consequences-for-Drivers-for-a Confirmed Vielation-of this-Policy

Specific-immediate consequences shall-oceur- whenever a-driver:

1—Has a verified, positive-drug test' or an-alcohol test result-0£-04-or groater.”

2—Consumes-alcohobwhile-performing-or four (4) hours-before performing a-safety-sensitive

funetion:

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 34 2018



3. —Consumes-alcohol-within-eight-(8) hours-following-an-accident-or before sthe-is-tested;-whichever

oecursfirst
47«vae‘fuseHemsubmits'wanyumquimd«mndem;pesmddmymembleuspieimreﬁbuew-up{m
5. Possesses-drugs-or-aleohol-in-violation-of this-Poliey:

Fhe-immediate-consequences-are:
b+—TFhe-driver will-be-immediately removed-from-performing-all safety-sensitive functions:

e B ThG-driver-may-be-diseiplined;-up-to-and-including termination.

3-—The-driver-will-be-referred -for-evaluation-by-a-SAP.-When-an-employee-has-a-verified;-positive,
adulterated-or-substituted test-result,-or-has-etherwise violated this Policy, the employer shall not
return-the-emplovee-to-the-performance-of safety-sensitive-functions-until-er-unless-the-employee
completes-the-return-to-duty-process-provided-in-this-Poliey.—

lthe-employer-decides-to-continue-omploying-a-driver-whe-has-violated-this-Poliey or- DO/FMSEGA,

the-following-shall occur:

+—The-driver-will receive;-from-the-empleyer;-infermation-on-reseurces-avatlable-to-the-driver-te
resolve-and-evaluate-any problems-asseciated-with substance-abuse-

2. Before-being-returned-to-his/her-safety-sensitive—functions;-the-driver must-underpo-a-return-te-
duty-drug and/er-alcohol test:

3. If the-driver required-treatment-as-recommended-by-a- SAP; the-driver-must-complete-the-treatment
and-be re-evaluated-by-a-SAR-before-submiltingto-wreturn-lo-duty-lest:

4 1f-the-driver-required—troatment--as--recommended -by —a—SAP; - the-driver—will-be- subject-te
unanneunced-follow-up drug-and/or-alcoheltests.

—Consequences-for-Job-Applicants

FiApplicants-whe-{ail-a-pre-employment test- will be denied-employment:

o Amwmm-mampleyee {who-is-iransferring-to-a-covered-position) who-fails-a-pre-employment-test
will-not-receive-the-position.—In -addition;-the-employer-may-refer-the -employee-to-a-SAP-for
evaluation and treatment and-may-take-additional-disciplinary-actions.

~fgiure of a-Post-Aceident-Test
- driver-who-has-a-pesitive-drug-or-alcohol-testresult-following an-aceident; as- provided--in-Section

VH--D:-of this-Policy-will-be-terminated -from-employment:

B---BDOT-Penalties
- NOFE:-Employer-diseipline-is-likely-in-addition-to-the- DO penalties:

Any-driver-who-violates-the- DOT/EMCSA. drug and alcohol-rules-will be-subjeet-te-civil-or-criminai
penalties.-(see-Appendix -of this-Policy):

in—addition.— 49 -CFR- §383.51-also- provides--penalties- for-drug—and—aleohol-related—conduct—of
commereial-motor-vehicle drivers {sce Appendix D of this-Poliey):

——————the-fellowing-are-"disqualifying offenses;

—-Driving-a-commercial- metorvehicle while-under-the-influence of drugs-or-alcohol:

2-—Refusing 10 submil to-a test-as-required-by-any state or jurisdiction-in-the enforeement-of federal-or
state-taw:

3 Leaving the-scene-of an-accident-invelving a commercial-motor-vehicle:

First-Offenders:—~A-driver-who-is-convicted-of driving a-commercial-motor-vehicle- while under—the

influence-of drugs-or-alcohol-for the first-time-will-be-disqualified-for-a-period-oF one (1)-yearprovided

the-vehicle-was-not-transporting - hazardous- materials.—1f-the-vehicle -was-transperting -hazardous

materials-the-driver-wiil-be-disqualified for-a-perind-of three (3) years:

Vcehicic Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 35 2018



Irmdditi@m—&dﬁver»«-whe»issmvioted—aﬁih@useuoﬁa@emmewial»«me&of«vahisle—imhmmmissimwoﬁa
felony—involving—manufacturing; —distributing,—or—dispensing—drugs—(controlled—substances) is
disquatified-for-life:

Second-Qffenders—A-driver who-is-convicted-of driving a-commersial-motor-vehicle-while-under-the
inﬂueneewmldmgwaieohekm»w%néﬁmwmb&disquﬂiﬁed%rmewmsaﬂeﬂhe
violation-if-the driver-has-voluntarily enrolled-in-and successfilly-completed an-appropriate-treatment
program;-the driver may-apply-for reinstatement-of his/her €DL=

Third Offenders:-1£-a reinstated driver-is-convicted-of another drug-related-or-aleohol-related-offense;
sthe-will-be-permanently-disqualified for-life,-and will-not-be-cligible-te-re-apply-for-a-reduction-of the
lifetime-disqualification:

B~ Employer-lmposed Penalties and-Actions

— %»lbviala%—ianswewhi«s»%lie«y,(‘evanwamﬁrstAaﬁ'ense)-wmh»m«aswme»basi&vfep«dissipﬁwm
including termination.—The-severity-of -the-penalty--imposed- by-the-employer-will-depend-on-the
circumstances-of-each-case.—However, -drivers need-to-be- aware-that-any-effense;-including-but-net
Kmited-to-possessian; sale-or-use-of controlled-substances-or illegally-used-drugs-on employer-premises
or-while-on-duty-is- Jikely-tovesull-in-inmediate-termination.

lu—aMm~mw»éMWaeﬁmxémpm&m-mmmmW%ﬂ&stm
held-in-abeyance.-the-employer-may;-at-its-sole-discretion;-refer the-driver-for-appropriate-assessment;
eamseling;andiepa-{rea&mnt—pregmw-as—appﬁeabler—ﬂeweveﬁ%h&empleyer—meww%he—ﬁghme
make-the-final-decision.

VAAleohol-and-Drug Testing
‘The-methods-used-to-determine the presence-of alcohol-and/or drugs in-the driver’s system- under the DOT/AEMGCSA
regulations. include-a-urine’; breath-and/or saliva-test—All-aleohol and drug-testing will- ba-condueted-in-accordance
wi&h~i)(91¥—~pmeedum$~x-fermwmti@nM@fkﬁl%e«dfﬂg«m«aleohel«uwsﬁing»pmgmmswwm@}l&mm A0—-Any
smployee-who-refuses-to-submit-to-discovery-testing -for aleohol-or-drugs-pursuant-to-this-Poliey-will-be-deemed-to
have-failed the test-and-will-be-subject-to-disciplinary-action;-up- to-and-including-termination.—Drivers-will-be
subject-to-the-following-types-of alcohol and-drug-testing:

e-Pre-employviment-testing

o-Reasonable-cause-testing

&-Post-accident testing
s-Random-iesting
e-Return-lo-duty-testing
e-Follow-up testing

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 36 2018




A-——Testing-Forms
L TheFederal-Drug-Testing—Custody-and-Collection-Form-{CCE)-{see-current-form-en-website

wwew-health.org/workplace)-must-be-used-for-each-drug-test-under-this-Policy-—and-the-DOT-Algoho!
Festing-Form-(ATEY-(see-Formd064-1-4) must-be-used-for-each-aleohol-test-under-this-Poliey:

2.—Tests-under-theVehicle-Operators-Drug -and-Alcohel-Policy -must-be-condusted —prior-to-and
separate-from-any-other-drug-or-alechol-tests— The-empleyer-shall-not-use-the- CCF-or-the-AFl-in-non-
DOT-Drug-and Alcohol-Testing-Programs:

B.-—Pre-Employment-Testing

 — —All-driver-applicants’-whem--the-employer-intends-to-hire-or-use-to-perform-—safety-
sensitive-functions-must give-their consent-and-submit-to-a-urine-drug-test (see-Form 20644

2———————The-employer-may--choose -not-to—require-pre-employment-drug -testing—for—a-driver
applicant-if the-employer can-verific-the individual;

4 mmmmmmzmm_mmwﬁ #nemd"sfwljwm The-driver's-urine-sample-witl-be

Sphit-into-twer- vecimens-and the-other—the-splitspecimen:—The-split
specimen will-be gzgsemd«undep«mmemlabamlwwndm —Whenever-g-driver-em Iayeweeewes—nag{iemwn

. o e SO AL

of a-positive dryg-test.-the-driver-mey-request-that-the. swbsmwcw%mmmwmdw
by the Department-of Health-and-Humean-Services-(DHHS). - This request- musi-he made within seventy-two-{72)

howrs after-the-Medical-Review Officer (MRE) gives the-driver-notification-of the- positive-drug-test. }
a - -Has-participated in a valid controlled substance testing progrant-that raeets-the-requirements |
of 49 CER-Part 382, within the. prevmus #hmym(.»'ﬂ})daywnd

employer

&-—Afer-obtaining -the-driver-applicant's- written-consent -via-completion—of-the--Consent- 1o
Release-of Drug-/-Alechol-Information-Drug-/-Alcohol Testing Form (see-Form2064-£2).-the
employer-will-verify-that-no-former-employer-of the driver-applicant-in-the-preceding-two-(2)
years-has-knowledge-or records-that-the individual:
{—Had-an-aleohol-test with-a-result-of-.04-aleohol concentration-or- greater;-or
2. Had-a-verified-positive-controlied substance-test-result-of
3. Refused to-be-tested:-or
4. Violated-other- DOT-drug-and aleohol-testing regulations.

3-—With-respect-to-a-driver-applicant's-violation-ef-a-DOT-drug-and-alcohol-regulationthe-employer
shall-obtain-decumentation-of-the—driver-applicant's—successfitl-completion-of -return-te-duty
requirements-{includingfollow-up-tests).— I the-previous-employer-does-not -have-information
about-the-return-to-duty-process,-the-employer- shall-obtain-this-information- from-the-einployee:
Refer-10-49-CFR-40.25-for guidance;-if-unable to-obtain-this-information:

4, —As-the-employer, the-employer-shall-also-ask-the-employee-whether-s/he-has-tested-pesitive-or
refused to-test-on-any-pre-employment-drug-or aleohol-test-administered-by-an-employer-to-which
the-employee-applied -for—but-did-not-oblain-safety-sensitive-transportation- werk—covered-by
Federal-Highway-Safety-Administrator's-Drug and- Aleohol-Testing-Rules-during-the-past-twe-(2)
years-—H-the-employee adits that-s/he-had-a-positive-test-or-a-vefusal-to-test;- the-employer-shall
not-use—the—employee—to--perform-—safety-sensitive -functions—until—and--unless--the-employee
documents-successiul-completion-of the return-to-duty-precess.

$. —{f-information-is-requested -from -another employer.the-employer-shall,-afler-reviewing-the
employee’s—specific—written—consent—immediately- release—the - requested - information—to—the
employer making-the-inquiry-

As-an-employer-requesting-the- information roquired, the employer-shall-maintain-a-written-confidential
record of the-information-the-employer- obtained of the-goed-faith-efforts-the-employer-made-to

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 37




obtain-the-information.—TFhe-employer-shall-retain-this-information-for-three-(3)-years-from-the
date-of the employee’s-first-performance of safety-sensitive-functions-for the-employer:

5wlmiudes~eumwmpleyees

6.— TFhe-employer-may;-but-is-not-required-to;-conduct-pre-employment-alcohol-testing: —IF-sueh-tests
are-conducted; the employer-shall-comply-with-the-requirements of 49-CFR-382:304.

€:—Reasonable-Suspicion-Alcohol-and/or-Drug Testing

A-driver shall-be-required-10-submit-to-an-alcohel-and/or-drug-test when-the-employer-has-reasonable
suspicion-the-driver-has-violated-the-prohibitions-of the-alcohol-and/er-drug pelicy.

o Defermining-Reasonable-Suspicion

A-supervisor shall determine-that reasonable-suspicion-exists-that requires-the-driver-to-undergo
testing-based- on-directly-making specific-contemporaneous;-articulable-observations-concerning
the-appearance;-behavierspeech-or-body-odors-of the-driver—in-addition.-the-observations-for
drug-use-may-include-indications-of the ehronic-use-and/or-the-withdrawal-effects-of controlled
substanees:

o Timing-of a-Reasonable-Suspicion-Test

H—Alcohol-testing is-authorized-enly- if-the-ebservations-are-made-during; just-preceding;-or
just-afer-the-driver-performs-safety-sensitive-functions—A--driver-shall-be-directed o
undergo-reasonable suspicion-testing-only-while-the-driver-is-performing-safety-sensitive
funetions;-just-before-the driver is-performing safety-sensitive-functions, er-just-afler-the
driver-has-ceased-performing such-funetions:

2)——Alcohol-testing-shall oecur-as-soon-as possible-afler-the-observed-conditions or-event—If
the-test-is-not-administered within-two-(2)-hours,the-employer shall prepare-and-maintain
on-file-a-record-stating-the-reasons-the-alcohol-test-was-not-promptly-administered:—f the
alcohol-test-is-not-administered within-eight-(8)-hours,-the employer shall cease-attempls
to-administer-an-alcohol-test-and-shall state-in-the-record-the-reasons-for not-administering
the-test:

3)—Drug testing shall ocour-as-soon-as-pessible-afier-the observed-conditions-or-event.— I the
test-is-not-administered-within-thisty-two- (32) hours;-the-employer-shail-cease-attempts-to
administer-the-drug-test-and-shall-state-in-the-record-the-reasons-for-not-administering the
test:

o Doseumentation-of-a-Reasonable Suspicion-Fest
A-written-record-of the driver’s-conduct-that-creates-reasonable-suspicion-shall-be-prepared-and
signed-by-the-supervisor(s)- whe-made-the-observations-within-twenty-four-(24)-hours-of- the
observed--behavior-or-before -the—results-of -the-test-are-released. —-whichever--is - earlier-(see
Docwmentation-Reasonable-Suspicion-Drug /- Aleohol-Testing-FForm [See-Eorm-2064-F61])-
o Fransporiation-of Briver for-Reasonable SuspicionTesting
A-driver-who-is-required-1o- submit-lo-reasonable-suspicion-testing-shall-be- transported-by-the
empleyema-&hemlﬂeaﬁewef-«chew«tesh»%-&%{he—érivewsubmitsmle~—tha“‘&es%;mthe«emg)leyer—shau
provide-transpertation-for-the-driver-to-histher home—The-driver-shall be-placed-on-leave-with
pays-pending-test-results:

B—Pest-Accident- Testing

No-requirements-in-this section-shall-be construed-to-require-the-delay-of necessary-medical-atention
for injured people-following-an-accident.-or- to-prohibit-a-driver-from-leaving the-scene-of-an-aceident

Vchicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 38 2018




for-the-period-necessary-to-obtain-assistance-in-responding-to-the-accident—or-to- obtain-necessary
emergency-medical-care:
e DIV EES-WhO-are-involved-in-an-aceident shall-be-sentfor-an-alcohol-and-drug-test-following the-aceident
whenever:
~~~~~~ -t The-accident-involved-a fatality:-or
2 The driver-received-a-citation-for-a-moving traffic violation® -arising from-the-accident-and-the

accident-involved:
e - (OB Y- R URY-t0-aRY-person-whes-as-a-result-of the-injury;-immediately-receives-medical

treatment-away-from-the-seene-of the-accident:-or
b—-One-er-more-of the-vehicles-involved in-the-aceident-was towed-away-from-the-seene:

Has—Citation | Must—Test—be
Type-ot-Accidentinvolved Bosn—tssued 10 | by omployer?
Driver?
Human fatality Yes Yes
Ne Yes
Bodily-injury-with-immediate-medical-treatment-away | ¥es ¥es
from-the-scene No No
Disabling damage o any moter-vehicle requiring fow | Yes Yes
away Ne No

s The-Employer's Responsibility
.- The--employer—shall -provide— drivers—with—necessary— post-aceident - report—information;
procedures; -and-instructions-before-the-driver—operates-acommercial-metor vehicle-to-allow
drivers-to-comply-with-the-testing requirements:
2. The-employer-is-responsible-for-adhering to-the-folowing-post-aceident-timeline,-including
any-recording requirements:

Fime-Lapsed | ActionRequired

2-hours ALCOHOL—I£ the-driver-has-not-submitted-to-an-alcohol-test-at-this-time;
the-employer will- prepare-and-maintain-on-file;-a-statement of the-reasons
the test-was-not promptly-administered:

8 hours ALCOHOL,—The-employer-shall-cease-attempis-to-administer-an-aleohol
test-and-prepare-and-maintain-on-file-a- statement- of the reasons-why the
test-was-not-promptly-administered:

32 hours DRUGS ——If the-driver-has-not-submitied-10-a drug-test-at-this-time;-the
employer—shall -cease-atiempts--to-administer - the - {est-and--prepare—and
maintain-on-file;-a-statement-of the reasons-why-the test-was-net promptly

3. in-the-event-that-federal;-state;-or-local-officials-conduet-a-breath- or- blood-test-for-the use-of
aleohol-and/or—urine—tests—for-the—use—of-drugs—following-an-aceidentthese-tests-shall-be
considered-to-meet-the DOT-requirements,-providing the-tests cenform-to-applicable federal,
state;—or- local-testing -requiremenis—and--that - the—results -of - the-lests-are-ebtained -by- the
employer—The employer shat-provide transportation for-the- driver to-the-location-oF the-test:

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 39 2018



After-the-driversubmits to-the-test-the employer-shall- provide-transportation-for-the-driver-te
hisfher-home:

o—Driver's-Respensibility

A-driver—is—abligated-1o—complete—a-post-aeeident -report—form;—to-fellow--the--pesi-aecident
instructions--supplied-by -the—employer,-and-to-see—that—the—alcohel-and/or-drug -test(s)are
conduected:

F—A-driver-must submit-to-an-alcohol-test-as-soon-as-practical-but-net-later-than-eight-(8) -hours
afler-the- accident:

2—A-driver-must-submit-to-a- drug-test-as-500n-as-practical;-but-not-later-than-thinty-two(32)
hours-following-the-accident:

3—In-the event-a-driver-is-so-seriously-injured-that-the-driver cannot-provide-a-blood;-breath;-or
urine-specimen-at the-time-of the-aceident;-the-driver-must provide-necessary authorizations;
as-soon-as-the-driver’s-physical-condition-alows-te-enable-the-employer-to-obtain-hespital
records-or-other-docurments-that-indicate-whether-there-were-drugs-or-alcohol-in-the-driver’s
system-when-the-aceident oceurred:

4—n-the-event federal-state-or-local-officials conducted-alcohol-and/or drug-testing-following
an- accident-as-provided—in-Seetion-D-3—Employer-s—Responsibility~—the-driver-will-be
require&a««signwa—wlemaﬁewing»theemplayer—te«oblain»th&tes&—resu&m&em»sueh-oﬁwi&ls;

5—A-driver-who-is-subject-to-a-pest-accident-test-must-remain-readily-available-for-testing—A
driver—who—leaves—the—seene—before -the—test—is—administered—or—whe—doees—not—make
himself/herself readily available-may-be-deemed to-have refused-to-be-tested-and such-refusal
shall-be-treated-as-a-positive-test.—Further,-the-driver,-subject-to-a-pest-accident-test;-must
refrain-from consuming-alcohol-for-eight-(8)-hours-following-the-aceident-or-until-the-driver
submits-to-an-alcohol-test; whichever comes-first:

6-—For safoty-reasons:-a driver required-to-submit-to-pest-accident testing will-be-placed-on-leave
of absence; with-pay;-pending receipt-of the post-accident-testing result:

E-Random Testing
All-drivers-are subjeet-to-random-aleohol-and drug-testing:
|- Rendom-Selection-Provess
a.—The-selestion of-drivers-for-random-alcohol-and-drug-testing-shall-be-made -from-a-random
number-table-or-a-computer-based-randem-number-generator-that -is-matched -with the driver's
social-security-number.—Random-testing will-be-unanneunced-and-the -dates-for-administering
the-tests-will-be-spread reasonably-throughout-the year;-and '
b—The-employer-will-drug-test;-at-a-minimum,-fifly-pereent- (50%)-of the-average-number-of
driver-positions-each-calendar-year.— The-employer-will-alcohol-test;-at-a-minimurm;—ten
percent (10%) of the-average number-of driver positions each-calendar year:
»»»»»{E)ptieﬂal;)---fl?‘h&emp}eywutiliaes»a-Qmer%ium/fllhirdwpaﬂywﬁ.dnﬁniswawr»(eﬂlipﬂ)mte»eonduel»
random-testing-for-aleohol-and -centrolled-substanees-— The-total-number-of-drivers—to-be
calewdated shall-be-based on-the-total-number-of-drivers-covered-by-the-GTPA at-the-same
minimum-dnnusl-percentage-rate.
2. Flming for-Random-Testing
. Random drug-iesting will be-performed-at-any-time-while-the driver-is-at-werls
b Random-alcohel-testing-will be-performed-just-before. -during;-or-just-after-the-driver—is
performing safety-sensitive functions;-and
e -A-driverselected for random-testing shall-proceed immediately-to-the-test-site—A-driver-whe
engages-in-conduct; -which-does-not-lead-to-testing as-seon-as -pessible-after notifieation,may
be considered to have-refused-to test and-suchrefusal-shall be-treated-as-a-positive-test.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 40 2018




£ Return-to-Duty-Precess-and -Testing
+—Referral
A—driver,-who-has-—violated-a-DOT -Drug-and-Alcehol-Regulation;-shall-be -provided--by-the
employer-or-through-a-C/TPA-or-other-Service-Agent-a-listing-of-SAPs-including-their-names;
addresses.-and -telephone -numbers-of-SAR’s-whe-are-readily-available-to-the-employees-and
acceptable-to-the employer:
Lo SAP and- Treatment-Serviees-jor-Employees
&-——Fhe-employer-may.-but-is-net-required-to;-offer-an-employee-an-opportunity-lo-return-to-a
pesitien-performing-DOT-safety-sensitive-functionsfollowing-a violation-of a-DOT-drug-or
aleohol-regulation:
b Befemwthemwmyeew AAIN-per fbms—a—safetmns&we w&kﬂbﬂ@}}- fe&kwms ewie&eﬁanwthe

¢—Payment-for-SAP-evaluations-and-services-shall-be-the-responsibility-of the-employee—or-as
otherwise—coveredin—the-employer’s—health--care-benefits,—and/or—governed -by—existing
managementfabor agreements:

B s S P ol nation/ Recommendations

a.—Once-an-employee with-a DOT-Drug-and-Alcohel-Regulation-violation-has-been-evaluated-by
a-SAP;neither-the-employee-nor-the-employer-can-seek-a-second-SAP-evaluation-in-order-to
obtain-anotherrecommendation.
be—H-the-employee-contrary-to-(u)-above, does-obtain-a-second-SAP-evaluation.-the-employer
may-not-rely-on-it:
4 Changing a-SAP-Initial-Evaluation
a: —Except-as-provided-in-(b)-below;-no-one-may-change-in-any-way-the-SAP s-evaluation-or
recemmendations-for-assistanece:
b.—Fhe-SAP--whe--made--the—initial -evaluationmay - modify—hisfher -initial—eveluation--and
recommendations—based--on-—new-or -additional -information -(e.g:,—from-an—edueation-or
treatment progrant):
S .Md{{m[mrpemme”{;«?tﬁeregpem
‘Fhe-employer;-upon-receiving recommendations-from-a- SAR-for-an-employee-whe-has-resumed
the-performance of safety-sensitive-functions;} may; in-addition-o-follow-up-tests:

|
|
emplayee sumessfuﬂy—eemphes«wa&h«th&SA P’s-evaluation- feeemmendauon& ‘
i
\

a-—Require-the employee-to-participate-in-the recommended-services-as-a-part-of the-return-to-
duty agreement-with-the-employee;
b - Menitor-and-document the empleyee’s- paﬁieipaﬁan in-the- reeammended sewiee% and

memmnng»ﬂm empley&e s»eemphaﬂee with-the SAP- ree»ommendahons«

i»f—%he%mp!eyes—deeldes—lwperm;t« the-employee-toreturn-to-the-performance-of -safety-sensitive
functions;-the-employee must-take-a-return-to-duty test-after- the SAP-has determined that-the employee
has-successfully-complied-with-the prescribed treatment and/or-education.— The-employer must-direct-a
collection-under-direct-observation-if the drug test-is-a return-to-duty-test or-follow-up lest:

The employee-must have-a-negative-drug-test-and/or-an-alcohel-test-with-an-alcohol-concentration-of
less than-0.02 before resuming-performance-of safety-sensitive-functions:

Al-deivers-whe-have-commilted a violation-of DOT-Drug-or Alcohel Regulations will-be-subject to-a
written-{ollow-up-drug and/or-alcohol-testing-plan-prepared by the-SAP-— A copy-of this-plan-shall-be
presented directly i the Designated EmployerRepresentative (DER).

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 41




Follow-up-testing applies-during-the-period-following-cempletion-of-a-treatment-program.—The-driver
will-be-subject-to-a-minimum—of-six-(6)-unannounced;-folow-up-drug-and/or-alechol-tesis-over-the
following twelve {1:2) menths-following the employee s returr-to-safety-sensitive-functions:
Fhe-SAP-can require-additional-testing-up-to-8-maximum-of sixty-(60)- months-from-the-date-the-driver
retums«teduty~.~—MkeMwﬁh@Wm-tmmMﬂhﬂddiﬁamMoﬂmp&s&hg—Mwa&m
exeess of-the-minimum-twelve-(12)-month-period:
A«dffivermwhesew«nfaﬂew—upaleoho#&es&wsuk%&%&w%&mus&b&m&mvﬂ—%mw&%miﬁw
fune&iansmfermmenty-fwwm}wheurszw%ismtest—msuhwme&«awviehﬁeawe#m&mmw
regulations—Fhe-employer may-also-impese-additional-diseiplinary-astion.
f%&emwmunwmmwufwswmim&%&mﬂmﬂ%&
permitted-to-perform-safety-sensitive-functions;-unless-follow-up-testing-is-completed-as-directed by
the SAPR:

‘The-employer-shall sohedule follow-up-tests-at-its- discretion-and-shall ensure-the-tests-are-unannounced
without any-discernable-pattern-as-to-their-timing-and that-the-employee-is-not given-advance-notice:
There-shall-be-no-substitution-of-any-other-tests—{e:g- these-carried-out-under-the-random-testing
program)-conducted on-the-employee for this-follow-up testing-requirement:
A-cancelled-follow-up-test-does not-constitute a-completed test—Any- follow-up-lest-that-was-cancelled
must-be re-collected:

& L it -a-Follow-Uip-Aleohol Test
------- —— Follow-up-alcohol-testing shall- be-condusted-just-before,-during;-or just-afler-the-driver-performs
safety-sensitive-functions.
oTiming-af-a-Follow-Up-Drug Test
Feuowmp«dmg«testingmaywbe»perfamedat«my@ime~»~while~&h&dﬁvef~is(a&»workr~1’he-dri~epdees
not-have to be-performing.a safety-sensitive-functien:

Hi——TFest-Results-{Invalid)

If the-employer-receives a-drug-test-result-indicating that-the-employee’s-specimen-was- invalid-and-that

a-second-colection-must take-place-under direct-observation:

1—Immediately. direct the employee to-provide-a new-specimen-under direct observation;

2.--Do not-attach-consequences-to-the-finding-that-the-test-was-invalid;-other-than-eollecting a new
specimen-under direct observation:

3—Do-not-give-any-advance notice of this test requirement-to-the-employee;

4—Instruct-the-collector to-note-on-the-Federal -Drug-Testing Custody-and-Control-Form{CGF)-the
same reason-{e:.g- random-iest;-post-aceident-test)-as -for-the-original-collection:

l—Report-of a-Dilute-Specimen

1o i the-MRO-informs-the DER-that-a-pesitive-drug-test-was-dilute-the- DER-shall-reat-the-test-as-a
verified-positive-test-and-must-not-direct-the-employee-to take-another 1est-based on-the-fact-that

the specimen-was-dilute
2. 1£the- MRO- informs.the-DER that a-negative test was dilute; the employer-will-take the following

a.—I £ the-MRO direcis-the employer-to-cenduct-a-recollection-under-direct-observation- (i-e.;
because-the—creatinine -concentration—of -the- specimen-was-—equal-te- or-greater-than
2me/dLbutless than or equal-lo-Smg/dis-the-employer must-do-so-immediately.

b—Otherwise (i e, —if- the—ereatinine—concentration-of-the-d ikite-specimen—is- greater -than

Smg/dl.), the-employer-may.-but-is net-required-to. direct-the employee-to-take- another
test-immediately.

Vchicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 42 2018




i-—Such-recollections-must-net-be collected-under direct-observation;-unless-there-is
anather-basis-for-use of direct observation-{see § 40.67-(b)-and-(c))

-—The-employer-must-treat-all- employees the«samewferv{hwpuﬂ;esemfllhe»empleyer

m&y—hawever——estabksh«wd#femn&—pewm—fer types—of-tests—{a:g-
conduct-retests in-pre-employment-situations:-but-not-in-random-test situations):

The-employer--must-inform—their-employees—in-advance—of-the-employer's
decisions-on-these-matters:

6——The-employer-must-ensure-that-the-emplovee-is-given-the-minimum-possible-advance
notice-that-he-or-she-must-go-to-the-collection-site;-the-employer-must-treat-the-result-of
the-test-as-the-test-result-of record—1f the-result-of the-test-the-employer directed-the
employee-to-take-is-also-negative-and-dilute,-the-employer-is-not-permitted-to-make-the
employee take an-additional-test-because the result-was-dilute—Provided:-howeverthat
the-MRO- direets-the-employer-io-conduct-a-recollection-under-direct-observation-the
employer-must-immediately-do-se:

J-Cancelled-Drug-or-Alcohol-Test

A-cancelled drug or-alcohol-test-is-neither positive-ner-negative:

+—-Theemployer-must-not-attach-1o-a-canceled-test-the-consequences-of-a-positive-test-or-a-violation
ofa DOT Drug or-Alcohol-Testing-Regulation-(e.g-; removal from-a-safety-sensitive-position).

2:The-employer-must-not-use-a-cancelled-test-as-evidence-of -a-negative-test-to-authorize-the
employee-to-perform-safety-sensitive-funetions-{hex-in-the case-of-a-pre-employment;-return-to-
duty;-or-a-folow-up-test)

3— The-employer-must-not-direct-a-re-collection-from-an-employee;-except-when-conducting-a-pre-
smplaymem return-to-duty-or-a-folow-up—test—orin-other-provisions-of-the -regulations—that
require-another test-to-be-conducted-as- pmwdeéuM&@BWWé}wheMmg&es&mﬂHs
invalid;-and-40.187(b)-when-a-split-specimen-laboratory-result-failed-to-reconfirm-Drug(s)/Brug
Metabolite(s)-not-detected:

4——A-caneelled test-does not-count-toward-compliarce-with DOT-requirements-for the-number of-tests
needed to-meet-the-employer’s-minimum random-testing rate.

§.——#A-cancelled-DOT test-does-not- provide-a-valid-basis-for-a non-DOT-test:

6. -A-cancelled alcohol test-must-be reperied-to-the DER-and-treated-as-if the-test-never-occurred:

K—tasufficient-Ameunt-of-Urine-for Drug Test

}o——NWhen a-collector-informs-the- DER that an-employee has-not-provided-a-sufficient-amount-of-urine
for-a drug test; the DER-must;-afler consulting with-the MRO; direct the-employee-te-obtain within
five (5) working-days-an-evaluation-from a-lieensed-physician; who is-acceptable to the MRO;-and
whe-has-expertise-in-the medical-issues-raised-by -the employee's-failure-to-provide-a- sufficient
specimen:

2. When the MRO indicates-to-the-DER-that-a-test-is cancelled-due-to-a-medical-condition that-has,-or
with-a-high-degree-of probability-could-have precluded-the-employee from-providing-a-sulficient
amount of urine, the-employer-shall take no-further-action-with-the-employee.—The-employee shall
remain-in the random-testing-pool:

L. Insufficient- Amount of Saliva-or Breath-for an Alcohot-Test

1. When-a 8T T-informs the DER that the-employee has-nol-provided-asufficient-amount-of-salivafor
an-alcohel-sereening:test, the-DER must-immediately-arrange-to-administer-an-alcohol- test-to-the
employee using an BT -or-other breath-lesting device.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 43 2018



2 When-a-BATor SAT-informs-the DER-that the-empleyee-has-not-provided-a-sufficient-amount-of
breath,the-employer-must-direst-the -employee-to—obtain,-within-five-(5)-working -days—an
evaluation-from-a-licensed physician-who is-acceptable-to-the employer;-and-who-has-expertise-in
the-medical-issuesraised-by-the employee's-{failure-te-provide-a-sufficient-specimen.—The- DER
must-provide-the-physician-with-the-follewing-information-and-instructions:

a—That-the-employee-was-required-to-take-a-DOT-breath-alcohol-test-but-was-unable-to
provide a-sufficient-amount-of breath-to-complete the-test;

b—The-consequences—for-refusing to-take-a-required—aloohol-test-inelude—removal--from
performing —all—safety-sensitive —functions,—referral {for—evaluation—by—a—SAP,—and
disciplined-up-to-and-including-termination;

¢~ Fhe-physician must-provide the--DER-with-a-signed -statement--of -his’her-conelusion
regarding-the-employees-failure-to-provide-a-sufficient-ameunt-of saliva-er-breath-for-an
aleohol-testr-and

d——That-the-physician—in-his/her reasonable-medical-judgment-musi-base-these-eonclusions
on-requirements-listed-in49-CFR-40:265.

3 Upon-réceipt-of-the-report-from-the-examining- physician, the-DER-must-immediately-inform-the
employee-and-take-appropriate-action-based-upon-Federal-Highway-Administration-Regulations.

to—-a-BAT-or-8TT- repenswwm»»mkkmmaba«mmmble»ﬂawﬁasmeumd@wand—mmhermmsﬂng
device-is-not-available-for-the-new-test-at-a-testing site;- the-DER-shall-make-reasonable-efforts-to
ensum—thamhetes&éseandue&ed-a&amtheﬂesmi&easmamssibl&

admm&stemwg the-process;-or tm test: must~be meelled

N—Fatal-Elaws

The-employer-must-cancel-an-alcohol-test-if-any-of the followingfatal-flaws™-oecur—Fhe-test-is
cancelled-and must-be treated-as-if the-test-neveroceurred.-These-problems-are:

+—1In the case-of a-sereening test conducted on-saliva ASD-or-a-breath-tube-ASD:
t—Fhe-STT-or-BAT-reads-the-result-either sooner-than-or-later-than-the-time-alotted-by-the
manufacturer:
b.—The-saliva-ASD-does-not-activate; or
€ J«'m:iee»%msedmfof»&»tessmaﬂe#mthe.wexpim&ion»d%priméﬁom!het-xdevieeworwm-«i&s
p 2

O.—-Aleohol Confirmation-Test-Result

resulis-information:

F—If the-test-results-are-not-in-writing-(e:2« by telephone or electronic-means ) the-DER shall-identify
and-record the BAT sending-the results:

2:—Store-all- test-results information-in-a-way-that-proteets confidentiality;

——The-employer-must-direct-an-immediate collection-under-direct-observation with-no——-advance-notice-to
the-employee; if:
}-Fhe-laboratory reported-to-the-MRO-that-the-specimen-is-invalid;-and-the- MRO-reperied-to-the
employer that there was-not-an-adequate-medical-explanation-for-the-result; or
2—The-MRO-reperted to-the employer-that the original-pesitive;-adulterated. or substituted-test result
had-to be-cancelled; because-the-test-of the split specimen eould-not be performed:

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 44 2018



3—The- Mwmmmedwmwah%smmm«%m&—mmmmm
concentration-greater-than-or-equal-to-2mg/dL—and -less-than-Smg/dl-and-the- MRO reported-the
specimen-te-the-employeras-negative-and-dilute:

Q? ............. msmd.gem.gmpley“
The-employer—is--prohibited-from-standing-down -an-employee--following -the- MR O s-receipt-of-a
laboratory-report-of a-confirmed- positive-test-for-a-drug or-drug-metabolite.-an-adulterated-test;-or-a
substituted—test-pertaining-to-the-employee-prior-to-the-MRO-completing-the -verification—process:
Note:—To-obtain-a-waiver-to-this-prohibition;-the-employershall-send-a-written-request- which-includes
all-of the-information required-to-the-Federal-Motor-Carrier-Safety-Administrator,-U-S—Depariment-of
Transportation; 400 Seventh-Street:-S-W-;- Washingion;-D.C.- 20590

R—Service-Agents

|-—If the-employer-uses-a-Service-Agent-to perform-the- tasks necessary-to-comply-with-the DOT-drug
and-alcohol-testing-requirements.-it-shall-ensure-the- Service-Agent- complies-with-49-CFR-Part-40
{©)-Roles-and Respansibilities-of Sexvice-Agents:

2—The-employer shall-ensure that-Serviee-Agents-used-meet-qualifications-required-far-their-specialty
area-and-may require-Service-Agents-to-present documentation that they-meet-these-requirements.

3—Fhe-employer-shail-obtain-information-required-from-their-Service-Agenis.—For-example;-the
employer-must-not-assume-that-“no news-is-good-news™ and-permit-an-applicant-to-perform-safety-
sensitive-functions-before receiving the-test-results.

—The-employer-must not-permit-the-Service-Agent-to-also-serve as the-DER:

§---Designated EmployerRepresentative (DER)
Fhe-employer-shall-provide-to-collestors; BAT s5-and-ST5-the-name-and—telephone—number -of-the
appropriate-DER-and-CFFRA-to-contact -abeut-any-problems-or-issues-that-may- arise-during-the-testing
proeess:

T—Payment-for-the-Test-of a-Split Specimen

t—The-employer-is-responsible-for-making sure that-the-MRO.-first-laboratory.-and seeond laboratory
perform-testing- of- spmwspemmens««m -a-timely—manner-once-the-employee-has-made-a-timely
request-for-a-test-or-split-specimen,

2 The-employer-must-not-condition-compliance-with-this-requirement-on--the-employee's-direct
payment-to- the-MRO;-or-labaratory; or- the-employee’s agreement-to-reimbursethe-employer-for
ehwasts»eﬁ-tesung- vvvvvv ‘The-employer may-seek-payment-or- mmbupsemem -of-all-the-costs-for-the
split-specimen-from-the-employee:

U SAR-Information-Frovided by-Agent-Employer
The-employer, through-a C/TPA-or-other Service-Agent;-shall provide te-each-employee-(includingan
apphicant-or-new-employee)-whe-violates-a DOY-Drug-or-Alcohol-Regulation;-a-listing oF-SAP s -with
their-addresses-and-phone-numbers-whe- are- readily-available-to-the-employee-and-aceeptable-to-the
employer.—The-employee shali-not be-charged any-fee-for-compiling or-providing this Jist:

Vo Confidentiality and-Release-of Information

| The-employer-shall-not-release-individual-test-results-or medieal-information-about an-employee o
third-parties-without-the employee’s-specifie-writien consent:
a—A—thirdparty-is-any-person-or-employer- to-whom-other -subparts-of-49-CFR-40-do-net

explicitly-autherize-or-require the-transmission of information-in-the-course-of-the-drug-and
aleohol testing-process:

b.—~5pee!f' ie- wnt»tan censem means»»a—-»sta&enmm mgned by Lheﬂmpleyeew&hat slhe—agrees-te -the

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 45 2018




time-—Blanket-releases-of -information-(e.p:all-test-results)-or-release-of-information-to-a
category-of parties-(e.g: other employers-who-are-members-of-a-C/TPA;-companies-to-which

the employee -may-apply-for-employment)-are-prohibited:
2.--The-employer-may-release-information-pertaining to-an-employee's-drug-or-alcohel-test-without
the-employee’s-consent-in-certain-legal proceedings-as provided-for-in49-CER-40:323;
3—Fhe-employershali-upon-request o DO T-agency-representatives, provide-the-following:
a—Aceess10-the-employer's-facilities for DOT-ageney drug-and-alechol program-functiens:
be—AHl-weritten—printed. -and —computer-based--drug-and -alcohol-program- records--and--reports
(including——copies—of - name-speeifie—records—or— reports).--—fies,——materials,—data;
documents/doeumentations;-agreements;-contracts; policies; and-statements.
4 requested-by-the National- Transportation-Safety-Board-as-part-of-an-aceident-investigation;-the
employershall-provide-information-concerning-post-aceident-tests-administered-after the-aceident:
$-—IE requested-by-a-federal; state;-or-local-safety-agency-with-regulatory-authority-over the-employer
or-the-employee;the-employer -shall- provide - drug-and--alcoholtest-records -conceming—the
employee:

-l—.~T~he»empleyef-shau—keewhe-§ellewing\merd&famwe%%of»ﬁve{«i}yeam
a~——Records-of- employee-aleohel-test--results-indicating -an--alcohel- concentration - of-0:02-or
greater;
b-—Reeerds of employee’s-verified positive drug-test results;
e-——Boeumentation-of refisals-to-take-required-alcohol-and/or-drug-tests-(including substituted-or
adulterated drug-test results):
di-—SAP reports;-and
e——Al-follow-up tests and-schedules for-follow-up-tests.
2—TFhe-employer shall keep-records-of information-cencerning drug-and-aleohol-test-resuits-obtained
from-previous-employers-on-employees-that-perform-safety-sensitive-functions for-three-(3) years:
3.—The-employer-shall-keep records-of the-inspection;-maintenance;-and-calibration-of£ EBT-fortwe
@)years: :
4---Fhe-employer-shall-keep-records-of -negative-and-cancelled drug-test-results-and-alechol-results
with-a-concentration-of-less-than-0.02-for-ene-{1) year:

5.—The-employer-shall-maintain- these -records-described-in -1 - through-4-abeve-in-a-location-with
controted access.

6. the-employer decides-to-have-their-Service-Agent retain-these records; the-employer-shall-ensure
thweewd& eambwpméuee@-akth&emp!eyewpiamﬁ business imthe—&imew«fequim&by\»ma

MUI—Reservation of-Rights

‘Fhe-employer-reserves-the right-to-interpret.-change.-or-rescind -this- Policy-in-wheole-or-in- park-with-or-witheut
notice: subject to-any state-and-federal laws-and relevant collective barpaining agreements.
Provisions -within-the -Federal- Depariment- of - Transportation-(DOT),Federal -Motor—Carrier-Safety -Reguiations

(FMCSR)-and state-law-will-supercede any-conflicting language inthis-pelicy- manual-
Nething in-this-Policy-ereates-a binding employment-eontract-nor-modifies-an-existing contraect:
i. DERINITIONS

For the purposes-of-the Vehicle Operators-Drug and-Aleohol Poliey, the-follewing definitions-shall-apply:

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 46 2018




Adulierated-Speeimen—A-specimen-that-has-been-altered,-as-evidenced-by-test-results-showing-either-a-substance
that-is-not-a-nermal-constituent-for-that-type-of specimen-or-showing-an-abnermal-concentration-of an-endogenous
substance.

Air-Blank.—In-evidential-breath-testing-devices-(EBT's)-using -gas-chromatography-technology,—a-reading-of the
device’s-internal-standard—In-all-other EB T's;-a-reading-oF ambient-air containing ne-aleohel:

Alcohol. - The-intoxicating -agent-in-beverage-aleohel;- ethyi-alcohel—or-otherlow—molecular—weight-alcohols
including methyl-or-isopropyl-alcohol:

Aleohol-Concentration.—The-alcohol in-a-volume of-breath-expressed-in-terms-of grams-of alcohol-per-210-liters-of
breath.

Adeohol-Confirmation-Fest-—A-subsequent-test-using-an-EBT-following -a-sereening-test-with-a-result-0f£-0.02-o¢
greater-that-provides quantitative-data-about-the- alechoi-concentration:

Alecohol-Test:—A-test-using-an-evidential-breath-test deviee-(EBT}-or-a-non-evidential -breath-test-device(such-asa
saliva-test);-the-method-of testing-used-to detect-the-level-of-alcohol.-Both-a-sereening test-and-a-eonfirmation test
must-be-used 1o-establish-a-positive test-result:

Aleohol-Sereening—Test—An--analytic—procedure-to—-determine—whether-an-employee—may--have--a-prohibited
concentration-ofalcohel-in-a breath-or saliva specimen-

Alcohol-Testing-Site.—A-place-selected -by-the employer-where-employees-present-themselves-for-the-purpese-of
providing-breath-or saliva-for-an-alcohel-test;

Alcohol-Use.—The -drinking - or swalowing -of -any-beverage.—liquid-mixture,—or -preparation -(ineluding-any
medication) containing-aleahol:

Aiguet-—A-fractional-part-of a specimen-used-for-testing.—t-is-taken-as-a-sample representing the-whele-specimen:

Blind-Specimen-or-Blind-Performance-Test-Specimen—A-specimen-submitted-to-a-laboratory-for-quality-control
testing- purposes;-with-a-fctitious-identifier;-so-that-the-laboratory cannet-distinguish-it-from-an-employee- specimen:

Bleod-Aleohol- Concentration {BAG)--The-alcohol in-a-volume-of breath-expressed-in-terms-of-grams-of aleohol-per
210 -liters-of breath-as-indicated-by-an-evidential-breath test:

Breath-Aleohol- Technician (BAT).A-person-whe-instrusts-and-assists employees-in-the-alcehol testing-process-and
eperates-an-evidential-breath-testing device;

Canceled-Test.—A- drug-or-aleohol-test-that-has-a-problem-identified-that-cannot- be-or-has-net-been-corrected;-or
which-49-CGER -Part40-otherwise-requires-to-be-cancelled:A cancelled test-is-neither-a-pesitive-nor-a-negative-test:

Chain-of Custody:—The-procedure used-lo decument-the-handling of the urine specimen-from the-time-the-employee
gives-the specimen-to-the collector until-the-specimen-is-destroyed.—This-procedure-uses-the -Federal Drug-Testing
Custody-and.-Controt-Form (ECE) (see-curvent-form.on-website-www. henlth.orgiworkplace):
Gollection-Goniainer.—A container-into-which the-employee-urinates-to-provide-the specimen-for-a-drug-Lest.

Colection-Site—A-place selected by-the-employerwhere-employees-present themselves-for-the purpese-of providing

a urine specimen for a drug test.

Collector: -A-person-who-instructs and-assisis-employees-at-a-collection-site; who receives—and-makes-an-initial
inspection-of the specimen-provided by these-employees; and who-initiates-and completes-the Federal-Drug Testing
Custody and Control-Eorm (CCF) (see-current form on website www.health-orgiworkplace).

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 47 2018



Commercial-Motor-Vehicle—A-motor-vehicle-used-in-commerce-to-transport-passengers-or-property;-if-the-moter
vehisle:-(1)-has-a-gress-vehicle weight-rating (GV-WR)-in-exeess-of-26,000-pounds;-or-(2)-is-designed-to-
mere-passengers-(ineluding-the-driver);-or (3)-of-any-size which-is-used-in-the-transportation-of -a-placardable
ameunt-of hazardous-material:

Confirmation-Test—For-aleohol-testing; means-a-second-test-using-an-evidential-breath-test-device,following-a
sereening test-with-a-result-of .02-or greater; that provides quantitative data-of aleohol-concentration:

For drug-testing; means-a seeond-analytical procedure-to-identify-the presence-of a-specific-drug-or metabelite-that is
independen&aﬁihewmen&es«kmd—tha& -uses-a-different-technique and-chemical-principle-from-that-of the-screen-test
in-order to-ensure-reliability- and-aceuracy.-generallyv-a-Gas Chromatography/Mass-Spectrometry-(GC/MS).

Gonfirmatory-Drug-Test.-A-second-alalytical procedure-performed on-a different-aliquet-of the-original specimen-to
identify-and quantify the presence-of a-speeific-drug-or drug-metabelite.

Confirmatory-Validity-Test— A second test performed-on-a-different-aliquot-of the original urine-specimen-to-further
support-a-validity test-result.

Confirmed-Drug-Fest—A-confirmation-test-resull-received by-an-MRO-from-alaboratory:

Consortium/Third-party-Administrator-(C/TPA).—A-service-agent-that-provides-or-coordinates-the provision-of-a
variety--of -drug-and -alcohol-testing-services 1o employers.—C/TPAs—typically— perform—administrative—tasks
concerning-the operation-of-the-empleyers’-drug-and-aleohol-testing programs—This-term-ineludes; but-is-net-limited
to-groups-of-employers—who-join-tegetherto-administer-as-a-single-entity-the-DOT-drug-and-alcohol-testing
programs-ofits-members:

Besignated Employer-Representative {DER).—An-employee-authorized-by-the-employer-to-lake-immediate-astion(s)
to-romove-employees-from-safety-sensitive-functions-and-to-make-required-decisions-in-the-testing-and-evaluation
processes:-The-DER-also-receives-test-results-and-other-communications-for-the-employer-—Service-agents-cannet
act-as DER's:

Dilute-Specimen.A-urine- specimen-with-creatinine-and-specific-gravity -values-that-are-lower than-expected-for
hurman-urine:

DOT-the-Department;-DOT-Ageney.- These-terms encompass-all-DOT-agencies;-including; but-pot-limited-to,-the
United—States—Coast—Guard - {USCG), the—Federal - Aviation-Administration{FAA),—the -Federal Railroad
Administra&ion-%«%)w«&hem Feda#a!—~me@amer -Safety- wAdmmmmmn «(FMGSA), ------- the-Federal- &ransit

ngrams Adm*mstmtmn ( RSPJ\) -and-the Office- of tha Secretary (OST).- These tems include-any- desagnee-ef a
BOT-ageney-

Driver—Any-person-who-eperates-a-commercial-moter-vehiele. - This-includes;-but-is-net-limited-to:-full-time,
regularly--omployed-drivers;-casual,-intermittent—or-occasional-drivers:-leased—drivers;-and-independent;-owner-
operator- conlractors- who--are-either-directly employed- by, or-under-lease -to;-an-employer -or-who- operate-a
commereial-molor vehicle at-the direction of-or-with-the-consent-of the-employer:

Drugs—-The-drugs-for-which-tests-are-required-are:-marijuana;-cocaine; -amphetamines;-pheneyelidine(PCP),-and
opiates:

Drug—Test—A-urinalysis-(urine)-test-that-includes-specimen-collection-and-testing-by-a-Department-of-Health-and
Human-Services-(DHHS)-centified Jaboratory.—Both-a-screening-test-and-a-confirmation- test-must-be-used—to
establish-a-positive-test-result. y

Employee.—Any-person- whe-is-designated-in-a-DOT-ageney-regulation-as-subject to-drug-testing -and/or-alcohel

testing.-—The term-includes-individuals- eurrently-performing safety-sensitive-functions-designated-in-DOT-agency
regulations-and-applicants-for-employment-subject-to-pre-employment-testing.— For-purpeses-of-drug {testing:-the

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 48 2018




term—omployee”-has—the-same—meaning-as-the-term -deonor’-as-found-on-CCFE-and-related-guidance--materials
produced:by-the-Department-of- Health-and-Human-Services:

Empleyer—A-person-or-entity-employing-one-or-more-employees-{including-an-individual-who-is-sel-employed)
wbgw&&b@#agmwul&mn&mmﬁngmmpmewm:m “The term-includes-an-empleyer's-efficers;
ervice-agents-are-not-employers-for-the purposes-of-this-Poliey:

Evidential--Breath—Testing—Dovice—(EBT)—A-device —approved -by--the--Natiopal —Highway- Traffic—Safety
Administration-{NHTSA)-for-the-evidential-testing-of-breath-at-the-.02-and-04-alcohol-concentrations;-placed-on

NHTSA's-Conforming-Produets-List-{CPRL) -for-Evidential-Broath-Measurement-Deviees2-and-identified-on-the
EPRLas-vonforming-with-the-model-specifications.

HHS-—The-Deparunent-of-Health-and-Human-Services-or-any-designee-of the-Secretary-Department-of-Heaith-and
Human-Services:

Hiegally Used-Drug-—Any preseribed-drug-that-is-legally obtainable; but-has-not-been-legally ebtained-or-is-not-being
used--for-preseribed--purposes--all-designer-drugs,-and-any-other-over-the-counter-or-non-drug-substances-{e.8.
aivplawgm@)vbeingvuseé MWWWW%NSW@“MW man-made*dﬁuﬁr

pradueed-m admdesﬁm&abam&em)

fnitial-Drug-Test-(Sereening-Drug-Test)-The-test-used-to-differontiate-a-negative-specimen-from-one-that requires
Furthertesting-for drugs or-drug-metabolites:

initial -Specimen-Validity--Test. - The -first-test-used-to-determine-if-a-urine -specimen - is—adulterated.- diluted;
substituted; or-invalid:

Invalid-Drug-Test-—The-result-reported-by-an-HHS-certified laboratory-in-accordance with-the criteria-established by
HHS-Mandatory-Guidelines-when-a-pesitive,-negative;-adulterated,-or substituted result-cannet-be-established-for-a
specific-drug or-specimen-validity test:

Laboratory:—-Any--t-S.- laboratory-certified-by-HHS under-the National Laberatery Certification-Program-as-meeting
the-minimum-standards-of -Subpart—C—of-the -HHS--Mandatory- Guidelines-for Federal-Workplace-Drug-Testing
Programs: or-in-the-ease-of foreign-laboratories;a-laboratery approved for participation-by DOT-under this-part:

Limit-of Detection-(LOD)—The-lowest-concentration-at-which-a-measurand-can-be-identified-but-(for-quantitative
assays}-the-concentration cannot-be-aecurately calculated.

Limit-of Quantitation-For-quantitative -assays,- the -Jowest-concentration-at which-the-identity-and-concentration-of
the-measurand-can be-accurately established:

Medical Review-Oificer- (MRG)-A-person-who-is-a-licensed-physician- and-who-is-responsible-for-receiving-and
reviewing laboratery-results-generated-by-an-employer’s-drug-testing program-and-evaluating- medieal-explanations
for-certain-drug-testresults:

Negative-Resuit.—The-result-reported-by-an-HHS-certified laboratory-t0-an-MRO-when-a-specimen-contains-no-drug
or-the concentration-of the-drug is- less-than-the-cutoff concentration-for-the drug or drug class-and-the-specimen-is-a
me%abc’rtte%(s)) and-Jor -mvahd

Office-of Drug-and-Adeohol- l*uliey and Gamphance ((«)DAPC) -“Fhe-office-in- the—@#ﬁee—eﬁ&he—Seefm’Fy—DQT—*ha*

information eanemmg%he—mﬁemen{akmoﬂ&tﬁk ParMO

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 49 2018




Oxidizing-Adulterant—A-substance-that-acts-alone-or-in-combination-with-other-substances-to-oxidize-drugs-or-drug
metabolites-to-prevent-the-detection-of- eh@émgwm«dmg‘metabmms; -or-affects-the-reagenis-in-either-the-initial-or
confirmatory-drugtest:

Positive-Result.—The-result-reported-by-an -HHS-certified-laboratory- when-a-specimen-contains -a-drug-or-drug
metabolite equal to-or greater than-the-cutoff concentrations.

Reasonable-Suspicion-of Drug-and/or-Alcehol-Use. - Reasenable-suspicion-means-such-suspieion-that-will-justify-a
supervisor-in-referring-a-driver-for-an-alcohel and/or-drug-test—It-is the amount-of suspicion-sufficient-to-convince a
trained-supervisor-under-the circumstances-to-believe-that:

& The driver-has-violated the-Vehicle Operators-Drug-and-Aleohol-Roliey; or
b.—The-aetions; appearance; or-conduet-of an-on-duty-driver-are-indicative-of the-use-of drugs-or-alcohol:

The—suspicion-must - be--based-in--fact--on--specific,—contemporaneous,—artioulable--observations—-by--a--trained
supervisor(s) concerning the-appearance, behavier, speech;-ov-body-odors of the-driver:

For-reasonable-suspicion-of -alcohol-misuse; such-observations-must-be-made during;-just-preceding,-or just-afler the
period-of the-work-day-that-the-driver-is-performing a-safety-sensitive-function—Reasonable-suspicion-is-more-than
mere-speculation-but-less-than-abselute certainty.

Reconfirmed--The result-reported-for a-splitspecimen-when-the second-laboratory-is-able-to-corroborate-the-original
result-reporied-for-the-primary specimen:

Rejected—for—Testing—The-result-reported-by--an-1H1iS-certified -laboratory-when--no-tests—are—performed for-a
specimen-because-of-a-fatal-flaw-or-a-correctable-flaw-that-is-not-corrected.

Screening-Test—In-aleohol-testing;-it-means-an-analytical-procedure-to-determine-whether-a-driver-may-have-a
prohibited-concentration-in-histher system {breath-or-saliva-test).- In-drug-testing - it-means-an-immuneassay-sereen-to
eliminate-"negative™ urine-specimens-from-further consideration:

Secreening-Test-Technician-(STT).A-person-who-instructs-and-assists- employees-in-the-slcohol-testing process-and
operates-an-Alcohol- Soreening Device (ASD):

Service-Agent. —Any-persoi-or- entity,-other-than-an-employee- of the-employer,-who-provides-services-specified
under &his part«(% (..&R«Pm« 40) 4o empleyemndkw empleyeeq +wemmauon w%@@ﬁdmgaadal@ehol&esﬁng

Split-Specimen-Collection.—A-collection-in-which-the urine collected is-divided-into-two-separate- specimen-bottles;
the primary specimen-{Bottle-A)-and the split-specimen-(Bottie-B).

Stand-down-—The practice-of temporarily removing an employee from the-performance-of safety-sensitive-funetions
based-only-on-a-report-from-a-laboratory-to-the MRO-of a-confirmed-positive-test for-a-drug-or-drug-metabolite-an
adulterated test-or-a-substituted test; before the MRO-has completed verifieation of the-test result:

alcohel-regulation-and-makes- reeemmendauens -goneerning-education, ~treatment;- fauew‘-up«teshng; md aﬁereaw
(Note:—To-act-as-SAP-under-the- DOT--drug-testing - program,-the-individual- must-meet -the-requirements -for
credentials;- basic—knowledge,-qualification-training,-continuing-education,- and -documentation-listed--in-49-CFR
46.28+)

Substituted Specimen.—A-urine specimen-with creatinine-and specific gravity-values-that are-se-diminished-or-so
divergent-that-they are-net consistent-with- normal-human-urine.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 50 2018




Verifled—Test—A-drug-test-result-or-validity- testing-resultfrom-an-HHS-certified-laboratery-that-has-undergone

review-and-final determination-by-the MRO:
——— Index

| - Wstawmnafpm ............. -

h—Goverage-—}

H—Education-and-Training——1

V.- Bafety-Sensitive-Functions—-}

V—Prohibited Conduet—2
V-—Gonsequences-for-Violation-of the- DOT/AMESA-Drug-and-Aleohel-Pelicies ——3

Vit—Aloshol-and Drug Testing—6

e e CORSRGUONEESs for Drivers-for a-Confirmed -Vielation-of this Policy s 3
B Consequentces-for-Job-APPH RIS rrr i T R R T S ST I IS 4
€—Failure- of a-Post-Aceident Test s s T 4
B DOT-Penglties oo s e e T S ST =4
b —Employer-lmposed-Penaltios-and-AGHOnS s T S T SRR 5

T 6

As-Testing Forms: S — T

P Post-Aceident Testing wrmmammsmssmmrmrmrrssmrmsrs

Er—-Random-Testing srwwmes semsrn

M- Test-Results-(havalid} oo

.............................. 16

Eo Return-to-Duty-Process-and - Festing e S S E— 10
G Follow-up-Testing sy R e — R T SRR T A T T 1
......... i2

k—-Report- of & Dilute SPeciment s S — 13

F——Caneelled-Drug-or-Meohol - Test s e Y S SR S T ]

k—Insufficient-Amount-of Urine for-Prug Test o amrminsmsrosmormmma

bio——insufficient-Amount-of Saliva-or-Breath-foran-Aleohol Festunmmmnmmmmemmrn e esnmnemrmerermse 4

M- Addressing“Correctable-Flaws®-in-Aleohel-Testing sommamssmsmrs

O-——Aleohol Confirmation Test- Resulbrrrmzmmems T S T T T T R TS R R S R SR T R T R T 18

Po——Direct-Observation . nmssaomismmrsmsermsarre T P

Q-——Stand-Pown Empleyeerurmaany 3

..................

..........

3 L 1 6
B S VI IS ey sy s T S TS TR T S T R T RS I

8- Designated-Employer-Representative: v

T Payment-for-the Test-of a-Split Specimen ... R S TN S

16

................................. ta¢d
16

...................... Tt
16

..... ro

r

O

W.—Record-Retention RequirementS et et oo i s s e s s s St s BT TR re e e

VIIL Reservation of Rights ...t
Definitions 19

Vchicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 51

2018




Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy Page 52 2018



STOREY COUNTY
FORM 206A F1
12/04/18

FORM 206A1
VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY

EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

EMPLOYEE CERTIFICATION:

I hereby certify that Storey County and/or the Storey County Fire Protection District has
provided me with a copy of its Drug and Alcohol policy for compliance with the Department of
Transportation (DOT) Drug and Alcohol Regulations, that [ have read and understand the policy,
and that I agree to abide by the terms and conditions of the policy. I also understand that nothing
in this policy is intended to create a contract, and I agree that no such contract is created by this
policy.

Date Employee Signature

Page t of |




STOREY COUNTY
FORM 206A F2
12/04/18

VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY
CONSENT TO RELEASE OF DRUG / ALCOHOL INFORMATION

DRUG / ALCOHOL TESTING
I , authorize Storey County and/or the Storey County Fire
Protection District to contact my former employer:
Name (Printed)
Previous Employer:
Street: Telephone:
City, State, Zip: Fax No.:

to obtain from them any relevant information regarding drug and/or alcohol use matters listed
below. Further, I authorize the release of information from my former employer for the
preceding two (2) years regarding drug and/or alcohol use matters listed below. | request you
respond to the following questions as whether I:

1. Had an alcohol test with a result of .04 alcohol concentration or greater;
[ ] Yes [ ] No
2. Had a verified positive controlled substance test result;
[ 1 Yes [ ] No
3. Refused to be tested for alcohol or controlled substance;
[ ] Yes [ ] No
4.  Violated other Department of Transportation (DOT) Drug and/or Alcohol testing regulations.
[ ] Yes [ ] No

If yes, to any of the above, I further authorize the release of documentation, if any, on my
successful completion of a return-to-duty requirements, including follow-up tests.

In exchange for employer’s consideration of my employment application, I release the individual
company or institution and all individuals providing the information or acquiring the information,
including employer, from all claims, liability, and damages whatsoever in furnishing, obtaining,
or using said information including, but not limited to, claims for defamation, libel, slander,
infliction of emotional distress, and interference with current or prospective economic relations.

I authorize the release of this information to:

Employer Name

Attention: on or before
Employer Designated Employer Representative Date
Applicant/Employee Signature Date
Witness Name (Printed) Witness Signature Date

(Note: Obtain a release for each former employer for preceding two years)

Page 1 of 1




STOREY COUNTY
FORM 206A-F3
12/04/18

VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY
DRUG / ALCOHOL TEST INFORMED CONSENT

1, , pursuant to a request by my department director
(Printed Name)

and, as a condition of employment with the employer, hereby give my consent to this request to

perform a comprehensive test to determine the absence or presence of alcohol and/or drugs

(employer: circle one or both) pursuant to employer policy on drug and alcohol in compliance

with Department of Transportation (DOT) and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration

(FMCSA) regulations.

[ give my consent to release the results of the test(s) and other related medical information to
individuals within the employer who have a need to know of the drug and alcohol testing results
and to the use of all such reports or other medical information by the employer in its assessment
of my employment application and/or employment status.

I understand that:

The department director and/or a medical review officer may request proof that 1 am taking a
controlled substance as directed pursuant to a lawful prescription issued in my name. If
requested, I must provide such proof within 72 hours.

The employer will pay the cost of all required drug and/or alcohol tests.

I will be notified of a positive test result in writing. The letter of notification will identify the
particular substance found and its concentration level.

I have the right to request a retest of the initial specimen at a licensed laboratory of my choice, at
my own expense, if | have a positive test for drugs or alcohol. The results of the retest shall be
provided to me by the department director.

A positive test for illegal drugs or alcohol, or my refusal to authorize the test(s) by signing this
form, or take the specified test(s), or produce a specimen may result in the following action:

Applicants - Rejection of my employment application for safety-sensitive positions.

Employees - Referral to an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) and/or disciplinary action, up to
and including termination.
Check One:

o I consent to a drug and/or alcohol test
o Ido not consent to a drug and/or alcohol test

Applicant/Employee Signature Date

Witness Printed Name Witness Signature Date

EMPLOYER: If applicable, attach documentation for reasonable suspicion
drug/alcohol testing.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Department Copy 12/04/18
Policy 206A Applicant/Employee Copy Page | of |
Laboratory Copy



STOREY COUNTY
FORM 206A-F4
12/04/18

U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT)
Alcohol Testing Form

{The instructions for completing this form are on page 2 of this form)

STEP 1: TO BE COMPLETED BY ALCOHOL TECHNICIAN

A: Employee Name:

(Print) {First, M.L., Last)
B: SSN or Employee 1D No.

C: Employer Name

Street

City, ST ZiP

DER Name and

)
Telephone No. DER Name DER Phone Number

D: Reason for Test: | Random | Reasonable Susp | Post-Accident | Return to Duty | Follow-up | Pre-employment

STEP 2: TO BE COMPLETED BY EMPLOYEE

I certify that I am about to submit to alcohol testing required by U.S. Department of Transportation regulations and that the
identifying information provided on the form is true and correct.

{4
Signature of Employee Date: Month Day Year

STEP 3: TO BE COMPLETED BY ALCOHOL TECHNICIAN
(Jf the technician conducting the screening test is not the same technician who will be conducting the confirmation test, each
technician must complete his/her own form.) I certify that I have condueted alcohol testing on the abave named individual in

accordance with the procedures established in the U.S. Department of Transportation regulation, 49 CFR Part 40, that I am
qualified to operate the testing device(s) identified, and that the results are as recorded.

TECHNICIAN: 1BAT iSTT DEVICE: 1SALIVA TBREATH* 15-Minute Wait: | Yes 1No

SCREENING TEST:  (For BREATH DEVICE* write in the space below only if the testing device is not designed to print.)

Test # Testing Device Name Device Serial # OR Lot # & Exp. Date  Activation Time Reading Time Result

CONFIRMATION TEST: Results MUST be affixed to each copy of this form or printed directly onto the form.

REMARKS:
Alcohol Technician's Company Company Street Address
()
(PRINT) Alcohel Technician's Name (First, M.1,, Last) Company City, State, Zip Phone Number
/ /
Signature of Aleohol Technician Date: Month Day Year

STEP 4: TO BE COMPLETED BY EMPLOYEE IF TEST RESULT IS 0.02 OR HIGHER

I certify that ! have submitted to the alcohol test, the resuits of which are accurately recorded on this form. I understand that I
must not drive, perform safety-sensitive duties, or operate heavy equipment because the results are 0.02 or greater.

’ !
Signature of Employee Date: Month Day Year
COPY t - ORIGINAL - FORWARD TO THE EMPLOYER OMB No. 2105-0529

COPY 2 - EMPLOYEE RETAINS
COPY 3 - ALCOHOL TECHNICIAN RETAINS

Page | of 2

Print
Screening Resulls
Here

Affix
With
Tamper Evident
Tape

o - o - - - e - -

Print
Screening Results
Here

Affix
With
Tamper Evident

Tape

e o

Print
Screening Results
Here

Affix
With
Tamper Evident

Tape



STOREY COUNTY
FORM 206A-F4
12/0418

Instructions for Completing the
U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) Alcohol Testing Form

NOTE: Use a ballpoint pen, press hard, and check all copies for legibility.

STEP1  The Breath Aicohol Technician (BAT) or Screening Test Technician (STT) completes the information
required in this step. Be sure to print the employee’s name and check the box identifying the reason for the
test.

NOTE: If the employee refuses to provide SSN or 1.D. number, be sure to indicate this in the remarks
section in STEP 3. Proceed with STEP 2.

STEP2  Instruct the employee to read, sign, and date the employee certification statement in STEP 2.

NOTE: If the employee refuses to sign the certification statement, do not praceed with the alcohol test.
Contact the designated employer representative (DER).

STEP3  The BAT or STT completes the information required in this step and checks the type of device (saliva or
breath) being used. After conducting the alcohol screening test, do the following (as appropriate):

Enter the information for the screening test (test number, testing device name, testing device serial number,
or lot number and expiration date, time of test with any device-dependent activation times, and the results)
on the front of the Alcohol Testing Form (AFT). For a breath testing device capable of printing, the
information may be part of the printed record.

NOTE: Be sure to enter the result of the test exactly as it is indicated on the breath testing device, e.g.,
0.00, 0.02, 0.04, etc.

Affix the printed information to the front of the form in the space provided, or to the back of the form, in a tamper-
gvident manner (e.g., tape), or the device may print the results directly on the ATF. If the results of the screening test are
less than 0.02, print, sign your name, and enter today’s date in the space provided. The test process is complete.

If the results of the screening test are 0.02 or greater, a confirmation test must be administered in accordance with DOT
regulations. An EVIDENTIAL BREATH TESTING device that is capable of printing confirmation test information
must be used in conducting this test.

Ensure that a waiting period of at least 15 minutes occurs before the confirmation test begins. Check the box indicating
that the waiting period lasted at least 15 minutes.

After conducting the alcohol confirmation test, affix the printed information to the front of the form in the space
provided, or to the back of the form in a tamper-evident manner (e.g., tape), or the device may print the results directly on
the ATF. Print, sign your name, and enter the date in the space provided. Go to STEP 4.

STEP4  [f the employee has a breath alcobol confirmation test result of 0.02 or higher, instruct the employee to read,
sign, and date the employee certification statement in STEP 4.

NOTE:  Ifthe employee refuses to sign the certification statement in STEP 4, be sure to indicate this in the
remarks line in STEP 3.

Immediately notify the DER if the employee has a breath alcohol confirmation test result of 0.02 or higher.

Forward Copy 1 to the employer. Give Copy 2 to the employee. Retain Copy 3 for BAT/STT records.

PAPERWORK REDUCTION ACT NOTICE (as required by 5 CFR 1320.21)

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated for each respondent to average: 1
minute/employee, 4 minutes/Breath Alcoho! Technician. Individuals may send comments regarding these burden
estimates, or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing the burden, to U.s.
Department of Transportation, Drug and Alcohot Policy and Compliance, Room 10403, 400 Seventh St., SW,
Washington, D.C. 20590. Please note that an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to
respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. The OMB control
number associated with the collection is 2105-0529.

Page 2 of 2



STOREY county
FORM 206A-F5
12/04/18

VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY

SUGGESTED STEPS FOR REASONABLE SUSPICION
DRUG / ALCOHOL TESTING

1. Keep the situation confidential.

2. Carefully review employer’s policy on drug and alcohol testing to include all
applicable forms.

3. [If practical, without endangering the safety of the employee and others or unduly
delaying your response, consult with your human resources specialist or legal
counsel about the actions you will be taking.

4. Have a second supervisor present whenever possible throughout the process.

Union representation? Check any requirements of the contract.

6. Complete the employer’s documentation for Reasonable Suspicion Drug/Alcohol
Testing,

7. Meet with the employee to inform him/her of your observations and request them
to take a drug and/or alcohol test.

8. Request that the employee complete the Drug/Alcohol Test Informed Consent
form. )

9. Provide the employee transportation to the testing site and provide transportation
after the test or, if the employee refuses to be tested, to his/her home.

10. If the employee refuses to be tested, inform him/her that s/he may be disciplined,
up to and including termination.

11. If the test is positive, inform the employee in writing.

12. If the test is positive, determine what disciplinary action to take.

13. If the test is positive and the employee was not terminated, refer him/her for
evaluation by a substance abuse counselor and rehabilitation, as appropriate.

Note: Time is of the essence. If you have reasonable suspicion, proceed immediately by
completing the Documentation For Reasonable Suspicion Drug/Alcohol Testing Form and
proceed with the testing process.

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol “Sample” Policy 12/04/18
Page 1 of 1




STOREY COUNTY
FORM 206A-F6
12/04/18

VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY

DOCUMENTATION FOR REASONABLE SUSPICION
DRUG / ALCOHOL TESTING

This form is to be used to document the reasons for requesting that an employee be asked to submit to a medical
evaluation, or drug or alcohol screen test pursuant to Federal Department of Transportation (DOT) and Federal Motor
Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) regulations. All questions that apply should be answered. Additional pages,
if necessary, should be attached with any other relevant documents.

Employee Name:

Date of Incident:

Time Started to Work: Time Relieved of Duty:

Location Last Worked:

1. Is employee in a position that performs safety-sensitive functions? [] Yes[] No
2. Was there an incident? [1 Yes[] No

a. If yes, describe the event (include date and time, employee’s actions, and extent of any
injury to any person(s) or property).

b. Ifno, describe observation which led to consideration of reasonable suspicion testing.

3. Attendance (There must be other indicators of a violation in addition to attendance.)
a. Number of days missed before or after regularly scheduled days off in the last two months:

b. Total absences in the last two months:
c. Times tardy in the last two months:
d. Times employee left early in last two months:

4. Performance Level
Has there been a recent change in the employee’s level of performance?

[ ] Yes {] No
If yes, describe:

5. Other Witnesses:

Name (Please Prinf)

Name (Please Print)

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Page | of 2 12/04/18
Policy



STOREY COUNTY

FORM 206A-6

2018

6. Observation of Employee: Date: Time:
Reasonable Suspicion must be based on directly observing specific contemporaneous, articulable observations
concerning the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of the driver. In addition, the observations for drug
use may include indications of the chronic and the withdrawal effects of controlled substances.

(Check all that apply)
a. WALKING: o Falling o Holding On o Staggering
o Stumbling o Swaying o Unsteady
0 Unable to Walk
b. STANDING: o Rigid o Staggering o Sagging at Knees
0 Swaying 0 Unable to Stand o Feet Wide Apart
c. SPEECH: o Mute 0 Incoherent o Rambling
o Shouting o Silent o Slobbering
o Slow o Slurred o Whispering
d. DEMEANOR: o Calm o Cooperative o Crying
o Sleepy o Confrontational o Fighting
o Polite o Sarcastic o Silent
o Talkative o Excited
e. ACTIONS: o Calm o Drowsy o Erratic
o Hostile o Fighting o Polite
o Irritable o Profane o Resisting
o Communications o Threatening o Hyperactive
f. EYES: o Bloodshot o Closcd o Dilated
0 Droopy o Glassy 0 Watery
g. FACE: o Flushed o Pale o Sweaty
h. APPEARANCE/CLOTHING:
o Unruly o Having Odor o Dirty
0 Messy o Neat o Partially Dressed
o Bodily Excrement Stains on Clothing
i. BREATH: 0 Alcohol Odor o Faint Alcohol Odor o No Alcohot Odor
o Marijuana Odor o Faint Marijuana Odor o No Marijuana Odor
j» MOVEMENTS: o Fumbling o Hyperactive o Jerky
o Nervous o Normal o Slow
k. EATING/ CHEWING:
o Candy o Gum o Mints
0 Nothing

OTHER:

Supervisor Name (please print):

Supervisor Signature:

Date: Approved for alcohol testing: | ] Yes [ | No
Approved for drug testing: [ ] Yes [ ] No

Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Page 2 of 2
12/04/18

Policy



VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG NUMBER: 206A Tl
REVISED;
EMPLOYEE AUTHORITY: BOC
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT COUNTY MANAGER: FQu—

EMPEQYEE CERTIFICATION:

Regulations, that I havesgead and understand the policy, add that I agree to abide by the terms and
conditions of the policy. Dalgo understand that nothj
contract, and I agree that no suth.contract is cre;

Date

Print Name

October 2010 Employee Acknowledgement Page 1 of |

q7



VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG
NUMBER: 206A F2
AND ALCOHOL POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: 1-18-11
CONSENT TO RELEASE OF REVISED;
DRUG / ALCOHOL AUTHORITY: _BOC
'NFORMATION COUNTY MANAGTER: __:Q““L—* —
DRUG / ALCOHOL TESTING
I , authorize Storey County to contact my former employcr:
Name (Printed)
Prcvious Employer:
Street: Telephone:
City, State, Zip: Fax No.:

to obtain from them any relevant information regarding drug and/or alcohol use matters Msted
below. Further, I authorize the release of information from my former employer for
preceding two (2) years regarding drug and/or alcohol use matters listed below. Lrequest you
sspond to the following questions as whether I:

Refused to be tested

[ ] Yes [ ] No
4.  Violated other Department of T
[JYes []1No

prospective ¢ onomlc relations.

I authorize the release of this information to:

Storey County
Attention: on or before
Holli Kiechier, Administrative Officer/HR Director Date
Applicant/Employee Signaturc Date
Witness Name (Printed) Witness Signaturc Date

(Note: Obtain a releasc for cach former employer for preceding two years)

October 2010 Consent 1o release of Drug/Alcohol Information Drug/Alcohol Testing Page 1 of 1

a8



VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG AND NUMBER: 206A F3
ALCOHOL POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: 1-18-11
; . REVISED;
DRUG / ALCOHOL TEST INFORMED AUTHORITY: BOC
CONSENT COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
L , pursuant to a request by my department director
(Printed Name)

and, as a condition of employment with the Storey County, hereby give my consent to this request
to perform a comprehensive test to determine the absence or presence of alcohol and/ér drugs
(employer: circle one or both) pursuant to Storey County policy on drug and alcgtol in
compliance with Department of Transportation (DOT) and Federal Motor CagptCr Safety
Administration (RMCSA) regulations.

case the results of the test(s) and other related predical information to
individuals within the Storsy County who have a need to know of € drug and alcohol testing
results and to the use of all suthreports or other medical informafion by Storey County in its
assessment of my employment-application and/or employmep('status.

I give my consent to re

I understand that:

The department director and/or a medical reviey
controlled substance as directed pursuant to a
requested, I must provide such proof withi

officer may request proof that I am taking a
I, prescription issued in my name. If

Storey County will pay the cost of all required drug and/or 2

I will be notified of a positive test p€sult in writing. The letter of htification will identify the

particular substance found and it§ concentration level.

I have the right to'request gfetest of the initial specimen at a licensed laboratory of my choice, at
my own expense, if [ ha#e a positive test for drugs or alcohol. The results of thegetest shall be
provided to me by the€ department director.

A positive test for illegal drugs or alcohol, or my refusal to authorize the test(s) by signihg this
form, or take the specified tesy(s), or produce a specimen may result in the following action:
Applicants - Rejection of my employment application for safety-sensitive positions.
Employees - Referral to an Employee Assistance Program and/or disciplinary action, up to and
including termination,

Check One:

o Iconsent to a drug and/or alcohol test
o 1do not consent to a drug and/or alcohol test

Applicant/Employce Signature Dalc

Witness Printed Name Wilness Sigmiure Date

G

EMPLOYER: If applicable, attach documentation for reasonable suspicion
drug/alcohol testing,

Qctober 2010 Drug/Alcohol Test nformed Consent Page ! of 1

a9



i l: FEDERAL DRUG TESTING CUSTODY AND CONTROL FORM % l -—i
+ {00 0 '
U wemevono 1234567 A8 AccEssIONG
STEP 1: COMPLETED BY COLLECTOR OR EMPLOYER REPREBENTATIVE [
A. Employer Name, Address, |.D, No. B.MRO Name, Address, Phone and Fax No

SSLOCOED PN TNS

C. Danor SSN or Employee |.D. No. |

0. Reason for Teat: [ Pre-employment D Rendom SRessonabls Susploion/Couse [J Posi Accident |
[JReturn t0 Duty D Follow-up L Other (spocify)
| E, Drug Teste io bs Performed: JTHE, COC, PCR, OP1, AMP OTHC & COC Onty I Other (spechy}.
llection Se Address:

STEP 21 COMPLETEQ BY COLLECTOR

Read specimen tempegature within 4 minutes. Is temperature  {Specimen Collection:
botweon 80 and 100° P CIYea [JNo, Enter Remark Dlspit CSingls [INone Provigeéd (Enter Remark) (] Obaarvad (Enles Romerk)

STEP 3: CoMoinr alfwes botile somipi 10 mm.mwmmm Donoy, aﬂﬂ&mCow?(unOCam
COMPLETED BY

). Collecicr dblas
STEP 4: CHAIN OF CUSTODY - INVIATEDNTY COLLECTOR AND

TRTRITY G vy Wewa eV WL Larh T

A T A
RECEIVED AT LAB:
X |  Dottle Seal intact
p—— T igadis of Avesasiaie T T Dws
DNo.EmuRmmBom
anrnwmm»mmmrmmy’counmolwmlumuu \YORY .

CINEGATVE aeo.
ool

€ for: CIMARUANAMETABOLITE  [JCODEMNE D ANPHETAMR O ADTERATED
(3 CJCOCAINE &
DREJECYED FOR TEE

ju] wmnmmuz DSuBSTIIUYED
L 1INVALID RESULY

sammwma&vm—wssau

HEMARKS

weth Faowal

| oasilfy that e Wm?mbrmwnwumvwmncm Wmmmwwymmmmw in P
e V4
- SR . uesey b — " iy Beamwrs o s, Wi, 'm\ ote W s
HYER, 1 RG’ULT! - NESTEL) GO“'LET!D BY ueomuv LABORATORY
7 CIRECONTIRMED  LIPAILED TO HECONFIRM - REABON, - .
. OWMW lnklmm mm-m exBmed upon mowt, A uting ek of cutkody pooedures, snalyaed,
LAso sty Kaho Wi g0
x npr———— A R T st s st v
Tatoretony Adbese T T T St s W Ca sty g B AN ) Eyeiyeng Svbn 3308 Mo BV IW 108 Fivks W donnd
|1 1234567 i
Ot s Oy 1)
1234567 A SPECIMEN BOTTLE
SPECIMEN 10 NO: SEAL oerer’s T
NI 1234567 o o
? Dis Mo Oay Vey
d 1234567 B SPECIMEN BOTTLE
PLIT
: " seecmenono , SEAL Pa— |
| ! COPY 1 - LABORATORY }
[ Humr\mni(ul !
s
Nt lu Use [ ar Goteniatcly
Fotiow PRE Giutte Tor Lekrs




FEDERAL DRUG TESTING CUSTODY AND

0 0
1234567
OR EMPLOVER REFREGENTAYIVE

s+

SPECIMEN 10 NO
STEP 1: COMPLETED BY COLLECTOR
A, Employer Name, Address, 1.D. No.

8.MRO

C. Donor 98N or Employee L.D. No.
D, Reason for Tesi: [ Pre-employment [IRandom
CIRelum to Duly OFoliowup
E. Drug Toesis to be Pedformed: OTHC, COC, PCP. OP1, AMP
£ Colleclion Site Addrgss:

CI0ther (w

"] Repscnable Suspiclon/Ceute

DOTHe & COC Only

CONTROL FORM

LAB AGCESSION NO

Nam;.-xt—!dms:.'m and Fax No.

SCIDCDIA v BH0

[JPost Accident

PUCHY) e e e o 2
OOther (specity)_. . .. ——— .

CoBector Phone No. -

Fax No

STEP 2: GCOMPLETED 8Y COLLECTOR

Read specimen temperaiure within 4 minutes. s temperature Specimen Colle

betwesn 90° and 100° F? [ Yes (1o, Enter Remerk

Cispit DSingle [1Nono Provided (Enler Remmk)

ction:
) Obaerveds (Entor Remark)

, REMARKS S —
TEP 3: Colielor alites bitia seaijs) 1o dollelr) Cedosior dalos seaie). Doey Toiliote saoile). Onnoe complelss STEP § on Copy 2 {MRO Copy)
COMPLETED BY LABORATORY. o

STEP 4: GI{AW OF CUSTODY INTIATERBY COLLECTOR AND '

§ corily thet the specimen ghen 1o mw by #1¢
aceordanec with sppiosbls Fedéial riguirmante

it e anctdintion avciion

AWM
19 >

Tord ol Catagita:

Y S A
Liwis ($a RIsy/Y)

s R BRI Do L L
REGEIVED AT LAS:
b RN

S R— Ty T

EVED BY LABORATORY .
‘o Coy 2 o I form wes coKony, lebsied,

SPECINEN BOTTLE(S) RELERBEDTO:

Ftimary Spacimen
Boitle 8eal Intact
C%s
1o, Entor Ramark Beloa

seainit and otvased 1o iho Dalveiy Beiien rcied i)

PASED TO

S —— ) TP Y L U

) S
Biirs 8 Gonor

Dayliine Phone No. i__)___. .-

Eventng Phone No. (.

MRY RAVG takon,
0 80 olthsr on & 60

STEF 8: COMPLETED BY DONOR o
mrwmupmwmmmmmmmmmt boliie used wos sealad with & lamper-
.mm:nmmmmrm«mmmmmmm Dol je comect,

Shiould o rasulie of e Tabosotary iouts for the specimen ideniiied by this form bes conh
Theorefate, Yol o

Duk (Mo 70wy 171}

Oate of Bitd ¥
(2]

V.
D Medicot Raview Officer wil conincl you 1o sk
16 ik 0 115105 those mediootams ko you! Gvn ce0oxde
or ois 9o binck of yous copy (Copy 6}, DO NOT
SWITHYOU.

CINEGATIVE (1POSITIVE {JREFUBALTO

ODILUTE

REMARAS
T IS Mbdae Cats ™

TJADUTERATED

TR biseaa R GELCO/S e (PO W L

TEST BECAUSE:
(1BUBSTITY

s

ST a0

&TEP 7; COMPLETAD BY MEDICAL REWEW OFFIGEN - 6PLIT SPECRAEN
I occordance wih spplicable requirements, my determination/vuelice

CIFNLED TG RECONPINM - REASON ... oo S —

i e Rk il o oL s

Mumnﬁﬂrm(ﬂmmm

X
L i COPY 2 - MEDICAL REVIEW OFFICER COPY
. Oru\S Farm Parié )
foce inks: 00U BLIS { (R HEKY
Date V50800

Mo 168 Llsn § or Cokumslil
Tulkm PhAS Guds For Colors

L

COPY 2 - MEDICAL REVIEW OFFICER COPY
COPY 3 - COLLECTOR COPY

COPY 4 - EMPLOYER COPY

COPY 5 - DONOR COPY

||




VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG NUMBER: 206A F5
AND ALCOHOL POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: 1-18-11
REVISED,
SUGGESTED STEPS FOR AUTHORITY: BOC
REASONABLE SUSPICION COUNTY MANAGER: L

DRUG / ALCOHOL TESTING

1. Keep the situation confidential.

2. Carefully review employer’s policy on drug and alcohol testing to include all
applicable forms.

3. If practical, without endangering the safety of the employee and others or unduly
delaying your response, consult with your human resources specialist or legal
counsel about the actions you will be taking.

4. e a second supervisor present whenever possible throughout the process.

7’If the test is positive, inform the employee in writing.
12. If the test is positive, determine what disciplinary action to taki

13. If the test is positive and the employee was not terminated, refer him/her for
evaluation by a substance abuse counselor and rehabilitation, as appropriate.

Note: Time is of the essence. If you have reasonable suspicion, proceed immediately by
completing the Documentation For: Reasonable Suspicion Drug/Alcohol Testing Form
and proceed with the testing process.

October 2010 Steps for Reasonable Suspicion Drug/Alcohol Testing Page 1 of 1

[0




VEHICLE OPERATORS DRUG NUMBER: 206A I'6

AND ALCOHOL POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: 1-18-11
' REVISED;
DOCUMENTATION FOR AUTHORITY: B3OC
REASONABLE SUSPICION COUNTY MANAGER: TR
DRUG/ ALCOHOL TESTING

This form is to be used to document the reasons for requesting that an employee be asked to submit to 4 medical
evaluation, or drug or alcohol screen test pursuant 1o Federal Department of Transportation (DOT) and Federal Motor
Carrier Sufety Administration (FMCSA) regulations. All questions that apply should be answered. Additional pages,
if necessary, should be attached with any other relevant documents,

Employee Name: /

Dxte of Incident: /

Time Started to Work: Time Relieved of Duty: /

1. Is employeein a) [1 Yes[] No
2. Was there an inéide’nt (] Yes [] No
a. Ifyes, describe the evems(include date and timgsemployee’s actions, and extent of any

b. If no, describe observation whic consideration of reasonable suspicion testing.

other indicators of aiolation in addition to attendance.)
uled days off in the last two months:

3. Attendance (There must
a. Number of days mjs§ed before of after regularly sc

b. Total absene€s in the last two months:
c. Times tafdy in the last two months:
s employee left early in last two montkis:

erformance Level
Has there been a recent change in the employee’s level of performance?

[ ] Yes [ ] No

If yes, describe:

5. Other Witnesses:

Name (Please Prinf)

Name (Please Print)

QOctober 2010 Documentation for Reasonable Suspicion Drug/dlcohol Testing. Page 1 0f 2

103



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/04/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including Policy 1001 Disciplinary Action and Appeals, adding Policy 1000
Investigations of Alleged Misconduct; and adding and amending corresponding forms
including for verbal warning, written reprimand, last-chance-agreement, and complaints.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I [commissioner] motion to approve
updates to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures including Policy 1001
Disciplinary Action and Appeals, adding Policy 1000 Investigations of Alleged Misconduct;
and adding and amending corresponding forms including for verbal warning, written
reprimand, last-chance-agreement, and complaints.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis.
The Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur
every five years and otherwise as needed.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosed markup policy updates.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
qﬁﬁpartmem Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[1 Approved [1] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied (1 Continued Agenda Item No.

Page 1 of 1




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 1000

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 12/04/18
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __PAW

SUBJECT: INVESTIGATIONS OF ALLEGED MISCONDUCT

POLICY: To perform and manage investigations of complaints of harassment,
discrimination, retaliation, and safety and ethical allegations of misconduct in a timely manner
in order to ensure that prohibited actions and behaviors cease immediately and in order to
protect the parties involved in the investigation process.

1.1 Purpose

When an employee makes an informal or formal complaint, the employer will take prompl steps
to stop the alleged conflict, protect involved parties, and begin investigations. Under many laws

g, Title VII, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act (ADEA), the Qccupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA), the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, state and local nondiscrimination laws], employers are legally obligated to investigate
complaints (harassment, discrimination, retaliation, safety and ethical) in a timely manner. In
addition, reasonable action is required to be taken by the employer to ensure illegal actions and
behaviors cease immediately.

Responsiveness to a complaint and an investigation will not only yield the best information and
evidence, but it will also enhance both the investigator’s and the employer's credibility.
Investigations can help the organization identify and resalve internal problems before they

become widespread. Storey County takes all complaints seriously, and will conduct appropriale,

reasonable, and prompt investigations.

1.2 Investigation Process

No investigation should be undertaken without the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel
Director. The following steps will be taken as soon as the employer receives a verbal or written
complaint that warrants an investigation.

a. Maintain Confidentiality

The employer will protect the confidentiality of employee claims to the best of its ability
and in accordance with law. At the same time, the employer must conduct a prompt and
an effective investigation. It may not be possible to keep all information completely
confidential. The emplover should explain to the complaining party and all individuals
involved in the investigation that all information gathered will remain confidential to the
extent possible for a thorough investigation. It should also be explained to the parties
that to conduct a prompt and effective investigation, some information may be revealed to
the accused and potential witnesses, but that information will be shared only on a need-
to-know basis. An emplover cannot promise absolute confidentiality to any party involved
in the investigation,

Page 1 of 3



b.  Provide Interim Protection

The employer may take immediate measures for the protection of the accuser or the
complainant. Separating the complainant from the accused may be done to guard against
continued harassment or retaliation. Actions such as a schedule changes, transfers, or
leave of absence may be necessary, and are not done for retaliatory purposes.

In certain instances where an elected official is accused of misconduct against an

employee employed by him/her, and where the elected official refuses to make changes to
his/her schedule or otherwise create separation from the complainant in the workplace,
and there is a need to separate the parties in order to protect the complainant, the
complainant may be subject to temporary schedule changes, transfers, or leave of
absence during the investigation. The employer and the accuser must attempt to work

together to arrive al an amenable solution.

The status of protective action may be changed at any time by the Administrative Officer
and/or Personnel Director during the investigation.

c. Select an Investigator

An investigator will be chosen by the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director in
conjunction with the County Manager or other appropriate personnel, such as the
District Attorney.

The employer may use the resources of experienced HR professionals, internal security,
legal counsel (inside or outside), a third-party investigator, or the employer may use a
leam approach.

1.3 Determination

Upon receipt of the completed investigation report, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel

Director will review the entire investigative file, the employee’s personnel file, and any other

relevant materials. The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director may return the entire
investigation to the assigned investigator for further investigation of action. Once the

investigation report is to the satisfaction of the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel

Director, s/he will review the report and its findings, and will provide to the department head,

County Manager, or other appropriate person potentially taking disciplinary action against the

employee.

Any decisions to impose disciplinary action against any regular employee must conform to the
procedures set forth in Policy 1001 Disciplinary Action and Appeals.

1.4 Closure of Investigation

Once a decision is made, the Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer will notify both
the complainant and the accused that the investigation is complete, that the employer took the

complaint seriously, and that the employer took appropriate action. The employer is not
obligated to disclose to the complainant what actions were taken against the accused.

Page 2 of 3




The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director should set a time frame to follow up with
the complainant to ensure there are no other issues and that no retaliation has been endured.
The employer should encourage communication and follow-up until the complainant is
comfortable again. Finally, the Administrative Qfficer and/or Personnel Director should remind

When necessary, the employer must take reasonable action that is appropriate to the situation.

1.5 _ Archiving

The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will maintain confidentiality of all
materials related to the investigation and will store the materials separately from the employee's

personnel file.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 1001

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 01-06-09
REVISED: 08-03-10
REVISED: 4-05-11/12-04-18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __ PAW

SUBJECT: DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS AND APPEALS

POLICY: Diseipline-and-Appeal Storey County takes seriously all complaints of misconduct

under its policies. Storey County will accept and address all complaints of misconduct_in
accordance with this policy. It is also the policy of the county to ensure that complaints of
misconduct can be reported without concern for reprisal or retaliation.

1.1  Purpose

This policy provides guidelines for noticing potential discipline, providing due process,
disciplining. and providing for appeals of discipline in a justified and fair manner. Investigations
of alleged misconduct will conform to Policy 1000 Investigations of Alleged Misconduct. This
policy, except Sections 1.2 and 1.3 does not apply to_elected officials, department heads, or the
County Manager. and it is not _intended to create due process rights for those specific
individuals. Department heads and the County Manager are at-will employees, and nothing in
this policy is intended to create due process rights for those individuals.

1.2  Justification for Discipline

Disciplinary action, up to and including termination, may be taken against an employee for
unsatisfactory performance or for misconduct including, but not limited to, the following:

a. Conduct unbecoming an employee in the employer’s service, or discourteous treatment
of members of the public or a fellow employee, or any other act of omission or
commission that impacts negatively on the public’s perception of the integrity or
credibility of the employer or erodes the public confidence in the employer.

b. Falsification of or making a material omission on forms, records, or reports including
applications, time cards, and other employer records.

c. Absence from work without permission or without notification to an appropriate
supervisor or manager, habitual absence or tardiness, or misuse of sick leave.

d. Unauthorized possession, removal, or use of the employer’s property including, but not
limited to, funds, records, keys, confidential information of any kind, equipment,
supplies, or any other materials.

e. Disseminating confidential information to unauthorized persons within and outside the

workplace.

f. Insubordination, refusing to follow directions, or other disrespectful conduct directed
toward a supervisor or manager.

Page 1 of 7




g. Sexual harassment or other prohibited behavior directed toward another employee,
member of the public, vendor, or anyone doing business with the employer, or anyone
present on premises owned or controlled by the employer.

h. Actual or threatened physical violence including, but not limited to, intimidation, overt
or subtle threats, harassment, stalking, or any form of coercion, except as may be
required of a peace officer in the course of his/her duties.

i. Possession or inappropriate use of drugs or alcohol on property owned or controlled by
the employer or while on duty or during an on-call status.

j. Possession, bringing, or aiding others in bringing unauthorized firearms, weapons,
hazardous biological material or chemicals, or other dangerous substances onto property
owned or controlled by the employer.

k. Violation of safety or health policies or practices, or engaging in conduct that creates a
safety or health hazard to other employees, the public, vendors, or him/herself.

. Dishonesty, including intentionally or negligently providing false information,
intentionally falsifying records, employment applications, or other documents.

m. Willfully or intentionally violating or failing to comply with the employer’s policies,
rules, regulations, and/or procedures.

n. Unsatisfactory work performance.

o. Failure to demonstrate professionalism, courtesy, tact, and discretion in all interactions
with coworkers, supervisors, and the public; use common sense discretion; remain safe,

socially moral, lawful, affective, adaptive, and efficient.

1.3  Forms of Disciplinary Action

a. Disciplinary action includes, but is not limited to, one or more of the following:
i.  Verbal warning (document time, date, and subject)

ii.  Written reprimand
ili.  Suspension (*See-nete-below)
iv.  Pay reduction

v.  Demotion

vi.  Termination (Reference: Section D Public Hearing for Dismissed Employees
of Counties, Cities and Incorporated Towns and Unincorporated Towns)

b. An-Elected-Official-Dept-Head-or-Supervisor-department head or the Counly Manager

who is intending to administer impose disciplinary action of the above items B-He-)
1.3(a)(iii-vi) shall first consult with the Ceunty Administrative Officer and/or Personnel
Director ex-the-County-Manager before any action is takens-this-is-to-insure in order 0
ensure that all policies and procedures have been followed correctly.

c. Employees’ signed copies of the above items section B—a$H_[.3(a)(i-vi) must be
placed in employees master personnel file, and a copy provided to employees. The
discipline_will remain_in_the employee’s _master personnel_file for the following
durations or otherwise if specified in_a collective bargaining agreement, and in
accordance with records retention statutes. When the discipline is eligible to be removed

Page 2 of 7




from the master personnel file, the employee may submit a request in writing to_the

Human Resources office for the file to be removed from that file. The Human Resources
office will have 30 days from receipt of the request to remove the discipline subject to
removal.

i. Verbal warning — 12 months;

ii. Written reprimand — 18 months;

iii. Suspension — 24 months;

iv. Pay reduction — permanent;

v. Demotion — permanent;

v

vi. Termination — permanent.

d. *Nete: FLSA Exempt employees are subject to the following rules regarding disciplinary
pay deductions and unpaid suspensions:

i.  Pay deductions may only be made in cases of violations of safety rules of
major significance, including those rules related to the prevention of serious
danger in the workplace or to other employees. An example would be
violating a rule that prohibits smoking around flammable material.
Deductions can be made in any amount.

ii.  Unpaid suspensions may be imposed for infractions of workplace conduct
rules, such as rules prohibiting sexual harassment, workplace violence, drug
or alcohol use, or for violating state or federal laws. The suspension must be
for serious misconduct, not for performance issues. Suspensions must be in
full-day increments.

iii.  Suspensions for performance issues must be made in full-week increments.

1.4 Investigation

An investigation of any employee may be conducted in response (o a complaint or allegation that
the employee engaged in activity or behavior that violated county administrative policies. The

investigation will be performed in accordance with Policy 1000 Investigations of Alleged
Misconduct. The investigation of law enforcement personnel will also conform to NRS 289.

1.5 Due Process

The employee may utilize due process provided for in this policy or sthe may wtilize due process,

such _as the grievance process, set forth in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, but

the emplovee may not utilize both processes.

Unless designated otherwise in a contract or collective bargaining agreement, prior to taking
disciplinary action involving suspension reduction in pay, demotion, or termination against any
regular gn_employee, the employer will take action intended to ensure that the employee is
afforded due process. Due process in regard to employment-related disciplinary action includes,
among other actions, making certain the employee is provided notice of the reason for the
disciplinary action and is given the opportunity to provide a response to the proposed
disciplinary action prior to an appropriate supervisor making a final decision regarding the
disciplinary action.

Page 3 of 7




A. Written Notice of Intent to Discipline

Unless designated otherwise in_a_contract or collective bargaining agreement, in In
situations where the proposed disciplinary action involves a suspension, a reduction in
pay, a demotion, and/or termination, written notice of the proposed disciplinary action
will be hand-delivered or sent certified mail to the employee. The notice will include the
following information:

1. The nature of the disciplinary action proposed,
2. The effective date of the proposed disciplinary action;

3. A statement of the proposed disciplinary action with documentation, statements,
and/or other evidence supporting the proposed disciplinary action;

4. A statement advising the employee of his/her right to file a written response, or to
submit a written request for a pre-disciplinary conference with the Personnel
Director and/or Administrative Officer within five-(5)-work days of receipt of the
notice of proposed disciplinary action; and

5. A statement that the employee’s failure to file a written response or request a pre-
disciplinary conference in a timely manner, or to appear at the pre-disciplinary
conference after requesting such, will constitute a forfeiture of the employee’s
rights to any further appeal. (Reference: Section D-/.6 Public Hearing for

Dismissed Employees ef-Counties;-Gities-and-Incorporated-Towns-and
Unincorporated-Towns-Pursuant (o NRS)

B. Employee Review of Allegation and Evidence

If the regular employee requests, s/he will be given the opportunity, as soon as practical,
to review the documents or other evidence, if any (except for eenfidential-and atforney-
client privileged documents), on which the proposed disciplinary action is based. If the
employee requests, the employer-Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will
provide a copy of the documents used to support the proposed disciplinary action,
including names of witnesses.

The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director _may choose to_restrict _the
employee tv “in-camera’ (in chambers) review only, in which s/he may review the
documents under close supervision of the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel
Director, or histher designee, may be allowed to take notes, but may not be allowed to
photocopy, photograph, video, record, duplicate, or otherwise keep the documents or
materials. The employee may have up to two representative preseni during the review
and the representative(s) may review the documents with the employee, as allowed by the
employee, under the same restrictions,

C. Pre-Disciplinary Conference Prior-to-lmplementation

When the regular—employee requests a conference after receipt of the proposed
disciplinary proeess—action, but prior to any disciplinary action being imposed, the
Personnel—Direetor—andlor Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will
schedule a meeting with the employee and his/her representative(s) (if the employee
requests a representative(s) be present) and the department head in a timely manner to
review the reason for and basis of the proposed disciplinary action. At this conference,

Page 4 of 7




the employer-department head, and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director
will also provide the employee with an opportunity to present relevant information which
may impact the nature or severity of the proposed disciplinary action.

The pre-disciplinary process is intended to provide the employee opportunity to present
to_the department head, and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director a

written or oral response after having the opportunity to review the supporting materials
and prior to imposed discipline. The employee must consider the following:

1. The response is not intended to be an adversarial or formal hearing;

2. Although the employee may be represented by one or more uninvolved
representative and/or by legal counsel, the response is not intended to

accommodate the presentation of testimony or witnesses;

3. The employee may suggest that further investigation could be conducted or the
employee may offer any additional information or_mitigating factors for the
department_head and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director (o

consider:;

4. In the event that the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director decides to
cause further investigation, the employee will be provided with a summary of the
investigation results prior to imposed discipline:

5. The employee may, thereafier, have the opportunity to further respond orally or in
writing to the department head and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel

Director on the limited issues of information raised in any subsequent malerials.

D. Implementation of Discipline

No later than five—(5)-work days from receipt of the employee’s written response or
conclusion of the pre-disciplinary conference, the PRersonnel—Director—andior

Administrative—Officer department head, afier consultation with the Administrative
Officer and/or Personnel Director, will issue a written decision to the affected employee.

The written decision will inform the employee that:

1. The proposed disciplinary action will be implemented; or

2. The proposed disciplinary action will be modified, with as-explanation; or
3. The proposed disciplinary action is-will be rescinded, with aa-explanation; or
4

That additional time is needed for the employer to review new evidence and/or to
interview_additional witnesses browught forth by the employee during the pre-
disciplinary conference [see section (C) Pre-Disciplinary Conference].

Nothing in this policy, regardless of whether discipline is or is not administered, shall
preclude or prevent the department head or the Adminisirative Officer and/or Personnel
Director from requiring the subject employee 1o undergo additional training and
professional_development, participate in_an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to

address job-related matters and consistence with business necessity, or undergo follow-
up or ongoing consultation with the Human Resources office or other employee

improvement_program that is intended (o correct and_improve employee behavior or
performance.

Page S of 7



E. Resignation or Retirement Prior to Discipline

In_the event that the accused employee tenders a written resignation or notice of
retirement prior to the imposition of discipline, the situation shall be noted in the file,
except as may be limited by NRS 289 for law enforcement personnel. The tender of a
resignation or retirement by itself will not serve as the grounds for the termination of any
pending investigation or discipline.

F. Appeal

1. Unless the employee utilizes the appeal process set forth in a contract or the

applicable collective bargaining agreement, The-the affected regular-elassified
employee may appeal the disciplinary action to the County Manager by filing a

written appeal with the Personnel-Director-and/or-Administrative Officer and/or
Personnel Director within five(5) work days of the effective date of the
disciplinary action.

In the event that a conflict of interest exists with the County Manager in the case
involving discipline, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will
seek a qualified County Manager or City Manager from a jurisdiction outside of
Storey County, preferably a county with reasonably similar staff numbers and
other organizational characteristics to Storey County, located in the State of
Nevada, to serve as the appellate.

2. The written appeal must state the basis of the appeal and contain a specific
admission or denial of each of the material statements in the decision. If an
employee fails to file a written appeal conforming to these requirements within
the-preseribed-time-limit 5 work days as shown in subsection (1) above, s'he is
deemed to have waived the right to appeal. (Reference: Section B-1.6 Public
Hearing for Dismissed Employees of-Counties;-Cities-and-Inecorporated-Towns
and-Unincorporated-Fowns-Pursuant (o NRS.)

3. After an the employee has submitted a timely appeal to the Ressonnel-Director
andfor Administrative Officer and/or Persomnel Director, the Persennel-Director
and/er-Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will set a date for a
disciplinary appeal hearing. At such hearing, the employee will have the right to
be represented by an attorney or other representative retained by the employee, to
present evidence and argument in response to the disciplinary action, and to
question and cross-examine adverse witnesses. The hearing may be conducted
informally without conforming to the formal rules of evidence and such
informality of the hearing process shall not invalidate the decision rendered. The
County Manager will issue to the parties a decision within 3 work days following
such hearing. m&h*wﬁ:ee—(%—weﬂ(—days- The decxsmn of the County Manager is
final. and—ms ided d pargd R

agfeemem—eF—as-Jprewded»—unéer—NRS—Q%-Oéé- (Geaaﬂes)—ef—NRS%%S

(Cities) or NRS-269-083 (Unincorporated-Fowns):

1.6  Public Hearing for Dismissed Employees Pursuant to NRS of Counties; Cities-and

Page 6 of 7




In accordance with NRS 245.065, when an employee of a county, other than a depariment head

or the County Manager, who has been employed by the county for 12 or more months is
dismissed from emplovment the employee may request within 15 days of the date of dismissal a

date of the request the emglozee so dismissed shall be furnished the wrztten statement. Within 30

days afier receipt of the writien statement, the dismissed employee may, in writing, request a

public hearing before the board of county commissioners to determine the reasonableness of the

action. The board of county commissioners shall grant the dismissed employee a public hearing
within 15 days afler receipt of the written request. At the public hearing, technical rules of

evzdence do not apply. Such dismissed emglozee is not required to ultlzze the establzshed pre-
: i his policy b

1.7 Administrative Leave During Disciplinary Proceeding

By notifying the employee in writing, the empleyer-Administrative Officer and/or Personnel
Director may place an employee (including department heads and the County Manager) on
administrative leave, with or without pay pending an investigation of alleged misconduct or
performance deficiencies, prior to or during a disciplinary proceeding, or during the review of
the employee’s response to a proposed disciplinary action. The notice of administrative leave
will include a statement that the leave is not a disciplinary action. An employee placed on
administrative leave without pay who is later reinstated without disciplinary action being
imposed will be reimbursed for any pay and benefits lost during the administrative leave.

1.8 False Accusations

An emplovee who has been found to have intentionally filed a false report of wrongdoing may be
subject to discipline up to and including termination.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 7 of 7




, STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES

FORM: 1001F

CREATED: 01/06/19

REVISED: 08/21/18-12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOCC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

10.
11.
12,

S wwN

Documented Verbal Warning

Today’s Date:

Date of documented verbal warning:

Name of employee receiving verbal warning:

Name of employee/supervisor issuing verbal warning:

Department:

-related behavior(s) or job

Detailed explanation rformance

Department or county policies violated:

Details of specific changes that must occur to correct the subject behavior. Details must be

SMART (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, and Timely). This section should

specify: what exactly do I want to achieve: where: how: when: and with whom.

Timeframe for these changes to occur (even if repeated from question 8 above).

Periodic review needed: yes no

If yes to question 10, what frequency and duration of reviews:

Conseguences if the reguired change does not occur:

Supervisor signature: Date:

Employee signature: Date

Note: By employee’s signature above, receipt of this verbal warning is acknowledged but agreement with the action
taken is not necessarily indicated,

Page 1 of 1




B STORE

FORM:
CREATED:
REVISED:
AUTHORITY:

Y COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES

1001F1

01/06/19
08/21/18-12/04/18
BOCC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

1. Today’s Date:

Written Reprimand

Date of written reprimand;

Name of employee receiving written reprimand:

Department.

Name of employee/supervisor issuing written reprimand:

SO R

7. Departmeni or county policies violated:

Detailed explanation of the performance-related behavior(s) or job-related behavior(s):

8. Details of specific changes that must occur to correct the subject behavior. Details must be

SMART (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, and Timely). This section should

specify: what exactly do I want to achieve; where; how; when; and with whom.

9. Timeframe for these changes to occur (even if repeated from question 8 above).

10. Periodic review needed: ves

na

11. Ifyes to question 10, what frequency and duration of reviews:

12. Consequences if the required change does not occur:

Supervisor signature;

Date:

Employee signature:

Date

Note: By employee s signature above, receipt of this written reprimand is acknowledged but agreement with the

action taken is not necessarily indicated.

Page 1 of 1




STOREY COUNTY Number 1001 F3
Effective Date 01-06-09
PERSONNEL OFFICE Effective -0eos

LAST CHANCE Authority: BOC

County Manager PAW

PERFORMANCE/BEHAVIOR
AGREEMENT
Effective————-this-Agreement-is-entered-into-as-a-condition ef continuing-employment for

WWMMMWM_‘
e { Emiployer)-hereinafier “Employer In-lieu-of terminating-histher employment;
hmpbymgmw{ewﬁam“ﬁmmmppﬂmnmmmdkm&mmmmmm

MphmMemmmmMmemﬂemmemM%mmg
mmmmmmmmww&

+—Employee-will-be-suspended-without-pay-from—— —through— 20--

Z—Employee must-aceess-the services of the Employee-Assistance Program-
&mplmmqmwﬁreﬂmmmmmdedﬁm@%w&mmlmm
treatment-as-certified-by-the-EAP-(optionad--Employee-agreesto-alow-Employer-to-receive
confirmation-that-terms-of treatment-have been-satisfied:

3.—Employee-will-be-expected-te-report-to-work-following suspension-at-histher-regularly
scheduled time-and-date-and be-able-and prepared-to-work—Should-s/he-be-unable-to-report-to
weork.-sthe will- provide-notice-as-soon-as-possible-but not-later-than———(a:m./p-rr. - the
day-of-histher shift—Additionally.- i -for-any reasen-sthe-will-be-unable-to-report-at-the
regularly-scheduled-shift-start-timey s/he-wilHikewise-provide-advance-netice:

4.—Employee witl-follow-all oral-and-writton-policies; procedures;-directives-and-instructions
communicated-from-management-or-the supervisor—Hs/he-disagrees-for-any-reason with
these-directives-sthe-is-required-to-follow-the-direetive-and later-diseuss-histher-coneerns-with

the-appropriate-manager;-except-when-work-safety-is-a-concern—Where-work-safety-is-a
coneerny-sthe-is-required-to-repori-this-issue-to—— ——before-complying-with-the directive:

5 Limployee-understands-that-in-an-effort-to-nssist-him/her-in-making the necessary-performanee
improvements;-histher work-will-be-closely-monitored-and supervised-and-sthe-will-aceept
such-supervision as-a-neeessary-part-of-histher continued-employment:

6-—bimployee-understands-that-if sthe-fails to meet-the conditions-of this- Agreement-sthe will-be
terminated-from-employment—Meeting theconditions-means-that- Employee will demonstrate
eontinued-and-sustained-improvement in-the-areas-of concern-and-that sthe-witl-comply-with
all-the performance-and conduet-standards expected-of all City/County/District-empleyees:

T—Employee understands-that-this Agreementis-not-a-conteact-or-guaraniee of continued
employmentfor-any-specified-period-of time.

8—Employer-may- immediately terminate-Employee’s-employment-for- violations-of-this
Agreement. Thebinion-and Employee-waive-the-right-to-challenge-through-the-grievance

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Last Chance Performance/Behavior Agreement
Page | of 5




prosedure-or-other-means-any termination-or-other-diseipline-imposed-under-the-terms-ef this
Agreement:

19 ﬁmwmu%mmm%mwmm&t&mgﬂn}g-f@mﬂmaw
Employee's-disciplinary-record-will-remain-in-effect-during-and-subsequent-to-the-term-of this
Agreement-i-asecordance-with-the terms of the Employer’s-persennel-policies/collective
bargaining -agreement:

Dated:

(Employer)

cBmplogee) H

Employee-Representative

) - STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES

FORM: 1001F3
CREATED: 01/06/19
REVISED: 08/21/18 ~12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

_COUNTY MANAGER: P

~_ﬁ”eclwe

(Employer) .
In liexof terminating his/her employment, Employee agrees to

refrain from inap ror:a!e dnduct and/or performance standarddas follows:

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Last Chance Performance/Behavior Agreement
Page 2 of 5




STOREY COUNTY Number 1001 F3
Effective Date 01-06-09
PERSONNEL OFFICE Revised: 01-02-18
LAST CHANCE Authority: BOC
PERFORMANCE/BEHAVIOR County Manager PAW
AGREEMENT

Effeetive————this-Agreement-is-entered-into-as-a-cond ition-of-continuing-employment-for
Wéﬁmplqyee)—hemmﬁ%—%mpieyeewmhﬁ&ewesmmwwwnh
——{Employer):-hereinafier—Employer2-In-liew-of terminating histher-employment:
Empieyeeagm to-refrain-from-inappropriate-conduet and/or-performance standards-as-follows:

MWMMemWWeWWmW
mwndm%dwnmmga%mwﬂemﬁm%hmlwm@mﬁ
Fatlure-to-do-se-will-result-in-immediate-termination- of employment.

+—Employee-will-be- suspended-without pay-from——through— 20—

2—Employee-m ustmw&h&wwwesaﬁme«&mplweemmme&mgmm%wﬁhe
Employee requires treatment-as recommended-through-the BAPR - s/he must complete-the
treatiment: W&&MMW&WW@@H@M&W
confirmation-that terms-oftreatment-have been-satisfied-

lﬁmplﬂmwmwbe-e*pee{mmm%mk%wmg—susm a&«hﬂlheﬁega!aﬂy
Wkwﬁk@mwde -notice- maemspesmb%e but not-later-than -————-(awfn—/p.m-}.the
day-of-histher-shift Ad&mmﬂwﬁfwmmwn%w%be«mb&ew%e
regularly-scheduled-shift-start-time,-sthe-will-likewise-provide-advance-netice,

4—Employee-will-follow-all-oral-and written-policies; procedures;-directives,-and-instructions
communicated-from-management-or the-superviser-— s/he-disagrees-for-any-reason-with
these-directives,-she-is-required-to-follow-the directive-and-later diseuss-histher-eoncerns-with
the-appropriate-manager. except-when-work-safety-is-a-concern—Where-work safety-is-a
concern;-sthe-is required-to-report-this-issue-to———before-complying with-the-directive:

«W%Mnd&&a&mme%ﬁ%m%%mmakm&dmewﬁeﬁem%
unpmvenmﬁsmms/heswk—ml%beﬁlesely -rronitored-and-supervised-and-sthe-will-accept
sueh-supervision-as-a-necessary-part-of-histher-continued-employment.

6-—Employee-understands-that-if-sthe-fails-to-meet the conditions of this-Agreement,-sthe-will-be
twmr%ﬁem%m%%t*m&m%tmn%&%m@%%m&mﬁa&e
continued-and sustained-improvement-in-the-areas of concern-and-that-s/he-will-comply-with
all-the performance-and-conduct standards-expeeted-of all-City/County/District-employees:

7. bmployee understands that-this-Agreement-is-not-a-contract or-guarantee of continued
employment-for-any-specified period-of time:

8. —Empleyer-may-immediately-terminate Employee's employment for violations-of-this
Agreement:—The-Union-and-Employee waive-the right-to-challenge through-the grievance

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Last Chance Performance/Behavior Agreement
Page 1 of 5




procedure or other-means-any termination-or-other-discipline-imposed-under-the-terms-of this
Agreement;

L o mpleyee—tmdemmnds and&@:@ee&tha&»slha&a&bemaﬁeﬂﬁdwﬁﬁew%%&&-em@eﬂhs
Agreement-and-that-signing this-Agreement-was-ofhisther-own-free-will-and-with-the-benefit

of-Union-representation:

H0:-Fhis-Agreement-shall-be-valid-and-binding from-the-date-of its-signing for-two (2) years:
Employee's-disciplinary-record-will- remain-in-effeet-during-and-subsequent-to-the-term-of this
Agreement-in-accordance with-the-terms-of the- Employer’s-personnel policies/collective
bargaining-agreement:

Dated:

tEmployer)

Piass
Lich &

tEmployee)
Employee-Representative

, STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES

FORM: 1001F3

CREATED: 01/06/19
REVISED: 08/21/18 -12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOCC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

Last Chance Performance / Behavior Agreement

Effective [date], this Agreement is entered into as a condition of
continuing employment for (Employee s name)

hereinafier “Employee, ” in his/her position as (Employee’s current job tztIe)

with (Employer)
hereinafier, “Employer.” In lieu of terminating his/her employment, Employee agrees to
refrain from inappropriate conduct and/or performance standards as follows:

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
- Last Chance Performance/Behavior Agreement
Page 2 of 5




Employee understands that his/her continued employment is dependent upon him/her
meeling the conditions set forth in this Agreement and demonstrating effective
performance of his/her duties. Failure to do so will result in immediate termination of
employment, subject to all due process rights 10 which the employee would be entitled but
not those denied by this Agreement.

Check all boxes that apply and provide explanation.

O Employee will be suspended without pay from through
20 . (See section 8 below)

O Employee must undergo training and/or professional development. Thai trainin

and/or professional development specifically includes:

O Employee must participate in an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to address

job-related matters and/or consistence with business necessity. Employee agrees to
allow Employer to receive confirmation that terms of the EAP assignment have been

satisfied. The specific job-related matters and/or consistence with business necessity

include:

O Employee must participate in consultation with the Human Resources office and/or
his/her supervisor to improve behavior or performance. Specifically, the employee

will:

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Last Chance Performance/Behavior Agreement
Page 3 of 5




In addition:

1

Employee will be exgected fo report to work following suspensmn (Gf tgpplwable) al
d 1

histher regularly scheduled time and shifi after the assigned sus
and prepared to work. Return to work will occur on; (Date/Time)

Employee will follow all verbal and written policies, procedures, directives, and
instructions communicated from his/her supervisor or the department head, If s/he
disagrees for any reason with these directives, s/he is required to follow the directives
and later discuss his/her concerns with the supervisor or department head, except
when work safety is a concern. Where work safety is a concern, s/he is required to

repord this issue to the supervisor, department head, and Human Resources office

immediately and before complying with the directive.

Employee understands that in an effort to assist him/her in making the necessary

performance improvements, his/her work will be closely monitored and supervised

and s/he will accept such supervision as a necessary part of his/her continued
employment.

1t is understood and agreed that the Employee’s status is “at-will” during the term of

this Agreement and that the Employee can be terminated at any time and for any
reason or for no reason at all, and with no rights given to due process or appeal,

including that which muy be contained in policy or in a collective hargaining
agreement.

Employee understands that this Agreement is not a contract or guarantee of
continued employment for any specified period of time.

The Union (if applicable) and Employee waive all rights set forth in a collective
bargaining agreement and otherwise to challenge through the grievance procedure
or other means any termination or other discipline imposed under the terms of this
Agreement, unless otherwise provided for by law.

Employee understands and agrees that s/he has been afforded 72 hours to consider
this Agreement and that signing this Agreement was of his/her own free will and with
the benefit of representation, if so desired.

This Agreement shall be valid and binding for two years from the date of its signing,

unless a shorter period of time is expressly specified in this Agreement.

Employee’s disciplinary record will remain in effect during the entire duration of this

Agreement. Following the term of this Agreement, the disciplinary record will remain

in effect in accordance with the terms of the Employer’s personnel policies or the
applicable collective bargaining agreement.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Last Chance Performance/Behavior Agreement
Page 4 of 5




Employee’s Department Head:

Date:

Employee s Direct Supervisor (if other than Department Head): Date:
Employee. Date:
Employee Representative(s) (if applicable): Date:
Human Resources Director: Date:

Ce.: Employee’s personnel file

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Last Chance Performance/Behavior Agreement
Page 5 of 5




h - STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES

FORM: 1001G
REVISED: 08/21/18-12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOCC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

Policy Violation Complaint Form

While this information will be shared on a need-to-know basis, Storey County cannot
promise or guarantee confidentiality.

Attach additional pages as needed,

1.

W o™ N AW

Today's Date:
Name of the Complainant:

Department of the Complainant:

Phone Number of the Complainant.

E-mail of the Complainant:

Name of the Accused:

Department of the Accused:

Relationship of the Accused to the Complainant (manager, co-worker, client, etc.):

Phone Number of the Accused:

10. E-mail of the Accused:

11. Date of Incident(s) (If more than one event, please report each event on a separate form and

12.

attach together.);

Where did the specific event occur?

13. Please explain the events that occurred.




14. How did you react to the situation? What action did you take?

15. Did you talk with anyone about the event? Please explain whom and what was shared.

16. Describe the adverse impacts that you believe you have endured as a resull of the event.

17. Were there any witnesses to this specific event? (If yes, please provide their names and other

identifying information such as department, affiliation, etc.)

18. Is there any physical evidence that Supports your complaint? [lf so, please describe or attach

copy of evidence or supporting material.

19. What is your desired outcome from this complaint?

The information provided in this complaint is true and correct 1o the best of my knowledge. [ am
willing to cooperate fully in the investigation of my complaint and provide whatever evidence
Storey County deems relevant.

Complainant’s Signature: Today’s Date:

Please return this form to the Human Resources office.

Page 2 of 2




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/04/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min,

Agenda: Consent {x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including Policy 302 Source of Candidates, Open Recruitment, Promotion,
Transfer, and Eligible List to Vacancy Positions; Policy 303 Job Announcements; and Policy
304 Applications, Eligibility of Reduction of Applicants.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I [commissioner] motion to approve
updates to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures including Policy 302 Source
of Candidates, Open Recruitment, Promotion, Transfer, and Eligible List to Vacancy Positions;
Policy 303 Job Announcements; and Policy 304 Applications, Eligibility of Reduction of
Applicants.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4, Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis.
The Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur
every five years and otherwise as needed.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosed markup policy updates.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
—aZrDepartment Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued Agenda Item No.

[ SOy — |

Page 1 of 1




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 302
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 08-19/08
REVISED: 01-20-09/ 08-04-15
12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Source of Candidates; Open Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and Eligible
List to Vacant Positions

1. PURPOSE

employees-to-vacant-pesitions: It is recognized that the role of the department is critical in the
hiring process and that utilizing the subject matter expertise of those in the hiring department
will help ensure the selection of the most appropriately qualified candidate for each position.
Therefore, the county will involve department management in the recruitment, examination, and
selection process.

2. POLICY

2.1 Filling Positions

Regular positions may be filled by applicants selected from an existing eligible applicant pool. If
no eligible applicant pool has been established or the pool contains no qualified applicants, the
employer may initiate a recruitment (promotional from within or open to outside the
organization) to create or renew an eligible applicant pool. Applications from present employees
may be considered for open positions before non-employee applicants are considered. For open
recruitments, the position vacancy announcement will be posted internally and externally.

The general policy of the county is to fill vacant or new positions from within the organization
when possible, depending upon qualifications and interest of existing regular full-time, part-time,
and casual employees. Employees are encouraged to apply for any vacancy for which they may
qualify.

Promotional recruitments limit consideration _of applicants to qualified employees currently
working within a single department of the employer (departmental/promotions) or to qualified
emplovees currently working within the employer (employer-wide/promotional). These internal
recruitments are limited to employees in regular part-time and regular full-time status.
Preference may be given to post-probationary employees with 12 or more months of service to

the employer.

When deciding what type of recruitment to initiate, the employer will consider such factors as the
impact of the decision on the employer’s efforts to have a workforce which is representative of:

a. The local population;
b. The qualifications and level of responsibility required by the position;

c. The extent to which the knowledge and skills required for the position can readily be
acquired on the job;

d. The qualifications of employees potentially available for placement on a promotional list;
The effects on retention of present employees; and
f The likelihood of attracting well-qualified outside applicants.

©

Page 1 of 4



After the employer has determined _how it will announce the vacancy, it will develop a
recruitment plan by determining the applicant pool it wishes to target and in what geographic
region it will advertise; determining what types of media (e.g.. internet, newspapers, trade
journals) will be used to advertise and ensuring outreach efforts reach diverse applicant groups.

2.2  Eligible Applicant Pool

a. The employer may maintain eligible applicant pools consisting of the names of applicants
eligible for hire based on the recruitment process. While generally used to fill a single
position, eligible applicant pools may be used to fill additional positions which occur
within 6 months of the establishment of the pool. Eligible applicant pools for law
enforcement and fire protection positions may be maintained for up to 12 months when

published aceerdinghy-as such.

b. Any person on an appropriate reinstatement list shall be considered for employment in
accordance with the employer’s established layoff policy.

c. An applicant will be removed from the eligible applicant pool if the applicant submits a
written request to be removed, or if the applicant fails to respond within an allotted time
period to instructions regarding participation in an examination or selection interview. An
eligible applicant who refuses an offer of employment will be removed from the eligible
applicant pool unless the specific circumstances of the refusal warrant otherwise as
determined by the employer.

Page 2 of 4




2.3 Transfers

a. An internal transfer is a lateral change of an _employee from one position to another
position in the same class or to a different class in the same salary range.

b. Internal transfersi=and promotions do not change the employee’s date of hire. However,
the anniversary date for future performance evaluations and merit salary increase
considerations shall become the date of transfer-er promotion.

2.4 Scope

It is recognized that the role of the department is critical in the hiring process and that utilizing
the subject matter expertise of those in the hiring department will help ensure the selection of the
most appropriately qualified candidate for each position. Therefore, the employer will involve
department management in the recruitment, examination, and selection process.

2.5 Source of Applicant

Regular positions may be filled by applicants selected from existing eligible lists. If no eligible
list exists, the employer may initiate a recruitment (open or promotional) to create an eligible
list. Applications from present employees may be considered for open positions before non-
emplovee applicants are considered. For open recruitments, the position vacancy announcement
will be posted internally and externally.

Promotional recruitments limit consideration of applicants to_qualified employees currently
working within a single department of the employer (departmental/promotions) or to qualified
employees currently working within the employer (employer-wide/promotional).

When deciding what type of recruitment to initiate, the employer will consider such factors as the
impact of the decision on the employer’s efforts to have a workforce which_is representative of:

The local population;

The qualifications and level of responsibility required by the position;

c. The extent to which the knowledge and skills required for the position can readily be
acquired on the job;

d. The qualifications of emplovees potentially available for placement on a promotional list;

e. The effects on retention of present employees; and

f The likelihood of attracting well-qualified outside applicants.

After the employer has determined how it will announce the vacancy, it will develop a
recruitment plan by determining the applicant pool they wish to target and in what geographic

Page 3 of 4




region they will advertise; determining what types of media (e.g., internet. newspapers, trade
journals) will be used to advertise and ensuring outreach efforts reach diverse applicant groups.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 4 of 4




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 303

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 8-19-08
REVISED: 1-20-09/08-04-15/12-04-18
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Job Announcements

1. PURPOSE

i d1s dinc-announein neie eular g - Prior to
initiating recrultment the employer should verlﬁ1 the essentzal job functzons identify knowledge,
skills, and abilities needed_and determine what education, experience, and credentials will
provide the desired knowledge, skills, and abilities.

2. POLICY

2.1 Announcement

a. The employer will announce internally or externally all vacant employment positions. An
announcement may be for the purpose of filling a single vacancy or to establish an
eligible applicant pool (see Policy 302) for one or more vacancies in the same job class.

Position vacancies will be publicized to allow potentially qualified and interested
individuals to learn of employment opportunities and to encourage applications
applicants from diverse backgrounds to apply.

The employer may request an external posting for which any person within and outside
the organization may apply, or an internal posting for which only existing regular full-

time, part-tlme and casual county employees wrth—at—}east—Q—meﬂths—ef—seﬁaee—aﬁd—ne

: . a; d—may_apply. Preference may be
glven to post—probatlonarv emplovees wzth 1 2 or more months of service to the employer.

Recruitment announcements will always be posted on bulletin boards within each
occupied county office building for a period of no less than 15 calendar days prior to the
last date for application or the date scheduled for testing, whichever is earlier and in such
other places as the employer feels appropriate.

The announcement will normally include the following:

i.  Title, pay range, grade, and FLSA exempt or non-exempt status of the vacant
position.
ii.  Nature of the work to be performed, including the essential job functions.
iii.  Minimum and/or eligibility requirements as well as any preferred qualifications,
including education, license or certifications, employment, training, experience

criteria, knowledge, skills, abilities and whether equivalent factors will be
recognized.

iv.  Whether the advertisement is an internal organization-wide only posting,
department only posting (and what department), or external posting;

vi.  Whether county or other seniority or length of service will be considered a
factor, and if so, what weight will be given to such consideration in measuring or
rating applicants.

Page 1 of 2




vii.  Manner of applying (where, how and deadlines).

viii. ~ Whether there will be competitive testing, and if so, the date, time and place of
the test; the nature and scope of the test subject matter; and any reference
material or sources upon which the test is based.

ix.  Whether the test will consist of written, oral, and or physical demonstration
components or other appropriate screening mechanisms.

X. A declaration that the employer is an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)
employer, and Americans with Disabilities (ADA) accommodations are
available.

xi.  The dates of the posting.

b. Regular employees will be released from work, on paid status, to take an examination and
participate in an interview for Storey County positions held during their scheduled work
time. Casual employees will not be paid for time taken to participate in an examination
or interview.

2.2 Application Forms and Files

Applications for employment must be made in writing on prescribed forms (reference: Employer
Employment Application). Applicants must complete a separate application form for each
vacancy unless the job announcement indicates otherwise. The employer may also require
resumes, completed supplemental questionnaires, and other evidence of education, training,
experience, or other lawful requirements. Applications and other materials submitted become
part of the application file and the property of the employer.

2.3  Signatures

Applications must be signed by the applicant. Only original completed applications with the
applicant’s signature will be accepted. Faxed and email copies of the application form will not be
accepted.

2.4  Application Filing Periods

a. Recruitment announcements will specify the application filing period. Applications must
be received or postmarked by the date specified. The filing period may end on a specific
date and/or may allow acceptance of applications until a sufficient number of
appropriately qualified candidates have applied. The Administrative Officer and/or
Personnel Director, consulting with department management, will determine when
sufficient applications have been received.

b. Application periods will end at the close of the business day or at the specific time stated
on the recruitment announcement. A job announcement may be closed at any time and
for any reason as determined by the employer.

¢. An application period may be ended when no job openings are anticipated or for other
reasons as determined by the employer.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 2 of 2

T T




Policy 304

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 304
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 8-19-08

REVISED: 1-20-09/10-17-17/12-04-18
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: __ PAW

SUBJECT: Applications, Eligibility or Reduction of Applicants

PURPOSE: This policy is designed to establish guidelines for the employer to disqualify
applications received.

POLICY: A. General Requirements for Filing of Applications.

1.

Application Forms. Applications for employment must be made in writing and
submitted to the Human Resources office on a prescribed application form.

Multiple Vacancies. Applicants must complete a separate application form for
each vacancy unless the job announcement indicates otherwise.

Required Submittals. The employer may also require résumés, completed
supplemental questionnaires, and other evidence of education, training,
experience, or other lawful requirements, including licenses and certifications.

Signatures. Applications must be signed by the applicant. An electronic
signature is acceptable for applications submitted through the employer’s
online application and portal, unless the employer does not maintain an online
application and portal.

Ownership. Applications and supplementary materials submitted become the
property of the employer.

B. _Application Filing Period

Recruitment announcements will specify the application filing period. Applications must

be received or postmarked by the due date specified. Application periods will end at the

close of the business day or at the specific time stated on the recruitment announcement.

A job announcement may be cancelled at any time and for any reason as determined by

the employer.

C. _ Eligibility of Applicants

An applicant may be disqualified from further participation in the recruitment process
and/or from placement on an eligible list by the employer for material reasons, including,
but not limited to, those listed below:

1.

The application does not indicate the candidate possesses the qualifications
required for the position.

The application is not fully, truthfully, legibly, and/or neatly completed.

The applicant for employment as a peace officer, firefighter, or a position
which entails physical access to computer and/or equipment used to access the
Nevada Criminal Justice Information System or the National Crime
Information Center may be disqualified for prior convictions that relate to the
position for which s/he is being considered as provided for in NRS 245, NRS
268, or NRS 269 as applicable.

The applicant has been discharged from or resigned in lieu of dismissal from
any prior employment for any cause which would constitute a reason for
dismissal from employment with the employer.

The applicant does not appear at the time and place designated for an
examination or interview.

Page 1 of 2




Policy 304
6. The applicant is a former employee of the employer who, absent a compelling
reason, quit without reasenable notice.

7. Candidate’s-Applicant’s failure to possess a valid license, certificate, permit,
etc. If a prospective eandidate applicant for a position cannot obtain the
required license, certificate, permit, or occupational certification required for
the job, s/he will not be given any further employment consideration for the
subject position. Any job offer, offer of promotion, or offer of transfer
previously made will be withdrawn.

8. The applicant is a former employee whose performance evaluations indicated
below acceptable performance and/or behavioral problems, such as
insubordination, dishonesty, leave abuse, or excessive tardiness.

B—Reduetion—of-Applicant-Pool D. Limitation of Application Pool to Most
Qualified

The employer may determine at any point in the recruitment process that only those
applicants who are deemed most qualified for the vacancy being filled will continue to be
considered.

C. Preference for Military Veterans

Preference may be given in the hiring process to veterans of the United States Armed
Forces and Nevada National Guard who are qualified for the subject position.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 2 of 2




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1.

Title: For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $633,702.44 and
accounts payable in the amount of $1,110,153.66.

Recommended motion: Approve as part of the consent agenda.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Claims are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:
_@ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ 1 Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 10/29/2018-11/11/2018

Packet: PRPKT00033 - 2018-11-16 Payroll cw
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 2 1,118.06
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 129 218,608.54
Total T 131 219,726.60

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer

11/14/2018 4:18:18 P\ Page 8 of 8




Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 10/29/2018-11/11/2018

Packet: PRPKT00035 - 2018-11-16 FIRE jm/tp
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 2 4,641.30
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
P?rAect“Dggosits 35 87,657.52
Total U Ty 1 92,208.82

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commi;sners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer

Page 4 of 4




Payroll Check Register
Report Summary

Pay Period: 10/15/2018-10/28/2018

Packet: PRPKT00018 - 2018-11-02 Payroll cw
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 5 2,085.38
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 217 314,177.67
Total 222 316,263.05

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer




Payroll Check Register
Report Summary

Pay Period: 10/15/2018-10/28/2018

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 2 5,413.97
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 0 0.00
Total Ty 541397

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer




Check Register

Packet: APPKT00100 - 2018-11-09 Payable Process AP cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

10050 ADVANCED DATA SYSTEMS INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 4,156.00 93734
405020 ALL COMSTOCK LLC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 8,000.00 93735
405279 ALPINE SIGNS INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 321.50 93736
100135 ALSCO INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 167.38 93737
405421 American Wealth Management 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 5.00 93738
404935 AMES CONSTRUCTION 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 397,246.42 93739
404420 ARCADIA PUBLISHING INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 293.85 93740
405268 ARGENTUM PARTNERS, LTD 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 6,797.45 93741
99663 AT&T MOBILITY Ii LLC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 40.43 93742
405113 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 210.00 93743
405380 Barkdull-Spencer, Elaine 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 8,020.94 93744
405103 BATTLE BORN CONSULTING SE 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 11,354.00 93745
405278 Bean, James 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 540.00 93746
405418 Black, Daniel 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 57.00 93747
405280 Bobula, James Clark 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 1,430.00 93748
404634 BRANDON, RUSSELL D 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 60.00 93749
100476 BURTON'S FIRE INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 431.89 93750
405260 CAD, Inc. 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 75.00 93751
100475 CAPITAL CITY AUTO PARTS 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 59.52 93752
404206 CAPITAL SANITATION CO 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 157.66 93753
404206 CAPITAL SANITATION CO 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 548.64 93754
99720 CASELLE INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 202.00 93755
403268 CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 1.50 93756
403635 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 38.82 93757
404798 CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 2 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 78.81 93758
405134 CMC TIRE INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 1,303.25 93759
100655 COMMUNITY CHEST INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 15,966.00 93760
99652 COMSTOCK CHRONICLE (VC) 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 4,094.02 93761
404060 CREATIVE CONCEPTS MEDIA + 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 1,450.00 93762
404060 CREATIVE CONCEPTS MEDIA + 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 450.00 93763
404060 CREATIVE CONCEPTS MEDIA + 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 450.00 93764
404060 CREATIVE CONCEPTS MEDIA + 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 450.00 93765
404060 CREATIVE CONCEPTS MEDIA + 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 450.00 93766
405354 Crisis Collections Management, LLC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 679.06 93767
404466 DAIOHS USA INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 359.45 93768
405408 Dodge, Kelly 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 250.00 93769
403576 DOMINION VOTING SYSTEMS Inc. 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 44.00 93770
405417 Duncan, Michael Geoffrey 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 381.61 93771
404547 ELLIOTT AUTO.SUPPLY INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 2,212.35 93772
403050 ENGLISH MAILING SERVICE 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 920.00 93773
405415 Falcon, Shannon 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 500.00 93774
100775 FARMER BROS CO 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 66.07 93775
403216 FARR WEST ENGINEERING 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 79,154.41 93776
404509 FASTENAL COMPANY 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 94,71 93777
101485 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 811.82 93778
403975 FERRELLGAS LP 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 1,736.03 93779
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 222.13 93780
404640 GLADDING, EDWARD A. 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 720.00 93781
404896 GOLDEN GATE/SET PETROLEUM 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 1,909.62 93782
404508 GRANSBERY, TOM 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 337.50 93783
103470 GREAT BASIN TERMITE & PES 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 465.00 93784
404394 GTP INVESTMENTS LLC 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 410.06 93785
404778 HAT, LTD 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 2,036.16 93786
103218 HD SUPPLY CONST SUPPLY LT 11/09/2018 Regular 0.00 98.91 93787
11/8/2018 6:31:53 PM Page 1 of 4




Check Register

Vendor Number Vendor Name

102983 HD SUPPLY FACIL MAINT LTD
404980 HIGH SIERRA BUSINESS
404366 HOMETOWN HEALTH

404328 INTERCEPT INC

403834 IT1 SOURCE LLC

404583 JAMES C MCLENNAN MDPC
103317 JBP LLC

405326 Jensen Enterprises Inc

405420 Joy Engineering

103057 JUDGE EDWARD R JOHNSON
405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO
405224 KENNETH L DORR JR SOLE M
405422 Kornmayer, Jay & Tamara
404644 LA VAKE, BARBARA S.

404356 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES IN
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC
405411 Lotus Radio Corp

404363 MA LABORATORIES INC
404691 MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CTR
404899 MCCARTHY, TIMOTHY

103126 MEDICAL PRIORITY DISPATCH
404088 METRO OFFICE SOLUTIONS IN
403839 MORRIS, ROBERT T

100471 MOUND HOUSE TRUE VALUE
102575 NAPA AUTO & TRUCK PARTS
405412 Neisinger, Matthew

101228 NEV ADMIN BLDG & GROUNDS
101226 NEV COMPTROLLER

101226 NEV COMPTROLLER

101218 NEV DIV OF HEALTH BUREAU
101278 NEVADA POWER PRODUCTS,INC
101362 Nextel of California

404163 NORTON CONSULTING LLC
405352 Ocampo, Julie Lozada

402926 OFFSITE DATA DEPOT, LLC
103220 ON THE SIDE GRAPHICS & Si
405127 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES
404746 OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
404556 OUTFRONT MEDIA LLC

404076 OVERHEAD FIRE PROTECTION
405413 Polzin, Thomas

403329 PROTECTION DEVICES INC
102589 PUBLIC AGENCY COMPENSATIO
103221 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT
100348 PURCELL TIRE & RUBBER CO
404398 RAD STRATEGIES INC

404398 RAD STRATEGIES INC

404398 RAD STRATEGIES INC

405221 RAIL EVENTS INC.

102198 RAY MORGAN COMPANY (MO)
102388 REDWOOD TOXICOLOGY LAB,IN
404863 REFUSE, INC

403339 RENO GREEN LANDSCAPING IN
101520 RENO PAINT MART

403944 RENO TAHOE SPECIALTY INC
404780 REPORTING SYSTEMS, INC
405095 ROBERTS, BOBB! JEAN

10026 RUPPCO INC

101369 SAFEGUARD WEB & GRAPHICS
101210 SBC GLOBAL SERVICES INC
405320 Ses Nevada, LLC

Payment Date
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018
11/09/2018

Payment Type

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

Discount Amount

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Payment Amount

252.08
6,018.15
15,296.23
240.00
57,811.13
500.00
6,856.17
250.00
33,550.72
457.32
15.92
1,920.00
40.00
150.00
32.67
2,300.00
500.00
442.95
1,666.67
50.00
160.00
528.10
6,200.00
224.18
74.93
500.00
6,235.69
9,373.83
1,135.64
40.00
78.67
2,057.80
1,287.20
448.00
208.28
125.00
191.58
239.10
644.68
720.00
500.00
715.00
140,913.26
2,189.68
85.55
6,000.00
225.00
1,125.00
50,158.89
21.73
456.00
355.15
373.00
741.68
138.00
1,236.00
297.44
184.00
175.00
5,009.94
1,289.59

Packet: APPKT00100-2018-11-09 Payable Process AP cw

Number
93788
93789
93790
93791
93792
93793
93794
93795
93796
93797
93798
93799
93800
93801
93802
93803
93804
93805
93806
93807
93808
93809
93810
93811
93812
93813
93814
93815
93816
93817
93818
93819
93820
93821
93822
93823
93824
93825
93826
93827
93828
93829
93830
93831
93832
93833
93834
93835
93836
93837
93838
93839
93840
93841
93842
93843
93844
93845
93846
93847
93848

11/8/2018 6:31:53 PM

Page 2 of 4




s

Check Register Packet: APPKT00100-2018-11-09 Payable Process AP cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 11/2018 994,663.41
994,663.41

11/8/2018 6:31:53 PM Page 4 of 4




Check Register

Packet: APPKT00108 - 2018-11-9 WF BDrft jm

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
404295 WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD 11/09/2018 Bank Draft 0.00 16,323.47 DFT0000017
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment

Regular Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 16 1 0.00 16,323.47

EFT's 1] 0 0.00 0.00

16 1 0.00 16,323.47

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer

L1/9/2018 2:53:46 PM

Page ! of 2




Check Register

Packet: APPKT00114 - 2018-11-16 Payroll cw

By Check Number
o
Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
300003 AFLAC 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 1,091.01 93892
300008 AFSCME Union 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 569.00 93893
300001 Colonial Life & Accident 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 111.69 93894
404704 DVM INSURANCE AGENCY 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 105.72 93895
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 60.55 93896
404366 HOMETOWN HEALTH 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 6,565.88 93897
300011 Nevada State Treasurer 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 2.00 93898
300004 Pacific Life Insurance Co 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 50.00 93899
103221 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT 11/16/2018 Reguiar 0.00 74,726.01 93900
103221 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 523.96 93901
103221 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 4,974.20 93902
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT S 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 46.66 93903
102441 ST CO SHERIFF 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 692.91 933904
300010 State Collection & Disbursement Un 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 116.89 93905
300006 Storey Co Fire Fighters Assoc 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 1,200.00 93906
405076 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INS CO 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 425.28 93907
300007 USAA 529 College Savings Plans 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 50.00 93908
404639 VOYA RETIREMENT INS 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 7,334.00 93909
300005 Washington National Ins 11/16/2018 Regular 0.00 521.02 93910
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment

Regular Checks 37 19 0.00 99,166.78

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks o] [o] 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00

EFT's ] 0 0.00 0.00

"""" 37 19 0.00 99,166.78

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of time required: 5 min

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and consideration to approve Resolution #18-520 honoring Mark Osmer and
Carol Maley, with the Virginia City RV Park, as the 2018 Storey County business of the
year

2. Recommended motion; to approve A resolution #18-520 honoring Mark Osmer and Carol
Maley with the Virginia City RV Park as the 2018 Storey County business of the year
3. Prepared by: Deny Dotson
Department: VCTC Telephone: 775-847-7500
4. Staff summary: Knowing and appreciating what it takes to start a business in today’s
competitive climate, Storey County each year recognizes and awards a business or
organization that has shown significant achievements or have made significant

contributions to the residents of Virginia City and or Storey County.

5. Supporting materials: attached

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X Department Head Department Name: VCTC
_X__ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
[ Sy -

Agenda Item No. 8




RESOLUTION NO:  18-520

A RESOLUTION HONORING
MARK OSMER AND CAROL MALEY WITH THE VIRGINIA CITY RV PARK
AS THE 2018 STOREY COUNTY BUSINESS OF THE YEAR

WHEREAS THIS AWARD WILL BE GIVEN TO A STOREY COUNTY BUSINESS
OR ORGANIZATION THAT HAS SHOWN SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTIONS
TOWARDS THE ECQ-NOMICSTABILTY IN.STOREY COUNTY

WHEREAS MARK OSMER AND CAROL MALEY WITH THE VIRGINIA CITY RV
PARK HAVE SH@WN 'EXTRAORDINARY ENTREPRENEURSHIP, MARKET
INNOVATION; STRONG COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

TOWARDS FULFILLING A NEEDED SERVICE IN VIRGINIA CITY

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN TO ALL PRESENT THAT THE BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY DO HEREBY RESOLVE TO
COMMEND AND HONOR MARK OSMER AND CAROL MALEY WITH THE
VIRGINIA CITY RV PARK FOR THEIR CONTINUED AND EXEMPLARY

SERVICE TO THE PEOPLE OF STOREY COUNTY

PASSED AND AﬁbPTED THIS 4™ DAY OF DECEMBER 2018 BY THE
FOLLOWING UNANIMOUS VOTE

By: By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman Lance Gilman, Vice Chairman
By: By:
Jack McGuffey, Commissioner Vanessa Stephens, Clerk / Treasurer

Date:




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: For possible action: consideration and possible action on second reading of ordinance no. 18-299
creating the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter
278C; considering all complaints, protests, objections and comments to the Area and the undertaking, ordering
an undertaking relating to the tax increment area; creating the tax increment account for the undertaking; and
ratifying action taken by County officers toward the undertaking and the tax increment area.

2. Recommended motion: I, Commissioner (name), move to approve on second reading ordinance no. 18-299
creating the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter
278C; ordering an undertaking relating to the tax increment area; creating the tax increment account for the
undertaking; and ratifying action taken by County officers toward the undertaking and the tax increment area.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey County, Nevada (the
"County") received a request from Silver Slate LLC, Comstock TRIC Associates, LLC, Supernap Reno, LLC,
Tesla, Inc. (f/k/a Tesla Motors, Inc.), 1200 USA Pkwy LLC and Emerald City Empire, LLC (collectively, the
"Owners") to order an undertaking pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Chapter 278C (the "Act") for
a water project as defined in NRS 278C.140 (the "Undertaking"). On September 5, 2018, the State of Nevada's
Interim Finance Committee approved the Undertaking, which constitutes a natural resources project pursuant to
the Act. On October 29, 2018, the Board adopted a resolution ordering the County's engineer to prepare
preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to pay the costs of the Undertaking, and Farr West
Engineering, as the County's engineer, prepared such preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to pay
the costs of the Undertaking. After review of the preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items placed on
file with the County Clerk, the Board provisionally ordered the Undertaking by adoption of a resolution on
October 29, 2018. A public hearing on the Undertaking was held on November 19, 2018.

This ordinance authorizes the creation of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area (the "Area"),
considers all complaints, protests, objections and comments to the Area and the Undertaking and orders the
Undertaking. The tax increment revenues will pay, in whole or in part, the costs of such an Undertaking, as
more fully provided in the NRS Chapter 278C, specifically NRS 278C.150, 278C.157 and NRS 278C.250,
including (i) payments under contracts with the Owners to reimburse the Owners for costs incurred by the
Owners in connection with the Undertaking, and (ii) advances by the County for administrative costs associated
with administering the Area, and all appurtenances and incidentals necessary, useful or desirable, including real
and other property therefor, which is more particularly described (with all segment lengths to be current
approximations subject to minor adjustment). This ordinance sets forth the boundaries of the Area, details of
the Undertaking and creates the "Tax Increment Account" for the Undertaking.

48963006




S. Supporting materials: Bill No. 110 Ordinance No. 18-299

6. Fiscal impact: Yes Comptroller:

Tax increment revenues generated and collected in the Area will consist of taxes levied upon taxable property in
the Area each year, any tax on the sale or use of tangible personal property and any tax imposed pursuant to
NRS 363A.130 and 363B.110 by or for the benefit of the State of Nevada, the County and any public body,
which must be allocated, divided and disposed of as provided in NRS 278C.250. The estimated amount of the
tax proceeds to be credited annually to the tax increment account pertaining to paying the costs of the
Undertaking during the duration of the proposed Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area is
anticipated to range from $2,000 in 2020 to $33,500,000 in 2039.

7. Legal review required: Yes
KL - District Attorney
KF — Bond Counsel

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

= —

Agenda Item No.

48963006




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action: consideration and possible action on a resolution no. 18-522 approving the
cooperative agreement between the County and TRI General Improvement District relating to the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center Tax Increment Area subject to minor changes, if any, as are approved by the County Manager.

2. Recommended motion: I, Commissioner (name), move to approve resolution no. 18-522 approving the
cooperative agreement between the County and TRI General Improvement District relating to the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center Tax Increment Area.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey County, Nevada (the
"County") received a request from Silver Slate LLC, Comstock TRIC Associates, LLC, Supernap Reno, LLC,
Tesla, Inc. (f/k/a Tesla Motors, Inc.), 1200 USA Pkwy LLC and Emerald City Empire, LLC (collectively, the
"Owners") to order an undertaking pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Chapter 278C (the "Act") for
a water project as defined in NRS 278C.140 (the "Undertaking"). On September 5, 2018, the State of Nevada's
Interim Finance Committee approved the Undertaking, which constitutes a natural resources project pursuant to
the Act. On October 29, 2018, the Board adopted a resolution ordering the County's engineer to prepare
preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to pay the costs of the Undertaking, and Farr West
Engineering, as the County's engineer, prepared such preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to pay
the costs of the Undertaking. After review of the preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items placed on
file with the County Clerk, the Board provisionally ordered the Undertaking by adoption of a resolution on
October 29, 2018. A public hearing on the Undertaking was held on November 19, 2018.

On December 4, 2018, the Board is scheduled to adopt an ordinance (the "Creation Ordinance") to create the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area (the "Area"), order the Undertaking and create the “Tax
Increment Account” for the Undertaking. The tax increment revenues will pay, in whole or in part, the costs of
such an Undertaking, as more fully provided in NRS Chapter 278C, specifically NRS 278C.150, 278C.157 and
NRS 278C.250, including (i) advances by the County for administrative costs associated with administering the
Area, and (ii), payments under contracts with the Owners to reimburse the Owners for costs incurred by the
Owners in connection with the Undertaking, and all appurtenances and incidentals necessary, useful or
desirable, including real and other property therefor, which is more particularly described in the Creation
Ordinance (with all segment lengths to be current approximations subject to minor adjustment).

This resolution approves the cooperative agreement between the County and TRI General Improvement District
regarding the inspection and ownership of the Undertaking. The cooperative agreement, in substantially final
form, has been placed on file with the County Clerk subject to minor changes, if any, as are approved by the
County Manager. The cooperative agreement is authorized and permitted by NRS 277.045.

S. Supporting materials:  Resolution No. 18-522

49215282

\(




6. Fiscal impact: No Comptroller:

7. Legal review required: Yes
KL — District Attorney
KF — Bond Counsel

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.

49215282




Summary — A resolution approving the Cooperative Agreement between the County and TRI
General Improvement District relating to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax
Increment Area.

RESOLUTION NO. 18-522
(of Storey County, Nevada)

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE COOPERATIVE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND TRI
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT RELATING TO
THE TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER TAX
INCREMENT AREA SUBJECT TO MINOR CHANGES, IF
ANY, AS ARE APPROVED BY THE COUNTY MANAGER.

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey
County, Nevada (the "County") received a request from Silver Slate LLC, Comstock TRIC
Associates, LLC, Supernap Reno, LLC, Tesla, Inc. (f/k/a Tesla Motors, Inc.), 1200 USA Pkwy
LLC and Emerald City Empire, LLC (collectively, the "Owners") to order an undertaking
pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Chapter 278C (the "Act") for a water project as
defined in NRS 278C.140 (the "Undertaking") and to pay with tax increment revenues, in whole
or in part, the costs of such an Undertaking, as more fully provided in the Act and the ordinance
creating the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area (the "Creation Ordinance" and
the "Area," respectively), specifically NRS 278C.150, 278C.157 and NRS 278C.250, including
(1) advances by the County for administrative costs associated with administering the Area; and
(i1) payments under contracts with the Owners to reimburse the Owners for costs incurred by the
Owners in connection with the Undertaking, and all appurtenances and incidentals necessary,
useful or desirable, including real and other property therefor, which is more particularly
described in the Creation Ordinance (with all segment lengths to be current approximations
subject to minor adjustment); and

WHEREAS, the Undertaking constitutes a "natural resources project” pursuant to
NRS 278C.075(4); and

WHEREAS, on September 5, 2018, the Interim Finance Committee approved the
Undertaking in accordance with NRS 278C.157; and

WHEREAS, the Board has, by a resolution previously adopted on October 29,
2018 (the "Provisional Order Resolution"), provisionally ordered the Undertaking related to a tax

increment area to be formed pursuant to the Act; and




WHEREAS, the Board held a public hearing on Monday, November 19, 2018, on
the advisability of the Undertaking provisionally ordered and the proposed tax increment area
related thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Board considered, overruled and denied each and every written
or oral protest or objection made at the public hearing; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Creation Ordinance, the Board created the Area,
ordered the Undertaking and created the tax increment account for the Undertaking (the "Tax
Increment Account"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 278C.157(1)(d), the County intends to enter into a
reimbursement agreement with the Owners pursuant to which the County agrees to pay certain
tax increment revenues from the Tax Increment Account to the Owners for costs incurred by
such Owners in connection with the Undertaking; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 277.045, the County intends to enter into a
cooperative agreement with TRI General Improvement District regarding the inspection and
ownership of the Undertaking (the "Cooperative Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Cooperative Agreement is on file with the County Clerk; and

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the Cooperative Agreement on file with the
County Clerk and has found such Cooperative Agreement to be satisfactory.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF STOREY, IN THE STATE OF NEVADA:

Section 1. As authorized by NRS 277.045, the form, terms and provisions of
the Cooperative Agreement are hereby approved in substantially the form thereof on file with the
County Clerk, with only such changes therein as are not inconsistent herewith and are approved
by the officers of the County executing the same. The officers of the County are hereby
authorized to enter into, execute and deliver the Cooperative Agreement and the execution and
delivery of the same shall constitute conclusive evidence of the County's approval thereof in
accordance with the terms hereof, .

Section 2. The officers of the County be, and they hereby are, authorized to
take all action necessary to effectuate the provisions of this resolution.

Section 3. All actions, proceedings and matters previously taken, had and

done by the County and the officers of the County (not inconsistent with the provisions of this

2.




resolution) concerning the Area and the Undertaking hereby are, ratified, approved and
confirmed. This resolution does not obligate the County to enter into the Cooperative
Agreement.

Section 4. All bylaws, orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with
this resolution, are repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be
construed to revive any bylaw, order, or resolution, or part thereof, previously repealed.

Section 5. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this resolution
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,
paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this resolution.

Section 6. The Board has determined and does hereby declare that this
resolution shall be in effect upon its passage in accordance with law.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS December 4, 2018.

[SEAL]

Attest:
Chairman
Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

County Clerk




STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )

I am the duly appointed, qualified and acting County Clerk of Storey County (the
"County"), Nevada, and in the performance of my duties as County Clerk and ex officio Clerk of
its Board of County Commissioners (the "Board"), do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at
a regular meeting of the Board held on December 4, 2018.

2. The adoption of the Resolution was duly moved and seconded and the
Resolution was adopted by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board as
follows:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:
Those Absent:

Those Abstaining:

3. The members of the Board were present at such meeting and voted on the
passage of such Resolution as set forth above.

4. The resolution was approved and authenticated by the signature of the
Chairman of the Board, sealed with the County seal, attested by the Clerk and recorded in the
minutes of the Board.

5. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of the
meeting. Public notice of the meeting was given and the meeting was held and conducted in full
compliance with the provisions of NRS 241.020. A copy of the notice of meeting was posted not
later than 9:00 a.m. at least 3 working days in advance of the meeting at:

(i) Virginia City Post Office

(i1) Storey County Courthouse

(ili)  Virginia City Fire Station

(iv)  Virginia City Highlands Fire Station
(v) Lockwood Fire Station




6. A copy of the notice was posted on the County's website and on the State
of Nevada's official website no later than 9:00 a.m. on the third working day prior to the meeting.

7. A copy of the notice was given to each person, if any, who has requested
notice of the meetings of the Board in the same manner in which notice is required to be given to
a member of the Board. Such notice, if mailed, was delivered to the postal service no later than
9:00 a.m. on the third working day prior to the meeting.

8. Upon request, the Board provides at no charge, at least one copy of the
agenda for its public meetings, any proposed Resolution which will be discussed at the public
meeting, and any other supporting materials provided to the Board for an item on the agenda,
except for certain confidential materials and materials pertaining to closed meetings, as provided
by law.

9. A copy of the notice so given of the meeting of the Board held on
December 4, 2018 is attached to this certificate as Exhibit A.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on December 4, 2018.

County Clerk




EXHIBIT A

(Attach copy of posted notice)




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

~.

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action: consideration and possible action on a resolution no. 18-521 approving the
reimbursement agreement among the County and all owners of property in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
Tax Increment Area subject to minor changes, if any, as are approved by the County Manager.

2. Recommended motion: I, Commissioner (name), move to approve resolution no. 18-521 approving the
reimbursement agreement among the County and all owners of property in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
Tax Increment Area.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey County, Nevada (the
"County") received a request from Silver Slate LLC, Comstock TRIC Associates, LLC, Supernap Reno, LLC,
Tesla, Inc. (f/k/a Tesla Motors, Inc.), 1200 USA Pkwy LLC and Emerald City Empire, LLC (collectively, the
"Owners") to order an undertaking pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Chapter 278C (the "Act") for
a water project as defined in NRS 278C.140 (the "Undertaking"). On September 5, 2018, the State of Nevada's
Interim Finance Committee approved the Undertaking, which constitutes a natural resources project pursuant to
the Act. On October 29, 2018, the Board adopted a resolution ordering the County's engineer to prepare
preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to pay the costs of the Undertaking, and Farr West
Engineering, as the County's engineer, prepared such preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to pay
the costs of the Undertaking. After review of the preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items placed on
file with the County Clerk, the Board provisionally ordered the Undertaking by adoption of a resolution on
October 29, 2018. A public hearing on the Undertaking was held on November 19, 2018.

On December 4, 2018, the Board is scheduled to adopt an ordinance (the "Creation Ordinance") to create the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area (the "Area"), order the Undertaking and create the “Tax
Increment Account” for the Undertaking. The tax increment revenues will pay, in whole or in part, the costs of
such an Undertaking, as more fully provided in NRS Chapter 278C, specifically NRS 278C.150, 278C.157 and
NRS 278C.250, including (i) advances by the County for administrative costs associated with administering the
Area, and (ii), payments under contracts with the Owners to reimburse the Owners for costs incurred by the
Owners in connection with the Undertaking, and all appurtenances and incidentals necessary, useful or
desirable, including real and other property therefor, which is more particularly described in the Creation
Ordinance (with all segment lengths to be current approximations subject to minor adjustment).

This resolution approves the reimbursement agreement between the County and the Owners to reimburse the
Owners for costs incurred by the Owners in connection with the Undertaking (as more fully described under
“Fiscal Impact” below). The reimbursement agreement, in substantially final form, has been placed on file with
the County Clerk subject to minor changes, if any, as are approved by the County Manager. The reimbursement
agreement is authorized and permitted by NRS 278C.150 and 278C.157 and NRS 278C.250.

48963266

\\




S. Supporting materials:  Resolution No. 18-521

6. Fiscal impact: Yes Comptroller:

Tax increment revenues generated and collected in the Area will consist of taxes levied upon taxable property in
the Area each year, any tax on the sale or use of tangible personal property and any tax imposed pursuant to
NRS 363A.130 and 363B.110 by or for the benefit of the State of Nevada, the County and any public body,
which must be allocated, divided and disposed of as provided in NRS 278C.250. Pursuant to the reimbursement
agreement, to the extent tax increment revenues are available therefor (following the reimbursement of
advances by the County for administrative costs associated with administering the Area), each Owner shall only
be entitled to be reimbursed for the actual amounts paid by such Owner for the costs of the Undertaking. The
aggregate total of such reimbursements to the Owners shall not exceed $28,369,679.00.

7. Legal review required: Yes
KL — District Attorney
KF — Bond Counsel

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—

Agenda Item No.

48963266




Summary — A resolution approving the Reimbursement Agreement among the County and all
owners of real property in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area.

RESOLUTION NO. 18-521
(of Storey County, Nevada)

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REIMBURSEMENT
AGREEMENT AMONG THE COUNTY AND ALL
OWNERS OF REAL PROPERTY IN THE TAHOE-RENO
INDUSTRIAL CENTER TAX INCREMENT AREA
SUBJECT TO MINOR CHANGES, IF ANY, AS ARE
APPROVED BY THE COUNTY MANAGER.

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey
County, Nevada (the "County") has received a request from Silver Slate LL.C, Comstock TRIC
Associates, LLC, Supernap Reno, LLC, Tesla, Inc. (f/k/a Tesla Motors, Inc.), 1200 USA Pkwy
LLC and Emerald City Empire, LLC (collectively, the "Owners") to order an undertaking
pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Chapter 278C (the "Act") for a water project as
defined in NRS 278C.140 (the "Undertaking") and to pay with tax increment revenues, in whole
or in part, the costs of such an Undertaking, as more fully provided in the Act and the ordinance
creating the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area (the "Creation Ordinance” and
the "Area," respectively), specifically NRS 278C.150, 278C.157 and NRS 278C.250, including
(1) advances by the County for administrative costs associated with administering the Area; and
(ii) payments under contracts with the Owners to reimburse the Owners for costs incurred by the
Owners in connection with the Undertaking, and all appurtenances and incidentals necessary,
useful or desirable, including real and other property therefor, which is more particularly
described in the Creation Ordinance (with all segment lengths to be current approximations
subject to minor adjustment); and

WHEREAS, the Undertaking constitutes a "natural resources project” pursuant to
NRS 278C.075(4); and

WHEREAS, on September 5, 2018, the Interim Finance Committee approved the
Undertaking in accordance with NRS 278C.157; and

WHEREAS, the Board has, by a resolution previously adopted on October 29,
2018 (the "Provisional Order Resolution"), provisionally ordered the Undertaking related to a tax

increment area to be formed pursuant to the Act; and




WHEREAS, the Board held a public hearing on Monday, November 19, 2018, on
the advisability of the Undertaking provisionally ordered and the proposed tax increment area
related thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Board considered, overruled and denied each and every written
or oral protest or objection made at the public hearing; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Creation Ordinance, the Board created the Area,
ordered the Undertaking and created the tax increment account for the Undertaking; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 278C.157(1)(d), the County intends to enter into a
reimbursement agreement with the Owners (the "Reimbursement Agreement") pursuant to which
the County agrees to pay certain tax increment revenues from the tax increment account created
in conformance with the requirements of NRS 278C.250 to the Owners for costs incurred by
such Owners in connection with the Undertaking; and

WHEREAS, the Reimbursement Agreement is on file with the County Clerk; and

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the Reimbursement Agreement on file with
the County Clerk and has found such Agreement to be satisfactory.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF STOREY, IN THE STATE OF NEVADA:

Section 1. As authorized by NRS 278C.157(1)(d), the form, terms and
provisions of the Reimbursement Agreement are hereby approved in substantially the form
thereof on file with the County Clerk, with only such changes therein as are not inconsistent
herewith and are approved by the officers of the County executing the same. The officers of the
County are hereby authorized to enter into, execute and deliver the Reimbursement Agreement
and the execution and delivery of the same shall constitute conclusive evidence of the County's
approval thereof in accordance with the terms hereof.

Section 2. The officers of the County be, and they hereby are, authorized to
take all action necessary to effectuate the provisions of this resolution.

Section 3. All actions, proceedings and matters previously taken, had and
done by the County and the officers of the County (not inconsistent with the provisions of this
resolution) concerning the Area and the Undertaking hereby are, ratified, approved and
confirmed. This resolution does not obligate the County to enter into the Reimbursement

Agreement.




Section 4. All bylaws, orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with
this resolution, are repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be
construed to revive any bylaw, order, or resolution, or part thereof, previously repealed.

Section 5. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this resolution
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,
paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this resolution.

Section 6. The Board has determined and does hereby declare that this
resolution shall be in effect upon its passage in accordance with law.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS December 4, 2018.

[SEAL]

Attest:
Chairman
Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

County Clerk




STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )

I am the duly appointed, qualified and acting County Clerk of Storey County (the
"County"), Nevada, and in the performance of my duties as County Clerk and ex officio Clerk of
its Board of County Commissioners (the "Board"), do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at
a regular meeting of the Board held on December 4, 2018.

2. The adoption of the Resolution was duly moved and seconded and the
Resolution was adopted by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board as
follows:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:
Those Absent:

Those Abstaining:

3. The members of the Board were present at such meeting and voted on the
passage of such Resolution as set forth above.

4. The resolution was approved and authenticated by the signature of the
Chairman of the Board, sealed with the County seal, attested by the Clerk and recorded in the
minutes of the Board.

S. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of the
meeting. Public notice of the meeting was given and the meeting was held and conducted in full
compliance with the provisions of NRS 241.020. A copy of the notice of meeting was posted not
later than 9:00 a.m. at least 3 working days in advance of the meeting at:

(1) Virginia City Post Office

(ii) Storey County Courthouse

(i)  Virginia City Fire Station

(iv)  Virginia City Highlands Fire Station
v) Lockwood Fire Station




6. A copy of the notice was posted on the County's website and on the State
of Nevada's official website no later than 9:00 a.m. on the third working day prior to the meeting.

7. A copy of the notice was given to each person, if any, who has requested
notice of the meetings of the Board in the same manner in which notice is required to be given to
a member of the Board. Such notice, if mailed, was delivered to the postal service no later than
9:00 a.m. on the third working day prior to the meeting.

8. Upon request, the Board provides at no charge, at least one copy of the
agenda for its public meetings, any proposed Resolution which will be discussed at the public
meeting, and any other supporting materials provided to the Board for an item on the agenda,
except for certain confidential materials and materials pertaining to closed meetings, as provided
by law.

9. A copy of the notice so given of the meeting of the Board held on
December 4, 2018 is attached to this certificate as Exhibit A.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on December 4, 2018.

County Clerk




EXHIBIT A

(Attach copy of posted notice)

A-1




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [1]

1. Title: For possible action: consideration and possible action on a resolution no. 18-523 making certain
determinations regarding excess tax increment revenues distributed into the funds of the respective taxing
agencies under Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") 278C.250 in connection with the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center Tax Increment Area.

2. Recommended motion: [, Commissioner (name), move to approve resolution no. 18-523 making certain
determinations regarding excess tax increment revenues distributed into the funds of the respective taxing
agencies under NRS 278C.250 in connection with the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968
epartment Aelephone

4. Staff summary: The Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey County, Nevada (the
"County") received a request from Silver Slate LLC, Comstock TRIC Associates, LLC, Supernap Reno, LLC,
Tesla, Inc. (f/k/a Tesla Motors, Inc.), 1200 USA Pkwy LLC and Emerald City Empire, LLC (collectively, the
"Owners") to order an undertaking pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Chapter 278C (the "Act") for
a water project as defined in NRS 278C.140 (the "Undertaking"). On September 5, 2018, the State of Nevada's
Interim Finance Committee approved the Undertaking, which constitutes a natural resources project pursuant to
the Act. On October 29, 2018, the Board adopted a resolution ordering the County's engineer to prepare
preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to pay the costs of the Undertaking, and Farr West
Engineering, as the County's engineer, prepared such preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to pay
the costs of the Undertaking. After review of the preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items placed on
file with the County Clerk, the Board provisionally ordered the Undertaking by adoption of a resolution on
October 29, 2018. A public hearing on the Undertaking was held on November 19, 2018.

On December 4, 2018, the Board is scheduled to adopt an ordinance (the "Creation Ordinance") to create the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area (the "Area"), order the Undertaking and create the “Tax
Increment Account” for the Undertaking. The tax increment revenues will pay, in whole or in part, the costs of
such an Undertaking, as more fully provided in NRS Chapter 278C, specifically NRS 278C.150, 278C.157 and
NRS 278C.250, including (i) advances by the County for administrative costs associated with administering the
Area, and (ii), payments under contracts with the Owners to reimburse the Owners for costs incurred by the
Owners in connection with the Undertaking (the "Reimbursement Agreement"), and all appurtenances and
incidentals necessary, useful or desirable, including real and other property therefor, which is more particularly
described in the Creation Ordinance (with all segment lengths to be current approximations subject to minor
adjustment).

Pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement, certain excess tax increment revenues shall be utilized for
Government Distribution (as defined in the Reimbursement Agreement), and the County shall pay such
amounts into the funds of the respective taxing agencies within the Area as provided in NRS 278C.250. This
resolution makes determinations under NRS 278C.250 in connection with the distribution of such excess tax

49215313

'




increment revenues.

S. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: No

7. Legal review required:

8. Reviewed by:

Resolution No. 18-523

Comptroller:

Yes
KL - District Attorney
KF — Bond Counsel

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager
9. Board action:

[] Approved
[] Denied

49215313

Other agency review:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

= —
et L

Agenda Item No.




Summary — A resolution making certain determinations regarding excess tax increment
revenues distributed into the funds of the respective taxing agencies under NRS
278C.250 in connection with the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment
Area.

RESOLUTION NO. 18-523
(of Storey County, Nevada)

A RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS
REGARDING EXCESS TAX INCREMENT REVENUES
DISTRIBUTED INTO THE FUNDS OF THE RESPECTIVE
TAXING AGENCIES UNDER NRS 278C.250 IN
CONNECTION WITH THE TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL
CENTER TAX INCREMENT AREA.

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey
County, Nevada (the "County") received a request from Silver Slate LLC, Comstock TRIC
Associates, LLC, Supernap Reno, LLC, Tesla, Inc. (f/k/a Tesla Motors, Inc.), 1200 USA Pkwy
LLC and Emerald City Empire, LLC (collectively, the "Owners") to order an undertaking
pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Chapter 278C (the "Act") for a water project as
defined in NRS 278C.140 (the "Undertaking") and to pay with tax increment revenues, in whole
or in part, the costs of such an Undertaking, as more fully provided in the Act and the ordinance
creating the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area (the "Creation Ordinance" and the
"Area," respectively), specifically NRS 278C.150, 278C.157 and NRS 278C.250, including (i)
advances by the County for administrative costs associated with administering the Area; and (ii)
payments under contracts with the Owners to reimburse the Owners for costs incurred by the
Owners in connection with the Undertaking, and all appurtenances and incidentals necessary,
useful or desirable, including real and other property therefor, which is more particularly
described in the Creation Ordinance (with all segment lengths to be current approximations
subject to minor adjustment); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Creation Ordinance, the Board created the Area,
ordered the Undertaking and created the tax increment account for the Undertaking (the "Tax
Increment Account"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 278C.157(1)(d), the County intends to enter into a

reimbursement agreement with the Owners (the "Reimbursement Agreement") pursuant to which




the County agrees to pay certain tax increment revenues from the Tax Increment Account to the
Owners for costs incurred by such Owners in connection with the Undertaking; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4 of the Reimbursement Agreement, certain
excess tax increment revenues shall be utilized for Government Distribution (as defined in the
Reimbursement Agreement), and the County shall pay such amounts into the funds of the
respective taxing agencies within the Area as provided in NRS 278C.250.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF STOREY, IN THE STATE OF NEVADA:

Section 1. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meaning ascribed to such terms in the Reimbursement Agreement.

Section 2. With respect to the Government Distribution of excess tax
increment revenues in accordance with NRS 278C.250 under Section 4 of the Reimbursement
Agreement, the Board hereby makes the following determinations, and the officers of the County
are hereby directed as follows:

A. The excess Property Tax Increment, if any, shall be paid
into the funds of the respective taxing agencies in the same proportion as their base amount was
distributed; and

B. The excess Modified Business Tax Increment, if any, shall

be paid to the State of Nevada Department of Taxatio
278C.250; and

ed in a lance with NRS 278C 250,

Section 3. The officers of the County be, and they hereby are, authorized to
take all action necessary to effectuate the provisions of this resolution.

Section 4. All actions, proceedings and matters previously taken, had and
done by the County and the officers of the County (not inconsistent with the provisions of this
resolution) concerning the Area and the Undertaking hereby are, ratified, approved and
confirmed. This resolution does not obligate the County to enter into the Reimbursement

Agreement.




Section 5. All bylaws, orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with
this resolution, are repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be
construed to revive any bylaw, order, or resolution, or part thereof, previously repealed.

Section 6. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this resolution
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,
paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this resolution.

Section 7. The Board has determined and does hereby declare that this
resolution shall be in effect upon its passage in accordance with law.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS December 4, 2018.

[SEAL]

Attest:
Chairman
Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

County Clerk




STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )

[ am the duly appointed, qualified and acting County Clerk of Storey County (the
"County"), Nevada, and in the performance of my duties as County Clerk and ex officio Clerk of
its Board of County Commissioners (the "Board"), do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at
a regular meeting of the Board held on December 4, 2018.

2. The adoption of the Resolution was duly moved and seconded and the
Resolution was adopted by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board as
follows:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:
Those Absent:

Those Abstaining:

3. The members of the Board were present at such meeting and voted on the
passage of such Resolution as set forth above.

4. The resolution was approved and authenticated by the signature of the
Chairman of the Board, sealed with the County seal, attested by the Clerk and recorded in the
minutes of the Board.

5. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of the
meeting. Public notice of the meeting was given and the meeting was held and conducted in full
compliance with the provisions of NRS 241.020. A copy of the notice of meeting was posted not
later than 9:00 a.m. at least 3 working days in advance of the meeting at:

(1) Virginia City Post Office

(ii) Storey County Courthouse

(i)  Virginia City Fire Station

(iv)  Virginia City Highlands Fire Station
) Lockwood Fire Station

-4-




6. A copy of the notice was posted on the County's website and on the State
of Nevada's official website no later than 9:00 a.m. on the third working day prior to the meeting.

7. A copy of the notice was given to each person, if any, who has requested
notice of the meetings of the Board in the same manner in which notice is required to be given to
a member of the Board. Such notice, if mailed, was delivered to the postal service no later than
9:00 a.m. on the third working day prior to the meeting.

8. Upon request, the Board provides at no charge, at least one copy of the
agenda for its public meetings, any proposed Resolution which will be discussed at the public
meeting, and any other supporting materials provided to the Board for an item on the agenda,
except for certain confidential materials and materials pertaining to closed meetings, as provided
by law.

9. A copy of the notice so given of the meeting of the Board held on
December 4, 2018 is attached to this certificate as Exhibit A.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on December 4, 2018.

County Clerk




EXHIBIT A

(Attach copy of posted notice)




Document comparison by Workshare 9.5 on Thursday, November 29, 2018

8:56:56 A

N .

Document 1 ID

interwovenSite-//DMS. SHERMANHOWARD.COM/Active/a
9167181/1

Description

#49167181v1<Active> - Resolution Making
Determinations Under NRS 278C.250

Document 2 ID

interwovenSite://DMS.SHERMANHOWARD.COM/Active/4
9167181/2

Description

#49167181v2<Active> - Resolution Making
Determinations Under NRS 278C.250

Rendering set

Standard

Style change

Format change

Meoved-deletion-

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Insertions

Deletions

Moved from

Moved to

Style change

Format changed

O|Oo|Oo|o|~]N




Total changes




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/04/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent[ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Adoption of 2018 Carson River Watershed Regional Floodplain Management
Plan by Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD).

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I (county commissioner) motion to approve
adoption of the 2018 Carson River Watershed Regional Floodplain Management Plan by the Carson Water
Subconservancy District.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne

4. Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968
4. Staff summary: See Enclosure A Staff Summary.
S. Supporting materials: Floodplain management plan and floodplain video links in Enclosure A.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
epartment Head Department Name: Human Resources and Comptroller
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved 1 Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued Agenda Item No.
Page 1 of 1

">




Enclosure A
Staff Summary for Adoption of Carson River Watershed Regional F loodplain Management Plan

Staff Summary:

Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) completed the Carson River Watershed
Regional Floodplain Management Plan 2018. The first Regional Floodplain Management
Plan for the Carson River Watershed was created in 2008. It is intended to be a tool to help
counties in their planning process. A supplemental update was completed in 2013. The
2008 Plan and 2013 Update were formally adopted by all 5 counties along the Carson
River.

The 2018 Plan is a complete revision of the 2008 plan which incorporates the 2013
Supplemental Update. It was revised through the Carson River Coalition stakeholder
process which allowed county staff members to work with CWSD to guide document’s
creation. This two-year process gathered suggestions, information, input about through
several Floodplain Management Working group meetings; jurisdiction interviews and
follow-up; and several workshops. The goal of the 2018 Plan is to provide information and
suggested actions to reduce flood risks throughout the watershed.

Below is a link to the full report
http://www.cwsd.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/2018-10-18-RFMP-Bd-Approved-Fin
al.pdf

Due to size of appendices, it is provided on a separate link.
http://www.cwsd.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/2018-10-18-RFMP-Appendices-Final

Web.pdf

Floodplain Video Link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZGco3s6K AY
(I will provide a copy on flash drive to Austin on 11/28/2018 at CWSD board meeting.)

Page 1 of 1




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/04/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including Policy 040 Annual Department Budget Request, including amendments
to the policy provisions and changing the policy title to Budgeting and Budget Requests.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I [commissioner] motion to approve
updates to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures including Policy 040 Annual
Department Budget Request, including amendments to the policy provisions and changing the
policy title to Budgeting and Budget Requests.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis.
The Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur
every five years and otherwise as needed.

S. Supporting materials: Enclosed markup policy updates.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Z: Department Head Department Name:
‘ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
|1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued Agenda Item No.

~—re—
[ T

Page 1 of 1




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 040

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 07-03-2012
REVISED: 12/04/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: AsnnuslDepartmental BudgetReguest

Budgeting and Budget Requests

I. PURPOSE: To establish methods and procedures for the development, presentation,
adoption, administration and evaluation of departmental budget requests and the county budget.
To enable the county to make financial plans for both current and capital expenditure programs
and to provide program priorities for the expenditure of public funds. To provide for the control
of revenues and expenditures, in order to promote prudence and efficiency in the expenditure of
public funds.

II. POLICY: The-County-Manager-or-his-designee Comptroller is authorized to develop the

annual budget for approval by the Beard-of County-Commissioners board in accordance with the
provisions of NRS Chapter-354: NRS 354 and NAC 354,

III. PROCEDURES:
A. Development of Draft Budget:

buelget—prepafaﬁeﬂ-and-develepmeﬂt— Durmg the month of Januarv of each year

the Comptroller or his/her designee will notice the County Manager and
department heads to develop a draft budget proposal for the following fiscal
vear. The County Manager and each department head will also be provided a
schedule showing deadlines for draft budget submittals and resubmittals,
tentative and final map hearings and submittals, and other important dates in
the budget process for the year.

2. The Comptroller will convene a core budget team consisting of himself/herself,
the County Manager, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director,
auditors and analysts from the Comptroller’s and County Manager’s office, and
other person(s) as applicable and appropriate for each department and fund.

3. Each department head will develop a draft budget proposal for his/her
department. By a deadline set by the Comptroller pursuant to paragraph (1),
the department head will submit to him/her a department budget draft proposal
for preliminary review.

4. Before submittal of the tentative budget to the board, the core budget team will
meet with each department head for the purpose of reviewing each proposed
department budget. Discussion will occur between the parties about projected
revenues, anticipated expenses, and other matters potentially affecting the
county budget and department budget during the coming fiscal year. Concerns
and input from each member of the core budget team and the department head
will be considered in formulating the tentative budget for the county and each

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 6




department. This process may be performed in one or more meetings with the
department head.

5. The tentative budget will be provided to the entire core budget team at least 5
days before it is submitted to the board for consideration in order to allow
sufficient time for the budget team to review and provide comment.

B. Tentative and Final Budget Preparation, Noticing, and Hearing

1. The Comptroller will prepare for the board a draft tentative budget for the
ensuing fiscal vear. The tentative budget must be submitted to the County
Manager and core budget team, and filed for public record and be inspected by
the Storey County Clerk.

2. On or before April 15 of each year, the Comptroller will submit the tentative
budpeet to the Nevada Department of Taxation.

3. The tentative and final budgets will be prepared, submitted, noticed, and
considered by the board and the Nevada Department of Taxation as set forth in
NRS 354 and NAC 354.

C. The adoption of the budget by the Beard-of-Commissioners board is the approval of
each construction project/capitol project included in the budget.

1. The County Manager or the Comptroller er-his—designee—are authorized to
cancel or substitute construction project/capitol project throughout the fiscal
year.

2. Any department head wishing to initiate a new project or project change, not
authorized in the budget as the same may be amended from time to time, must
first obtain budget change approval from the Comptroller or County Manager or

his-designee prior to its commencement.
D. Each Elected-Official-or Department Head department head must remain familiar at

all times with the budget balances of his/her department.

1. No empleyee-ersupervisor department head or employee may obligate the
county to any expenditure of money not specifically budgeted without the

express written authority of the County Manager and the County Comptroller.

2. No efficial or-employee department head or employee may spend or obligate
money in excess of the total budget appropriated for that department without the
expressed written authority of the County Manager and the Comptroller.

3. For cost control, any item purchased over $1,499.99, the Eleeted-Official-or
Department-Head department head must submit a Budget Request Form 040-F
to the County Manager and Ceunty Comptroller for approval.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 6




V.

4. Expenditure from a budget other than the department’s own may only be made

with authorization from the County Manager er—h+s—eles+gnee—ef and the @eunt—y
Comptroller. ; 2

ether-budget:
E. The Ceunty Comptroller shall on no less than a monthly basis, review each
department’s expenditures for conformity with the duly approved departmental budget.

Exceptions or possible over-expenditures must be noted by the Comptroller with a copy
to the County Manager.

F. The Comptroller will on a guarterly basis provide a summary standing of the county
budget, including for revenues and expenditures, and for each department of the county,
to the board in public hearing.

Structurally Balanced Budget

A. The county will maintain a structurally balanced budget, where recurring revenues
equal or exceed recurring expenditures. The county will balance recurring operating
expenditures with recurring revenues reasonably expected to continue year to year.

B. Recurring expenditures are operating costs that are funded each year such as
salaries, benefits, services, supplies, and asset maintenance costs. Non-recurring
expenditures are on-time expenditures and one-time costs such as acquisitions or
replacement of capital assets.

C. Property taxes are examples of recurring revenue, while settlements from lawsuits or
certain grants are examples of non-recurring revenue.

D. Revenues that have both recurring and non-recurring components require judgement
in determining how much of the source is truly recurring. For example, building permit
revenues rise in a period of high growth in the community, but can be volatile as
economic conditions change. The county will review its revenue portfolio to identify
revenues with potentially volatile components and avoid over reliance on these revenue
sources in its budget projections.

E. The county will maintain reserves at its desired policy levels. Using reserves to
balance the budget may only be considered in the context of a plan to return to structural
balance. The plan to return to structural balance must include a specific length of time
for replenishing the fund balance and remediating the negative impact of any other short-

term balancing actions that may be taken.

Pay-As-You-Go Budgeting

A. The county will conduct its operations from existing or foreseeable revenue sources.
Achieving pay-as-you-go funding requires the following practices: current direct and
indirect costs for operating and maintenance will be controlled and will be funded with
current revenues. Sound revenue and expenditure forecasts will be prepared annually for
all operating funds as part of budget discussions.

B. The county will prepare a full Cost Allocation and Recovery Plan, compliant with the
Federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87 annually to prove
accurate and complete estimates of the indirect service costs. The Cost Allocation Plan
will be updated annually during budget development.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 3 of 6




VI

VIIL.

VIIIL.

IX.

C. Costs attributable to the mandates of other government agencies will be included in
the annual budget.

Budget Performance Reporting

A. The Comptroller will submit quarterly operating reports to the County Manager and
board comparing actual revenues and expenditures with budgeted revenues and

expenditures.

B. Where practical, the county will develop and employ performance measures to be
included in the budget.

Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Goals

A. As a goal, all equipment replacement and maintenance needs for the next 5 years will
be projected and the projection will be updated each year. A maintenance and
replacement schedule based on this projection will be developed and potential funding
sources identified.

B. Replacement of capital outlay items will be planned to increase efficiency and
productivity considering the available funds. When possible, replacement plans will be
timed as stable intervals so as not to spend excessively in one year and restrictively in the
next.

Maintenance of Capital Assets

A. The budget should provide sufficient funds for the regular repair and maintenance of
all county capital assets. The budget should not be balanced by deferring these

expenditures.

B. Future maintenance needs for all new capital facilities will be identified during the
capital improvement program process. Significant maintenance and operating cost
increases or decreases will be reflected in the five-year financial plan.

Personnel Services

A. The county will strive to pay competitive market rates for salaries, wages, and
benefits to its employees. The funding of competitive market rates will be balanced
against the county’s ability to fund short- and long-term costs and to maintain quality
public services.

B. The county will periodically conduct a comprehensive total compensation survey of
public sector employees as necessary and this survey will be the basis for determining
prevailing market rates. The compensation survey will focus on public agencies and
employees that are similar to Storey County.

C. The county’s workforce, measured in full-time-equivalent (FTE), will not fluctuate
more than 3 percent annually without corresponding changes in program service level or

scope.
D. Inestablishing pay rates. a cost analysis of rate increases will be conducted and will

include the effect of such increases on the county’s share of related fringe benefits and
unfunded liabilities (including non-salary benefits).

E. Long-term costs of changes in benefits packages will be estimated and fully disclosed
to the board before negotiated labor agreements are affirmed.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 4 of 6




XI.

XII.

XIII.

F. No new personnel should be included in the base budget.

Services and Supplies

A. In developing the annual operating budget, total department services and supplies
budgets are not to increase from the current year’s total adopted budget without valid

justification.

Capital Outlay and Projects

A. A capital outlay plan will be developed and will conform to Storey County policies
and procedures.

Use of Interest on Investment Earnings

A. The amount of interest on investment earnings fluctuates depending on both the
interest rate and the amount invested. It is not advisable for the county to rely on this
source of revenue to fund ongoing operations given the significant fluctuations in
investment earnings. Therefore, the amount of investment earnings that may be budgeted
to fund operations for the next fiscal vear is limited to the estimated investment earnings
that would be generated form the lowest interest rate and lowest investment amount in
the preceding five fiscal years by fund. Any amount in excess can only be used to fund
one-time purchases or placed in an appropriate reserve account for future on-time

purchases.
Budget Management

The budget will be managed in accordance with Nevada Local Government Budget Act
contained in NRS 354.470-354.626 and NAC 354.400-354.600.

A. Manage budgets

1. Department heads and elected officials will manage their budgets responsibly
and will be accountable for compliance with NRS 354.626 requiring that no
governing body or member thereof. officer, office, department, or agency within
the county may, during any fiscal year, expend or contract to expend any money
or incur any liability, or enter into any contract which by its terms involves the
expenditure of money, in excess of the amount appropriated in the budget for
that function, with the exception of bond repayments, medium-term obligation
repayments and any other long-term contracts expressly authorized by law.

B. Augmentations

1. Ifanticipated resources actually available during a budget period exceed those
estimated, the budget may be augmented. Budget augmentations to increase the
appropriation of a fund when actual resources exceed those previously
budgeted must be approved by a resolution of the board_at a regularly
scheduled meeting. Budget augmentations become effective upon filing of the
resolution with the Department of Taxation. The Comptroller will present
budget augmentations to the board for approval three times annually, or as

necessary.
C.  Budget augmentations for grants-in-aid, gifts, or bequests

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 5 of 6




1. Budget augmentations resulting from grants, gifts, or bequests previously

approved by the board may be approved by department heads designated to
administer the budget of that function.

D. Budget Amendments Due to Legislative Action

1. An amended budget due to legislative actions to increase or decrease the
revenues or expenditures of a local government not anticipated in the local
government’s final adopted budget may be filed with the state department of
taxation within 30 days of adjournment of the legislative session.

E.  Budget Transfer Within a Function

1. Transfers within a function may be approved by the department head designated
to administer the budget of that function upon consultation with the

Comptroller.
F.  Budget Transfers Between Functions, Funds, or Contingency Accounts

1. Budget transfers between functions, funds, or contingency accounts will be
approved by the board via resolution at a regularly scheduled meeting and
recorded into the official minutes of the meeting.

G. Budget Appropriations

1. Budget appropriations will lapse at the end of the fiscal year and will revert to
the available balance of the fund from which appropriated per NRS 354.620.
Exceptions include encumbered budget for carryover purchase orders and/or
carryover projects.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager or his/her designee will review this
policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 6 of 6




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action to approve purchase of property from Virginia City Ventures
Inc. of a parcel of real property identified as Lots 6, 7, and 8 of Block 210 Range H in Virginia
City Nevada for the price of $41,000.00

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the agreement for the

purchase of real property from Virginia City Ventures Inc. located within Block 210 of
Range H in Virginia City Nevada for the price of $41,000.00

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The Virginia City Tourist Commission has had the subject property appraised
by Sam Ward who determined that the appraised value of the property is $41,000.00. The
property is suitable for use in conjunction with the property used as fairgrounds within
Virginia City. For this reason, the VCTC is asking that the County purchase the subject
property.

5. Supporting materials: Agreement for the purchase of real property from Virginia City

Ventures Inc. Sam Ward Appraisal.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[1] Denied [

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued




Agenda Item No.




APPRAISAL REPORT

OF
FOUR PROPERTIES
LOCATED IN THE VICINITY OF THE
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AS OF
July 26, 2018

PREPARED FOR
Mr. Deny Dotson, Tourism Director
Virginia City Tourism Commission (VCTC)
86 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

BY
SAMUEL K. WARD
REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS/CONSULTANTS
106 EAST ADAMS STREET, SUITE 212
CARSON C'%b?‘oEQIADA 89706



SAMUEL K. WARD -« ReAL ESTATE APPRAISERS/CONSULTANTS

706 E. ADAMS ST, SUITE 212 ® CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706
(775) 885-8822

August 8, 2018

Mr. Deny Dotson, Tourism Director
Virginia City Tourism Commission (VCTC)
86 South C Street

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re:  Appraisal Report of four properties located in the Virginia City Fairgrounds area of
Virginia City, Nevada

Dear Mr. Dotson:

As you requested, I have completed an investigation and analysis of the above referenced
properties in order to estimate their current Market Value as a basis for negotiating the sale of the
properties to Storey County.

The following report provides a description of each property and presents a review of all
pertinent data analyzed in forming the final estimates of value. A fee simple ownership is
presumed.

Based on my investigation and analysis, it is my opinion that the Market Value of the properties
as of July 26, 2018, the last date of inspection and effective date of the appraisal, were as
follows:

VC Holdings - 4.54-acre parcel $445,000
VC Ventures - .34-acre parcel $ 41,000
Richard Correll - Warehouse property $ 97,000
Mark Charlton - .16-acre parcel $ 21,000
Sincerely,
9 ,
Samuel K. Ward,

Nevada Certified General Appraiser No. 00123



—_— SKW
TABLE OF CONTENTS
B8 L3 = 52T E R EE TR REEE R Preface
Letter of TranSmittal . ... .vvvesevenvenenroneensansenseassssesseasnassssanss Preface
Table Of COMENTS v ot s v veeareareeseasascssensosorassnssonsasaasaassssasss Preface
Intended User and Use of the Appraisal  ............... Ceesesieiaatseaattiaaneaney 1
Definition of Market Value ............. ettt ietiieeaee e 1
Property Rights Appraised .........ccoouiriiiiiiiiiiiiiies e Cerasenaees 1
Effective Date of Valuation ..........c.vieiiiininiroresasssvisanaccossansascans |
Appraisal Development & Reporting Process ..........coocvieiiiiniiiieerenernenes 1
Contingent and Limiting Conditions ...... e et daaneieiiaaeerr et e e eesan 2
Regional Map . ......cccvnvnineenenns e ettt ie et e 3
AreaMap ... .o e e et eesearreea e 4
Virginia City MBD .. ..o ivvninninsatrannaeee s enaaranaasascneesansanocesnes 4
Virginia City Area Data & Neighborhood Description ...........cocovuiiiurrencernns 5
Virginia City Holdings 4.54-ac site - Property Identification & SiteMap ........covvvvenns 7
PhOtOS & v vt eesseaeeenaaseaassssssssenassancososcroasosessnssasaanses 8
Aerial Map&SlteData .......................................... ceveees 9
Highest & BeStUS .. .ovuinuti ittt anai oo 12
ValUGHON o v e e s e mnesaeneeensasessasosasasessasssananncssssonsosasns 13
RecONCIIAtION & vvvv e ets s csnaseaensasescncuerassensionanasasonsseanses 17
Virginia City Ventures .34-acre site - Property Identification & SiteMap ..........ooeunns 19
PROtOS . ..t ot v i ivsianrecncanseasenasasansonnns Ceseensessassenreennennn 20
Aerial Map & S1te | R LR 21
Highest & BestUSe ...vovvverecnvnannennnrenennns PP 23
ValUAHON + v veeme e essetevinestsoerusssrennassssisssasrsossostoonnnns 24
RecONCIIAION ..\t eevrvnonenerssnsorosaasosuassiossssasosssossnsnsasses 29
Richard Corrrell Warehouse property Property Identification & SiteMap .. .............. 30
Photos......oovvnnunnn e aiiaireceneea e Ceeeeeaenaes 31
AcrialMap & SiteData ................. e ieeenresreass e sas s 32
Improvement DesCription . .......ccoeriintiiutinneniiioraarerens P 35
Highest & BeStUSE . o.vvvvinrennvnrvanennronereesaesnonneansenenrsese: 35
Valuation .............. IR S R R R 36
RECONCITIAHON -+« v v e s e e e e e e ee e eeensareeeesineesnnnereness @l
Mark Charlton 7,000 SF site - Property Identification & SittMap ............ Ceeeen veen 42
PHOTOS -« v et s eneeeeessacanesonoassossessasassasanasusesssnseasauses 43
Aerial Map & SiteData .........oviiieriaiiiianeiaaee e 44
Highest & BEStUSE .. .v.vvvirinenersarmnnnenonenreretrenarcnserarerne: 46
ValUBHION . o v oo v s oo s os e ennennenecesssessssssnassnsannnscessasnossss 47
RecoNCIliation ... vvvvrerenvnenonecnseesntososanosessnsnanessnonarassens 51
CertifiCatiON . .. oo e verseernsonrronssnsasaansasssssossaasosasansnansneses 51
Addenda
Appraiser’s Qualifications




INTENDED USER AND USE OF THE APPRAISAL

This appraisal is being prepared for use by the Storey County, the Virginia City Tourism
Commission and the current property owner’s for use in determining the fair market value of
each property as a basis in negotiating the sale of each property to Storey County.

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE

The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market under
all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently, knowledgeably,
and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the
consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller to buyer under
conditions whereby:

a) buyer and seller are typically motivated;

b) both parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he
considers his own best interest;

c) a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

d) payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial
arrangements comparable thereto; and

€) the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by
special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated
with the sale.!

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED

The property rights in this appraised are the fee simple ownership assuming no indebtedness
against each property.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUATION

The estimate of value applies as of July 26, 2018, the last date of inspection. The report date is
August 8, 2018.

APPRAISAL DEVELOPMENT AND REPORTING PROCESS

In preparing this appraisal, I

] inspected each property and improvements;

] gathered and analyzed local economic and demographic data and searched county
data and MLS data for sales and listings of comparable properties in the area; and

° applied the Sales Comparison Approach in estimating the final value for each
property.

1(Ref.: Federal Home Loan Bank Board)



CONTINGENT AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

This appraisal report and the valuation reported herein are made subject to the following

assumptions and limiting conditions.

1. Ihave conducted an analysis in the form of an appraisal report which is intended to comply
with the reporting requirements set forth under Standard Rule 2-2(b) of the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice reporting options. As such, much of the
discussion of the data, reasoning and analyses that were used in the appraisal process to
develop the appraiser's opinion of value are not reported herein. Supporting documentation
concerning the data, reasoning and analyses is retained in the appraiser’s file. The
information contained in this report is specific to the needs of the client and is for the
intended use stated in this report. The appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized use of
this report.

2. The appraiser assumes no responsibility for matters of a legal nature affecting the property
appraised or the title thereto. Title to the property is assumed to be marketable.

3. Estimates, data, and opinions furnished by informed persons are believed to be correct and
reliable but are not guaranteed.

4.  This appraisal is to be considered in its entirety. The distribution of land and improve-
ments applies only under current land utilization and is invalid under any other use.

5. The appraiser is not required to give testimony or appear in court because of having made
this appraisal unless arrangements have been previously made.

6. It is assumed the property will be under competent management and that reasonable
maintenance will prevail.

7. The appraiser assumes that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property,
subsoil, or structures which would render it more or less valuable. The appraiser assumes
no responsibility for such conditions or for engineering which might be required to discover
such factors.

8. No survey of the property was made. All maps and sketches in the report are made for
illustrative purposes and are submitted to assist the reader in visualizing the property.

9.  Neither all, nor any part of the contents of this report or copy thereof, shall be used for any
purpose by anyone but the client without the previous written consent of the appraiser
and/or client; nor through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without
the written consent and approval of the author, regarding valuation conclusions, reveal the
identity of the appraiser, or a firm with which he is connected, or make any reference to any
professional society or institute with which he is affiliated.




REGIONAL MAP




VIRGINIA CITY MAP

vy
HREENEHY

e i

B REVAIY GAMEL NG MUSELY
} W( f‘f‘?imﬂmi ENTERPSE BARK

- WESTERN FIBTORN

BT MUSEL

CUMETOUK FINEMANS MUS F

)

DU

/ ¥

sirgnia Cily
”0
é
%~
04",?;\ -~ 8 H{}Gf %i??ﬂ ot g h
B~ }
N R
- AL S e
e > N
i STOREY
S E COUNTY
DYl §
ST - Fantr g"
= I WRGINM AND TRUCKEG M}
. = Gold Hill (
F S \\




Kw

VIRGINIA CITY AREA DATA

Virginia City, the county seat of Storey County, is a historic mining town listed as a national
historic landmark. In its heyday as a mining town in the 1860s, Virginia City was home to over
30,000 people. According to the 2010 estimates by the Nevada State Demographer’s Office,
Virginia City has a population today of 998 and listed the number of people in Storey County at
4,234. The majority of the population is located in Virginia City, Gold Hill, and Silver City with
smaller populations in the Virginia Highland development north of Virginia City as well as the
extreme northern portions of the Mark Twain area of Dayton Valley and the community of
Stagecoach.

State Highway 341, which connects Virginia City to Reno and Carson City, is the primary
thoroughfare through town, where it is known as “C” Street. C Street is developed with over
sixty gift shops, plus numerous restaurants and historic saloons. Other tourist attractions include
some historic mansions, the Chollar mine office, the Fourth Ward School House, three historic
churches, Piper’s Opera House and the V & T Railroad, which makes several runs per day from
April through October over a short distance to Gold Hill. The V&T Railroad also runs from
Moundhouse which is five miles east of Carson City, to Virginia City with service from
Memorial Day through October every Friday, Saturday and Sunday with a three hour layover in
Virginia City. In addition, several small museums are housed in stores or saloons on “C” Street,
including several gift shops and jewelry shops. There are two convenience markets, a public
library, one gas station and a post office in the community, plus a landing pad for care-flight
service to Renown Regional Hospital in Reno.

The economy of Virginia City is centered on tourism, which accounts for about 90% of the
economic base of the town; it is estimated that over two million visitors come to Virginia City
every year. Although most tourists are day-trippers who arrive by car or bus, construction of the
Silverland Inn (formerly Ramada Hotel) completed in August of 2006, does offer overnight
lodging. The hotel has 68 rooms available and it’s location near the former Virginia & Truckee
railroad route provides modern amenities while maintaining the Victorian style that is prevalent
in Virginia City.

It is noted that since there are no major shopping stores or grocery stores in the area, and because
of its altitude (6,200") and windy roads to the community, plus the fact there is a limited amount
of water available for future development, there is very little new construction in Virginia City.




NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION

The four subject properties are all located in the area of the Storey County Fair Grounds or in the
southwest quadrant of Virginia City which was in the past an area with a large mine dump of
material taken from mines in the immediate area. However, several years ago one of the mining
companies who owned the land, leveled the ground which is now an area of approximately 15 -
20 acre that is used as the Storey County Fair Grounds and Events Center. Much of the land
outside the platted but undeveloped streets is privately owned by several individuals or entities
and is leased to the county. Access is via F Street with a railroad crossing just south of Flowery
Street. The area is predominantly zoned light industrial but there has been no new development
in the area except for one small privately owned metal storage building and of course the uses of
the area for the Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center. Utilities are extended along F
Street to the west and along Flowery Street to the north. Power is available in the area.
Extensions may have to be made to bring utilities to each site, depending on what type of
development may some day be proposed for the sites; albeit, there are immediate plans to run a
sewer line through the area.

Trend
The neighborhood is stable but is gradually improving as the access into the fairgrounds is being
improved and utilities are being brought into the area.



VIRGINIA CITY HOLDINGS, LLC 4.54-ACRE SITE
LOCATED BETWEEN H & K STREETS & SILVER STREET
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA

VIRGINIA CITY, NV .
PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The subject property consists of four non-contiguous parcels
located on both sides of I Street between Page Street and Flowery Street in the southeast
quadrant of Virginia City in an industrial area currently used as the Virginia City
Fairgrounds and Events Center because of its level terrain. The undeveloped streets in the
old plat of Virginia City separate the sites but these right of ways probably would be
abandoned if the sites were developed as one parcel.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The sites
may briefly be described as Lots 6-16 and the south half of Lot 5 Block 180; Lots 3 - 17
Block 181; Lots 1 - 6 Block 200, and Lots 1 - 6 Block 201, Range H, Virginia City,
Nevada. The parcels are also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel
Numbers (APNs) 001-135-06; 001-136- 01; 001-173-01 and 001-176-01

Owner of Record - Virginia City Holdings, LLC
Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and

to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last
purchased.

SITE MAP

X

[

ot T

) ¥
5142 z
] Al

e L




SUBJECT PHOTOS

View of the site
looking south
from near the
north end

. View of the site
looking north from
near the south end




| AERIAL SITE MAP




== “Kw
SITE DATA

Location

The subject site or sites (they are all non-contiguous with the platted streets not in but presumed
to be abandoned if the site is ever developed) and are all located between H Street and K Street
north of Page Street and south of Flowery Street in the southeast section of Virginia City in an
industrial zoned area currently leased to Storey County as the Virginia City Fairground and
Events Center.

Dimensions, Area and Shape

The parcels vary in size from (15), 50' x100' lots to (6), 50'x 100' lots; albeit, they have never
been developed and for the most part are zoned industrial, so the fact they are part of the original
plat of Virginia City, has no relevence in this instance. The total land area for all the lots is 4.54
acres plus the use of the streets in between the parcels which have never been developed and
should probably be available for use if the parcels are development as one site.

Topography & Drainage

The grade in the vicinity of the subject site generally level on the north end and south ends with a
grade change near the middle. The site is part of a large dump dirt excavated from the old mines
in the area that was leveled and terraced and compacted several years ago.

Soils and Subsoils

No soil report was made available to this appraiser. The soils in the area appear to be a rocky,
sandy, gravel type compacted soil which is “dump” material from the adjoining mines that
operated in the area over 100 years ago. Several years ago the large pile of dump dirt that
overburdened the site was leveled, compacted and is currently mostly leased to the Storey County
for a nominal fee and operated as the Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center. It is noted
there are many miles of mining tunnels under the city that were dug in the later 1800s during the
search for gold and silver ore in the area but there is no evidence of settling under the subject site
now.

Availability and Description of Utilities

Storey County provides water and sewer service in the area. Virginia City and Gold Hill get their
potable water from Marlette Lake in the Sierras via a pipeline. There is limited water available
for new development with new service on an allocation basis. Electricity is provided by NV
Energy and telephone service is provided by AT&T; albeit, it was not determined if there are
water and sewer lines or electricity in the immediate area as it was never developed but there is a
sewer line proposed to the south of the subject property. There is no natural gas to the town;
instead, residents and businesses use propane, augmented by wood stoves or fireplaces.

Street Improvements and Access

There are no street improvements in the immediate area, even thought the streets are platted they
were never physically laid out or improved, so the street right of ways can probably be aban-
doned and used for development of the subject sites; there are no known plans to install any
streets and utilities, except for sewer service, in the immediate area, except for a roadway east off
of F Street which goes into the general area.




Zoning

The lots in Blocks 200 and 201 are zoned L-1 or light industrial and the zoning in Blocks 180
and 181 have split zoning with the south half of these two blocks zoned L-1 and the eastern half
R-1 or residential. Any development of the lots would require a design review and most likely
any public or private development would be approved if consistent with the desires of the

E governing bodies and local residents. The zoning map below shows the current zoning of the

E parcels. Note the subject parcels are in Blocks 180, 181, 200 and 201.

Zoning Map

Assessments and Taxes

The sites are identified by the Storey County Assessor’s Office as parcel numbers 01-135-06;
136-01; 173-01 and 175-01. In Nevada the assessed value is 35% of the assessor's fair market
value estimate. In actual practice land values based on the assessor's estimate of fair market
value and improvement value are based on replacement cost new less 1.5% per year for
depreciation down to a minimum of 25% of the estimated replacement cost and land value is
X based on the assessor’s estimate of its fair market value. The 2017/18 tax rate in the area is
$3.4607 per $100 of assessed value. According to the Storey County Assessors Office the
assessed values, taxes, and market values for the sites are as shown on the following page:

11




Assessed
APN Value Taxes Mkt. Vale | Size - acres
01-135-06 $7,065 $244.50 $20,186 1.45
01-136-01 $13,748 $266.80 $39,280 1.72
01-173-01 $7,710 $149.61 $22,029 0.69
01-176-01 $3,722 $244.50 $10,634 0.68
TOTAL $32,245 $905.41 $92,129 4.54

HIGHEST AND BEST USE

Highest and best use is defined as that reasonable and probable use that supports the highest
present value as defined as of the effective date of the appraisal.

There are four criteria which must be met in the analysis of highest and best use for both land
that is vacant and property that is improved. The highest and best use must be (1) physically
possible, (2) legally permissible, (3) financially feasible, and (4) maximally productive.
Generally, these criteria are analyzed in the preceding sequence because if a property fails any
one of the criteria, the subsequent criteria are irrelevant to the analysis.

Physically, the sites are considered one parcel and are a rectangular shaped. The parcel is larger
than most sites in the area but this is not considered a detriment to the property.

Legally, the site is zoned L-1, Light Industrial, and R-1, Residential, which is mixed zoning but
given the general development in the immediate area as an events center, the L-1 zoning would
have precedence in this instance and the need for a public use or private use as say an RV park
would probably be an acceptable use of the property.

Some of the financial beneficial uses would be those that meet the needs of the community as an
events center in combination with an RV park.

Right now the cost of money is still fairly low historically and there is demand in the community
for a fairgrounds and events center and for an RV park, so given these facts, a mixed use of the
site for a fair grounds and events center along a smaller RV would appear to result in the highest
and best use of the property. The financial feasibility is tested by the alternative of buying an
existing property for less than it costs to build a comparable property with the same utility or
renting a property with the same utility for less than it costs to build or own a similar property.
Because there are no other large, generally level sites in the area available or for sale right now
with the same utility as the subject site, the only alternative is buy or develop the subject

property.

The next test for what use would be the maximally most productive use of the sites. The
maximally most productive use of the site would be appear to be to assemble the sites as a single
parcel and seek abandonment of the platted but never built streets and possibly join this parcel
with adjoining sites to create a large enough parcel to accommodate a fair grounds and events

12




I SKW

center and/or an smaller RV park in combination with development into a fairgrounds events
center.

Easements and Encroachments
No title report was available for review by the appraiser but it does not appear there are any
physical easements or encroachments that would adversely affect the subject property.

Surrounding Land Use

The subject is bordered on the south open vacant hilly industrial land, to the east by a ravine, to
the north by vacant parcels and a few modest homes and to the west by the V&T Railroad tracks.
None of the surrounding uses are considered detrimental to the subject property and there were
no conditions noted in the neighborhood that would adversely affect the subject property. In
conclusion, the subject property is considered a good site for assemblage and development as it is
part of the only larger almost level site in the community.

VALUATION

Normally, an appraiser has three methods of estimating the value of a property. These are known
as the Cost Approach, the Sales Comparison Approach, and the Income Approach. In the
appraisal of this property only the Sales Comparison using comparable land sales will be used.

SALE COMPARISON APPROACH

The Sales Comparison Approach is a technique in which the market value estimate is predicated
upon prices paid in actual market transactions or current listings, the former fixing the lower
limit of value in a static or advancing market (price-wise) and fixing the higher limit of value in a
declining market, and the latter fixing the higher limit of value in any market. The sales listed in
the tabular chart on the following page have been investigated, analyzed and compared to the
subject on a price per square foot of first floor area.

Land Sales

A search was conducted for comparable land sales and listings in the area and only four com-
parable sales were noted that were considered acceptable in estimating the value of the subject
site. The sales were investigated, analyzed and compared to the subject property on a price per
acre basis. Factors that affect value include the motivation of the buyer and seller or conditions
of the sale, market conditions at the time of sale (time), location and access, size, shape and
utility, zoning, and availability of utilities and whether or not there were any improvements
included in the sale. Any other factors that might affect value were also considered. Due to lack
of sales in the area and insufficient data to use paired sales for the factors affecting value,
subjective percentage adjustments in 5% increments were used to recognize clear superiority or
inferiority of a characteristic of each sale in comparison to the subject site. On the following
page is a Land Sales Chart showing the salient facts regarding each comparable followed by a
discussion, analysis and adjustment grid.

13




Kw
LAND SALES CHART
Sale APN # Sale Price Land Area
Location Sale Date Zoning : } e
001-173-01, 02, 07,12, 17,19-21 $200,000 * 1.78 ac $2.58 {Steep lots, w/2 old rentals on prop.
220-289 8. C St. Net s/p - $80,000 for imprvmts.
7/28/2017 Cc2
2 01-133-07 $45,000 43 ac $2.40 orner lot with streets on east and
316 So. G St. est sides, not parceled but util.
10/17/2017 CR vailable.
3 01-127-03 $15,000 A7 ac $2.03 Ilnside lot, steep parcel, on paved st.
646 So. H St.
12/08/2016 CR
4 01-121-02 $70,000 5632 $2.85 ICorner lot, gentle slope, paved st.,
660 S. F St. view
077/11/2018 CR
Subj, 01-135-06;136-01; 173-01; 176-01 N/A 4,54 ac | evel lots with mixed zoning no St.
Both sides of | St. bet. Page St & mprvmts. Uti. ext. req.
Flowery St.

‘ j‘ma




e SKW

Discussion and Analysis

Sale 1 is a multi-parcel sale of eight separate but contiguous sites, including two with old homes
on them which have marginal value estimated at $40,000 each, leaving a net land value of
$200,000. The property is on C Street which has good exposure but the lots have a fairly steep
downslope from the highway and will be difficult to develop. This was an all cash sale through a
Realtor at close to the listing price. This sale needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for
time but should be adjusted downward for its location on a prominent street with a view and
availability of utilities. This sale needs a downward adjustment for size as all else being equal,
smaller parcels tend to sell for less than larger parcels. It should be adjusted upward for the
considerable slope and the difficulty that will be encountered in developing the lots. No
adjustment is considered required for zoning.

Sale 2 is a single parcel with paved streets and utilities on two sides. The terrain is sloping but
the parcel is buildable without too much development expense. This was an all cash sale in a
private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for time. This sale
needs a downward adjustment for size as all else being equal, smaller lots typically sell for more
per square foot that larger lots like the subject. The location is superior to the subject because the
area is more homogeneous and developed. The terrain is sloping, so it will require some expense
to develop the parcel but this is offset that it is on an existing road. No adjustment is considered
required for zoning.

Sale 3 is a small single parcel sale with paved street on one side but is very steep. This was a
cash sale in a private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for
time. The location is considered comparable to the subject but it is on a paved street with
utilities available. This sale needs a considerable downward adjustment for size as all else being
equal, smaller lots typically sell for more per square foot that larger lots like the subject. The
terrain is sloping, so it will require some expense to develop the parcel.

Sale 4 is a very recent sale of a parcel located southwest of the subject a short distance. It has a
gentle down slope from F Street which encroaches into the parcel somewhat and lowers the net
usable area of the site. There is power and water available to the site but sewer is about 400'. The
buyer has plans for a storage shed on the property and eventually a home. This was a cash sale.
The location and access are superior to the sub_lect and it has a good territorial view. This site
needs a considerable downward adjustment for size as all else being equal, smaller sites typically
sell for less per unit value than larger sites like the subject. The site is rectangular but the street
encroached in to the site lower its net usable area or utility. Development expense would be
comparable to the subject except it is on a paved road and the subject parcel will require some
road construction.

Below is a discussion of the factors affecting value, followed by and adjustment grid.

Financing and Conditions of the Sale
All the sales are considered open market transactions, so no adjustment is required for this
category.

Market Conditions (time)
No time adjustment is considered necessary for the sales as are fairly recent.

15




|

—_— S

I

Kw

Location and Access

The subject is in an area where there are no street improvements but there is access into the
general area without assemblage with adjoining parcels, streets will have to be improved to the
subject property; likewise utilities. Sale 1 is on C Street which has good access and exposer and
streets and utilities are available. Sales 2 has paved streets and utilities available. Sale 3isona
paved road with all utilities available and Sale 4 is on a paved street with utilities available but
sewer.

Lot Size
All the lots are smaller than the subject, so they will require downward adjustments for size as all
else being equal, smaller parcels sell for more per square foot than larger parcels.

Use or Zoning
No adjustment is made for this category as the uses and zoning for all the sales are compatible
with each other.

Terrain

Sale 1 has moderately steep down slope from the street and Sale 3 also has a fairly steep slope
which will increase development costs for both parcels but the subject, though level needs street
and utility extensions to the site. Sales 2 and 4 has a gentle downslopes from the the street with
little development expense involved,

On the following page is an adjustment grid showing the relative percentage adjustments to the
comparable sales for the various categories that affect value on a price per square foot basis.

16




ADJUSTMENT GRID

I
Il Sale l Subject

1 2
Location Both sides of 1 } 220-289S.C 3168.G 646 So. H 660 So. F
St. bet. Page St St St. St. St.
& Flowery St.
Sale/ Price $200,000 * $45,000 $15,000 $70,000
Sale Date 7/28/2017 10/ 13/201 12/08/2016 | 07/11/2018
Size (AC) 4.54 . 1.78 0.43 0.17 0.56
Price/SF $2.58 $2.40 $2.03 $2.85
Time Adj. 0% 5% 0% 0%
Cond. Of Sale 0% 0% 0% 0%
Adj. Price/SF $2.58 $2.52 $2.03 $2.85
Adjustments
Location/ -5% -5% 0% -5%
Access
Size -10% -10% -15% -10%
Shape/Utility 5% 0% -5% 5%
Dev. Expense 0% -5% 10% -5%
Zoning 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other 0% 0% 0% 0%
[ Total Adi. -10% -20% -10% -15%
" Ad!'usted $/SF $2.32 $2.02 $1.82 $2.43

* adj. for improvements

4.54 acres (197,762 SF) x $2.25/SF = $444,964, rounded to $445,000

With adjustments the price per square foot ranges from $2.02/SF to $2.43/SF with the arithmetic
average of the sales $2.15/SF and the median is $2.17/SF. Sale 1 is the least comparable except
for size as it is on main street but has a steep downslope from the street. Sale 2 is the most
similar overall in location and but requires a downward adjustment for size and for the better
location on paved streets with utilities available. Sale 3 is has a steep slope but is on a paved
street with utilities available but is much smaller than the subject. Sale 4 is a very recent sale and
is a superior lot with better frontage on a paved street. With the most weight to Sale 2 and 4, and
some consideration to the mean and median values, the final value is supported at $2.25/SF for a

value indication of the subject property of:

17



RECONCILIATION AND FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE
INDICATED VALUE BY SALES COMPARISON APPROACH: $445,000

The Cost Approach and the Income Approach are not considered relevant when valuing a vacant
site like the subject and therefore were not used.

The Sales Comparison Approach is used by Realtors® and by buyers and sellers as well.
Through the common unit of comparison, namely the price per square foot basis for the land
area, sales can be compared to the subject property and a meaningful value range formed if
proper recognition is given to the factors affecting value. With adjustments to the sales for the
factors affecting value, there is good support for the final value indication by this approach.

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, it is the opinion of the
appraiser that the Market Value of the subject property is supported at $445,000.

Exposure Time and Marketing Time

Based on a discussion with a discussion with an industrial broker in the area and observation of
the marketing time of the sales, it is estimated that at the appraised value the exposure time
would be from three months to one year and without any evidence to the contrary, the marketing
time in the future is expected to be the same, or from three months to one year at the appraised
value.

18



VIRGINIA CITY VENTURES, INC. .34-ACRE SITE
LOCATED BETWEEN H & | STREETS
AND POTOSI AND PAGE STREETS
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NV

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The subject site is a rectangular parcel located on the north side of
Potosi Street between H Street and I Street in the southeast quadrant of Virginia City in an
industrial area currently used as the Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center because of
its level terrain.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The site
may briefly be described as Lots 6, 7 and 8 Block 210, Range H, Virginia City, Nevada. The
parcel is also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-

172-01.
Owner of Record - Virginia City Ventures, Inc.
Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and

to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last
purchased.

SITE MAP

2]
3 7‘"2"9

L l:‘;d‘#lllfl{”
sesrses
yIrYys
*AE

B

b3y
23 8%
33y

eSS

Y 2
NRRS
.

¥
A

Y

23t
A%

d5l

33

IERARRY
:\\

IR

& %:
>

Axy

19



SUBJECT PHOTOS

View of the site looking north with
subject site in foreground before
the building, note roadway
easement over the subject site.

View of the site looking south with
easement access over the south
portion of the site

20




AERIAL SITE MAP

§ ‘ g
it &L
Ey
-

R

280,

g,

SITE DATA

Location

The subject site is located on the north side of Potosi Street between H and I Streets in the
southeast section of Virginia City in an industrial zoned area currently leased to Storey County as
part of the Virginia City Fairground and Events Center.

Dimensions, Area and Shape
The parcel is rectangular measuring 100’ x 150" with a total land area of .34 of one acre or 15,000
square feet. The parcel has legal access but the street have not been improved.

Topography & Drainage

The grade in the vicinity of the subject site is generally level near the north end and slopes up
some toward the south end. The property was a mine dump area excavated from the old mines in
the area but was leveled and compacted several years ago.

Soils and Subsoils

No soil report was made available to this appraiser. The soils in the area appear a rocky, sandy,
gravelly type soil which are “dump” material from the adjoining mines that operated in the area
over 100 years ago. Several years ago the large pile of dump dirt was leveled and compacted and
currently most of the area is leased to the Storey County and operated as the Virginia City

21




Fairgrounds and Events Center. There are many miles of mining tunnels under the city that were
dug in the later 1800s during the search for gold and silver ore but there is no evidence of settling
under the subject site now.

Availability and Description of Utilities

Storey County provides water and sewer service in the area. Virginia City and Gold Hill get
there potable water from Marlette Lake in the Sierras via a pipeline and there is limited water
available for new development with new service on an allocation basis. Electricity is provided
by NV Energy and telephone service is provided by AT&T; albeit, it was not determined if there
is water or power in the immediate in the area but a sewer line is proposed to go near the site.

Street Improvements and Access

Even thought the streets are platted, they were never improved. Depending on development in
the area, the streets could be abandoned; albeit, the subject site would need still need access
which is currently has from a roadway into the area.

Zoning

The lots in Block 210, including the subject site are zoned Industrial I-2 or heavy industrial. Any
development of the lot would require a design review and most likely any public or private
development would be approved if consistent with the desires of the governing bodies and local
residents. The zoning map below shows the current zoning for the parcel. Again, note the
subject parcel is at the west end of Blocks 210.

Zoning Map

22




Assessments and Taxes
The site is identified by the Storey County Assessor's Office as parcel number 01-172-01.
According to the Storey County Assessors Office the assessed values, taxes, and market values
for the site are as follows: :

Assessed
APN Value Taxes Mkt. Vale | Size - acres
01-172-01 $2,102 $72.74 $6,006 0.34

Easements and Encroachments

No title report was available for review by the appraiser but it does not appear there are any
physical easements or encroachments that would adversely affect the subject property other than
the roadway easements over the south portion of the site. Access is proscriptive as the roads in
the area do not follow the old platted roads; again, it does appear the access roadway encroaches
into the subject site (see Aerial Map). Access is presumed to be legal.

Surrounding Land Use

The subject is bordered on the south by a roadway into the old V&T Railroad work shop and then
open vacant hilly industrial land with considerable mine dump in the area. There is a ravine to
the east and a moderate up slope to the west past the access road. The V&T railroad tracks are to
the west of the access road and to the north is a small warehouse and storage lot. None of the
surrounding uses are considered detrimental to the subject property and there were no conditions
noted in the neighborhood that would adversely affect the subject property except the roadway to
the adjoining property encroaches into the subject site. In conclusion, the subject site is con-
sidered a good site for assembled because it is part of the only larger almost level site in the
community.

HIGHEST AND BEST USE

Highest and best use is defined as that reasonable and probable use that supports the highest
present value as defined as of the effective date of the appraisal.

There are four criteria which must be met in the analysis of highest and best use for both land
that is vacant and property that is improved. The highest and best use must be (1) physically
possible, (2) legally permissible, (3) financially feasible, and (4) maximally productive.
Generally, these criteria are analyzed in the preceding sequence because if a property fails any
one of the criteria, the subsequent criteria are irrelevant to the analysis.

Physically, the site is rectangular platted lots with unimproved street right of ways on three sides
and a proscriptive roadway in from the south that is presumed to be legal access to the site. The
site is smaller than most other sites in the area but this is not considered a detriment to the
property.

Legally, the site is zoned L-2, Heavy Industrial but most other land in the area is zoned L-1 or
Light Industrial. In any case, the subject’s zoning would probably not be adhered to as any
development plan for the area would allow a variance for this parcel to some sort of commercial
or quasi-public use such as a park, events center or assemblage of the parcel with surrounding
parcels for a larger plan for the area instead of just for this parcel.

23




The maximally most productive use of the site would appear to be to assemble it with adjoining
parcels and seek abandonment of the platted lots in the area that were never developed, so as to
create a large enough parcel to accommodate a fair grounds and events center and/or an smaller
RV park.

VALUATION

Normally, an appraiser has three methods of estimating the value of a property. These are known
as the Cost Approach, the Sales Comparison Approach, and the Income Approach. In this
appraisal, only the Sales Comparison using comparable land sales will be used.

A search was conducted for sales and listings of similar sites in the area. The four most com-
parable sales have been researched and analyzed and compared to the subject on a price per
square foot basis which is the typical unit of comparison for this type of property used by market
participants.

Factors that affect value include the motivation of the buyer and seller or conditions of the sale,
market conditions at the time of sale (time), location and access, size, shape and utility, zoning,
and availability of utilities and whether or not there were any improvements included in the sale.
Any other factors that might affect value were also considered. Due to lack of sales in the area
and insufficient data to use paired sales for the factors affecting value, subjective percentage
adjustments in 5% increments were used to recognize clear superiority or inferiority ofa
characteristic of each sale in comparison to the subject site.

On the following page is a Land Sales Chart showing the salient facts regarding each comparable
followed by a discussion, analysis and adjustment grid.

24




LAND SALES CHART

APN # Sale Price
Location Sale Date
001-173-01, 02, 07,12, 17,19-21 $200,000 * Steep lots, w/2 old rentals on prop.
220-289 S. C St. Net s/p - $80,000 for imprvmts.
7/28/2017 c2
01-133-07 $45,000 42 ac $2.46 orner lot with streets on east and
316 So. G St. st sides, not parceled but util.
10/17/2017 CR vailable.
01-127-03 $15,000 A7 ac $2.03 teep lot on paved street with util.
646 So. H St. vail.
12/08/2016 CR
01-121-02 $70,000 5632 $2.85 orner lot. ;moderate slope, paved
660 S. F St. .
077/11/2018 CR
01-172-01 N/A .34 ac enerally level lot, proscriptive
bet. H & | Streets bet. Potosi St. & ccess, util. ext. req.
Page St. 2 ]
Location Map

P Jeledeleind
3 i

25



Wm SKW

Discussion and Analysis

Sale 1 is a multi-parcel sale of eight separate contiguous sites, including two with old homes on
the lots which have marginal value estimated at $40,000 each, thus leaving a net land value of
$200,000. The property is on C Street which has good exposure but the lots have a fairly steep
downslope from the highway which will raise development costs. This was an all cash sale
through a Realtor at close to the listing price. This sale needs no adjustment for conditions of the
sale or for time but should be adjusted downward for location on a paved street and for access
and availability of utilities. This sale also needs a upward adjustment for size as all else being
equal, smaller parcels tend to sell for less than larger parcels. No adjustment is considered
required for zoning.

Sale 2 is a single parcel with paved streets on two sides and utilities available in the streets. The
terrain has a gentle slope but is very buildable without too much expense. This was an all cash
sale in a private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for time.
The location is superior to the subject’s location as it is more homogeneous. The terrain is slop-
ing but all utilities are available to the site, so overall development expense will be less than for
the subject property. This sale needs no adjustment for size or for zoning.

Sale 3 is a parcel on a paved street but has a steep up slope from the street. This was a cash sale
in a private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for time. The
location is considered comparable to the subject but it is on a paved street with utilities available,
overall development expense would be more for this site than for the subject because of the
terrain. This sale needs a considerable downward adjustment for size as all else being equal,
smaller lots typically sell for more per square foot that larger lots like the subject.

Sale 4 is a recent sale of a parcel located southwest of the subject a short distance. It has a gentle
down slope from F Street which encroaches into the parcel somewhat and lowers the net usable
area of the site. There is power and water available to the site but sewer is about 400'. The buyer
has plans for a storage shed on the property and eventually a home. This was a cash sale. The
location and access are superior to the subject as it has a good territorial view and is on a paved
street. This site needs no adjustment for size. The site is rectangular but the street encroached in
to the site lower its net usable area or utility.

Discussion & Analysis of Factors Affecting Value
Following is a discussion of the previously described factors that affect value.

Financing and Conditions of the Sale
All the sales are considered open market transactions, so no adjustment is required for this

category.

Market Conditions (time)
No time adjustment is considered necessary for the sales as are fairly recent.

Location and Access
The subject has access from a gravel road and utilities are available. Sale 1 is on C Street which
has good access and exposer and streets and utilities are available. Sale 2 has paved streets on the

26




two sides and utilities available. Sale 3 has paved street access and utilities available with Sale 4
is on a paved street with water available but no sewers in the immediate area.

Lot Size
Sale 1 is much larger than the subject and needs to be adjusted upward for size. Sale 3 is smaller
than the subject and should be adjusted downward for this factor.

Use or Zoning
No adjustment is made for this category as the uses and zoning for all the sales are compatible
with each other.

Terrain

Sales 1 has moderate to steep down slope from the street and Sale 3 a moderate to steep up slope
from the street, so both should be adjusted upward in comparison to the subject for this item. Sale
2 has a gentle slope and will be easy to develop as will Sale 4.

On the following page is an adjustment grid showing the adjustments to the comparable sales for
the various categories that affect value on a price per square foot basis.

27




Ii ADJUSTMENT GRID

11==Sale Subject 1 2 4
Location Both sides of [ 220-289 S. 316 S. G St 646 So. H 660 So. F
St. bet. Page St C St St. St.
& Flowery St.
Sale/ Price $200,000 * $45,000 $15,000 $70,000
Sale Date 7/28/2017 10/17/2017 12/08/2016 { 07/11/2018
Size (acre) 0.34 1.78 0.43 0.17 0.56
Price/SF $2.58 $2.40 $2.03 $2.85
Time Adj. 0% 5% 0% 0%
Cond. Of Sale 0% 0% 0% 0%
Adj. Price/SF $2.58 $2.52 $2.03 $2.85
Adjustments
Location/ -5% -5% -5% 0%
Access
| s 10% 0% -10% 0%
| snaperutility 5% 0% % 5%
Dev. Expense 0% -5% 5% 0%
Zoning 0% 0% 0% 0%
[ other 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total Adj. 10% -10% -5% 5%
Adjusted $/SF

* adj. for improvements

With adjustments the price per square foot ranges from $1.92/SF to $3.00/SF with the arithmetic
average sales is $2.51/SF and the median $2.56/SF. Sale 1 is the least comparable to the subject
in location and size and is weighted the least. Sales 2 and 4 are the most comparable but has
better access and development potential and are in a more homogeneous areas. Sale 4 is the most
recent sale and required the least adjustment and is given the most weight but with fairly equal
weight to Sale 2, the final value is supported at $2.75/SF for a value indication of the subject

property of:

.34 acres (15,000 SF) x $2.75/SF = $41,250, rounded to $41,000

28



e SKW

RECONCILIATION AND FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE
INDICATED VALUE BY SALES COMPARISON APPROACH: $41,000

The Cost Approach and the Income Approach are not considered relevant when valuing a vacant
site like the subject and therefore were not used.

The Sales Comparison Approach is used by Realtors® and by buyers and sellers as well. Through
the common unit of comparison, namely the price per square foot basis for the land area, sales can
be compared to the subject property and a meaningful value range formed if proper recognition is
given to the factors affecting value. With adjustments to the sales for the factors affecting value,
there is good support for the final value indication by this approach.

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, it is the opinion of the
appraiser that the Market Value of the subject property is supported at $41,000.

Exposure Time and Marketing Time

Based on a discussion with a discussion with an industrial broker in the area and observation of
the marketing time of the sales and listings, it is estimated that at the appraised value the exposure
time would be from three months to one year and without any evidence to the contrary, the
marketing time in the future is expected to be the same, or from three months to one year at the
appraised value.

29




==== YKy

RICHARD CORRELL .46-ACRE STORAGE WAREHOUSE PROPERTY
LOCATED BETWEEN H & | STREETS
AND BETWEEN POTOSI AND PAGE STREETS
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NV

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The subject property is located between H and I streets in the
southeast quadrant of Virginia City in an industrial area currently used as the Virginia City
Fairgrounds and Events Center because of its level terrain.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The site
may briefly be described as Lots 2, 3, 4 and 5 Block 210, Range H, Virginia City, Nevada.
The parcel is also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
001-172-03.

Owner of Record - Richard S. Correll

Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and
to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last

H
purchased.
ety rperes | L ?;____. L'-“” T W"W’“ - YO W TS 5 MR
F e - A “""‘:ﬁ 5 y B
: - STREET CI O ]
St i e 5 T 1 R 0 e AT e
Y IRCT N T RS IRL- ; o EP I
B IR N L 28 e 8 LI éBh‘g 1
5 e ! X H i 4 U N (IR H = L'y LU sy ¢
.. i~ ‘/‘: i M 3 'Y i 1 L i 9 asni e g ] -
STREET 2 e

o 5T _E__;,__i.-}wg/.{.g‘
. :/.?.g;l""a‘:

‘D’M" y
cos A%

3o
‘v‘z
\"o:
~B
e = = s

VIASARNGS S
2

'
'
]
L3
!
g

% . I @._-@; % ¢
‘@21t Y

ALY
FPES
(it FoF TEFTYS T4
7’5‘-;” PR MR A N
SUSLEaRER ks this pivetR s’ ME,
L PR Y et ire e
22231 LT3
e : Fa

.
025

03

Egdeles
2RIELER,

3}
§

s
:\

3

33

3

\

3
‘l
N ey

'S
"e -
2 20
4
Taras
‘\ (I~ 4
- 3t
N b
> !
5 &
el
H

\
\
\
\
A
."‘—
. :
.
SR
-
|1 =©
e -
L] 8
R
T
{ Dok
i~
~» g 3
O 1535
°
P -
90k ™
:’:\.\\\\‘\\
Ry
T
-~ ¥
. 1

33
0

Y
338
Srvaysad

~awy
M

30




| | SUBJECT PHOTOS

1
cEe e 0
LR S e SRR DA : SR Nena . §»\“§§- =
] View of the metal storage shed on the site looking
! west

£

= SUthE L
g southeast

L

View of the r looking northeast

31




AERIAL SITE MAP

32




Kw

SITE DATA

Location

The subject site is located 70" north side of Potosi Street right of way between H and I Streets in
the southeast section of Virginia City in an industrial zoned area currently leased to Storey
County as part of the Virginia City Fairground and Events Center.

Dimensions, Area and Shape
The parcel is rectangular measuring 100' x 200" with a total land area of 20,000 SF .46 acres.
The parcel has legal access but the street have not been paved.

Topography & Drainage
The grade in the vicinity of the subject site is generally level as the large amount of dump dirt
excavated from the old mines in the area was leveled and compacted several years ago.

Soils and Subsoils

No soil report was made available to this appraiser. The soils in the area appear a rocky, sandy,
gravel type compacted soil which is “dump” material from the adjoining mines that operated in
the area over 100 years ago. Several years ago the large pile of dump dirt was leveled and
compacted and is currently mostly leased to the Storey County and operated as the Virginia City
Fairgrounds and Events Center.

Availability and Description of Utilities

Storey County provides water and sewer service in area. Virginia City and Gold Hill get there
potable water from Marlette Lake in the Sierras via a pipeline and there is limited water available
for new development with new service on an allocation basis. Electricity is provided by NV
Energy and telephone service is provided by AT&T; albeit, it was not determined if there is water
and power adjacent to the site but there is a proposed sewer line to go near the site. There is no
natural gas to the town; instead, residents and businesses use propane, augmented by wood
stoves or fireplaces.

Street Improvements and Access
Even thought the streets are platted, they were never improved. Depending on development in
the area the streets could be abandoned; albeit, the subject site would need one street for access.

Zoning

The lot is in Block 210 which is zoned I-2 or Heavy Industrial. Any development of the lot
would require a design review and most likely any public or private development would be
approved if consistent with the desires of the governing bodies and local residents. The zoning
map on the following page shows the current zoning of the parcel. Note the subject parcel is in
Block 210.

33



Zoning Map
[T 07,
i

Assessments and Taxes

The site is identified by the Storey County Assessor's Office as parcel number 01-172-03. In
Nevada the assessed value is 35% of the assessor's fair market value estimate. In actual practice,
land values are based on the assessor's estimate of fair market value and improvement values are
based on replacement cost new less 1.5% per year for depreciation down to a minimum of 25%
of the estimated replacement cost and land value is based on the assessor’s estimate of its fair
market value. The 2017/18 tax rate in the area is $3.4607 per $100 of assessed value. According
to the Storey County Assessors Office the assessed values, taxes, and market values for the sites
are as follows:

Assessed Assessed Total
APN Value Value Assessed Mkt. Size -
Land Imprvmts. Value Taxes Vale acres
01-172-03 $6,768 $8,432 $15,200 $423.97 | $43,429 0.48

Easements and Encroachments
No title report was available for review by the appraiser but it does not appear there are any

physical easements or encroachments that would adversely affect the subject property.

34




Surrounding Land Use

The subject is bordered on the south by vacant land and a road easement, to the east by generally
level land and then a ravine, to the north is a small fenced storage yard and to the west is a drive-
way and then hillside and the V&T Railroad tracks. None of the surrounding uses are considered
detrimental to the subject property and there were no conditions noted in the neighborhood that
would adversely affect the subject property. In conclusion, the subject site is considered a good
parcel for assemblage because it is part of the only larger almost level area in the community.

IMPROVEMENTS

There is a 1,080 SF metal shop building on the site that was reported built in 1996 and it was built
to the historic standards with metal siding and roof to match the prevailing architecture in Virginia
City in the 1800s for mining related buildings. The interior was not inspected but the owner said it
has a heavy reinforced concrete floor, 2" x 6" frame walls 16" on center 14' high which have R20
insulation and are sheetrocked as is the ceiling which is not insulated. It has an engineered truss
roof with a 6/12 slope and it has corrugated steel roofing and sidng over plywood sheathing. It has
a 10" x 12" overhead steel door in front and also a side man access door. It does not have any power
to the building or any plumbing and is used as a storage warehouse by the owner. He provided a
cost breakdown to the appraiser with an estimated replacement cost today of $65,500 or roughly
$60/SF. Other improvements include a small shed on the property valued at around $2,000 and a
perimeter wire fence on railroad ties posts with a steel locked gate at the entry. The site improve-
ments have an estimated replacement cost of about $2,500 for a total replacement cost estimate of
$70,000 (865,500 bldg. + $2,000 shed + $2,500 site improvements = $70,000). The improve-
ments are in good condition and have an estimated contributory value of 60% of replacement cost
or $42,000.

HIGHEST AND BEST USE

Highest and best use is defined as that reasonable and probable use that supports the highest
present value as defined as of the effective date of the appraisal.

There are four criteria which must be met in the analysis of highest and best use for both land that
is vacant and property that is improved. The highest and best use must be (1) physically possible,
(2) legally permissible, (3) financially feasible, and (4) maximally productive. Generally, these
criteria are analyzed in the preceding sequence because if a property fails any one of the criteria,
the subsequent criteria are irrelevant to the analysis.

Highest and Best Use As If Vacant
Physically, the site is rectangular platted parcel with a paved roadway to the east and gravel
roadway to the west which are considered proscriptive easement accesses. It is similar in size to

many other parcels in the area.

Legally, the site is zoned L-2, Heavy Industrial but most other land in the area is zoned L-1 or
Light Industrial. In any case, the subject’s zoning would probably not be adhered to as any
development plan for the area would probably allow a variance for this parcel to some sort of
commercial or quasi-public use such as a park, events center and assemblage with surrounding
parcels for a larger plan for the area instead of just for this parcel.

35




The maximally most productive use of the site would be appear to be to assemble the subject site
with adjoining parcels and seek abandonment of the platted but never built streets to create a large
enough parcel to accommodate a fair grounds and events center and/or an smaller RV park.

Highest and Best Use As Improved

Ultimately, the highest and best use of the site would be assemblage of the site with adjoining
parcels into higher and better use such as a county fairgrounds and events center or possibly as an
RV park, or a combination of the two uses.

VALUATION

Normally, an appraiser has three methods of estimating the value of a property. These are known
as the Cost Approach, the Sales Comparison Approach, and the Income Approach. In this
appraisal, only the Sales Comparison using comparable land sales will be used.

A search was conducted for sales and listings of similar sites in the area and improved sites with
warehouses on them. No sales of sites with warehouses on them were found, so the contributory
value of the improvements was based on the estimated cost of the improvements less 50% for
depreciation. The four most comparable land sales in the area have been researched and analyzed
and compared to the subject on a price per square foot basis which is the typical unit of comparison
for this type of property used by market participants.

Factors that affect value include the motivation of the buyer and seller or conditions of the sale,
market conditions at the time of sale (time), location and access, size, shape and utility, zoning, and
availability of utilities and whether or not there were any improvements included in the sale; any
other factors that might affect value were also considered. Due to lack of sales in the area and
insufficient data to use paired sales for the factors affecting value, so subjective percentage adjust-
ments in 5% increments were used to recognize clear superiority or inferiority of a characteristic of
each sale in comparison to the subject site.

On the following page is a Land Sales Chart showing the salient facts regarding each comparable
followed by a discussion, analysis and adjustment grid.

36




LAND SALES CHART

Sale Price Land Area Price/
Sale Date Zoning Sq.Ft. , .
001-173-01, 02, 07,12, 17,19-21 $200,000 * 1.78 $2.58 iSteep lots, w/2 old rentals on prop.
220-289 S. C St. Net s/p - $80,000 for imprvmts.
7128/2017 C2
$45,000 42 $2.46 orner lot with streets on east and
est sides, util. available.
10/17/2017 CR
$15,000 A7 $2.03 {nside steep lot with paved access
nd utilities
12/08/2016 CR
$70,000 5632 $2.85 orner lot. ,moderate slope, paved
t.
077/11/2018 CR
N/A .46 ac enerally level lot, proscriptive
bet. H & | Streets bet. Potosi St. & ccess, util. ext. req., 1080 sf metal
-2 arehouse on the site

3

o e FXI0

37



Kw

Discussion and Analysis
Sale 1 is a multi-parcel sale of eight separate contiguous sites, including two with old homes on the

lots which have marginal value estimated at $40,000 each, leaving a net land value of $200,000.
The property is on C Street which has good exposure but the lots have a fairly steep downslope
from the highway and will be difficult to develop. This was an all cash sale through a Realtor at
close to the listing price. This sale needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for time but
should be adjusted downward for location and access on a paved street and availability of utilities.
This sale will have increased development expense because of the slope but it should be less than
for the subject which will require street improvements and utility extensions. This sale also needs
an upward adjustment for size as all else being equal, larger parcels tend to sell for less per square
foot smaller parcels. No adjustment is considered required for zoning.

Sale 2 is a single parcel with paved streets on two sides and utilities available in the streets. The
site has a gentle is slope to the east but the parcel is very buildable. This was an all cash sale ina
private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for time. The
location is superior or more homogeneous than the subject location and it has utilities available in
the paved streets. The terrain is sloping but development expense will be less than for the subject.
This sale needs a no adjustment for size or for zoning.

Sale 3 is a single parcel with a paved street on one side but a very steep up slope from the parcel.
This was a cash sale in a private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the
sale or for time. The location is considered comparable to the subject because but it is on a paved
street with utilities available. The terrain is steep, so it will require considerable expense to
develop the parcel. This sale needs a considerable downward adjustment for size as all else being
equal, smaller lots typically sell for more per square foot that larger lots like the subject.

Sale 4 is a very recent sale of a parcel located southwest of the subject a short distance. Ithasa
gentle down slope from a paved street and borders SR 341. It was a cash sale to a party who had
been interested in buying a parcel in the area and made a personal inquiry to the owner. The buyer
plans on building a shop on the site and eventually maybe a residence. This sale needs no
adjustment for conditions of the sale or time. It does need a slight downward adjustment for
location and access but no adjustment for size.

Discussion & Analysis of Factors Affecting Value
Following is a discussion of the previously described factors that affect value.

Financing and Conditions of the Sale
All the sales are considered open market transactions, so no adjustment is required for this

category.

Market Conditions (time)
No time adjustment is considered necessary for the sales as are fairly recent.

Location and Access
The subject is in an area where there are no permeant street improvements but there is access into

the general area through proscriptive gravel and paved road easements. Likewise, there are no
utilities in the immediate area, except a sewer line is proposed to go to the north of the subject.

38



Kw

Sale 1 is on C Street which has good access and exposer and utilities available. Sales 2 has paved
streets on the east and west and utilities available. Sale 3 has paved road access and utilities
available but is very steep.

Lot Size
Sale 1 is much larger than the subject and needs to be adjusted upward for size. Sale 2 is similar in
size and Sale 3 is much smaller, so it requires a downward adjustment for size.

Use or Zoning
No adjustment is made for this category as the uses and zoning for all the sales are compatible with

each other.

Terrain

Sale 1 has a moderate to steep down slope from the street, and Sale 3, likewise has a steep up slope
from the street, so both should be adjusted upward in comparison to the subject for this item. Sale
2 has a gentle slope and will be less difficult to develop.

On the following page is an adjustment grid showing the adjustments to the comparable sales for
the various categories that affect value on a price per square foot basis.

39



Location Both sides of 220-289 S. 3168.G 646 So. H 660 So. F
St. bet. Page St C St. St. St. St.
& Flowery St.
Sale/ Price $200,000 * $45,000 $15,000 $70,000
Sale Date 7/28/2017 10/17/2017 | 12/08/2016 { 07/11/2018
Size (acre) 0.46 1.78 0.43 0.17 0.56
Price/SF $2.58 $2.40 $2.03 $2.85
Time Adj. 0% 5% 0% 0%
Cond. Of Sale 0% 0% 0% 0%
Adj. Price/SF $2.58 $2.52 $2.03 $2.85
Adjustments
Location/ -5% -5% -5% -5%
Access
Size 10% 0% -5% 0%
Shape/Utility 5% 0% 5% 5%
Dev. Expense 5% -5% 5% 0%
i Zoning 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total Adj. 15% -10% 0% 0%
Adjusted $/AC $2.97 $2.27 $2.03 $2.85

* adj. for improvements

With adjustments the price per square foot ranges from $2.03/SF to $2.97/SF with the arithmetic
average of the sales $2.53/SF and the median $2.56/SF. Sale 1 is the least comparable to the
subject in location and size and is weighted the least. Sale 2 along with Sale 4 are the most
comparable to the subject but both sales have slightly superior access and development potential
and is in more homogeneous areas. With most weight to Sales 2 and 4, and some consideration to
the mean and median values, the final value is supported at $2.75/SF for a value indication of the
subject property of:

.46 acres (20,000 SF) x $2.75/SF = $55,000

Tt was previously estimated that the storage warehouse, shed and site improvements on the site
have a contributory value estimated at $42,000, so the final value of this property is $97,000.

40



l RECONCILIATION AND FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE
INDICATED VALUE BY SALES COMPARISON APPROACH: $97,000

The Cost Approach was used to the extent that the contributory value of the improvements was
estimated based on replacement cost less depreciation. The Income Approach was not considered
relevant as the subject is not considered and income property, per se.

The Sales Comparison Approach is used by Realtors® and by buyers and sellers as well. Through
the common unit of comparison, namely the price per square foot basis for the land area, sales can
be compared to the subject property and a meaningful value range formed if proper recognition is
given to the factors affecting value. With adjustments to the sales for the factors affecting value,
and additional contributory value of the improvements added to the land value, there is good
support for the final value indication by this approach.

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, it is the opinion of the
appraiser that the Market Value of the subject property is supported at $97,000.

Exposure Time and Marketing Time

Based on a discussion with a discussion with an industrial broker in the area and observation of the
marketing time of the sales and listings, it is estimated that at the appraised value the exposure time
would be from three months to one year and without any evidence to the contrary, the marketing
time in the future is expected to be the same, or from three months to one year at the appraised
value.

41




MARK ALAN CHARLTON STORAGE .17-ACRE SITE
LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF PAGE STREET
BETWEEN H & | STREETS
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NV

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The site is located on the south side of Page Street between H and 1
streets in the southeast quadrant of Virginia City in an industrial area currently used as the
Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center because of its level terrain.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The site
may briefly be described as Lots 1 Block 210, Range H, Virginia City, Nevada. The parcel is
also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-172-04.

Owner of Record - Mark Alan Charlton

Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and
to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last
purchased.

SITE MAP

i
153 T Gl |
i R TN Y =y
i T L) 3 .

PR SIS S

o o om e of

8 oY
¥ .
o O
3
s
Gl 170
< Moy i ]
roues f 3
7243 | 1"Lm-‘7=5 )
Ve v ”
SR LA R P A e 4
TP APL S0 R o VEL S S & IIE ’ oz nd
LAY It s fEvrresy Y 2502
;;‘ %41 2253820041 7
K s AR s
5452 Fraa i # 4 i
Zl. 1O :
A ¢ 1
Fige 17 | 6
? 4 )
30° H
ity 4 perss 3
s T
wiprirfiesitt K S I IR 3
ot iy 1“5»/}5.’1427}:2‘ ;w o
L LILF
\ 64 2
i e

42




View of the site looking southwest

View of the site looking west

43




AERIAL SITE MAP

SITE DATA

Location
The subject site is located on the south side of Page Street between H and I Streets in the

southeast section of Virginia City in an industrial zoned area currently leased to Storey County as
part of the Virginia City Fairground and Events Center.

Dimensions, Area and Shape
The parcel is rectangular measuring 70' x 100" with a total land area of 7,000 SF, or .16 acres.

The parcel has legal access but the streets have not been improved.

Topography & Drainage
The grade in the vicinity of the subject site is generally level as the large amount of dump dirt
excavated from the old mines in the area was leveled and compacted several years ago.

Soils and Subsoils
No soil report was made available to this appraiser. The soils in the area appear a rocky, sandy,
gravelly type compacted soil which is “dump” material from the adjoining mines that operated in
the area over 100 years ago. Several years ago the large pile of dump dirt was leveled and
compacted and most of the area is currently leased to the Storey County and operated as the




Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center. There are many miles of mining tunnels under the
city that were dug in the late 1800s during the search for gold and silver ore but there is no
evidence of settling under the subject site now.

Availability and Description of Utilities

Storey County provides water and sewer service in. Virginia City and Gold Hill get there potable
water from Marlette Lake in the Sierras via a pipeline and there is limited water available for new
development with new service on an allocation basis. Electricity is provided by NV Energy and
telephone service is provided by AT&T; albeit, it was not determined if there is water sewer and
power to the site but a proposed sewer line will go very near the site. There is no natural gas to
the town; instead, residents and businesses use propane.

Street Improvements and Access

Even thought the streets are platted, they were never improved; albeit there is an unimproved dirt
and gravel road to the site over adjoining parcels and the street right of ways. Depending on
development in the area the streets could be abandoned; albeit, the subject site would still need
legal access which is presumed it does have now. There is no known plans to install any streets
in the immediate area.

Zoning

The lots in Block 210 are zoned I-2 or Heavy Industrial. Any development of the lot would
require a design review and most likely any public or private development would be approved if
consistent with the desires of the governing bodies and local residents. The zoning map on the
following page shows the current zoning of the parcel. Note the subject parcel is in Block 210.

Zoning Map

45




Assessments and Taxes

The site is identified by the Storey County Assessor's Office as parcel number 01-172-04. In
Nevada the assessed value is 35% of the assessor's fair market value estimate. The 2017/18 tax
rate in the area is $3.4607 per $100 of assessed value. According to the Storey County
Assessor’s Office the assessed values, taxes, and market values for the sites are as follows:

Assessed Assessed Total
APN Value Value Assessed Mkt. Size -
Land Imprvmts. Value Taxes Vale acres
01-172-04 $1,998 $259 $2,257 $35.58 $6,449 0.16

Easements and Encroachments
No title report was available for review by the appraiser but it does not appear there are any
physical easements or encroachments that would adversely affect the subject property.

Surrounding Land Use

The subject is bordered on the south by a small warehouse and storage lot property, to the east by
generally level land and then a ravine. To the north is a large level parcel currently leased to
Storey County and used as part of the Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center. To the north
is an access road, then vacant hillside land and then the V&T Railroad tracks. None of the
surrounding uses are considered detrimental to the subject property and there were no conditions
noted in the neighborhood that would adversely affect the subject property. In conclusion, the
subject site is considered a good site for assemblage because it is part of the only larger almost
level site in the community.

HIGHEST AND BEST USE

Highest and best use is defined as that reasonable and probable use fhat supports the highest
present value as defined as of the effective date of the appraisal.

| There are four criteria which must be met in the analysis of highest and best use for both land
‘ that is vacant and property that is improved. The highest and best use must be (1) physically
possible, (2) legally permissible, (3) financially feasible, and (4) maximally productive.
Generally, these criteria are analyzed in the preceding sequence because if a property fails any
one of the criteria, the subsequent criteria are irrelevant to the analysis.

Highest and Best Use As If Vacant

Physically, the site is rectangular and is part of the original Virginia City plat but the street have
never been improved. It is bordered to the west by an access road, to the east and north by open
land, to the south by a small warehouse/storage lot property. The subject site is smaller than
parcels in the area but this is not considered a real detriment to the property as it could probably
be assembled with other sites in the area to create a parcel with more utility.

Legally, the site is zoned L-2, Heavy Industrial but most other land in the area is zoned L-1 or
Light Industrial. In any case, the subject’s zoning would probably not be adhered to as any
development plan for the area should allow a variance for this parcel to some sort of commercial

46




or quasi-public use such as a park, events center and assemblage with surrounding parcels for a
larger plan for the area instead of just for this parcel.

The maximally most productive use of the site would appear to be to assemble it with adjoining
parcels and seek abandonment of the platted lot status to create a large enough parcels to
accommodate a fairgrounds and events center and/or an smaller RV park.

Highest and Best Use As Improved

The parcel has an interim use as a fenced storage lot but ultimately the highest and best use of the
site is assemblage with adjoining parcels into a higher and better use such as a county fairgrounds
and events center or possibly as an RV park, or a combination of the two uses.

VALUATION

Normally, an appraiser has three methods of estimating the value of a property. These are known
as the Cost Approach, the Sales Comparison Approach, and the Income Approach. In this
appraisal, only the Sales Comparison using comparable land sales will be used.

A search was conducted for sales and listings of similar sites in the area. The four most compar-
able land sales in the area have been researched and analyzed and compared to the subject on a
price per square foot basis which is the typical unit of comparison for this type of property used
by market participants.

Factors that affect value include the motivation of the buyer and seller or conditions of the sale,
market conditions at the time of sale (time), location and access, size, shape and utility, zoning,
and availability of utilities and whether or not there were any improvements included in the sale;
any other factors that might affect value were also considered. Due to lack of sales in the area
and insufficient data to use paired sales for the factors affecting value, so subjective percentage
adjustments in 5% increments were used to recognize clear superiority or inferiority of a
characteristic of each sale in comparison to the subject site.

On the following page is a Land Sales Chart showing the salient facts regarding each comparable
followed by a discussion, analysis and adjustment grid.

47




LAND SALES CHART

APN # Sale Price | Land Area
No Location Sale Date Zoning : i}
1 001-173-01, 02, 07,12, 17,19-21 $200,000 * 1.78 $2.58 [Steep lots, w/2 old rentals on prop.
220-289 S. C St. Net s/p - $80,000 for imprvmts.
7/28/2017 c2
2 01-133-07 $45,000 42 $2.46 orner lot with streets on east and
316 So. G St. est sides, not parceled but util.
10/17/2017 CR vailable.
3 01-127-03 $15,000 A7 $2.03 teep lot on paved street with util,
646 So. H St. n street
12/08/2016 CR
4 01-121-02 $70,000 5632 $2.85 orner lot. ,moderate slope, paved
660 S. F St. £,
077/11/2018 CR
Subj. 01-172-04 N/A .16 ac evel lot with easement access, no
“ bet. H & | Streets bet. Potosi St. & tilities
Page St. I-2

i
B

Discussion and Analysis
Sale 1 is a multi-parcel sale of eight separate contiguous sites, including two with old buildings
on the lots which have marginal value estimated at $40,000 each, leaving a net land value of
$200,000. The property is on C Street which has good exposure but the lots have a fairly steep
downslope from the highway and it will be difficult to develop, albeit, the subject will need a
legal street extension and some utilities extended if it is ever developed. This was an all cash
sale through a Realtor at close to the listing price. This sale needs no adjustment for conditions
of the sale or for time but should be adjusted downward for location and access and availability
of utilities. Alternately, this sale should be adjusted upward for the considerable slope and the
difficulty that will be encountered in developing the lots but development expenses will also be
incurred for the subject as it will need a legal street and utilities to be developed. This sale also
needs a considerable upward adjustment for size as all else being equal, larger parcels tend to sell
for less per square foot smaller parcels. No adjustment is considered required for zoning.

48



== "Kw

Sale 2 is a single parcel with paved streets on two sides and utilities available in the streets. The
terrain has a gentle slope to the east but the parcel is buildable without too much expense. This
was an all cash sale in a private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the
sale or for time. The location is superior and more homogeneous than the subject site and it has
utilities available in the paved streets. The terrain is sloping, so some expense will be required to
develop the parcel. This sale needs a upward adjustment for size in comparison to the subject
parcel but no adjustment is considered required for zoning.

Sale 3 is a single parcel with a paved street on one side but it is very steep. This was a cash sale
in a private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for time. The
location is considered comparable to the subject because but it is on a paved street with utilities
available. The terrain is steep, so it will require considerable expense to develop the parcel. This
sale needs no adjustment for size.

Sale 4 is a very recent sale of a parcel located southwest of the subject a short distance. It has a
gentle down slope from a paved street and borders SR 341. It was a cash sale to a party who had
been interested in buying a parcel in the area and made a personal inquiry to the owner. The
buyer plans on building a shop on the site and a home sometime in the future. This sale needs no
adjustment for conditions of the sale or time but the location and access are slightly more
superior than the subject’s location and access. This sale needs an upward adjustment for size as
all else being equal larger parcels typically sell for less per unit value than smaller parcels like the
subject.

Discussion & Analysis of Factors Affecting Value
Following is a discussion of the previously described factors that affect value.

Financing and Conditions of the Sale
All the sales are considered open market transactions, so no adjustment is required for this
category.

Market Conditions (time)
No time adjustment is considered necessary for the sales as are fairly recent.

Location and Access

The subject is in an area where there are no permeant street improvements or utilities but there is
access into the general area through proscriptive road easements Sale 1 is on C Street which has
good access and exposer, streets and utilities available; likewise, Sales 2 borders two paved
streets and all utilities available. Sale 3 also is on a paved street with utilities available and Sale
4 has power and water available but no sewers; the location and access are superior to the subject
site.

Lot Size

All the sales require upward adjustments for size in comparison to the subject as all else being
equal, larger sites typically sell for less per square foot than smaller sites like the subject site.

49




Kw

Use or Zoning
No adjustment is made for this category as the uses and zoning for all the sales are compatible

with each other.

Terrain
Sale 1 has a moderate to steep down slope from the street as does Sale 3, so both sales should be

adjusted upward in comparison to the subject for this item. Sales 2 and 4 has gentle slopes and
will be less difficult to develop and are comparable to the subject in this category.

On the following page is an adjustment grid showing the adjustments to the comparable sales for
the various categories that affect value on a price per square foot basis.

ADJUSTMENT GRID -
Sale Subject 1 2 u 4
Location Both sides of 1 | 220-289S. | 316S.G | 646 So.H 660 So. F
St. bet. Page St C st. St. St. St.
& Flowery St.
Sale/ Price $200;000 $45,000 $15,000 $70,000
Sale Date 7/28/2017 | 101 ;/20] 12/0%/201 07/11/2018
Size (acre) 0.16 1.78 0.43 0.17 0.56
Price/SF $2.58 $2.40 $2.03 $2.85
Time Adj. 0% 0% 0% 0%
Cond. Of Sale 0% 0% 0% 0%
Adj. Price/SF $2.58 $2.40 $2.03 $2.85
Adjustments
Location/ «5% -5% -5% -5%
Access
Size 20% 15% 0% 15%
Shape/Utility 5% 0% 5% 0%
Dev. Expense -5% -5% -5% -5%
Zoning 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total Adj. 15% 5% -5% 5%
Ad'!usted $/SF $2.97 $2.52 $1.92 $3.00 |

* adj. for improvements

With adjustments the price per square foot ranges from $1.92/SF to $3.00/SF with the arithmetic
average of the sales is $2.60/SF and the median $2.75/SF. Sale 1 is the least comparable to the
subject in location and size and is weighted the least. Sale 2 along with Sale 4 are the most
comparable overall to the subject site and with most weight to these two sites and some con-
sideration to the mean and median values, the final value is supported at $3.00/SF for a value

50



indication of the subject property of:

.16 acres (7,000 SF) x $2.75/SF = $19,250, rounded to $19,500
With some contributory value of the fencing estimated at $1,500, the final value of this property
is placed at $21,000.

RECONCILIATION AND FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE

INDICATED VALUE BY SALES COMPARISON APPROACH: $21,000

The Cost Approach the Income Approach were not considered relevant as the subject is has no
substantial improvements, nor is it considered and income property, per se.

The Sales Comparison Approach is used by Realtors® and by buyers and sellers as well.
Through the common unit of comparison, namely the price per square foot basis for the land
area, sales can be compared to the subject property and a meaningful value range formed if
proper recognition is given to the factors affecting value. With adjustments to the sales for the
factors affecting value, and the addition value contributory value of the improvements added to
the land value, there is good support for the final value indication by this approach.

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, it is the opinion of the
appraiser that the Market Value of the subject property is supported at $21,000.

Exposure Time and Marketing Time

Based on a discussion with a discussion with an industrial broker in the area and observation of
the marketing time of the sales and listings, it is estimated that at the appraised value the
exposure time would be from three months to one year and without any evidence to the contrary,
the marketing time in the future is expected to be the same, or from three months to one year at
the appraised value.

CERTIFICATION

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:

- The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.

- The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported
assumptions and limiting conditions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased
professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions.

- ] have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this
appraisal and no personal interest with respect to the parties involved and have
acted in our own independent capacity.

- I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to
the parties involved with the assignment.

- My engagement in this assignment is not contingent upon the development or
reporting of a predetermined value, a requested minimum value or approval of a
loan or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the

31




value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence ofa
subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal.

- My analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been
prepared in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice and the Appraisal Institute. The appraiser is competent by education,
training and experience to perform this appraisal.

- This appraiser has not appraised the subject property nor performed any services
regarding the subject in any capacity in the last 36 months time period.

- I, Sam Ward, have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of
this appraisal.

7
. ot

Samuel K. Ward
Nevada Certified General Appraiser,
No. A.0000123-CG

52




ADDENDA




QUALIFICATIONS
SAMUEL K. WARD
Real Estate Appraisers/Consultants
106 East Adams St., Suite 212
Carson City, NV 89706
(775) 885-8822 FAX (775) 885-7808

e-mail: sward%skwrea.com
Nevada Certified General Appraiser - A.0000123-CG Expiration date: 4/30/2019

Background and Experience
Farming & Ranching Background on Family Ranch - Yakima, Washington
Farm & Heavy Equipment Marketing (Caterpillar/John Deere) - Yakima Washington 1965-67

Custom Home Construction - Seattle, Washington 1968

Real Estate Sales - Seattle & Spokane, Washington, & Carson City, Nevada 1969-76

Nevada Division of State Land, Land Agent 1977

Eagle Service Corporation (First Federal Savings & Loan), Staff Appraiser 1977-80

Eagle Service Corporation, Senior Commercial Appraiser 1981-82

Independent Fee Appraiser, Northern Nevada & North Eastern California 1983-Present
Education and Technical Training

Univ. of Colorado 1959-61

Univ. of Washington, B.A. Business Administration (Marketing-Finance) 1961-64

Real Estate Sales (Brokers License), Washington State 1969-72

Real Estate Sales - Carson City, Nevada 1973-76

Society of Real Estate Appraisers: 1979-83

Appraisal Institute Associate Member: 1983-present

Type of Appraisals Completed
Residences, Land, including Farms, Ranches, Subdivisions, Mining Properties, Apartments, All Types of
Commercial & Income Properties, Industrial Properties, Condemnation, Estate and Various Specialty
Properties (Banks, Motels, Convenience Mkts./Service Stations, Casinos, etc.), Fractional Interests &
Lease Analysis, Estates & Estate Planning

Areas Served )
All of Northern Nevada & Lake Tahoe Area, plus surrounding Counties in California

Affiliations
Affiliate Member of the Appraisal Institute- Reno/ Carson City/ Lake Tahoe Chapter

Partial List of Banks, Large Corporations & Government Agencies Served

Partial List of Banks: Large Corporation: Expert Witness:
Nevada State Bank Texaco, Exxon, Mobil, ARCO Carson District Court
City National Bank Unocal, Standard Oil Co. Douglas District Court
Focus Business Bank Government Entities: Washoe District Court
Bank of America Reno Airport Authority Fed. Bankruptcy Court, Reno
Union Bank of California City of Reno, Nevada
The Mechanics Bank City of Carson, Douglas, Lyon, Washoe, Story counties in Nevada

Bruning State Bank U.S. Department of Interior, BLM & U.S. Forest Service




Sam Ward

From: Jeff Peters <itdrvparts1@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 11:00 AM
To: sward@skwrea.com

Subject: PD5110610

. Sam your FedEx tracking # is 772916251064.
Thank you for your business!

Jeff
Leisure Time Distributing



AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Virginia City Ventures, Inc. a Nevada
corporation hereafter referred to as VC Ventures and the County of Storey, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada, hereafter referred to as “County” and is entered into as of the date of its execution by the last party
signing this Agreement as is hereafter set forth.

WHEREAS, VC Ventures owns a parcel of real property in Virginia City, Nevada suitable for use in
conjunction with the staging of special events on what is known as the fairgrounds in Virginia City; and,

WHEREAS, County desires to purchase the area for use in conjunction with the staging of special
events on the fairgrounds; and,

WHEREAS, County has had the real property owned by VC Ventures appraised as required by NRS
244.275; which appraisal has valued the property at $41,000.00 as of August 8, 2018; and,

WHEREAS, County and VC Ventures are willing to purchase and sell the property on the terms
hereafter set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises herein contained, and
other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed as follows:

1. Subiect Property. VC Ventures does hereby agree to sell and County does hereby agree to
purchase all that certain real property situate in Virginia City, Nevada described as Lots 6, 7, and 8 of Block
210 Range H, Virginia City, Nevada and bearing Assessor Parcel Number 001-172-01 (the Property) which is
more particularly described on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full, together
with all improvements thereon and easements appurtenant thereto.

2. Purchase Price. The total purchase price for the real property is the sum of Forty-One Thousand
Dollars ($41,000.00).

3. Payment of Purchase Price. The purchase price shall be paid in full on the date of the close of
€SCIOW.

4. Appraisal Cost. The VCTC has had an appraisal performed with regard to the property by
Samuel K. Ward, Nevada Certified General Appraiser No. 00123. The VCTC will be responsible for all costs

incurred in having the appraisal conducted.

5. Escrow. Upon the execution of this Purchase Agreement, the parties shall open an escrow at
Ticor Title Company, in Carson City, Nevada, to consummate the purchase in accordance with the terms and
provisions hereof. The provisions hereof shall constitute joint instructions to the escrow holder; provided,
however, that the parties shall deposit all funds and execute such additional instructions as requested by the
escrow holder in order to complete the sale in accordance with the terms set forth herein. Said escrow shall




close on or about January 5, 2019, but in no event prior to County’s opportunity to review and offer
exceptions to the preliminary title report. County will pay the escrow fee.

6. Possession. VC Ventures agrees to, and shall, deliver possession of the subject property to
County upon the close of escrow. All of the personal property must be removed from the property by August
1,2019.

7. Termination of Fairgrounds Lease. At the close of escrow, the parties agree that the lease
between the Virginia City Tourism Commission, the Comstock Gold Mill LLC and VC Ventures, Inc.,
regarding the Property will be terminated by an instrument deposited into escrow and effective as of the day of
close of escrow.

8. Title Policy. The Owner’s policy of title insurance shall be a standard coverage form policy of
title insurance to be paid for by County, subject only to the following exceptions: non-delinquent taxes, non-
delinquent assessments, and any restrictions, conditions, reservations, right-of-way or easements of record

9. Proration. All adjustments shall be made as of the date of closing of the escrow opened by this
Agreement, and shall be prorated between VC Ventures and County to that date. The items to be adjusted and

prorated are:

A. Current taxes against the real property computed on a calendar year basis.

B. Unpaid but not delinquent special assessments for local improvements, but all
installments of such assessments due after the closing date shall be assumed and paid by the County.

C. Other prepaid expenses and accrued liabilities which the parties shall agree upon.

10.  Inspections. County will accept the Property “as is”. County does not request any inspections of
the Property.

11. Entire Agreement. VC Ventures and County agree that this Agreement contains all of the
provisions of the agreement between VC Ventures and County for County’s purchase of the Property and its
improvements. There are no agreements, warranties or representations, express or implied, except those
expressly set forth herein. Neither County or VC Ventures shall have any liability for agreements, warranties or
representations, except those expressly set forth herein, and VC Ventures shall not be liable by reason of any
agreement, representation or warranty made by any third party to County. All agreements, representations and
warranties contained in this Agreement shall apply as of the closing date and shall survive the closing of this

Agreement.

12.  Full Performance. This Agreement and the terms and conditions hereof shall apply to and are
binding upon the heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns of VC Ventures and County.




13.  Conflicts of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Nevada.

14.  Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in all of the provisions of this Agreement.

15. Notices. All notices to be given with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing. Each notice
shall be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, and return receipt requested, to the party or parties
to be notified at the address or addresses set forth herein, or at such other address as either party may, from time
to time, designate in writing. Every notice shall be deemed to have been given at the time it shall be deposited
in the United States mail in the manner prescribed herein. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to

preclude personal service of any notice.
The address for County for purposes of this paragraph is:

Storey County
P.OBox 176
Virginia City, NV. 89440

With copy to:

Storey County District Attorney
PO Box 496
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

The address for VC Ventures for purposes of this paragraph is:

2656 Danielle Drive
Carson City, NV 89706

16.  Attorney’s Fees. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties hereto concerning this
Agreement or the property the subject of this Agreement, or the rights or duties of either party relating thereto,
the party prevailing in such litigation shall be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to a
reasonable sum as and for said attorney’s fees in such litigation and costs of court herein.

17.  Time for Acceptance. VC Ventures understands that the consummation of this agreement is
dependent upon the approval of this agreement by the Board of County Commissioners in a duly noticed public
meeting of the Board. Accordingly VC Ventures agrees that authority of the County to accept this agreement
will remain open for a period of thirty days from the date VC Ventures signs this Agreement.

18.  Real Estate Agency and Commission County has not utilized the services of a real estate broker
or real estate sales person in connection with this transaction, and County shall not be liable for the payment of




any commission to any real estate broker or sales person, ot to any other person or entity, in connection with
this transaction.

19.  Interpretation and Representation. No provision in this Agreement is to be interpreted either for

or against either VC Ventures or County because that party or that party’s legal representative drafted the
provision. VC Ventures and County acknowledge that VC Ventures and County have each had the opportunity
to consult with independent legal counsel concerning the terms and conditions and consequences of this

Agreement prior to signing the Agreement.

County agrees to Purchase the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
Dated this day of , 2018.

STOREY COUNTY

By Marshall McBride
Chairman Board of County Commissioner of Storey County

Attest:

Storey County Clerk

The undersigned VC Ventures agrees to sell the property on the terms and conditions as stated in this
agreement.

Dated this 24 #Aday of aet, _, 2018.

Virginia City Ventur

L s g tn

By Scott Jelgaver, President




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
All that certain real property situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, described as follows:
THE SURFACE RIGHTS ONLY IN AND TO:

Lots 6, 7 and 8 in Block 210, Range H, as shown on the Official Map of Virginia City filed June 6, 1865 in the
office of the County6 Recorder of Storey County, State of Nevada.

Excepting therefrom any portion of the herein described lands lying within the existing public right of way for
roads and appurtenances thereto and bearing Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-072-01
t




EXHBIT B

PICTURE OF ACCESS LOCATION




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
All that certain real property situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, described as follows:

THE SURFACE RIGHTS ONLY IN AND TO:

Lots 6, 7 and 8 in Block 210, Range H, as shown on the Official Map of Virginia City filed June 6, 1865 in the
office of the County6 Recorder of Storey County, State of Nevada.

Excepting therefrom any portion of the herein described lands lying within the existing public right of way for
roads and appurtenances thereto and bearing Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-072-01



EXHBIT B
PICTURE OF ACCESS LOCATION



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 4, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda[ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action to approve purchase of property from Virginia City Holdings
LLC of parcels of real property identified as Lots 6 — 16 and the south half of Lot 5 Block
180, Lots 3 — 17 Block 181; Lots 1- 6 Block 200; and Lots 1-6 Block 201 all within Range H,
Virginia City, Nevada and bearing Assessor Parcel Numbers 001-135-07; 001-136-01; 001-
173-01 and 001-176-01 (the Property) for the price of $445,000.00

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the agreement for the
purchase of the Property from Virginia City Virginia city Holdings LLC for the price of
$445,000.00

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The Virginia City Tourist Commission has had the Property appraised by Sam
Ward who determined that the appraised value of the property is $445,000.00. The
property is presenty leased by the Virginia City Tourism Commeission for use as a
fairgrounds. For this reason, the VCTC is asking that the County purchase the Property.

5. Supporting materials: Agreement for the purchase of real property from Virginia City
Holdings LLC. Sam Ward appraisal.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

\D




[1] Approved
[] Denied

—r—

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Agenda Item No.




APPRAISAL REPORT

OF
FOUR PROPERTIES
LOCATED IN THE VICINITY OF THE
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AS OF
July 26, 2018

PREPARED FOR
Mr. Deny Dotson, Tourism Director
Virginia City Tourism Commission (VCTC)
86 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

BY
SAMUEL K. WARD
REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS/CONSULTANTS
106 EAST ADAMS STREET, SUITE 212
CARSON CI'I;gb?I()EB\/ADA 89706




SAMUEL K. WARD e« REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS/CONSULTANTS
1 . B )

' (775) 885-8822

August 8, 2018

Mr. Deny Dotson, Tourism Director
Virginia City Tourism Commission (VCTC)
86 South C Street

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re:  Appraisal Report of four properties located in the Virginia City Fairgrounds area of
Virginia City, Nevada

Dear Mr. Dotson:

As you requested, I have completed an investigation and analysis of the above referenced
properties in order to estimate their current Market Value as a basis for negotiating the sale of the
properties to Storey County.

The following report provides a description of each property and presents a review of all
pertinent data analyzed in forming the final estimates of value. A fee simple ownership is
presumed.

Based on my investigation and analysis, it is my opinion that the Market Value of the properties
as of July 26, 2018, the last date of inspection and effective date of the appraisal, were as
follows:

VC Holdings - 4.54-acre parcel $445,000
VC Ventures - .34-acre parcel $ 41,000
Richard Correll - Warehouse property $ 97,000
Mark Charlton - .16-acre parcel $ 21,000
Sincerely,
; 7 )7

Samuel K. Ward,
Nevada Certified General Appraiser No. 00123




SKW
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Title Page ...ttt i i i et a e Preface
Letterof Transmittal . ... .. ..ietinunemnniernrerinnaeraoasreatonssnsasasnns Preface
Table Of CONENLS .+ 4o ouvveeeennneennanconeroveessesennansonncsnsrsssnsnasns Preface
Intended User and Use of the Appraisal ...........coovvievinns e aereasrasanaiaas 1
Definition of Market Value ........ootrerinineiiieriionanactoncssrnonnessesenncns 1
Property Rights Appraised ..............ccoceiiiiiienn. R A 1
Effective Date of Valuation ...........oviiienirnrrninancnnenareesassonsnassneens 1
Appraisal Development & Reporting Process ............ooiiiiiiiiinineiiennene. 1
Contingent and Limiting Conditions ........ Ceereeaeaas et esetesrasesareae e 2
Regional Map . ... viiienetiieneeniaaean s eibaarsneaanttesnassensientns 3
AreaMap ... ...t e Cerriiesasaseniernns 4
Virginia CIty MAD ... ovvvnuriiiieiasineanesnernataieeateanesetostcnantnnanneens 4
Virginia City Area Data & Neighborhood Description ............ocociiiimininianenans 5
Virginia City Holdings 4.54-ac site - Property Identification & SiteMap .................. 7
13100 TS R LR R 8
AerialMap & SiteData .........cvviiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiiieaaae eeees 9
Highest & BestUS .. ouutiinniiiiaiiianeniatiinseannreeiissansennonns 12
AVZ1 107203 1oy + W S R AL E vee.n 13
ReCONCIHAON o\ v vt eieoiesaseeneenecasoanonnonasosssasnsassnnsannssses 17
Virginia City Ventures .34-acre site - Property Identification & SiteMap .........coanennn 19
PROTOS . oo ot e et ee i iiiae i iesanenarsnsssasanasesensassanonsnsasaresansn 20
Aerial Map & Slte Y17 N R 21
Highest & BestUse .........ooiiiinnnennnns Cheasisemesrtenasasiranne 23
ValUAON o\t o er et eseiseenannessanasanssnnsonasesonsssssastossansnnns 24
ReconCIIAtON ... .uvviiienneernsseensreenronassoossosasonnsasesnnscncsss 29
Richard Corrrell Warehouse property - Property Identification & SiteMap ................ 30
PROTOS © o vttt e e cmaeneasesansenecsosssannenasasrassrassassatassnnos 31
Aerial Map & Site Data .. ... .cooviiiiii ittt 32
Improvement DesCIiption .. .....ovuvereiiiiiiiiiiineaiiii e 35
Highest & BeStUSE . ..ovvvriuiunreinnnnectisiunaseronceserannnreronaerane 35
Valuation ............... e AP 36
RECONCIHAONM .+ + v e v e v eevseereeensenseneesesesnassosusasenansoressessdl
Mark Charlton 7,000 SF site - Property Identification & Site Map ....................... 42
Photos ........... terecrrseeasanan P &
AerialMap & SiteData ..........coiieviiii i e 44
Highest & BestUSe .. .....vvnuiineniee i iinieneeenesenaaaanens 46
A 2T ta 1) s R P LR L L R R 47
Reconciliation ............ . e 51
CertifiCAtION . .. ..o ves s e ineenneesonososnssasnsansnssssorssansssssssens 51
Addenda
Appraiser’s Qualifications




Sk -
W —
INTENDED USER AND USE OF THE APPRAISAL

This appraisal is being prepared for use by the Storey County, the Virginia City Tourism
Commission and the current property owner’s for use in determining the fair market value of
each property as a basis in negotiating the sale of each property to Storey County.

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE

The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market under
all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently, knowledgeably,
and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the
consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller to buyer under
conditions whereby:

a) buyer and seller are typically motivated;

b) both parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he
considers his own best interest;

c) a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

d) payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial
arrangements comparable thereto; and

e) the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by
special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated
with the sale.’

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED

The property rights in this appraised are the fee simple ownership assuming no indebtedness
against each property.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUATION

The estimate of value applies as of July 26, 2018, the last date of inspection. The report date is
August 8, 2018.

APPRAISAL DEVELOPMENT AND REPORTING PROCESS

In preparing this appraisal, I
] inspected each property and improvements;

° gathered and analyzed local economic and demographic data and searched county
data and MLS data for sales and listings of comparable properties in the area; and

° applied the Sales Comparison Approach in estimating the final value for each
property.

1(Ref.: Federal Home Loan Bank Board)




CONTINGENT AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

This appraisal report and the valuation reported herein are made subject to the following
assumptions and limiting conditions.

1.

I have conducted an analysis in the form of an appraisal report which is intended to comply
with the reporting requirements set forth under Standard Rule 2-2(b) of the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice reporting options. As such, much of the
discussion of the data, reasoning and analyses that were used in the appraisal process to
develop the appraiser's opinion of value are not reported herein. Supporting documentation
concerning the data, reasoning and analyses is retained in the appraiser’s file. The
information contained in this report is specific to the needs of the client and is for the
intended use stated in this report. The appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized use of

this report.

The appraiser assumes no responsibility for matters of a legal nature affecting the property
appraised or the title thereto. Title to the property is assumed to be marketable.

Estimates, data, and opinions furnished by informed persons are believed to be correct and
reliable but are not guaranteed.

This appraisal is to be considered in its entirety. The distribution of land and improve-
ments applies only under current land utilization and is invalid under any other use.

The appraiser is not required to give testimony or appear in court because of having made
this appraisal unless arrangements have been previously made.

It is assumed the property will be under competent management and that reasonable
maintenance will prevail.

The appraiser assumes that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property,
subsoil, or structures which would render it more or less valuable. The appraiser assumes
no responsibility for such conditions or for engineering which might be required to discover
such factors.

No survey of the property was made. All maps and sketches in the report are made for
illustrative purposes and are submitted to assist the reader in visualizing the property.

Neither all, nor any part of the contents of this report or copy thereof, shall be used for any
purpose by anyone but the client without the previous written consent of the appraiser
and/or client; nor through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without
the written consent and approval of the author, regarding valuation conclusions, reveal the
identity of the appraiser, or a firm with which he is connected, or make any reference to any
professional society or institute with which he is affiliated.




REGIONAL MAP




VIRGINIA CITY MAP

B S C BULETTE RED LGHT Musits
@ AASIGALL ANT & RMUSEUM

B KE VAR GAMB I3 MUSELS CREAA
B TEHUTORIAL ENTERPHIGE MARK AN MUSELY  jiouiee
% T STERR RISTORIC RADE LSS M .

STOREY COUNTY COURTIS
VIFICHIIA CITY CORVENTION A THORY

CRMSTOUK FIREMANS Mﬂ&"
\
|
\
\ COMETOUK Yt {1 85
\ &4
~
&
Cep ™~
LN o AL
SCHCH MLsEOM
[
VAN
CS
~
[
Y
~
'i":‘ e
€\
%L}"\ .
4’4" g
N
] S
1
. N [RTANEN
o e
- . - SR

e 4 &,
M"vmm:wmTRUGKE!E

Gold Hill

8t Masys Art

“'I

!,/!/ [5 Viegia City




_— me —
VIRGINIA CITY AREA DATA

Virginia City, the county seat of Storey County, is a historic mining town listed as a national
historic landmark. In its heyday as a mining town in the 1860s, Virginia City was home to over
30,000 people. According to the 2010 estimates by the Nevada State Demographer’s Office,
Virginia City has a population today of 998 and listed the number of people in Storey County at
4,234, The majority of the population is located in Virginia City, Gold Hill, and Silver City with
smaller populations in the Virginia Highland development north of Virginia City as well as the
extreme northern portions of the Mark Twain area of Dayton Valley and the community of
Stagecoach.

State Highway 341, which connects Virginia City to Reno and Carson City, is the primary
thoroughfare through town, where it is known as “C” Street. C Street is developed with over
sixty gift shops, plus numerous restaurants and historic saloons. Other tourist attractions include
s some historic mansions, the Chollar mine office, the Fourth Ward School House, three historic
churches, Piper’s Opera House and the V & T Railroad, which makes several runs per day from
April through October over a short distance to Gold Hill. The V&T Railroad also runs from

| Moundhouse which is five miles east of Carson City, to Virginia City with service from
Memorial Day through October every Friday, Saturday and Sunday with a three hour layover in
Virginia City. In addition, several small museums are housed in stores or saloons on “C” Street,
including several gift shops and jewelry shops. There are two convenience markets, a public
library, one gas station and a post office in the community, plus a landing pad for care-flight
service to Renown Regional Hospital in Reno.

The economy of Virginia City is centered on tourism, which accounts for about 90% of the
economic base of the town; it is estimated that over two million visitors come to Virginia City
every year. Although most tourists are day-trippers who arrive by car or bus, construction of the
Silverland Inn (formerly Ramada Hotel) completed in August of 2006, does offer overnight
lodging. The hotel has 68 rooms available and it’s location near the former Virginia & Truckee
railroad route provides modern amenities while maintaining the Victorian style that is prevalent
in Virginia City.

It is noted that since there are no major shopping stores or grocery stores in the area, and because
of its altitude (6,200") and windy roads to the community, plus the fact there is a limited amount
of water available for future development, there is very little new construction in Virginia City.




NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION

The four subject properties are all located in the area of the Storey County Fair Grounds or in the
southwest quadrant of Virginia City which was in the past an area with a large mine dump of
material taken from mines in the immediate area. However, several years ago one of the mining
companies who owned the land, leveled the ground which is now an area of approximately 15 -
20 acre that is used as the Storey County Fair Grounds and Events Center. Much of the land
outside the platted but undeveloped streets is privately owned by several individuals or entities
and is leased to the county. Access is via F Street with a railroad crossing just south of Flowery
Street. The area is predominantly zoned light industrial but there has been no new development
in the area except for one small privately owned metal storage building and of course the uses of
the area for the Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center. Utilities are extended along F
Street to the west and along Flowery Street to the north. Power is available in the area.
Extensions may have to be made to bring utilities to each site, depending on what type of
development may some day be proposed for the sites; albeit, there are immediate plans to run a
sewer line through the area.

Trend
The neighborhood is stable but is gradually improving as the access into the fairgrounds is being
improved and utilities are being brought into the area.




— m—————
——

SKW — —

VIRGINIA CITY HOLDINGS, LLC 4.54-ACRE SITE
LOCATED BETWEEN H & K STREETS & SILVER STREET
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NV
PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The subject property consists of four non-contiguous parcels
located on both sides of I Street between Page Street and Flowery Street in the southeast
quadrant of Virginia City in an industrial area currently used as the Virginia City
Fairgrounds and Events Center because of its level terrain. The undeveloped streets in the
old plat of Virginia City separate the sites but these right of ways probably would be
abandoned if the sites were developed as one parcel.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The sites
may briefly be described as Lots 6-16 and the south half of Lot 5 Block 180; Lots 3 - 17
Block 181; Lots 1 - 6 Block 200, and Lots 1 - 6 Block 201, Range H, Virginia City,
Nevada. The parcels are also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel
Numbers (APNs) 001-135-06; 001-136- 01; 001-173-01 and 001-176-01

Owner of Record - Virginia City Holdings, LLC

Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and
to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last

purchased.

SITE MAP

STREET

k!

SRR s T
é,

{

]
J
i:-\
L]




SUBJECT PHOTOS

View of the site
looking south
from near the
north end

 View of the site
looking north from
near the south end




AERIAL SITE MAP




SKW

SITE DATA

Location

The subject site or sites (they are all non-contiguous with the platted streets not in but presumed
to be abandoned if the site is ever developed) and are all located between H Street and K Street
north of Page Street and south of Flowery Street in the southeast section of Virginia City in an
industrial zoned area currently leased to Storey County as the Virginia City Fairground and
Events Center.

Dimensions, Area and Shape

The parcels vary in size from (15), 50' x100' lots to (6), 50'x 100" lots; albeit, they have never
been developed and for the most part are zoned industrial, so the fact they are part of the original
plat of Virginia City, has no relevence in this instance. The total land area for all the lots is 4.54
acres plus the use of the streets in between the parcels which have never been developed and
should probably be available for use if the parcels are development as one site.

Topography & Drainage

The grade in the vicinity of the subject site generally level on the north end and south ends with a
grade change near the middle. The site is part of a large dump dirt excavated from the old mines
in the area that was leveled and terraced and compacted several years ago.

Soils and Subsoils

| No soil report was made available to this appraiser. The soils in the area appear to be a rocky,

| | sandy, gravel type compacted soil which is “dump” material from the adjoining mines that
operated in the area over 100 years ago. Several years ago the large pile of dump dirt that
overburdened the site was leveled, compacted and is currently mostly leased to the Storey County
for a nominal fee and operated as the Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center. It is noted
there are many miles of mining tunnels under the city that were dug in the later 1800s during the
search for gold and silver ore in the area but there is no evidence of settling under the subject site
now.

Availability and Description of Utilities

Storey County provides water and sewer service in the area. Virginia City and Gold Hill get their
potable water from Marlette Lake in the Sierras via a pipeline. There is limited water available
for new development with new service on an allocation basis. Electricity is provided by NV
Energy and telephone service is provided by AT&T; albeit, it was not determined if there are
water and sewer lines or electricity in the immediate area as it was never developed but there is a
sewer line proposed to the south of the subject property. There is no natural gas to the town;
instead, residents and businesses use propane, augmented by wood stoves or fireplaces.

Street Improvements and Access

There are no street improvements in the immediate area, even thought the streets are platted they
were never physically laid out or improved, so the street right of ways can probably be aban-
doned and used for development of the subject sites; there are no known plans to install any
streets and utilities, except for sewer service, in the immediate area, except for a roadway east off
of F Street which goes into the general area.

10




Zoning

The lots in Blocks 200 and 201 are zoned L-1 or light industrial and the zoning in Blocks 180
and 181 have split zoning with the south half of these two blocks zoned L-1 and the eastern half
R-1 or residential. Any development of the lots would require a design review and most likely
any public or private development would be approved if consistent with the desires of the
governing bodies and local residents. The zoning map below shows the current zoning of the
parcels. Note the subject parcels are in Blocks 180, 181, 200 and 201.

Zoning Map

Assessments and Taxes

The sites are identified by the Storey County Assessor's Office as parcel numbers 01-135-06;
136-01; 173-01 and 175-01. In Nevada the assessed value is 35% of the assessor's fair market
value estimate. In actual practice land values based on the assessor's estimate of fair market
value and improvement value are based on replacement cost new less 1.5% per year for
depreciation down to a minimum of 25% of the estimated replacement cost and land value is
based on the assessor’s estimate of its fair market value. The 2017/18 tax rate in the area is
$3.4607 per $100 of assessed value. According to the Storey County Assessors Office the
assessed values, taxes, and market values for the sites are as shown on the following page:

11




(7]
A

e
|

Assessed
APN Value Taxes Mkt. Vale | Size - acres
01-135-06 $7,065 $244.50 $20,186 1.45
01-136-01 $13,748 $266.80 $39,280 1.72
01-173-01 $7,710 $149.61 $22,029 0.69
01-176-01 $3,722 $244.50 $10,634 0.68
TOTAL $32,245 $905.41 $92,129 4.54

HIGHEST AND BEST USE

Highest and best use is defined as that reasonable and probable use that supports the highest
present value as defined as of the effective date of the appraisal.

There are four criteria which must be met in the analysis of highest and best use for both land
that is vacant and property that is improved. The highest and best use must be (1) physically
possible, (2) legally permissible, (3) financially feasible, and (4) maximally productive.
Generally, these criteria are analyzed in the preceding sequence because if a property fails any
one of the criteria, the subsequent criteria are irrelevant to the analysis.

Physically, the sites are considered one parcel and are a rectangular shaped. The parcel is larger
than most sites in the area but this is not considered a detriment to the property.

Legally, the site is zoned L-1, Light Industrial, and R-1, Residential, which is mixed zoning but
given the general development in the immediate area as an events center, the L-1 zoning would
have precedence in this instance and the need for a public use or private use as say an RV park
would probably be an acceptable use of the property.

Some of the financial beneficial uses would be those that meet the needs of the community as an
events center in combination with an RV park.

Right now the cost of money is still fairly low historically and there is demand in the community
for a fairgrounds and events center and for an RV park, so given these facts, a mixed use of the
site for a fair grounds and events center along a smaller RV would appear to result in the highest
and best use of the property. The financial feasibility is tested by the alternative of buying an
existing property for less than it costs to build a comparable property with the same utility or
renting a property with the same utility for less than it costs to build or own a similar property.
Because there are no other large, generally level sites in the area available or for sale right now
with the same utility as the subject site, the only alternative is buy or develop the subject

property.

The next test for what use would be the maximally most productive use of the sites. The
maximally most productive use of the site would be appear to be to assemble the sites as a single
parcel and seek abandonment of the platted but never built streets and possibly join this parcel
with adjoining sites to create a large enough parcel to accommodate a fair grounds and events

12




center and/or an smaller RV park in combination with development into a fairgrounds events
center.

Easements and Encroachments
No title report was available for review by the appraiser but it does not appear there are any
physical easements or encroachments that would adversely affect the subject property.

Surrounding Land Use

The subject is bordered on the south open vacant hilly industrial land, to the east by a ravine, to
the north by vacant parcels and a few modest homes and to the west by the V&T Railroad tracks.
None of the surrounding uses are considered detrimental to the subject property and there were
no conditions noted in the neighborhood that would adversely affect the subject property. In
conclusion, the subject property is considered a good site for assemblage and development as it is
part of the only larger almost level site in the community.

VALUATION

Normally, an appraiser has three methods of estimating the value of a property. These are known
as the Cost Approach, the Sales Comparison Approach, and the Income Approach. In the
appraisal of this property only the Sales Comparison using comparable land sales will be used.

SALE COMPARISON APPROACH

The Sales Comparison Approach is a technique in which the market value estimate is predicated
upon prices paid in actual market transactions or current listings, the former fixing the lower
limit of value in a static or advancing market (price-wise) and fixing the higher limit of value ina
declining market, and the latter fixing the higher limit of value in any market. The sales listed in
the tabular chart on the following page have been investigated, analyzed and compared to the
subject on a price per square foot of first floor area.

Land Sales

A search was conducted for comparable land sales and listings in the area and only four com-
parable sales were noted that were considered acceptable in estimating the value of the subject
site. The sales were investigated, analyzed and compared to the subject property on a price per
acre basis. Factors that affect value include the motivation of the buyer and seller or conditions
of the sale, market conditions at the time of sale (time), location and access, size, shape and
utility, zoning, and availability of utilities and whether or not there were any improvements
included in the sale. Any other factors that might affect value were also considered. Due to lack
of sales in the area and insufficient data to use paired sales for the factors affecting value,
subjective percentage adjustments in 5% increments were used to recognize clear superiority or
inferiority of a characteristic of each sale in comparison to the subject site. On the following
page is a Land Sales Chart showing the salient facts regarding each comparable followed by a
discussion, analysis and adjustment grid.

13




LAND SALES CHART

Sale APN # Sale Price | Land Area |
No Location Sale Date Zoning g o
1 001.173-01, 02, 07,12, 17,19-21 $200,000 * 1.78 ac Steep lots, w/2 old rentals on prop.
220-289 8. C St. Net s/p - $80,000 for imprvmts.
7/28/2017 c2
2 01-133-07 $45,000 43 ac $2.40 orner lot with streets on east and
316 So. G St. t sides, not parceled but util.
10/17/12017 CR vailable.
3 01-127-03 $15,000 A7 ac $2.03 nside lot, steep parcel, on paved st.
646 So. H St.
12/08/2016 CR
4 01-121-02 $70,000 5632 $2.85 orner lot, gentle slope, paved st.,
660 S. F St. iew
077/11/2018 CR
Subj. 01-135-06;136-01; 173-01; 176-01 N/A 4,54 ac evel lots with mixed zoning no St.
Both sides of | St. bet. Page St & prvmts. ULi. ext. req.
Flowery St. G-l
Location Map

»
Lipi

i “dauauge i

14




Kw

Discussion and Analysis

Sale 1 is a multi-parcel sale of eight separate but contiguous sites, including two with old homes
on them which have marginal value estimated at $40,000 each, leaving a net land value of
$200,000. The property is on C Street which has good exposure but the lots have a fairly steep
downslope from the highway and will be difficult to develop. This was an all cash sale through a
Realtor at close to the listing price. This sale needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for
time but should be adjusted downward for its location on a prominent street with a view and
availability of utilities. This sale needs a downward adjustment for size as all else being equal,
smaller parcels tend to sell for less than larger parcels. It should be adjusted upward for the
considerable slope and the difficulty that will be encountered in developing the lots. No
adjustment is considered required for zoning.

Sale 2 is a single parcel with paved streets and utilities on two sides. The terrain is sloping but
the parcel is buildable without too much development expense. This was an all cash sale in a
private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for time. This sale
needs a downward adjustment for size as all else being equal, smaller lots typically sell for more
per square foot that larger lots like the subject. The location is superior to the subject because the
area is more homogeneous and developed. The terrain is sloping, so it will require some expense
to develop the parcel but this is offset that it is on an existing road. No adjustment is considered
required for zoning.

Sale 3 is a small single parcel sale with paved street on one side but is very steep. This was a
cash sale in a private party transaction and needs no adjustment for conditions of the sale or for
time. The location is considered comparable to the subject but it is on a paved street with
utilities available. This sale needs a considerable downward adjustment for size as all else being
equal, smaller lots typically sell for more per square foot that larger lots like the subject. The
terrain is sloping, so it will require some expense to develop the parcel.

Sale 4 is a very recent sale of a parcel located southwest of the subject a short distance. Ithasa
gentle down slope from F Street which encroaches into the parcel somewhat and lowers the net
usable area of the site. There is power and water available to the site but sewer is about 400'. The
buyer has plans for a storage shed on the property and eventually a home. This was a cash sale.
The location and access are superior to the subject and it has a good territorial view. This site
needs a considerable downward adjustment for size as all else being equal, smaller sites typically
sell for less per unit value than larger sites like the subject. The site is rectangular but the street
encroached in to the site lower its net usable area or utility. Development expense would be
comparable to the subject except it is on a paved road and the subject parcel will require some
road construction.

Below is a discussion of the factors affecting value, followed by and adjustment grid.
Financing and Conditions of the Sale
All the sales are considered open market transactions, so no adjustment is required for this

category.

Market Conditions (time)
No time adjustment is considered necessary for the sales as are fairly recent.

15




SKW

Location and Access
The subject is in an area where there are no street improvements but there is access into the
general area without assemblage with adjoining parcels, streets will have to be improved to the
subject property; likewise utilities. Sale 1 is on C Street which has good access and exposer and
streets and utilities are available. Sales 2 has paved streets and utilities available. Sale 3 isona
paved road with all utilities available and Sale 4 is on a paved street with utilities available but
sewer.

Lot Size
All the lots are smaller than the subject, so they will require downward adjustments for size as all
else being equal, smaller parcels sell for more per square foot than larger parcels.

Use or Zoning
No adjustment is made for this category as the uses and zoning for all the sales are compatible
with each other.

Terrain

Sale 1 has moderately steep down slope from the street and Sale 3 also has a fairly steep slope
which will increase development costs for both parcels but the subject, though level needs street
and utility extensions to the site. Sales 2 and 4 has a gentle downslopes from the the street with
little development expense involved,

On the following page is an adjustment grid showing the relative percentage adjustments to the
comparable sales for the various categories that affect value on a price per square foot basis.

16




e

ADJUSTMENT GRID

* adj. for improvements

Sale ] ”Subject 1 2 3 4
Location Both sides of 1 | 220-2898S.C 3168.G 646 So. H 660 So. F
St. bet. Page St St. St. St. St.
& Flowery St.
Sale/ Price $200,000 * $45,000 $15,000 $70,000
Sale Date 7/28/2017 10/13/201 12/08/2016 | 07/11/2018
Size (AC) 4.54 1.78 0.43 0.17 0.56
Price/SF $2.58 $2.40 $2.03 $2.85
Time Adj. 0% 5% 0% 0%
Cond. Of Sale 0% 0% 0% 0%
Adj. Price/SF $2.58 $2.52 $2.03 $2.85
Adjustments
Location/ -5% -5% 0% ~5%
Access
Size -10% -10% -15% -10%
Shape/Utility 5% 0% -5% 5%
Dev. Expense 0% -5% 10% -5%
Zoning 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total Adj. -10% -20% -10% -15%
Adjusted $/SF $2.32 $2.02 $1.82 $2.43

With adjustments the price per square foot ranges from $2.02/SF to $2.43/SF with the arithmetic
average of the sales $2.15/SF and the median is $2.17/SF. Sale 1 is the least comparable except
for size as it is on main street but has a steep downslope from the street. Sale 2 is the most
similar overall in location and but requires a downward adjustment for size and for the better
location on paved streets with utilities available. Sale 3 is has a steep slope but is on a paved
street with utilities available but is much smaller than the subject. Sale 4 is a very recent sale and
is a superior lot with better frontage on a paved street. With the most weight to Sale 2 and 4, and
some consideration to the mean and median values, the final value is supported at $2.25/SF for a

value indication of the subject property of:

4.54 acres (197,762 SF) x $2.25/SF = $444,964, rounded to $445,000




SKW o S
RECONCILIATION AND FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE
INDICATED VALUE BY SALES COMPARISON APPROACH: $445,000

The Cost Approach and the Income Approach are not considered relevant when valuing a vacant
site like the subject and therefore were not used.

The Sales Comparison Approach is used by Realtors® and by buyers and sellers as well.
Through the common unit of comparison, namely the price per square foot basis for the land
area, sales can be compared to the subject property and a meaningful value range formed if
proper recognition is given to the factors affecting value. With adjustments to the sales for the
factors affecting value, there is good support for the final value indication by this approach.

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, it is the opinion of the
appraiser that the Market Value of the subject property is supported at $445,000.

Exposure Time and Marketing Time

Based on a discussion with a discussion with an industrial broker in the area and observation of
the marketing time of the sales, it is estimated that at the appraised value the exposure time
would be from three months to one year and without any evidence to the contrary, the marketing
time in the future is expected to be the same, or from three months to one year at the appraised
value.

18




VIRGINIA CITY VENTURES, INC. .34-ACRE SITE
LOCATED BETWEEN H & | STREETS
AND POTOSI AND PAGE STREETS
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NV

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The subject site is a rectangular parcel located on the north side of
Potosi Street between H Street and I Street in the southeast quadrant of Virginia City in an
industrial area currently used as the Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center because of
its level terrain.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The site
may briefly be described as Lots 6, 7 and 8 Block 210, Range H, Virginia City, Nevada. The
parcel is also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-
172-01.

Owner of Record - Virginia City Ventures, Inc.
Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and

to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last
purchased.

SITE MAP
o s P ven ye mvageIT

@'»3? g 9! .’53

$ LI y H
- o~ 3 L
_ ¥

® ® ()
27 z% 3 2©§ ¥

LA i

&

uan{z Tol 2y

2 REei it Nt hater
eeses

s
04
927 5s9t5e3
8. d600a0sspanss
AL LTI

>
FEI Pl
%
CRAA AL,
AL TTTLINT
T AR R TR
g H . H
&
#4 -
i
“
"
AELIIEPES S F22Y

P # b
&L P, '
)

MR

0

o~ €3
-~
~ .
©» .
-..w Yeh N oy
3ivaa
\ ey
-
L KT b
«© '
ST
-
-
-
- :55\\\,\\
e i3

19




SUBJECT PHOTOS

View of the site looking north with
subject site in foreground before
the building, note roadway
easement over the subject site.

View of the site looking south with
easemen